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October 21, 2016
VIA ELECTRONIC FILING

Attention: Kirsten Walli, Board Secretary
Ontario Energy Board

2300 Yonge Street

27" Floor

Toronto, ON MA4P 1E4

Dear Madam Secretary:

RE: Union Gas Ltd. — Panhandle Reinforcement Project — OEB File No. EB-2016-0186
CAEPLA-PLC Written Evidence
Our File No. 18162

We are the lawyers for CAEPLA-PLC in this proceeding. Please find enclosed CAEPLA-PLC’'s Written
Evidence Statement, including the expert report prepared on behalf of CAEPLA-PLC by Dr. Jane Sadler
Richards of Cordner Science.

In response to the request by Union in its letter to the Board dated September 19, 2016 that the oral
hearing in this proceeding, if necessary, be held in Leamington, Windsor or Chatham, we can advise that
CAEPLA-PLC supports Union’s request to hold the oral hearing in Chatham, but not the request to hold
the hearing in Leamington or Windsor. The properties affected by the proposed project are located
generally to the north and west of Chatham and holding the hearing in Chatham would enhance the
opportunity of landowners affected by the project to attend the hearing. However, neither Leamington
nor Windsor are in the vicinity of the route of the proposed pipeline.

Also, CAEPLA-PLC would support the scheduling of a settlement conference in this proceeding. CAEPLA-
PLC would suggest that any settlement conference be organized so that the landowner issues raised by
CAEPLA-PLC's intervention could be dealt with separately from the issues raised by the other
intervenors (which deal with ratepayer issues rather than lands issues) and, therefore, more efficiently.

We trust this is satisfactory. If you require any further information, please let us know.

Yours truly,
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John D. Goudy

Encl.

c.C.: Parties to EB-2016-0186
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EB-2016-0186
ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c. 15,
Schedule B, and in particular, S.90(1) thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c.
15, Schedule B, and in particular, S.36 thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas Limited for an Order or
Orders granting leave to construct natural gas pipelines and ancillary facilities in
the Township of Dawn Euphemia, Township of St. Clair and the Municipality of
Chatham-Kent;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas Limited for an Order or
Orders for approval of recovery of the cost consequences of all facilities
associated with the development of the proposed Panhandle Reinforcement
Pipeline Project.

CAEPLA-PLC WRITTEN EVIDENCE STATEMENT
October 21, 2016

1. The Canadian Association of Energy and Pipeline Landowner Associations (“CAEPLA”)
is a federally incorporated not-for-profit organization representing landowners from across
Canada. CAEPLA has been at the forefront of active engagement with pipeline companies and
federal and provincial regulators to develop new and better right-of-way agreements,
construction and remediation methodology, and compensation provisions to address the
impacts of pipeline construction and operation on agricultural landowners.

2. The Panhandle Landowner Committee (“PLC”) is a sub-committee of CAEPLA made up
of landowners in Lambton County and the Municipality of Chatham-Kent whose lands are
directly affected by the Panhandle Reinforcement Project proposed by Union Gas Limited

(“Union”). PLC comprises approximately 36 individual owners or ownership groups covering 50
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out of the approximately 128 land parcels affected by the project that are not owned by Union
itself.
3. CAEPLA-PLC has intervened in this proceeding to ensure that Union’s construction
methodologies and environmental protection measures are held to the highest standards by the
Board. CAEPLA-PLC and its members also have an interest in ensuring that the form of
landowner agreement(s) to be approved by the Board pursuant to Section 97 of the Ontario
Energy Board Act and offered to landowners satisfactorily addresses, inter alia, the
accommodation of farming practices and issues related to pipeline abandonment.

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY = LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

4, Union uses a Letter of Understanding (“LOU”) to set out commitments made to
landowners regarding construction methodology, remediation of affected properties, and various
compensation items. As stated in the LOU proposed by Union for the Panhandle
Reinforcement Project, Union “recognizes that the construction of the pipeline will result in
damage to the Landowner’s property and a disruption to the Landowner’s daily activities for
which the Company is obligated to compensate the Landowner and observe various
construction techniques to minimize such damages.”

5. The LOU has been developed over a number of years through negotiations between
Union and landowner groups (principally, the Gas Pipeline Landowners of Ontario or “GAPLO”,
which is a member association of CAEPLA). In 2006, Union and GAPLO agreed on the form of
LOU for the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline Project, making a number of

changes to previous agreements?.

! Union Response to CAEPLA-PLC IR 1.5, Attachment 1, page 25 of 46. The full text of the LOU is contained at
pages 24-41 of Attachment 1.

¢ EB-2005-0550, Decision and Order dated June 12, 2006; EB-2005-0550 Settlement Agreement between GAPLO-
Union (Strathroy-Lobo) and Union Gas Limited dated May 9, 2006 (Attachment 1); Transcript of EB-2005-0550
Receipt of Settlement Proposal, May 9, 2006 (Attachment 2); EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo LOU (Attachment
3). Note that the Strathroy-Lobo LOU was also used in connection with the NPS 36 Pipeline in EB-2007-0633 (see
excerpt from Union Pre-filed Evidence at Attachment 4); EB-2007-0633, Decision and Order dated October 19,
2007, page 7.
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6. Most recently, the LOU was modified for the EB-2014-0261 Hamilton to Milton NPS 48
Project in part as a result of a settlement agreement between Union and GAPLO and in part as
a result of changes ordered by the Board at GAPLO’s request in the EB-2014-0261
proceeding®.
7. For the Panhandle Reinforcement Project, Union has proposed a form of LOU that
includes most of what was approved in the EB-2014-0261 proceeding. However, on review of
the project proposal by PLC landowners, there are a number of important construction impact
mitigation measures missing from the proposed form of LOU. Some of these measures were
originally included in the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo LOU and removed by Union for the EB-
2014-0261 Hamilton to Milton LOU, and some are new measures being proposed by PLC
landowners to address concerns about the project not covered by previous forms of LOU.
8. CAEPLA-PLC’s proposed changes to the LOU for the Panhandle Reinforcement Project
are set out in the table attached as Attachment 5 to this written evidence®. CAEPLA-PLC'’s
proposed LOU language is contained in the right-hand column of the table, with changes to
Union’s proposed LOU highlighted in green. The table contains only provisions from the
proposed LOU where changes are being proposed by CAEPLA-PLC.
9. Union’s proposed Panhandle Reinforcement LOU language is contained in the adjacent
column in the table, second from the right. Where Union has included language not found in the
EB-2014-0261 Hamilton to Milton LOU, that additional or modified language is highlighted in
yellow.
10. The text of the EB-2014-0261 Hamilton to Milton LOU is contained in the middle column
of the table. The text of the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo LOU is contained in the second
column from the left. Language in the Strathroy-Lobo LOU that was changed or removed by

Union for the Hamilton to Milton LOU is highlighted in yellow.

¥ EB-2014-0261, Decision and Order dated April 30, 2015.
* CAEPLA-PLC Panhandle LOU Comparison Chart (Attachment 5).
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11. The far left hand column of the table contains references to equivalent LOU provisions
from the 2012 agreement between the Lake Huron Pipeline Landowners Association (‘LHPLA”)
and the Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System (“LHPWSS”) made in connection with the
recent Lake Huron Pipeline construction project through agricultural lands in southwestern
Ontario®.
12. The LOU updates being proposed by CAEPLA-PLC can be summarized as follows (in
the order in which they appear in the LOU):
a. Soybean Cyst Nematode Protocol to be developed in consultation with the Joint
Committee (consisting of Union and PLC members) (page 1, Section 2);
b. Stakes marking off easement topsoil storage are to be left in place during topsoil
stripping operations (page 1, Section 5);
c. Stakes are to be spray painted or otherwise marked in bright orange (page 1,
Section 5);
d. The easement should be restaked at the request of the landowner where post-
construction drainage tile work is being conducted (page 1, Section 5);
e. Topsoil and subsoil should be piled separately with one metre separation (page 2,
Section 6);
f. Topsail stripping should be undertaken with an excavator rather than with a bulldozer
to ensure accuracy (page 2, Section 6);
g. Topsoil that has been disturbed by previous Union construction projects should be
stripped and piled separately from topsoil that has not previously been disturbed by
Union construction projects, with one metre separation between piles (page 2,

Section 6);

® Letter of Undertaking between LHPLA and LHPWSS (Attachment 6).
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h. At the request of the landowner, a mulch layer should be provided between the
stripped topsoil pile and the underlying topsoil where a crop is not present (page 2,
Section 6);

i. At the request of the landowner, distinct subsoil horizons such as blue and yellow
clays should be separated, and excess blue clays should be removed from the
easement lands (page 3, Section 6);

J.  The pipeline should be installed at a minimum depth of 1.5 metres (5 feet) in
agricultural lands (page 3, Section 7);

k. Additional depth of cover should be provided to accommodate facilities such as
drainage where necessary (page 3, Section 7);

I.  Stone-picking should include stones of 50 mm (2 inches) in diameter or greater
(page 4, Section 9 and page 5, Section 9);

m. Post-construction tillage by Union may include cultivation, chisel ploughing and/or
deep tilling (page 4, Section 9);

n. Union should warrant replacement trees for a period of three years (page 11, Section
14);

0. Trench opened by Union at one time should not exceed 6 km in length (page 11,
Section 15);

p. Union should provide proof of criminal background checks for all company
employees, contractors and agents (page 12, Section 15);

g. Where minors may be present on a property where construction activities are being
conducted, Union should provide proof of criminal vulnerable sector background
checks for all company employees, contractors and agents (page 12, Section 15);

r.  Union should provide for site specific fixed (non-mobile) emergency stations during

construction activities (page 13, Section 15);
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Union must secure its work site(s) to prevent unauthorized access and/or to maintain
safety, including installation of fencing at the request of the landowner (page 13,
Section 15);

Union will import topsoil to remedy any areas affected by construction that have crop
losses in excess of 50% in the fifth year following construction (page 14, Section 15);
Union will consult with landowners with respect to farm biosecurity protocols and
requirements in effect on affected properties, and Union will conduct its activities in a
manner that respects the protocols and requirements in effect (page 16, Section 15);
The Integrity Dig Agreement between Union and GAPLO will apply to all integrity and
maintenance operations for the Panhandle Reinforcement Pipeline and for the
existing NPS 20 Pipeline, including pipe investigation, repair and replacement,
drainage remediation work and depth of cover remediation work (page 16, Section
15 and page 23, Section 30);

Where depth of cover over the pipeline falls below 1.2 metres in agricultural areas,
Union will restore depth to a minimum of 1.2 metres (page 17, Section 15);

Union will implement a Joint Committee consisting of Union and PLC representatives
for the project in respect of PLC-member properties (page 17, Section 15 and page
23, Schedule to be added);

Landowners will execute a Clean-Up Acknowledgement when satisfied with clean-up
operations (page 18, Section 15);

Union will facilitate landowner access to the construction work area upon request
(page 18, Section 15);

Where a dispute arises between Union and a landowner that cannot be resolved
through discussion or referral to the Joint Committee, Union may retain a mutually
satisfactory independent consultant to assist in dispute resolution (page 19, Section

16);
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bb. Union will assess affected woodlots or hedgerow areas prior to construction and will
provide a report to the landowner identifying trees that will be affected (page 19,
Section 22);
cc. Tree cutting and appraising will be carried out by a qualified forester retained by
Union and satisfactory to the landowner, acting reasonably (page 20, Section 22);
dd. Union will pay 100% crop loss on gored land (rendered inaccessible or unusable for
agricultural purposes during the project) (page 21, Section 23);
ee. At the landowner’s request, Union will plant a cover crop on gored land (page 21,
Section 23);
ff. An independent construction monitor shall be appointed for the project by Union,
CAEPLA-PLC and Board Staff (page 21);
gg. Union will indemnify and hold the landowner harmless from all liability arising from
the project except to the extent of gross negligence or wilful misconduct by the
landowner (page 22, Section 26);
hh. The Joint Committee and Construction Monitor will be involved in the implementation
of Union’s wet soils shutdown procedures (page 25, Schedule 5); and,
ii. Where construction is undertaken in wet soil conditions, Union will pay 150% of
disturbance and crop loss compensation on the area affected by the activities (page
27, Schedule 5).
13. CAEPLA-PLC’s proposed LOU updates are based on input received from PLC
landowners regarding their concerns about construction operations on their properties and on
input from Rick Kraayenbrink and lan Goudy based on their extensive experience with pipeline

projects on agricultural lands, including Union projects and the Lake Huron Pipeline®.

® EB-2005-0550 Written Evidence of lan Goudy (Attachment 7); EB-2005-0550 Written Evidence of Rick
Kraayenbrink (Attachment 8); GAPLO EB-2014-0261 Written Evidence Statement (Attachment 9); EB-2014-
0261 Transcript, Volume 1 (Attachment 10).
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14. CAEPLA-PLC has also obtained the opinion of Dr. Jane Sadler Richards about the
appropriateness of construction impact mitigation measures proposed by Union in its form of
Panhandle Reinforcement LOU and by CAEPLA-PLC with respect to soils handling, drainage,
and the appointment of a construction monitor and joint committee. Her report is attached as

Attachment 11 to this written evidence’. Dr. Sadler Richards participated as Construction

Monitor on the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline Project®.

15. With respect to its request for minimum depth of cover over the replacement pipeline of
1.5 metres in agricultural lands, CAEPLA-PLC notes that the minimum depth of cover required
for the Lake Huron Pipeline was 1.8 metres® and that the minimum depth of cover required for
the Ultramar Pipeline Saint-Laurent in Quebec was 1.6 metres. Increased depth of cover over
the proposed pipeline will provide increased safety and reduce the possibility of interference
with present or future agricultural operations.

16. CAEPLA-PLC notes that Union has removed from the EB-2014-0261 form of LOU the
requirement to restore depth of cover over the pipeline if it is reduced below a certain minimum
level. CAEPLA-PLC proposes that a minimum depth of cover of 1.2 metres in agricultural areas
be maintained over the replacement pipeline post-construction.

17. With respect to CAEPLA-PLC’s proposals concerning security and background checks
for Union employees, contractors and agents working on landowner properties, background
checks should be done to ensure that risk for the safety and security of property owners is
minimized during and after construction.

18. Where construction activities are taking place in the vicinity of residences and/or in areas

where minors may be present (which is the case for multiple PLC-member properties), minors

" Cordner Science, An Opinion Report on Selected Topics in the Panhandle Reinforcement Pipeline Project LOU
(Attachment 11). Note that Dr. Sadler Richards refers to an earlier version of the CAEPLA-PLC Panhandle LOU
Comparison Chart in her report (see Attachment 12).

® Cordner Science, FINAL REPORT Construction Monitor Services NPS 48 Strathroy Lobo Pipeline Project Union
Gas Limited (Attachment 13); Union Gas Limited Response to Recommendation by Cordner Science Final Report
(Attachment 14).

¥ Letter of Undertaking between LHPLA and LHPWSS, Part V, Section 16, page 12 (Attachment 6); CPTAQ
Decision dated June 25, 2008 (excerpts) (Attachment 15).
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may come into situations of direct interaction with Union’s employees, contractor and agents.
Vulnerable sector background checks will help to ensure the safety of minors during the project
and after its completion by denying access by identified individuals to properties where minors
may be present.
19. With respect to CAEPLA-PLC’s proposals concerning farm biosecurity protocols and
requirements, it is imperative that Union’s construction and operational activities respect those
protocols and requirements in place for the protection of the integrity of agricultural operations.
A number of PLC members grow vegetables, seed corn and other speciality crops on their
properties and are subject to special contractual requirements and certification requirements
(including, for instance, CanadaGAP food safety certification for fruits and vegetables)™.
20. With respect to CAEPLA-PLC’s proposal for the application of the Union-GAPLO
Integrity Dig Agreement** to all maintenance operations, PLC landowners wish to ensure that all
future maintenance activities that will involve soil disturbance and/or the use of vehicles or
mobile equipment (including not only pipeline integrity investigation and repair, but also
drainage remediation and depth of cover remediation) will be carried out in a consistent manner
that minimizes impacts to their properties.

FORM OF LANDOWNER AGREEMENT TO BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD

21. For properties where Union does not have previously existing permanent easement
rights required for the project, Union proposes to offer to landowners an agreement in the form
approved by the Board in EB-2014-0261 as part of the Hamilton to Milton NPS 48 Pipeline
Project amended to reflect the introduction of CSA Z662-15'. CAEPLA-PLC supports Union’s

proposed use of the EB-2014-0261 form of agreement.

1% canadaGAP General Brochure (Attachment 16).
1 Union-GAPLO Pipeline System Integrity Dig Agreement (Attachment 17).
12 Union Application, Exhibit A, Tab 11, page 2 of 4, Schedule 3.
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22. However, Union has stated in its project application that it “will not be required to obtain
a new easement for the construction of the majority of the new NPS 36 pipeline”*®. The existing
NPS 16 pipeline was installed pursuant to blanket easement agreements obtained in 1950 that
covered the entirety of affected properties’®. With one exception, Union subsequently
surrendered all but a 15 metre-wide easement on all CAEPLA-PLC member properties'®.
23. Union’s 1950-era easement agreement omits many of the protections afforded to
landowners in more recent forms of agreement, including the EB-2014-0261 agreement. For
instance, the 1950-era agreement purports to limit the scope of damages for which
compensation would be payable to the landowner and does not contain an indemnity clause.
24, With respect to pipeline abandonment, although the 1950-era agreement contemplates
“final removal” of the pipeline or pipelines installed pursuant to the agreement, it does not state
clearly that Union is obligated to remove its pipeline(s) from the property when it has been
permanently removed from service. As ordered by the Board, the EB-2014-0261 form of
agreement includes the abandonment clause that was negotiated by Union and GAPLO and
approved by the Board in connection with the Strathroy-Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline Project in EB-
2005-0550" that requires the removal of Union’s pipelines upon abandonment at the option of
the landowner.
25. The requirement for the removal of the pipeline at the landowner’s option is important
because it recognizes that the pipeline project is imposed on landowners on the basis that it is
in the public interest and that there is minimal regulation of pipeline abandonment in Ontario for

provincially-regulated pipelines®’.

3 Union Application, Exhibit A, Tab 11, page 1 of 4.

“ Union Response to CAEPLA-PLC IR 1.2, Attachment 1.

> Union Response to CAEPLA-PLC IR 1.2, Attachment 2.

16 EB-2014-0261, Decision and Order dated April 30, 2015; EB-2005-0550 Settlement Agreement between
GAPLO-Union (Strathroy-Lobo) and Union Gas Limited dated May 9, 2006 (Attachment 1).

17 See EB-2014-0261, Decision and Order dated April 30, 2015; See also GAPLO EB-2014-0261 Written Evidence

Statement (Attachment 9).
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26. CAEPLA-PLC is asking the Board to require that Union’s 1950-era easement agreement
for the Panhandle Reinforcement Project be updated to reflect current standards and
protections for landowners and to ensure consistency for properties affected by the project.
27. CAEPLA-PLC is also asking the Board to order that the one remaining blanket easement
that applies to the PLC-member property with Union File No. 122 (PIN 43385-0066 LT) be
limited to a width consistent with the 15-metre wide easement for the remaining properties
where Union registered partial surrenders.

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

28. To summarize, CAEPLA-PLC will be requesting that the Board impose the following as
conditions of approval of the Panhandle Reinforcement Project:
a. That the LOU for the project be amended as proposed by CAEPLA-PLC in the table

attached as Attachment 5 or, alternatively, that the proposed amendments be

ordered as stand-alone conditions of approval; and,

b. That Union will offer to PLC landowners an easement agreement in the updated form
proposed by Union for this project in replacement of the existing 1950-era easement
agreements.

29. This written evidence statement was prepared under the direction of the CAEPLA-PLC
Advisory Committee (Dave Core, Rick Kraayenbrink, Carolyn Vsetula, Don Martin, David Apers,

Doug Bowen, Dave Lavoie, Dave Van Segbrook and Rob deNijs).

October 21, 2016
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ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998, S.0. 1998, c.15, Schedule B, and in

particular, 5.90(1) thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by
Union Gas Limited for an Order or Orders granting
leave to construct a natural gas pipeline and
ancillary facilities in the Township of Strathroy-
Caradoc and in the Township of Middlesex Centre,
all in the County of Middlesex.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

 Subject to the approval of the Ontario Energy Board, GAPLO-Union (Strathroy-
Lobo) and Union Gas Limited, by their solicitors, hereby agree to settle the issues
between them in this proceeding in accordance with the Agreed Partial Mitigation
Measures in Schedule 1 attached hereto. Landowner agreements shall be amended

accordingly.
Dated at Toronto, Ontario
this 9™ day of May, 2006.

Paul GVogel ‘
Counsel for GAPLO-Union
(Strathroy-Lo

Glenn\Les\ﬂe\\")

Counsel for Union Gas Limited
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PIPELINE IMPACTS
-and-

RESIDUAL EFFECTS

(Cumulative and Non-cumulative)

IMPACTS [MEASURES = -
Agricultural
production and
operations

¢ Soil mixing ¢ Decreased production/ . WSSD — LOU and Schedules 1 and 5 to LOU to be modified as necessary:

e Drainage crop maturation/ An independent construction monitor shall be appointed by GAPLO-Union (Strathroy-

¢ No freeze zone quality/whole farm price | Lobo), the Company and Ontario Energy Board Staff. The monitor shall be on site

e Loss of drainage system ooumscoﬂ.ww_% to monitor construction with respect to all issues of concern to landowners and
efficiency to be available to _msaoéznnm and Eo.o.oE_um:w at all times. The monitor shall file interim
e Limitations on higher and final reports with the OEB. The Joint committee shall be composed of one GUSL
. landowner, one other landowner and three representatives of the Company; WSSD issues
value crops/specialty shall be decided by the Joint Committee with assistance of the construction monitor as
crops required. Where construction activities are undertaken by the Company in wet soil
* Operational interference | conditions (as determined by the monitor), the Company shall pay to the landowner 150% of
¢ Income loss | disturbance and crop loss damage compensation on the area affected by the activities (area
e Decreased rental value also to be determined by the construction monitor).The 150% payment applies only once to
s any one area; on areas where the 150% payment is applied, the landowner forfeits the right
* Diminished land value to top-up of crop loss damages under the LOU. The 150% payment does not affect the
landowner’s right to topsoil replacement where crop loss exceeds 50%.

* m.u.n_:m_:.m.: . * Decreased ®  Depth of Cover - to replace the last sentence in Section 1(g) of the LOU -
size/cultivation efficiency/increased If the Company, acting reasonably, determines in consultation with the landowner and
depth headlands drainage expert that it is necessary to increase the depth of the pipeline to accommodate

¢ Increased compaction, facilities such as drainage, processes such as deep tillage, heavy farm equipment or land
crop loss, costs use changes, Union will provide for additional depth of cover. At the request of the
landowner, the Company shall undertake a depth of cover survey of the Pipeline, and shall
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Stones

Construction
access

Maintenance
and repair
interference/
damage

* Annual stone-picking
* Equipment damage

e Interference with
agricultural access

¢ Aggravation of WSSD
damage

¢ Ongoing operational
interference/loss of
productive time and
damage from
maintenance and repair
operations

Eoimo its findings to the landowner. Where
is less than three feet, Union shall restore de
of topsoil or by lowering the pipe.

it is determined that cover over the Evm_..Em
pth of cover to three feet with the importation

¢  Stone Picking Practice — Sections 1(k) and 1(m) to be modified as necessary —
the second last sentence of Section 1(k) shall read — Stones 50 mm (2”) in diameter and
larger will be picked by hand and/or with a mechanijcal stone picker. — Section 1(m) last
two sentences are replaced with — If requested by the landowner, the Company will
return in the year following construction and chisel plough or cultivate to the depth of the

topsoil. When necessary to accommodate planting schedules, the landowners should

perform cultivating and/or chisel ploughing themselves at the Company’s expense,
provided the need for this work has been agreed upon in advance (see Schedule of Rates
attached). The Company shall, at a time satisfactory to the landowner, pick stones 50 mm
(27) or larger in diameter by hand and/or with a mechanical stone picker in each of the first

two years following construction. The Company shall, at a time satisfactory to the

landowner, return to pick stones 50 mm (2”) or larger in the following years where there is
a demonstrable need.

¢ Maximum open trench 6 km.

¢ Damage from pipeline operation ~ The Integrity Dig Agreement shall apply to
all integrity and maintenance operations on whole Dawn-Trafalgar system.
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~ IMPACTS =~

__ AGREED PARTIAL MITIGATION MEASURES

CARD]
OMALT L

Cyst Nematode

Construction
impact disputes

e Contamination risk

Forum for landowner
consultation on WSSD
and efficient dispute
resolution required

*  Cyst Nematode — at Section 8 of the LOU — In consultation with the landowner,
the Company agrees to sample all agricultural easements along the pipeline route of this
project, before construction, and any soils imported to the easement lands for the presence
of soy bean cyst nematode (SCN) and provide a report of test results to the landowner. In
the event the report indicates the presence of SCN, the Joint Committee will work with
OMAFRA and the University of Guelph to develop a best practices protocol to handle
SCN when detected and will employ the most current best practice at the time of

construction. The Company will also test for SCN whenever it is conducting post-
construction soil tests.

* Joint Committee — LOU and Schedule 1 to LOU to be modified as
necessary — An independent construction monitor shall be appointed by GAPLO-Union
(Strathroy-Lobo), the Company and Ontario Energy Board Staff. The monitor shall be on
site continuously to monitor construction with respect to all issues of concern to
landowners and to be available to landowners and the Company at all times. The monitor
shall file interim and final reports with the OEB. The Joint committee shall be composed
of one GUSL landowner, one other landowner and three representatives of the Company.
The Company will pay to the GUSL landowner member of the Joint Committee at his or

her direction a total payment of $10,000 plus G.S.T. as an honorarium for participation on
the committee,

®  Assignment of the LOU ~ sentence to be added at the end of Section 11 of
LOU - The Company shall not assign this agreement without prior written notice to the
landowner and, despite such assignment, the Company shall remain liable to the landowner
for the performance of its responsibilities and obligations in this agreement.

Land use

Agricultural

prevent
construction/expansion
existing facilities
restrict development
intensive
livestock/permitted uses
location limitations /

inconvenience / costs

* Easement Agreement: future use — To be inserted after Clause 3 of the
casement agreement - The Transferee further agrees to make reasonable efforts at its
own expense to accommodate changes in land use on lands adjacent to the easement for

the purpose of ensuring the Pipeline is in compliance with all applicable regulatory
requirements in connection with any such change in use.
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. 'IMPACTS

© EFFECTS

GREED PARTIAL MITIGATION MEASURES

ON

CUACF LA

¢ Non-
agricultural

use interference with

remaining lands
whole farm income loss

diminished whole farm
land value

sterilize land ~
greenspace

limit development
options/increase costs
diminish quality of life
whole property income
loss

whole property
diminished land value

*  Easement Agreement: future use — To be inserted after Clause 3 of the
casement agreement - The Transferee further agrees to make reasonable efforts at its
own expense to accommodate changes in land use on lands adjacent to the easement for
the purpose of ensuring the Pipeline is in compliance with all applicable regulatory
requirements in connection with any such change in use.

Socio-economic
s social/
psychological

loss of control over
property/environment
violation of personal
space
depression/anxiety
loss of enjoyment
diminished quality of
life

loss of identification
with community
lifetime challenge
financially, emotionally
and physically




"IMPACTS. - 0 L _AGREED PARTIAL MITIGATION MEASURES
& ® timeloss * operational interference
b ¢ production and income
O loss
o family life disturbance
e health and e vulnerability/danger/risk e  Depth c.m Cover - to replace the last sentence in m.mamcs 1(g) of the LOU - If the
safety e operational restrictions Company, acting Rmmozm_u_ww determines in ooﬁESﬁg s&: the landowner and m...m.:..mmo
e decreased self-worth expert that .: IS necessary to increase the a.mE: of the pipeline to .moooEansﬂo facilities
RO such as drainage, processes such as deep tillage, heavy farm equipment or land use
* liability changes, Union will provide for additional depth of cover. At the request of the landowner,
the Company shall undertake a depth of cover survey of the Pipeline, and shall provide its
findings to the landowner. Where it is determined that cover over the Pipeline is less than
three feet, Union shall restore depth of cover to three feet with the importation of topsoil or
by lowering the pipe.
¢ abandonment e liability . Abandonment — te replace the last sentence in Clause 1 of the Easement
risks e cnvironmental Agreement, and Section 6.3 of the LOU to be modified as necessary — As part of the
_ Transferee’s obligation to restore the lands upon surrender of its easement, the Transferee
contamination . -
agrees at the option of the Transferor to remove the pipeline from the Lands. The Transferee
* safety . and the Transferor shall surrender the easement and the Transferee shall remove the Pipeline
® land use restrictions

at the Transferor’s option where the Pipeline has been abandoned. The Pipeline shall be
deemed to be abandoned where: a) corrosion protection is no longer applied to the Pipeline,
or, b) the Pipeline becomes unfit for service in accordance with Ontario standards. The
Transferee shall, within 60 days of either of these events occurring, provide the Transferor
with notice of the event. Upon removal of the Pipeline and restoration of the Lands as
required by this agreement, the Transferor shall release Transferee from further obligations
in respect of restoration. This provision shall apply with respect to all Pipelines in the
Dawn-Trafalgar system on the Transferor’s lands.
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EB-2005-0550

THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,
S.0.1998, c¢.15, Schedule B;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas
Limited, pursuant to subsection 90(1), for an Order
or Orders granting leave to construct natural gas
pipeline and ancillary facilities in the Township
of Strathroy-Caradoc in the Township of Middlesex
Centre in the County of Middlesex.

Hearing held at 2300 Yonge Street,
25t Floor, West Hearing Room,
Toronto, Ontario, on Tuesday,

May 6, 2006, commencing at 1:30 p.m..

BETEFORE:
CYNTHIA CHAPLIN PRESIDING MEMBER

KEN QUESNELLE MEMBER



DONNA CAMPBELL

GLENN LESLIE

PAUL VOGEL
JOHN GOUDIE

BARBARA BODNAR
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APPEARANCES

Board Staff
Union Gas

GAPLO Union Strathroy-Lobo

Enbridge Gas Distribution
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I NDE X O F PROCEEDTINGS

Description Page No.
Appearances 1
Submissions by Mr. Leslie 2
Submissions by Mr. Vogel 4
Submissions by Ms. Campbell 5
Questions from the Board 13

—-—— Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 15
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NO UNDERTAKINGS ENTERED DURING THIS HEARING
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Tuesday, May 6, 2006

-—-—- Upon commencing at 1:30 p.m.

MS. CHAPLIN: Please be seated. Good afternoon,
everyone. The Board is sitting today in the matter of
application EB-2005-0550, submitted by Union Gas Limited
for an order or orders granting leave to construct a
natural gas pipeline and ancillary facilities in the
Township of Strathroy-Caradoc and in the Township of
Middlesex Centre, all in the County of Middlesex.

The parties to this proceeding have recently ended a
settlement conference and earlier today filed a settlement
proposal reflecting the participants' positions. The
purpose of today's hearing is for the Board to receive a
settlement proposal and to rule on its acceptability.

My name is Cynthia Chaplin, and I will be the
presiding member in this hearing, and joining me on the
panel is Board member Mr. Quesnelle.

May I have appearances, please?

APPEARANCES:

MR. LESLIE: Good afternoon. My name is Glenn Leslie.
I am counsel to Union Gas.

MS. CHAPLIN: Good afternoon, Mr. Leslie.

MR. VOGEL: Good afternoon, Madam Chair. My name is
Paul Vogel. I am counsel for GAPLO Union Strathroy-Lobo,
one of the intervenors. With me is Mr. John Goudy, my
co-counsel.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you, Mr. Vogel. Would anyone else

like to --
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MS. BODNAR: Barbara Bodnar for Enbridge Gas
Distribution.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Donna Campbell for the Ontario Energy
Board, and I am assisted by Zora --

MS. CRNOJACKI: Crnojacki.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you, Ms. Campbell.

Before we begin, are there any preliminary matters
before we turn to the settlement proposal, Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: I don't believe there are any.

MS. CHAPLIN: Okay, thank you. Perhaps we will begin
with Mr. Leslie, i1if you want to present the settlement
proposal.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. LESLIE:

MR. LESLIE: Yes, thanks very much. As the Board
knows, I believe, as a result of discussions over the last
couple of days, we have reached an agreement with the GAPLO
landowners, which you have. This agreement deals with the
issues that were raised by GAPLO in these proceedings. We
also have an agreement with them on compensation, which is
a separate matter.

But the agreement you have deals with the issues that
were raised in these proceedings. The agreement
contemplates —-- I will just mention one aspect of it. It
contemplates the appointment of a construction monitor, and
that -- the idea there was to really do something similar

to what had been done in an earlier case. It is EBL-0234.
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This is a variation on that theme, but that was where we
got the idea from.

There were criteria used in that case. They're
appendix C to the decision. I simply wanted to say that it
was our expectation, I guess, that those criteria would be
used in this case, as well.

The agreement does contemplate the participation of
Board Staff in the appointment of that individual.

I should probably advise the Board that there are a
number of other landowners who are not represented by Mr.
Vogel. I can tell the Board that with respect to those
landowners, to the extent that they have not signed
agreements or agreed to, the only issues relate to
compensation. There are no issues relating to the proposal
as it relates to the pipeline or the application that is
before you.

Board Staff have given us their proposed conditions of
approval and they are acceptable.

Finally, I guess my understanding was that we had been
advised, through Board Staff, that it would not be
necessary for Union to have either of the two panels that
we planned to have available, if there had been a hearing,
testify or appear, and it was also my understanding that
the Board, subject to reviewing the agreement and being
satisfied with it, would be in a position to issue a
decision on the application before you. I would ask you to
do that as soon as possible.

There are reasons set out in the evidence, but,
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briefly, it is a matter of satisfying the people who
contracted with us that we are going ahead, and there is
also a need to order pipe relatively soon.

I think that is all I have. Thank you very much.

MS. CHAPLIN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Leslie. Mr. Vogel
do you have any additional comments?

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. VOGEL:

MR. VOGEL: No, Madam Chair. I think it is the basis
of the settlement you have in schedule 1 attached to the
settlement agreement. You will see there that with respect
to the impacts and the effects of the proposed pipeline
construction, that we have been able to resolve at least
partial mitigation measures with respect to some of those
impacts and effects. And, as you are aware, as a result of
the decision at Issues Day, compensation structure and
compensation issues are not before you here.

So it appears that we have been successful in
resolving whatever could be resolved, by way of partial
mitigation measures, to address part of the impacts and
effects which will be created by this proposed pipeline
construction.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you. Before I turn to Ms.
Campbell, is there any other comments? Ms. Campbell, does
Board Staff have any comments or questions?

SUBMISSIONS BY MS. CAMPBELL:

MS. CAMPBELL: I have a handful of comments and
guestions concerning the form itself.

The first thing that I would like to know is I am
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going to ask Mr. Leslie -- I alerted him to the fact that
this question would be asked. I am wondering if Union is
in a position to advise the Panel of the cost impact of the
steps that are contained in the schedule 1 attached to the
settlement agreement.

MR. LESLIE: Yes. It is roughly a quarter of a
million dollars.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

MS. CHAPLIN: Just because I don't have the number on
the top of mind, what is that roughly as a percentage of
the total project?

MR. LESLIE: It would be less than 1 percent, I would
think. It is $50 million project.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you very much.

MR. LESLIE: Sorry, the 50 is for pipe. It is a $100
million project.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: The next gquestion that I have, it is
really a clarification. I notice that the manager of
facilities is here to make sure that I get this right. 1In
the opening paragraph, if everybody would look under WSSE,
there is the statement that an independent construction
monitor shall be appointed by GAPLO Union, the company and
Ontario Energy Board staff.

I simply wish to confirm that the Energy Board's
involvement is in assisting in the appointment of the
monitor, but no one from the Board will be going into the

field to check on the monitor.
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However, the Board will be receiving the reports that
are referenced in the upper third of that paragraph. In
other words, the sentence I'm referring to, "The monitor
shall file interim and final reports with the OEB." So I
wish to clarify that and ensure that that is everybody's
understanding while we're in the room.

MR. VOGEL: That's correct, Ms. Campbell.

MR. LESLIE: Yes, that 1s correct.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

MR. LESLIE: I think Mr. McKay played this role the
last time it was done.

MS. CAMPBELL: Yes. And he is here to make sure it is
pretty defined, so I think we have justified it. The other
issue that I raised before the Panel came into the room has
to do with the timing of the filing of the reports. No one
had actually -- at least I haven't and I hadn't heard it
discussed in my hearing, and I am assuming no one else has

turned their mind to the actual filing of the report, and

what we were discussing -- and Mr. Vogel seemed to be
amenable to this. I haven't discussed it with Mr. Leslie -
- was those reports, the -- that particular report by the

independent construction monitor on the issues in that
paragraph would be filed -- sorry, and the other issues on
which the independent construction monitor's report, those
reports would come in at the same time as the reports that
Union generally files, the other reports that Union must
file.

I appreciate I haven't discussed this with Union, so I
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am going to ask Mr. Leslie if he could canvas his clients
and determine if that is appropriate.

MR. LESLIE: Apparently last time they were on a
slightly different schedule, that is the monitor's reports
were filed at a different time than post-construction
reports. But I don't see any reason why that couldn't be
coordinated, if that was important.

MS. CAMPBELL: This is probably a question that is
more theoretical than anything right now because nobody
knows how much they're going to file. Any concept of
reporting times you are thinking of?

MR. VOGEL: I don't think the -- probably our best
contemplation at this point in time is that the
construction monitor would file reports as per the draft
conditions of approval, timing for Union. Subject to, I
suppose, the monitor having the discussion to file reports
at other times if the monitor thought that was appropriate.

MS. CAMPBELL: How does that sound?

MR. LESLIE: That's fine.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay.

All right. I just had something raised with me and I
just want to clarify it to make sure, so that everybody's
concerns in the room are addressed. Just to confirm the
limited role of Board Staff, probably because this is
someone who would be affected by this. The limited role of
Board Staff, in that if there is a dispute, that the
dispute would be dealt with by the joint committee and not

by the Board.
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MR. VOGEL: That's correct. The contemplation -- the
joint committee is established as a dispute resolution
mechanism.

MS. CAMPBELL: Right.

MR. VOGEL: I think the schedule 1 provides for the
joint committee to do its work in consultation with the
monitor. So that is the contemplated forum in which
disputes would be resolved.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. My next question comes from
page 3, construction impact disputes.

It is under joint committee LOU. So the first point
beside construction impact disputes. And it is the second
sentence from the top and I asked this question of Mr.
Vogel before we started. I just would like you to explain
to the panel how the one other landowner would be
appointed.

MR. VOGEL: Oh, the make-up of the joint committee
includes two landowners, one of whom is a Gaplo-Union
representative. As Mr. Leslie has indicated to you, Madam
Chair, there are other landowners who don't belong to
Gaplo-Union, so there is provision on the joint committee
for those other landowners to also be represented by one of
the non-Gaplo-Union landowners.

I presume that that landowner would be appointed by
Union consulting with the other non-Gaplo landowners, and
determining an appropriate representative.

MS. CAMPBELL: There is also reference to a honorarium

to be paid. Does the other landowner get an honorarium
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also, is that the subject of --

MR. LESLIE: That is our expectation. Mr. Vogel
didn't negotiate that, but we assume that if we paid one,
we would probably pay the other.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay, thank you.

My next question arises from page 4. It has the
heading socio-economic and there are two bullet points, one
on page 4, social/psychological; the second at the top of
Page 5, time loss.

There is nothing under the agreed partial mitigation
measures. I am correct, am I, that because it is blank
that means there are no agreed partial mitigation measures
for these topics?

MR. VOGEL: That's correct, Ms. Campbell.

MS. CAMPBELL: Can you explain to the Panel the
purpose of filing the form with the empty column.

MR. VOGEL: Well, the schedule itself, I think the
panel is familiar with the form as it has evolved through
the course of this hearing, identifies construction impacts
and effects from the proposed pipeline construction,
residual effects and cumulative effects, some of which are
at least addressed in part now through the agreed partial
mitigation measures, and the schedule simply, I think,
summarizes the prefiled evidence from Gaplo with respect to
what those effects are. To the extent they're being dealt
with in this hearing, indicates what the agreed partial
mitigation measures are.

MS. CAMPBELL: I guess I didn't phrase my question
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particularly well.

If there is no agreed partial mitigation measure that
can be taken, why is it included in this form?

MR. VOGEL: I think for the sake of completeness. I
mean that's the way the hearing is resolved.

MR. VOGEL: Those are the impacts and effects
identified in the evidence, and to the extent that we have
been able to develop agreed mitigation measures, that's the
subject of a settlement agreement in this proceeding.

MS. CAMPBELL: Right. So do I take it the fact that
it is blank means that it is dealt with by compensation
only? Those are compensatory matters as opposed to matters
in which mitigation measures can be taken in part or in
whole?

MR. VOGEL: If they were to be addressed, they would
be addressed through compensation.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay.

MR. VOGEL: That's correct.

MR. LESLIE: It may be important to understand how

this document evolved. I don't know, but I mean the first
two columns have always been there. Previously there were
two other columns. One was what Mr. Vogel was proposing

and the fourth column had to do with compensation.

For purposes of this afternoon, what Mr. Vogel, after
talking to us, was to condense the second -- the third and
fourth column into what you now see in the agreed partial
mitigation measures so that you knew what we agreed to deal

with the issues.
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The first two columns are really just what was there
in the first place.

MR. VOGEL: As I think I explained in my opening
remarks, Madam Chair, as a result of the determination at
issues day that compensation structure is not in issue this
proceeding. We have not addressed compensation structure
in the context of this proceeding. And therefore, what we
are presenting to you today is the extent that we have been
able to agree on the partial mitigation measures for the
identified impacts and effects.

MS. CHAPLIN: So perhaps just for our purposes, could
I kind of summarize that as -- I guess the way that the
Panel is looking at it is: What represents the settlement
is in fact what appears in the third column?

MR. LESLIE: That is right.

MS. CHAPLIN: That is in effect the settlement
agreement. To the extent there is information in the first
two columns, that is the rationale or the underlying - and
to the extent there is nothing in the agreed column for
those two categories, nothing turns on the fact that there
is something there in the first two columns, really, it is
not part of the settlement?

MR. LESLIE: I think that is right. There is another
agreement dealing with compensation that is material to
your understanding.

MR. VOGEL: But the fact they appear in the first two
columns and there is nothing beside them in the third

column would simply indicate, in my submission to you, that
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they are not being addressed here through partial
mitigation measures. I think that is what you can take
from this schedule.

MS. CHAPLIN: Okay. Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: So I take it, then, that the parties
are content -- although these issues are not being
addressed by this document at all -- to leave it there?
That is really my real question.

MR. VOGEL: We are content in the context of the
proceeding as it was structured at issues day, to proceed
on the basis of this settlement because these are the
issues which were capable of settling in the context of
this proceeding.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. I have one other question --
two, actually. Well, it can be said in one but it has two
parts to it.

This has to do with simply completing the record.
There is reference in here to amendments to the letter of
understanding and amendments to the easement. Is it the
intention of the parties to file an amended form of the
easements and an amended letter of understanding? They are
part of the pre-filed evidence already, and that simply why
I'm asking.

MR. LESLIE: ©No, but that certainly can be done.

MS. CAMPBELL: Well, the Panel has to approve the form
of an easement.

MR. LESLIE: I frankly hadn't thought about it, but

you are right, they have to prove the form of the easement,
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and that means that the changes that are contemplated by
this document would have to be in an easement that was in
evidence and we will look after that, yes.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. Do you intend to amend and
file a letter of understanding? The reason I am asking is
simply you have already pre-filed it, so if you could do

that also, because this document makes reference to it,

also.
MR. LESLIE: Yes, of course.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. Those are my questions.
MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you. Mr. Quesnelle?
QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:
MR. QUESNELLE: Board Staff has basically covered off
anything I have, so I am satisfied. I don't have anything

else, Madam Chair.

MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you. Ms. Campbell, can you
confirm that intervenors have been given notice of this
settlement, and have there been any comments or...

MS. CAMPBELL: No, no. Last night I indicated, by
e-mail, that it was likely that a settlement proposal on
some or all of the issues would be tendered before the
Board today. I optimistically had said 9:30 or shortly
thereafter. I expanded the definition of "shortly
thereafter", but there has been no response and no
indication, that I am aware of, that anyone seeks to come
and address you on this.

MS. CHAPLIN: And save and aside for this settlement

agreement, is it your understanding -- are there any other
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1 outstanding issues in this proceeding? Is there any

2 requirement, from your perspective, for Union's panels to
3 appear for any further evidence to be heard?

4 MS. CAMPBELL: I am pausing for effect, just to make

5 everybody nervous.

o No. ©No, there isn't.

7 MS. CHAPLIN: One moment, please.

8 [Board Panel confers]

9 MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you. The Panel has conferred and
10 we are -- we accept the settlement as it has been

11 presented, and bearing in mind Mr. Leslie's comments, we

12 will issue a decision and order as soon as practical, after
13 receiving the amended agreements.

14 Are there any final matters? Mr. Leslie, Ms.

15 Campbell?

16 MS. CAMPBELL: No. I would just like to thank the

17 parties for their persistence over the last two-and-a-half

18 days. I have only been privy to some of it, but I must say
19 that the Board Staff is certainly content with the proposal
20 that was put forward and commends the parties for their

21 efforts.

22 MS. CHAPLIN: Thank you.

23 MR. LESLIE: Thank you for your patience.

24 MS. CHAPLIN: Oh, well, that was easy for us.

25 The Board would also like to thank the parties for the

26  hard work they obviously put in and the cooperative
277 approach they took. We would like to thank Board Staff for

28 the contributions you made to the settlement, and also we
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such an extended period
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If we have nothing
will issue the decision

much.
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reporters for remaining on call for

of time. We do appreciate their

further, we are adjourned and we

in due course. Thank you very

—-—— Whereupon hearing the adjourned at 1:55 p.m.
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NPS 48 STRATHROY-LOBO Project
Letter of Understanding Page 1

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
FOR LANDOWNERS ON THE PROPOSED
NPS 48 STRATHROY-LOBO PROJECT

INTRODUCTION

It is the policy of Union Gas Limited ("the Company") that landowners affected by its
pipeline projects be dealt with on a consistent basis that is fair to both parties. This Letter of
Understanding represents the Company's commitment to that objective by providing a common
framework within which negotiations for this project can take place. Union will therefore observe the
following guidelines in its dealings with landowners on the NPS 48 Strathroy-Lobo Project ("the
project").

CONTENTS

The following matters are addressed in this Letter of Understanding and its appendices and
schedules all of which form a part hereof.

Page
1. Pipeline Construction Procedures 2
2 Liability 7
3. Water Wells 7
4. Land Rights 8
4.1 Easements 8
4.2 Temporary Land Use Agreements 8
5. Damage Payments 9
5.1 Disturbance Damages 9
5.2 Construction Damages 9
(a) Crop Damages 9
(b) Woodlots and Hedgerows 12
(c) General Matters for Damages 13
6. Post-Construction and Pipeline Operations Issues 13
6.1 Weed and Brush Control in
Non-Cultivated Lands 13
6.2 Damages from Pipeline Operations 13
6.3 Abandonment 14
6.4 Depth of Cover 14
6.5 Stonepicking 14
7.  Gored Land 14
8.  Testing for Soybean Cyst Nematode 14
9.  Independent Construction Monitor 14.
10. Insurance 15
11. Compensation Levels 15
12.  Assignment 15
13.  Appendix "A" Compensation Settlement 16
14. Appendix "B" Other Site Specific 17
15 Schedule 1 — Landowner Relations & Terms
Of Reference of Joint Committee 18
16. Schedule 2 Woodlot Evaluation 19
17. Schedule 3 - Aesthetic Tree Evaluation 20
18. Schedule 4 - Schedule of Rates for Work
Performed by Owners of Land 21
19. Schedule 5 Wet Soils Shutdown 22
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NPS 48 STRATHROY-LOBO Project
Letter of Understanding Page 2

1. PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

Prior to construction, Union’s project manager or designated agent shall visit with each

affected landowner to review the timing of construction and discuss site specific issues and
implementation of mitigation and rehabilitation measures in accordance with the provisions of this

agreement.

(a) Prior to installing the pipeline in agricultural areas, the Company will strip topsoil
from over the pipeline trench and adjacent subsoil storage area. All topsoil stripped will be piled
adjacent to the easement and temporary land use areas in an area approximately 10 metres (33”) in
width. The topsoil and subsoil will be piled separately and Union will exercise due diligence to
ensure that topsoil and subsoil are not mixed. If requested by the landowner, topsoil will be ploughed
before being stripped to a depth as specified by the landowner.

The Company will strip topsoil across the entire width of the easement at the request of the
landowner, provided also that a temporary right to use any necessary land for topsoil storage outside
the easement is granted by the landowner.

Further, if the landowner so requests the Company will not strip topsoil with the
topsoil/subsoil mix being placed on the spoil side of the easement on top of the existing topsoil.

At the request of a landowner a mulch layer will be provided between the existing topsoil and
the stripped topsoil pile in situations where a crop is not present.

At the landowners request, separation of distinct subsoil horizons such as blue and yellow

clays shall be performed. Blue clays will be removed from the easement lands.

(b) The Company agrees to stake the outside boundary of the work space which will
include easement, temporary work room, or topsoil storage areas. Where topsoil is to be stored off
easement, the stakes will not be removed during the stripping operation. The stakes will be located at
30 metre (98.4 foot) intervals prior to construction. The intervals or distance between stakes may
decrease as deemed necessary in order to maintain sight-lines and easement boundaries in areas of
sight obstructions, rolling terrain or stream and road crossings. The Company will restake the

easement limit for post construction tile work at the request of the landowner.

(©) On present and proposed agricultural lands, the Company will undertake appropriate
survey techniques to establish pre-construction and post-construction grades with the view to

restoring soils to pre-construction grade as reasonably practicable.

(d) The company will ensure all construction practices and appropriate environmental

mitigation measures will be followed to ensure a proper clean up.

(e) Whenever possible, all vehicles and equipment will travel on the trench line.
® The Company will not open more than 6.0 km. of trench line at a time.
(2) The Company will install the pipeline with a minimum of 1.2 metres of coverage. If

the Company, acting reasonably, determines in consultation with the landowner and drainage

expert that it is necessary to increase the depth of the Pipeline to accommodate facilities such as

drainage, processes such as deep tillage, heavy farm equipment or land use changes, Union will

provide for additional depth of cover.
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(h) At the request of the landowner topsoil will be over-wintered and replaced the
following year. In these circumstances the Company will replace the topsoil such that the easement

lands are returned to surrounding grade.

(1) During trench backfilling the Company will remove any excess material after
provision is made for normal trench subsidence. The landowner shall have the right of first refusal on
any such excess material. If trench subsidence occurs the year following construction, the following
guidelines will be observed :

(1) 0 to 4 inches - no additional work or compensation.
(i1) Greater than 4 inches - the Company will strip topsoil, fill the
depression with subsoil and replace topsoil. If it is cost effective the
Company will repair the settlement by filling it with additional
topsoil.
If mounding over the trench persists the year following construction, the following guidelines will be
observed :
(1) 0 to 4 inches - no additional work or compensation.
(i1) Greater than 4 inches the Company will strip topsoil, remove
excess subsoil and replace topsoil
(ii1) Should adequate topsoil depth be available, the mound can be
levelled at the request of the Landowner
If the construction of the pipeline causes a restriction of the natural surface flow of water, due to too
much or not enough subsidence, irrespective of the 4" level stated above, the Company will remove

the restriction by one of the methods described above.

() If following over-wintering of the topsoil, return to grade and the establishment of a
cover crop, there is identifiable subsidence in excess of 2 inches the Company will restore the

affected area to grade with the importation of topsoil.

(k) The Company will also pick stones prior to topsoil replacement. The subsoil will be
worked with a subsoiling implement, as agreed by the Company and the Landowner Committee.
After topsoil replacement, the topsoil will be tilled with an implement(s) as agreed by the Company

and the Landowner Committee. Stones 50 mm (2”) in diameter and larger will be picked by hand

and/or with a mechanical stonepicker. The subsoil on the easement will be tilled again as above.

Q) At the request of the landowner, the Company agrees to retain an independent
consultant to carry out tests along the pipeline to monitor soils and crop productivity. As part of this
testing, a soil specialist will conduct comparative compaction testing of the subsoils and NPK
(nitrogen, phosphorus, potassium) testing and testing of PH levels on and off easement after
construction. Global Positioning System (GPS) equipment may be used to identify all test locations.
The Company further agrees to implement all commercially reasonable measures, where

recommended by the soil specialist to remediate the soil.

(m) After the topsoil replacement, the topsoil will be tilled (see section k) and stones
picked. If requested by the landowner, the Company will cultivate the topsoil or make compensating
arrangements with the landowner to perform such work. This request by the landowner must be made

during the pre-construction interview in order to be co-ordinated with the construction process. After
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cultivation, the Company will pick stones again. If requested by the landowner, the Company will

return in the year following construction and chisel plough or cultivate to the depth of the topsoil.

When necessary to accommodate planting schedules, the landowners should perform cultivating

and/or chisel ploughing themselves at the Company’s expense, provided the need for this work has

been agreed upon in advance ( see Schedule of Rates attached ).

(n) All subsoils from road bores will be removed.

(o) The Company will repair and restore all field drainage systems and municipal drains
impacted by construction to their original performance and will be responsible for remedy, in
consultation with the landowner, of any drainage problem created by the existence of the pipeline.
The Company will be responsible for any defects in the integrity and performance of tile installed or
repaired in conjunction with construction, operation or repair, provided the defects are caused by the
company’s activities, faulty materials or workmanship. The Company guarantees and will be
responsible forever for the integrity and performance of such tile as well as any other drain tile or
municipal drain compromised by the company’s activities, including future maintenance operations
and problems caused by the company’s contractors, agents or assigns. Where the landowner, acting
reasonably, believes that there may be a drainage problem arising from the company’s operations, the
company will perform an integrity check on any tile construction/repair crossing the pipeline, and

repair any deficiencies to the landowner’s satisfaction.

All installations may be inspected by the landowner or his/her designate prior to backfilling where
practicable. The company will provide the landowner or his/her designate advance notice of the tile

repair schedule.

The company will retain the services of a qualified independent drainage consultant. The consultant
will work with landowners to develop plans and installation methods and, if the plan is implemented,
the consultant will certify that the construction accords with the plan. If prior to construction the

company is provided with these plans prepared by the drainage consultant and approved in writing by

the landowner, the company will install tile along the pipeline in the following situations:

1. In areas of numerous random tiles or systematic tiles that cross the pipeline easement, the
Company will install header tiles (interceptor drains) adjacent to the easement as laid out in the plans.
The downstream end of cut tile will be plugged. Such work will occur as soon as practicable, but
prior to topsoil stripping operations. Any intercepted drains will be connected or plugged. The

company will attempt to minimize the number of tile crossing the pipeline easement.

2. In areas where drainage problems will be created as a result of the easement, the drainage
consultant will develop a tile plan to mitigate these impacts provided that the landowner is agreeable

to any works required for this installation.

3. Should the pipeline construction program clear lands adjacent to existing pipelines and as a result
create a newly cleared area large enough to farm, the company will, at the request of the landowner,
develop a tile plan to drain the said area. The Company will install the tile in the newly cleared area,
and install a drainage outlet that will enable the implementation of the said tile plan provided the cost

of such work does not exceed the present value of the net crop revenue from the said area. The
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present value shall be calculated using the same crop value and discount rate used in the one time
crop loss compensation calculation. The net crop revenue shall be derived by reducing the crop value
by a negotiated input cost. The Company will accept drainage design solutions that include the use of
a motorized pump, if the landowner releases the Company from all future operation and maintenance
responsibilities for said pump. The Company will accept drainage design solutions that include outlet
drains crossing adjacent properties, if the landowner obtains necessary easements or releases fully

authorizing said crossings.

4. Drainage laterals will be installed after construction of the pipeline to provide easement drainage.

Lateral and cross-easement tiles will be installed in the construction year as weather permits.

5. Other areas recommended by the drainage consultant.

If random tiles are encountered during construction they will be staked and capped, unless temporary

piping is installed to maintain flow.

The Company will do the following to accommodate planned and future drainage systems in the
Company’s drainage and pipeline design. The Company will incorporate any professionally designed
drainage plans obtained by the landowner for future installation. If the landowner intends to install or
modify a drainage system but has not yet obtained professionally designed plans, the Company will
hire a drainage consultant to develop an Easement Crossing Drainage Plan in consultation with the

landowner.

In areas where topsoil has been stripped, and at the request of the landowner, the company will

complete post-construction tile installation and repairs prior to topsoil replacement.

The installation of tile shall be performed by a licensed drainage contractor. The company will
consult with the landowner committee and mutually develop a list of acceptable tile drainage
contractors to be used during construction. Header tiles will be installed using a trench method to

ensure that all field tile are located and connected as required by the tile plan.

The company will provide the landowner with the most recent specifications concerning tile support
systems for existing tile across the trench. The method of support will be agreed upon between the

landowner and the company’s drainage consultant during the pre-construction visit.

The company will provide the landowner with a copy of as-built drainage plans.

(p) Company will, unless otherwise agreed to with the landowner, ensure any water
which may accumulate on the easement during construction will be released into an open drain or
ditch, but not in a tile drain. This may, however, be accomplished through the installation of
temporary tile. The Company will provide the landowner with a proposed temporary tiling plan for
review. If the Company pumps into an existing tile with the landowner’s permission, the water will
be filtered.
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()] The Company shall replace or repair any fences which are damaged by pipeline
construction in a good and workmanlike manner. In addition, the Company will reset any survey

monuments which are removed or destroyed during pipeline construction.

(1) It is understood that the Company is required to adhere to all of the conditions set
out in the Leave to Construct Order of the Ontario Energy Board and that the foregoing are additional
undertakings that the Company has agreed upon with the landowners on the project. A copy of the

conditions will be mailed to each landowner as soon as it is available.

(s) The landowner will execute a Clean-up Acknowledgment when he/she is satisfied
with the clean-up operations described in Paragraph 1, (h) through (q). It is suggested that any
tenant(s) who are affected by construction accompany the landowner to inspect the clean-up prior to
execution of the Clean-up Acknowledgment. The Landowner Committee will be provided, for

review, the form of documents required for landowner execution.

) Where private water or utility lines are planned to be interrupted, the Company will
supply temporary service to the affected landowners prior to service interruption. In the case of
accidental interruption, temporary services will be provided by the Company at the earliest possible

opportunity.

(u) Where requested by the landowner, the Company will leave plugs for access across
the trench to the remainder of the landowner's property during construction. Following construction,
the Company shall ensure that the landowner shall have access across the former trench area and
easement. Upon request of the landowner, the Company shall create a gravel base on filter fabric

across the plug(s) and will remove same at the further request of the landowner.

) The Company, including its employees, agents, contractors and sub-contractors, will
not use any off-easement culverts incorporated into Municipal Drains to provide access to the
easement. Further, the Company will not use any laneway or culvert of the landowner without the
landowner’s prior written consent. In the event of such use, the Company will, at its own expense,
repair any damage and compensate the landowner accordingly. The Company agrees to monitor and

maintain private driveways that cross the easement for a period of 18 months after construction.

(w) The Company agrees that construction activities will not occur over the off-easement
areas without the written permission of the landowner. The Company agrees that it will pay for
damages caused by construction/operations activities in the event that such off easement damages

occur.

x) The Company’s Landowner Complaint Tracking system shall be available to

landowners for the proposed construction.

) The Company shall pay the costs of independent consultants satisfactory to both the
landowner and the Company to resolve site specific disputes involving affected lands on a binding
basis concerning the following:

(1) The need for topsoil importation as in Clauses 1 i) hereof, respecting

the existence of identifiable subsidence,
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(i1) The need for topsoil importation as in Clause 1 (z) hereof, respecting
the establishment of crop losses in excess of 50%,

(ii1) The establishment of levels of compensation for specialty crops as
in clause 5.2 hereof.

(iv) resolution of future crop loss claims under s.5.2 (a) hereof.

In addition, in the event that a dispute arises between a landowner and the Company
and such dispute cannot be resolved to the mutual satisfaction of the parties through discussion or
referral to the joint committee established pursuant to Para. 1(d)(d) and Schedule 1 hereof, the
Company may retain a mutually satisfactory independent consultant to assist in the resolution of the

particular dispute.

(z) The Company will import 3 inches of topsoil to remedy any areas affected by
construction that have crop losses in excess of 50 % in the fifth year following construction to be
distributed in accordance with the following protocol regardless of the cause of the loss and without
prejudice to the landowner’s continuing right to compensation for losses in excess of those
compensated for.

(1) The Company will regrade the total width of the easement, including
the designated area to level any ruts;

(i1) The Company will import a quantity of topsoil equivalent to three
(3) inches times the total area of the Land experiencing greater than
50% crop loss (the “affected area”).The topsoil will be of a quality
described in subsection (bb), dry and tested for the presence of
soybeans cyst nematode;

(ii1) The Company will spread the imported topsoil uniformly over the
affected area to a maximum depth of three (3) inches on the affected
area or as otherwise agreed to by the Landowner and the Company in
a manner so as to not adversely affect the natural drainage of the

Land or adversely impact on normal farming operations .

Alternatively, at the option of the landowner, if there is greater than 50% crop loss after
five years, Union will retain an independent soils consultant satisfactory to both parties to develop a

prescription to rectify the problem. This may include the importation of topsoil.

(aa) The Company will perform compaction testing on and off the easement before and
after topsoil replacement and provide the results to the landowner. Unless there is an agreement to
the contrary, the Company will remediate any residual compaction in the subsoil prior to return of

topsoil.

(bb)  Any imported topsoil shall be natural, cultivated, medium loam, neither clay or sandy

in nature, capable of heavy agricultural growths and be from a source approved by the landowner.

(cc) The Company will provide a copy of this Letter of Understanding and the

environmental reports to the construction contractor.
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(dd) The Company agrees to implement one joint committee for the NPS 48 Strathroy-

Lobo Project under the terms of reference agreed to in Schedule 1 hereof.

(ee) The Company will ensure suitable passage and land access for agricultural equipment

during construction.

2 LIABILITY

The Company will be responsible for damages to property, equipment, and loss of time
resulting from construction operations, and will pay for repairs or replacement costs. The Company
will be responsible, and indemnify the landowner from any and all liabilities, damages, costs, claims,
suits and actions except those resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the

landowner.

3. WATER WELLS

To ensure that the quality and quantity (i.e. static water levels) of well water is maintained, a

pre, during and post construction monitoring program will be implemented for all drilled wells within
100 metres of the proposed pipeline, for all dug wells within 100 metres and for any other wells
recommended by the Company's hydrogeology consultant. All samples will be taken by the
Company's environmental personnel and analyzed by an independent laboratory. Their report will be
made available to the landowner on or before the filing of the final post-construction monitoring
report.

Should a well be damaged (quantity and/or quality) from pipeline installation/operations, a
potable water supply will be provided and the water well shall be restored or replaced as may be

required.

4. LAND RIGHTS

Land rights required for the pipeline construction include permanent interests such as pipeline

easements (i.e. a limited interest in the affected lands) and may also include temporary land use
agreements. The Company agrees that it will not surrender any of its permanent rights or be released
from any of its obligations in the easement lands unless an agreement to the contrary has been made
with the landowner. In making payment for land rights directly to the registered owner of the affected
lands, the owner is responsible to ensure his/her tenant is aware of the terms of the easement or
temporary land use agreement and this Letter of Understanding.

Consideration for land rights will be based on appraised market value of the affected lands. In
determining the appraised market value, independent accredited real estate appraisers are retained by
the Company who must observe the standards established by the Appraisal Institute of Canada. If
agreement on the consideration for land rights cannot be reached, the Company will pay for a second
report by a qualified appraiser who is chosen by the landowner provided the appraiser and the terms
of reference for the appraisal report are mutually acceptable to the landowner and the Company. If
consideration for land rights still cannot be agreed upon, the matter would be determined at a
compensation hearing and the Company's offers would not prejudice either parties' presentation at the

hearing.

4.1 EASEMENTS
Pipeline easements convey a limited right in an owner's land for the construction, operation,

maintenance and repair of a pipeline. The owner retains title to the right-of-way lands with a
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restricted right to use the easement. The Company will pay a consideration for easements based upon
100% of the appraised market value of the lands required which includes a premium as an incentive
for settlement. Payments for easements will be made in one lump-sum or will be amortized over 10

years using the current Canada Savings Bond (CSB) rate, at the option of the landowner.

4.2 TEMPORARY LAND USE AGREEMENTS

Consideration is also paid for temporary use of landowners' property required in connection
with the project. This lump sum payment for use of these lands is based upon 50% of the appraised
market value for agricultural lands. Payment for Disturbance damages will also be made on the basis
of 50 percent of the values described in 5.1 below and Appendix “A” hereto. The Comparative Crop
Option and One Time Payment with Cover Crop Option 5.2 below is available for temporary land use
lands in agricultural areas. For non-agricultural or development lands, an annual payment is offered
based on the market value multiplied by the current CSB rate. Temporary land use will be required
for at least a two year period, being the year of construction and the following year to allow for clean-
up and restoration activities. Should activities extend beyond the two year period, payment will be
negotiated on an annual basis. Although every effort will be made by the Company to identify
temporary land use areas required, in certain instances either before or during construction, additional
temporary land use may be identified and compensation will be as outlined above. Temporary land
use payments do not include those lands used for top soil storage adjacent to the right-of-way which

is compensated on the following basis:

(a) minimum area equivalent to 36% of the easement area (payable before construction):
(i) 50% of appraised market value for agricultural land

(i) disturbance damages (as a component of easement disturbance damages as described in s.5.1 and
Appendix “A” hereto)

(iii) crop loss (100% damages for crop destroyed during construction and future loss “as incurred” in
accordance with s.5.2(a) and Appendix “A” hereto)

(b) additional topsoil storage in excess of 36% of easement area
(payable after construction):

(1) (as above)

(ii) actual area of topsoil storage x 50% of appraised market value of agricultural land minus
disturbance payment for topsoil storage paid in easement disturbance prior to construction

(iii) (as above)

5. DAMAGE PAYMENTS

Compensation for damages can be grouped under two headings, namely, Disturbance Damages,
which are paid at the time easements and temporary land use agreements are executed, and
Construction Damages, which are paid either before or after construction is completed. Disturbance
and Construction damage payments will apply to both easement and temporary land use and will be

based upon the areas of the proposed pipeline easement and temporary land use.

5.1 DISTURBANCE DAMAGES
Disturbance Damages are intended to recognize that pipeline construction will result in some
unavoidable interference with active agricultural operations and certain other uses of affected lands.

This may include lost time due to negotiations and construction, inconvenience to the farming
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operations, restricted headlands, interrupted access, extra applications of fertilizer, temporary storage
of top soil off easement. Other land uses may qualify for Disturbance Damages which are site-specific
in nature and recognize the particular circumstances of the use being interfered with. Union will

negotiate with the affected owner to address these site-specific issues.

52 CONSTRUCTION DAMAGES
(a) CROP DAMAGE

There are two options available to landowners for compensation of crop damage. A
Comparative Crop Program, or a One Time Payment program with a Cover Crop Option. These are

described below.

OPTION ONE: Comparative Crop Program

In the "Comparative Crop Program" the Company will monitor crop yields on and off right-of-
way to compensate for any reduction in yield which is attributable to the pipeline construction and
any related effects ( i.e. thermal effect ) and will follow a damage claim settlement program as
follows:

First Year (Construction Year) - Pay 100% of crop damage on all permanent and temporary

easements, topsoil storage areas, gored areas and adjoining affected lands.

Second to Fifth Year - The crop loss compensated applies only to easements and temporary land use

areas. It will be based on results obtained from a consulting agronomist retained by the Company;
any other testing must be approved by the Company . The agronomist will determine any difference
in crop yields on and off the easement/temporary land use areas (percent crop loss) and the Company
will compensate for such crop losses at prevailing rates.

Sixth Year - In the sixth year, at the landowner's discretion in consultation with the Company, the"
Comparative Crop Program " may remain in effect, or the landowner may offer to accept a lump sum
payment from the Company, and the landowner will sign a Full and Final Release. The lump sum
payment will be the sixth year percent crop loss plus net present value of future years' losses. Net
present value of future years' losses will be based on the percent crop loss in the sixth year multiplied
by the average price per acre on crops grown in the prior six (6) year period divided by the current

CSB rate. For example:

Present Value = Payment  Thus, Lump Sum =
Interest

(Sixth Year % Crop Loss) +

(% Crop Loss x Average Crop Price Per Acre x Acreage)
CSB Rate

Example: 20% crop loss over 1 acre area; average crop price $300/acre

(.20 x $300.00 x 1.0) +.20 x $300.00 x 1.0 = $631.43 (Lump Sum Payment)
.105

It is understood and agreed that landowners will use good farming practices in the cultivation of
their lands to mitigate any ensuing damages to the best of their ability. The Company will provide
crop restoration recommendations following the completion of construction to assist landowners in
rehabilitating the affected lands and will compensate them for any expenses over and above normal

farm management of the easement while carrying out these recommendations. Where a landowner
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has followed these recommendations to the best of their ability, and is still participating in the
"Comparative Crop Program " the Company will, at its expense, retain agricultural specialists to

offer advice and assistance in restoration procedures.

If the landowner chooses the Comparative Crop Program, the Company will also monitor and
compensate for any decrease in the price obtained for the whole field crop as a result of differences
in grade, quality, condition or moisture content between the crop on the whole Dawn-Trafalgar
right-of-way and the crop off right-of-way but this provision shall not apply if the One Time

Payment Program is chosen.

Pasture Lands - If the affected lands are being used for pasture, the landowner may wish to select the
following option in lieu of the 5 year crop monitoring described above. Any unbroken pasture area
involved will be reseeded by the Company or on mutual agreement, by the landowner who will be
compensated for the reseeding. Pasture area will be paid at 100% loss for a two year term, being the
construction year and the year following construction to allow the affected area to establish growth.
At the end of the two year period, if the pasture has been established, a Full and Final release will be
requested from the landowner. If the pasture has not yet been established, compensation will continue
to be paid at 100% loss until such time as the pasture has been established, at which time a Full and

Final Release will be signed by the landowner.

OPTION TWO: One Time Payment With Cover Crop Option

As an alternative to the foregoing damage programmes, the Company will offer landowners a
one-time settlement on the area of the permanent easement and temporary land use areas, for a Full
and Final Release on future crop loss, trees, stone picking beyond the year following construction,
cover crops, inspection, consulting time and general damages of any nature whatsoever. Payment is
normally made after construction but can be made at the time easement agreements are executed.
Notwithstanding that the landowner will have executed a Full and Final Release for crop damages
either before or after construction, should productivity loss exceed the percentages paid through the
"One Time" Program in any year following construction and the landowner has not been (or is not
being) compensated for crop loss under the terms of an existing crop loss compensation program with
the Company, the Company will reimburse the landowner for the difference calculated by applying
the percentage loss to the landowner’s actual gross return in the year and deducting the compensation
received for that year under the “ One Time > program. It will be incumbent upon any landowner
making this type of claim to advise the company in sufficient time to allow for investigation of the
matter and completion of the required samplings. Alternatively, at the option of the Landowner, upon
provision of advance notice to the Company to permit opportunity for inspection, GPS data may be
utilized to establish yield reductions for the purpose of any applicable “ top up ”, provided that the
Company is not responsible for installing GPS units or survey equipment if necessary. In the event
that the landowner selects this option, the landowner must provide all necessary GPS documentation
related to the entire farm field in question, including, but not limited to, maps, computer print-outs

and formula to determine field averages.
Example Third year crop loss under "One Time" Program = 50%.

Actual crop loss following investigation and sampling = 60%.

Difference payable to landowner - 10%).
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For any land used outside the permanent easement, the Company will pay 100% damages for
any crops destroyed during the construction year and pay damages for future crop loss on an "as
incurred" basis.

This option does not apply to specialty crops. Damages to specialty crops, i.e. tobacco, produce,
registered seed variety, will be reviewed and compensation negotiated on a site specific basis and
paid on a yearly basis as a specialty crop rotation.

In addition to the one time payment, the landowner may request a cover crop rehabilitation
program for cultivated lands. Under this program the landowner will plant alfalfa/sweet clover or
other restoration crops approved by the Company on the easement and his/her normal crop in the
remainder of the field for up to three years. The initial cost of tillage and planting will be paid by the
Company as determined by "Economics Information", published by the Ministry of Agriculture and
Food. The cost of seed planted over the easement will be compensated upon presentation of an

invoice for same. This cover crop program does not apply for tobacco crops.

(b) WOODLOTS AND HEDGEROW TREES

All woodlots and hedgerow trees to be cut will be appraised by a qualified forester retained by
the Company. The forester will contact the landowner before entry on their property. Copies of
appraisal reports will be made available to affected landowners and payment will be made in
accordance with the reports.

If requested by the landowner, evaluation of trees in woodlots will be based on the accepted
practice as outlined on Schedule 1 hereto.

The evaluation of trees for aesthetic values, will be carried out by qualified professionals
according to standard principles as outlined in Schedule 2 hereto. Compensation for trees evaluated
in this manner shall be set out in Appendix "B" to this document.

Union reserves the right to use trees for which it has paid compensation. At the landowner's
request, any remaining logs will be cut into 10 foot ( 3.05 metre ) lengths, lifted and piled adjacent to
the easement.

As an alternative to the forester's appraisal, the landowner may accept "Option Two: One Time
Payment" (see page 13) in lieu of the woodlot evaluation.

Tree plantations (Christmas trees and nursery stock) will be appraised separately.

Prior to the start of construction, the following options will be discussed with the landowner,
and the most appropriate option selected:

Option 1: The land will be completely cleared for construction with all stumps and brush
removed so that the land can be cultivated.

Option 2: At Union's expense, all vegetation on the construction area will be cut with brush
cutters or sprayed regularly so that brush or trees will not grow again.

Option 3: Union will maintain a 6 metre strip over the pipeline which will be kept clear by
cutting the brush or spraying. The remainder of the easement will be allowed to reforest naturally or
can be reforested by the landowner.

The Company has established a policy to replant twice the area of trees to those which are
cleared for pipeline projects. Landowners whose woodlots are to be cleared may apply in writing to
the Company should they wish to participate in this programme. Tree seedlings will be replanted on
the right-of-way or within the landowner's property using species determined in consultation with the
landowner. Replanting must be done in accordance with the Company's policies regarding tree
planting on easements so that a 6 metre strip centred on the pipeline is left open for access to the

pipeline.
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For hedgerows the Company will implement the following practice: If a tree in excess of six
( 6) feet is removed a six ( 6 ) foot replacement tree will be supplied; if a tree less than six ( 6 ) feet in
height is removed, a similar sized tree will be supplied. The Company will warrantee such trees for a
period of three years following planting, provided the landowner waters the tree as appropriate after
planting.

The only exception to the non-planting of the 6 metre strip is that with permission, trees may be
planted as a crop ( nursery stock ), provided that no tree is permitted to grow higher than 2 metres in
height, and the species are of a shallow rooting variety. The use of hydraulic spades within the 6

metre strip is prohibited.

() GENERAL MATTERS FOR DAMAGES

As damage payments are made directly to the registered landowner, the landowner is
responsible for making any compensation to his/her tenant for any matters included in the damage
payment from the Company.

The Landowner(s) in consideration of this settlement, covenants and represents that this
settlement and the relevant easement agreement or option for easement, as the case may be will be
made known to any occupant, tenant or lessee of their lands.

Where damage settlements cannot be negotiated, the Company or the landowner may apply to
the Board of Negotiation or Ontario Municipal Board to settle unresolved claims. It is further
understood and agreed that the landowner's executing our easement, is without prejudice to his/her
position in negotiation of damages following construction of the pipeline and the aforementioned

settlement arrangements will be in full effect.

6. POST-CONSTRUCTION AND PIPELINE OPERATIONS ISSUES
6.1 WEED AND BRUSH CONTROL IN NON-CULTIVATED AREAS

The pipeline easement through woodlots will be brushed out on a regular basis either within a 6
metre strip centred over the pipeline or across the full width of easement which was initially cleared

for construction. The width of clearing will be discussed with landowners prior to work commencing.

At the choice of the landowner, the easement can be replanted with trees provided no planting
takes place within a 6 metre strip centred over the pipeline. Landowners are reminded that the
company must be notified five days prior to any excavation taking place on the easement and that
such excavation must be under the direction of a Company inspector, in accordance with the

easement agreement.

The Company will work with the Landowner to ensure that weeds are controlled along the
pipeline. Weeds will be sprayed or cut after discussion with the landowner. The Landowner will be

provided with a contact name in the event that concerns are experienced with weeds.

6.2 DAMAGES FROM PIPELINE OPERATIONS

Prior to scheduled excavation for maintenance work, top soil shall be stripped and piled
separately from subsoil.

Pipeline maintenance shall be scheduled to accommodate crop planting, growing and
harvesting, however, in the event maintenance work results in crop damage, Union shall negotiate
crop damage settlements.

Any work on existing pipelines will be carried out using current practices.
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The Integrity Dig Agreement shall apply to all integrity and maintenance operations on the

whole Dawn-Trafalgar system.

6.3 ABANDONMENT

Upon the abandonment of the pipeline ( as determined by the Easement ) , the affected lands
shall be returned as close as possible to its prior use and condition with no ascertainable changes in
appearance or productivity as determined by acomparison of the crop yields with adjacent land where
no pipeline was installed, provided that there shall be no additional compensation for crop loss to the
landowner under the Comparative Crop Program 5.2 (a) OPTION ONE or the One-Time Payment
with Cover Crop OPTION TWO but without prejudice to any continuing right of the landowner to *
top up ” compensation pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.2 (a) hereof.

The Company, in consultation with the landowner or third parties as required, will determine

a reasonable and appropriate course of action to rectify any deficiencies.

6.4 DEPTH OF COVER

At the request of the landowner, the Company shall undertake a depth of cover survey of the

Pipeline, and shall provide its findings to the landowner. Where it is determined that cover over the

Pipeline is less than three feet, The Company shall restore depth of cover to three feet with the

importation of topsoil or by lowering the pipe.

6.5 STONEPICKING

The Company shall, at a time satisfactory to the landowner, pick stones 50 mm (2”) or larger in

diameter by hand/or with a mechanical stone picker in each of the first two years following

construction. The Company shall, at a time satisfactory to the landowner, return to pick stones 50

mm (2”) or larger in the following years where there is a demonstrable need.

7. GORED LAND

The Company agrees to pay landowners the 100 % annual crop loss component as provided
In the One Time Payment with Cover Crop Option hereof, or in the case of specialty crops as
provided in Clause 5.2 hereof for agricultural lands rendered not useable as a result of the

construction of the pipeline and clean-up following construction.

8. TESTING FOR SOY BEAN CYST NEMATODE

In consultation with the landowner, the Company agrees to sample all agricultural

easements along the pipeline route of this project, before construction, and any soils imported to

the easement lands for the presence of soy bean cyste nematode (SCN) and provide a report of test

results to the landowner. In the event the report indicates the presence of SCN, the Joint

Committee will work with OMAFRA and the University of Guelph to develop a best practices

protocol to handle SCN when detected and will employ the most current best practice at the time of

construction. The Company will also test for SCN whenever it is conducting post-construction soil

tests.

9. INDEPENDENT CONSTRUCTION MONITOR
An independent construction monitor shall be appointed by GAPLO-Union ( Strathroy — Lobo

), the Company and Ontario Energy Board Staff. The monitor shall be on site continuously to
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monitor construction with respect to all issues of concern to landowners, and shall be available

to the landowners and the Company at all times. The monitor shall file interim and final reports

with the Ontario Energy Board.

10. INSURANCE
Upon request by the landowner, the Company will provide insurance certificates evidencing

at least five million dollars in liability insurance coverage.

11. COMPENSATION LEVELS
The levels of compensation applicable to your property are set out in Appendix "A" and are
based upon the criteria set out above. Kindly sign the second copy of this Letter of Understanding and

initial all Appendices to indicate your acceptance of our arrangements.

12. ASSIGNMENT

All rights and obligations contained in this agreement shall extend to, be binding upon, and
enure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto
respectively; and wherever the singular or masculine is used it shall, where necessary, be construed as
if the plural, or feminine or neuter had been used, as the case may be.

The Company shall not assign this agreement without prior written notice to the landowner and,

despite such assignment, the Company shall remain liable to the landowner for the performance of

its responsibilities and obligations in this agreement.

Yours very truly,
UNION GAS LIMITED

Manager, Lands Department

Dated at , Ontario this day
of ,20
Witness: (
(
( Landowner
(
(
(
( Landowner
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APPENDIX "A": SETTLEMENT

Property No. , Landowner(s):

The parties to this Letter of Understanding dated the

day of , 2003, in consideration of

making this settlement have summarized below all the obligations, claims, damages and compensation
arising from and for the required land rights and the pipeline construction across the Landowner(s)'

property, namely

(Check all applicable items of compensation)
Yes No

LAND RIGHTS
[] [] (@)  Easement @
[] [] (b)  Temporary Land Use @
[] [] (©) Topsoil Storage Land Use @
[] [] (d) Topsoil Storage Land Use @
DAMAGES
[] [] (a) Disturbance @,
[] [] (b) Disturbance @,
[] [] (¢c)  Disturbance
(d) Crops
[] [] Comparative Crop Program:
[] [] One Time Payment @
[] [] One Time Payment @
[] [] Cover Crop Program:
[] [] Top Soil Storage
OTHER (IN LIEU OF “ ONE TIME *)
[] [] (d) Pasture Lands @

[] [] (e) Woodlots

OBLIGATIONS

[] a)
[11] b)

Initialled for identification by owner(s):

This Letter of Understanding.

per acre.
per acre.

per acre. ( 36% Easement Area )
per acre ( for area exceeding
36% of Easement Area )
Determined and Payable after
construction

per acre of easement.

per acre of Temporary Land Use
As outlined in s.4.2 for Topsoil
Storage Area exceeding 36 % of
Easement Area

Determined and Payable after
construction

&L &~

(See section 5.2(a))

$ per acre of easement.
$ per acre of Temporary Land Use

(See section 5.2(a) —  typically
decision made

after construction

Measured Crop Damage per acre
(100% loss in year of construction )
If and as incurred in years after construction

(See OPTION ONE — Comparative Crop

Program )

(See section 5.2(b))

Attached as Appendix "B" any other special requirements or compensation issues.

Approval (Union Gas Limited):
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Property No.: , Landowner(s):

05/2006



CAEPLA-PLC 56

Page 18
NPS 48 STRATHROY-LOBO Pipeline
SCHEDULE 1
Landowner Relations and Terms of Reference of Joint Committee
In addition to Wet Soils Shutdown issues, the Joint Committee’s purpose is to:
1) provide a mechanism to address issues/concerns that arise during and following

construction including concerns related to wet soil shutdown decisions made by the Company;
ii) provide a brief overview of issues/concerns raised during and following construction; and,
1ii) consider which items should be included in a Post Construction Report.

The objective of the Joint Committee is to provide:

1) a vehicle to address issues/concerns which arise during and following construction;

ii) deal with any unforeseen circumstances which may arise during or following construction;
and,

1ii) an opportunity for landowners to comment on how Union might improve future

construction practices.
In reviewing the foregoing, the types of issues which may be addressed are as follows:
1) landowner concerns that arise during and following construction;

ii) unusual or unanticipated impacts of the construction process which show up only after
construction is completed;

1ii) methods of anticipating and avoiding these circumstances in the future; and,

iv) review of ongoing construction practices and procedures which in the view of the
landowners might be improved in future construction.

Duration of the Joint Committee

1) The Joint Committee shall be formed during the year of construction in advance and
prior to the commencement of construction. The landowners shall be responsible for
recruiting the landowner members and advising the Company thereof. The Committee
shall continue for a period of two ( 2 ) years from the date of commencement of
construction and so long thereafter as the Committee determines is necessary.

Committee Make-Up
1) Members shall be affected landowners, and appropriate representatives of the Company.

The Joint Committee shall be composed of one GUSL landowner, one other landowner
and three representatives of the Company;

Payment to Landowner members

1) The Company will pay to the GUSL landowner member of the Joint Committee at his or her
direction a total payment of $ 10,000 plus G.S.T. and the same amount to the other
landowner member_ as an honorarium for their participation on the committee.

SCHEDULE 2
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WOODLOT EVALUATION
At the time of signing of the Letter of Understanding the landowners with woodlots will be given 3 options.
1. take a one time full and final for the total easement.

2.  take a one time full and final for that portion of the easement in agricultural land, and have the woodlot
evaluated separately.

3.  take the crop monitoring program and have the woodlot evaluated separately.
Woodlots will be assessed in the following manner:

A forestry consultant will cruise the woodlot to determine the amount of volume which could be harvested
on a periodic basis from the woodlot under sustained yield management.

This volume will then be determined on an annual basis.

Current sale prices will then be given to this volume to determine an annual amount which could be
harvested from the woodlot.

This value will then be present valued using the same formula as the one time payment option.
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SCHEDULE 3
AESTHETIC TREE EVALUATION

The following procedure would be followed where a landowner wishes to have trees on his property
evaluated for aesthetic values.

During discussions for the Letter of Understanding, the landowners would identify the trees he wishes to
have evaluated for aesthetic purposes.

Union would contract a qualified person to complete an evaluation of the trees.
The landowners would be paid the evaluated price for the trees in addition to other payments.
If trees are less than 5 inches in diameter replacement of the trees may be considered in lieu of a payment.

If the landowner disagrees with Unions evaluation a second evaluation may be completed using the same
criteria as the original evaluation.

EVALUATION CRITERIA
A four part evaluation criteria will be completed for aesthetic trees:

Tree = Basic x Species x Condition X Location
Value Value Rating Rating Rating

Basic value is estimated without consideration of condition, species or location. It is calculated by
multiplying the cross-sectional area of the tree trunk by an assigned value per square inch of trunk area. (in
1983 this value was $22.00)

Species rating is a percentage rating based on the relative qualities of the tree species.

Condition rating is a percentage rating based on the health of the tree.

Location rating is a percentage rating based on the location of the tree.
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SCHEDULE 4

Schedule of Rates for Work
Performed by Owners of Land

Typically all work will be done by the Company. In the event that landowners perform work on behalf of

the Company, at the Companys' expense, the company will remunerate the landowner in accordance with
the following;

1. Stonepicking - $10.00 per hour/per person picking by hand
- $45.00 per hour for use of tractor and wagon

2. Chisel Plowing - $70.00 per hour

3. Cultivation - $50.00 per hour

4. Tile Inspection - $20.00 per hour *

*

Payment for Tile Inspection is for those hours spent inspecting tile at the request of the contractor.

05/2006



CAEPLA-PLC 60
Page 22
NPS 48 STRATHROY-LOBO Pipeline
SCHEDULE 5
Wet Soils Shutdown

The following sets out the Wet Soils Shutdown practice of Union Gas Limited for pipeline construction,
repair and maintenance on agricultural lands.

Wet Soils Shutdown issues shall be decided by the Joint Committee with the assistance of the
construction monitor as required.

While constructing the Company’s pipeline the Company’s senior inspectors inspect right-of-way
conditions each day before construction activities commence for that day. If, in the judgment of these
inspectors or other Company representatives and other members of the Joint Committee with the
assistance of the construction monitor, the right-of-way conditions on agricultural lands are such that
construction would have an adverse affect on the soils due to wet soils conditions, the contractor is
prohibited from starting construction activities. The inspectors/other Company representatives and other
members of the Joint Committee with the assistance of the construction monitor shall consider the extent
of surface ponding, extent and depth of rutting, surface extent and location of potential rutting and
compaction (i.e, can traffic be re-routed within the easement lands around wet area(s) ) and the type of
equipment and nature of construction proposed for that day. The wet soil shutdown restriction would be in
effect until, in the judgment of the Company representatives and other members of the Joint Committee
with the assistance of the construction monitor, the soils would have sufficiently dried to the extent that
commencing construction activities would have no adverse affects on the soils.

Wet soils shutdown is a routine part of Union’s normal management process for pipeline construction
activities. In recognition of this, Union budgets for and includes in contract documents, provisions for
payment to the pipeline contractors for wet soils shutdown thereby removing any potential incentive for the
contractor to work in wet conditions.

In addition, Union’s inspection staff and the Joint Committee with the assistance of the construction
monitor are responsible for ensuring that construction activities do not occur during wet soils shutdown.
This would include shutting down construction activities if soils became wet during the day.

It should, however, be recognized that there may be situations when construction activities cannot be carried
out during the normal construction period due to delays in project timing and it may become necessary to
work in wet conditions in the spring or fall of the year. Where construction activities are undertaken by the
Company in wet soil conditions _( as determined by the monitor ), additional mitigation measures may be
put in place to minimize resulting damages. Mitigation measures may, where appropriate, be developed by
Union on a site specific basis and may include avoiding certain areas, full easement stripping, geotextile
roads, the use of swamp mats, or the use of other specialized equipment where deemed appropriate by
Union. Union will authorize work in wet soils conditions only when all other reasonable alternatives have
been exhausted.

Where construction activities are undertaken by the Company in wet soil conditions ( as determined by
the monitor ),the Company shall pay to the landowner 150 % of disturbance and crop loss damage
compensation_on_the area_affected by the activities ( area_also to be determined by the construction
monitor ). The 150 % payment applies only once to any one area; on _areas where the 150 % payment is
applied, the landowner forfeits the right to top-up of crop loss damages under the L.O.U.. The 150 %
payment does not affect the landowner’s right to topsoil replacement where crop loss exceeds 50 % in the
fifth year following construction.
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SECTION 6

LAND MATTERS

NPS 36 Pipeline

68. The proposed NPS 36 pipeline connects to the 156 Compressor Station at Lot 31, Concession
1, Dawn-Euphemia Township, and runs southerly to Dawn in Lot 26, Concession 2, Dawn-

Euphemia Township.

69. Union requires approximately 6.0 hectares of permanent easement for the proposed pipeline.
Section 6-Schedule 1 lists the names and addresses of all affected landowners and the
dimensions of the permanent easements required. As of the date of filing, Options for the four

permanent easements have been obtained.

70. Union’s Grant of Easement form which is attached as Section 6-Schedule 2 is the form

developed following the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-Lobo TFEP hearing.

71. Union will require approximately 2.0 hectares of temporary easement for the proposed
construction. The affected landowners and dimensions of temporary easement are also
outlined in Section 6-Schedule 1. Union will employ the Temporary Land Use Agreement
form previously approved by the Board and used by Union in the past on pipeline projects.
These agreements are for a period of two years. This period allows Union an opportunity to

return following construction to perform further clean-up work as required.

72. At the conclusion of construction, Union will seek a Full and Final Release from each of the
directly affected landowners. This Release covers any compensation for actual damages

resulting from the pipeline construction.

73. Union will also use a Letter of Understanding (“LOU”) between Union and landowners for
the project, and specifically the form of the LOU employed in the Strathroy-Lobo project
referred to in paragraph 70. The LOU outlines compensation, damage mitigation, clean-up,

and restoration policies to be implemented for the project. It also constitutes a framework for

0 tniongas 2008 Dawn Deliverability Project
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individual landowner negotiations. The LOU is structured so that common concerns can be

addressed in a consistent and mutually-acceptable fashion.

74. The LOU provides a benchmark for individual negotiations for land rights. If necessary,
updates or site-specific reports by mutually-acceptable appraisers will be paid for by Union to

resolve questions of land values.

75. During individual negotiations with affected landowners, property-specific matters of
compensation for land rights and anticipated damages, as well as site-specific mitigation

measures will be settled. These measures are documented in the LOU.

Well Drilling, Roads and Gathering Lines

76. Drilling of wells, construction of roadways, and construction of gathering pipelines within the

DSA will be undertaken pursuant to existing Storage Lease Agreements with the landowners.

77. In the 156 Pool, wells will be drilled on the Ronald and Richard Clubb, Adelle Stewardson
and Frank and Martha Wilson properties. The 59-85 Pool wells will be drilled on properties
owned by Eunice Aitken and Lisa Pleau and Union Gas Limited. The location of wells can be
found in Section 4-Schedules 1 and 2. Copies of the Storage Lease Agreements for these

landowners can be found at Section 6-Schedule 3.

78. Permanent all-weather roadways are required to accommodate vehicular traffic to the existing
and proposed well locations and will be used on an ongoing basis during and following
construction. These access roads will be used where possible for construction and
maintenance of the gathering pipelines in order to minimize environmental disturbance. The

location of the access roads is shown in Section 6-Schedule 4.

79. Letters of Acknowledgement stating that there is no objection to the commencement of
drilling of the wells and construction of the permanent all-weather access roads in the
locations proposed have been presented to each landowner. Signed Letters of

Acknowledgment have been received from all landowners and are included as Section 6-

Schedule 4.

QO wiongas 2008 Dawn Deliverability Project
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This is an Easement in Gross
EASEMENT FOR TRANSMISSION PIPELINE

WHEREAS the Transferor is the owner in fee simple of those lands and premises more particularly described as
( herinafter called the "Transferor's lands").

WHEREAS the Transferee is the owner in fee simple of those lands and premises (hereinafter called the
"Transferee's lands") situate, lying and being in the geographic Township of Dawn, now Township of Dawn-
Euphemia, in the County of Lambton and Province of Ontario and being composed of the west half (w1/2) of Lot
Number 25 in the 2nd Concession of the said Township.

The Transferor (and the Mortgagee) do hereby GRANT, CONVEY, TRANSFER AND CONFIRM unto the
Transferee, its successors and assigns, to be used and enjoyed as appurtenant to all or any part of the lands of the
Transferee's lands the right, liberty, privilege and easement on, over, in, under and/or through a strip of the
Transferor's lands more particularly described in Box 5 of page one of this Schedule (hereinafter referred to as the
"Lands") to survey, lay, construct, maintain. inspect, patrol, alter, remove, replace, reconstruct, repair, move, keep,
use and/or operate one pipe line for the transmission of pipeline quality natural gas as defined in The Ontario
Energy Board Act S.0. 1998 (hereinafter referred to as the "Pipeline") including therewith all such buried
attachments, equipment and appliances for cathodic protection which the Transferee may deem necessary or
convenient thereto, together with the right of ingress and egress at any and all times over and upon the Lands for its
servants, agents, employees, those engaged in its business, contractors and subcontractors on foot and/or with
vehicles, supplies, machinery and equipment for all purposes necessary or incidental to the exercise and enjoyment

of the rights, privileges and easement hereby granted. The Parties hereto mutually covenant and agree each with the
other as follows:

1. In consideration of the sum of 00/100 DOLLARS ($ ) of
lawful money of Canada (hereinafter called the "Consideration”), which sum is payment in full for the rights and
interest hereby granted and for the rights and interest, if any, acquired by the Transferee by expropriation, including
in either or both cases payment in full for all such matters as injurious affection to remaining lands and the effect, if
any, of registration on title of this document and where applicable, of the expropriation documents, subject to
Clause 12 hereof to be paid by the Transferee to the Transferor at least 30 days prior to the exercise by the
Transferee of any of its rights hereunder other than the right to survey, the rights, privileges and easement hereby
granted shall continue in perpetuity or until the Transferee, with the express written consent of the Transferor, shall
execute and deliver a surrender thereof . Prior to and following such surrender Transferee shall remove all debris as
may have resulted from the Transferee's use of the Lands from the Lands and in all respects restore the Lands to it's
previous productivity and fertility so far as is reasonably possible, save and except for items in respect of which
compensation is due under Clause 2 hereof. As part of the Transferee's obligation to restore the lands upon
surrender of  its easement, the Transferee agrees at the option of the Transferor to remove the Pipeline from the
Lands. The Transferee and the Transferor shall surrender the easement and the Transferee shall remove the
Pipeline at the Transferor’s option where the Pipeline has been abandoned. The Pipeline shall be deemed to be
abandoned where: a) corrosion protection is no longer applied to the Pipeline, or, b) the Pipeline becomes unfit for
service in accordance with Ontario standards. The Transferee shall, within 60 days of either of these events
occurring, provide the Transferor with notice of the event. Upon removal of the Pipeline and restoration of the
Lands as required by this agreement, theTransferor shall release the Transferee from further obligations in respect

of restoration. This provision shall apply with respect to all Pipelines in the Dawn-Trafalgar system on the
Transferor's Lands.

2. The Transferee shall make to the Transferor (or the person or persons entitled thereto) due compensation for
any damages to the Lands resulting from the exercise of any of the rights herein granted, and if the compensation is
not agreed upon by the Transferee and the Transferor, it shall be determined by arbitration in the manner prescribed
by the Expropriations Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter E-26 or any Act passed in amendment thereof or substitution
therefor. Any gates, fences, municipal drains, and tile drains interfered with by the Transferee shall be restored by
the Transferee at its expense as closely as reasonably possible to the condition and function in which they existed
immediately prior to such interference by the Transferee and in the case of tile drains, such restoration shall be
performed in accordance with good drainage practice.
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3. The Pipeline (including attachments, equipment and appliances for cathodic protection but excluding valves,
take-offs and fencing installed under Clause 9 hereof) shall be laid to such a depth that upon completion of
installation it will not obstruct the natural surface run-off from the Lands nor ordinary cultivation of the Lands nor
any tile drainage system existing in the Lands at the time of installation of the Pipeline nor any planned tile
drainage system to be laid in the Lands in accordance with standard drainage practice, if the Transferee is given at
least thirty (30) days notice of such planned system prior to the installation of the pipeline; provided that the
Transferee may leave the pipeline exposed in crossing a ditch, stream, gorge or similar object where approval has
been obtained from the Ontario Energy Board or other Provincial Board or authority having jurisdiction in the
premises. The Transferee agrees to make reasonable efforts to accommodate the planning and installation of future
tile drainage systems following installation of the pipeline so as not to obstruct or interfere with such tile
installation.
The Transferee further agrees to make reasonable efforts at its own expense to accommodate changes in land use
on lands adjacent to the easement for the purpose of ensuring the Pipeline is in compliance with all applicable
regulatory requirements in connection with any such change in use.

4, As soon as reasonably possible after the construction of the Pipeline, the Transferee shall level the Lands and
unless otherwise agreed to by the Transferor, shall remove all debris as may have resulted from the Transferee's use
of the Lands therefrom and in all respects restore the Lands to its previous productivity and fertility so far as is
reasonably possible, save and except for items in respect of which compensation is due under Clause 2 hereof.

5. The Transferee shall indemnify the Transferor for any and all liabilities, damages, costs, claims, suits and
actions which are directly attributable to the exercise of the rights hereby granted, except to the extent of those
resulting from the gross negligence or wiliful misconduct of the Transferor.

6. Inthe event that the Transferee fails to comply with any of the requirements set out in Clause 2, 3, or 4 hereof
within a reasonable time of the receipt of notice in writing from the Transferor setting forth the failure complained
of, the Transferee shall compensate the Transferor (or the person or persons entitled thereto) for any damage, if

any, necessarily resulting from such failure and the reasonable costs if any, incurred in the recovery of those
damages.

7.  Except in case of emergency, the Transferee shall not enter upon any lands of the Transferor, other than the
Lands, without the consent of the Transferor. In case of emergency the right of entry upon the Transferor's lands
for ingress and egress to and from the Lands is hereby granted. The determination of what circumstances constitute
an emergency, for purposes of this paragraph is within the absolute discretion of the Transferee, but is a situation in
which the Transferee has a need to access the pipeline in the public interest without notice to the Transferor,
subject to the provisions of paragraph 2 herein. The Transferee will, within 72 hours of entry upon such lands,
advise the Transferor of the said emergency circumstances and thereafter provide a written report to Transferor
with respect to the resolution of the emergency situation.

8. The Transferor shall have the right to fully use and enjoy the Lands except for planting trees over a six (6)
metre strip centered over the Pipeline, and except as may be necessary for any of the purposes hereby granted to the
Transferee, provided that without the prior written consent of the Transferee, the Transferor shall not with
mechanical equipment or explosives excavate, drill, install, erect or permit to be excavated, drilled, installed or
erected in, on, over or through the Lands any pit, well, foundation, pavement, building, mobile homes or other
structure or installation. Notwithstanding the foregoing the Transferee upon request shall consent to the Transferor
erecting or repairing farm fences, constructing or repairing his tile drains and domestic sewer pipes, water pipes,
and utility pipes and constructing or repairing his lanes, roads, driveways, pathways, and walks across, on and in
the Lands or any portion or portions thereof, provided that before commencing any of the work referred to in this
sentence the Transferor shall (a) give the Transferee at least three (3) clear days notice in writing pointing out the
work desired so as to enable the Transferee to evaluate and comment on the work proposed and to have a
representative inspect the site and/or be present at any time or times during the performance of the work, (b) shall
follow the instructions of such representative as to the performance of such work without damage to the Pipeline,
{c) shall exercise a high degree of care in carrying out any such work and, (d) shall perform any such work in such
a manner as not to endanger or damage the Pipeline as may be required by the Transferee.
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9. The rights, privileges and easement herein granted shall include the right to install, keep, use, operate, service,
maintain, repair, remove and/or replace in, on and above the Lands any valves and/or take-offs subject to additional
agreements and to fence in such valves and/or take-offs and to keep same fenced in, but for this right the
Transferee shall pay to the Transferor (or the person or persons entitled thereto) such additional compensation as
may be agreed upon and in default of agreement as may be settled by arbitration under the provisions of The
Ontario Energy Board Act, S.0. 1998, or any Act passed in amendment thereof or substitution therefor. The
Transferee agrees to make all reasonable efforts to locate such facilities adjacent to lot lines and public road
allowances. The Transferee shall keep down weeds on any lands removed from cultivation by reason of locating !
any valves and/or take-offs in the Lands.

10. Notwithstanding any rule of law or equity and even though the Pipeline and its appurtenances may become
annexed or affixed to the realty, title thereto shall nevertheless remain in the Transferee.

11.  Neither this Agreement nor anything herein contained nor anything done hereunder shall affect or prejudice
the Transferee's rights to acquire the Lands or any other portion or portions of the Transferor's lands under the
provisions of The Ontario Energy Board Act, S.0. 1998, or any other laws, which rights the Transferee may
exercise at its discretion in the event of the Transferor being unable or unwilling for any reason to perform this
Agreement or give to the Transferee a clear and unencumbered title to the easement herein granted.

12.  The Transferor covenants that he has the right to convey this easement notwithstanding any act on his part,
that he will execute such further assurances of this easement as may be requisite and which the Transferee may at
its expense prepare and that the Transferee, performing and observing the covenants and conditions on its part to
be performed, shall have quiet possession and enjoyment of the rights, privileges and easement hereby granted. If
it shall appear that at the date hereof the Transferor is not the sole owner of the Lands, this Indenture shall
nevertheless bind the Transferor to the full extent of his interest therein and shall also extend to any after-acquired
interest, but all moneys payable hereunder shall be paid to the Transferor only in the proportion that his interest in
the Lands bears to the entire interest therein.

13, Inthe event that the Transferee fails to pay the consideration as hereinbefore provided, the Transferor shall
have the right to declare this easement canceled after the expiration of 15 days from personal service upon the
Secretary, Assistant Secretary or Manager, Lands Department of the Transferee at its Executive Head Office in
Chatham, Ontario, (or at such other point in Ontario as the Transferee may from time to time specify by notice in
writing to the Transferor) of notice in writing of such default, unless during such 15 day period the Transferee shall
pay the said consideration; upon failing to pay as aforesaid, the Transferee shall forthwith after the expiration of 15
days from the service of such notice execute and deliver to the Transferor at the expense of the Transferee, a valid
and registerable release and discharge of this easement.

14.  All payments under these presents may be made either in cash or by cheque of the Transferee and may be
made to the Transferor (or person or persons entitled thereto) either personally or by mail. All notices and mail sent
pursuant to these presents shall be addressed to the Transferor at and to
the Transferee at Union Gas Limited, 50 Keil Drive North, Chatham, Ontario N7M 5M1, Attention: Manager,

Lands or to such other address in either case as the Transferor or the Transferee respectively may from time to time
appoint in writing.

15.  The rights, privileges and easement hereby granted are and shall be of the same force and effect as a
covenant running with the land and this Indenture, including all the covenants and conditions herein contained,
shall extend to, be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns of the Parties hereto respectively; and, wherever the singular or masculine is used it shall, where necessary,
be construed as if the plural, or feminine or neuter had been used, as the case may be. The Transferee shall not
assign this agreement without prior written notice to the Transferor and, despite any such assignment, the

Transferee shall remain liable to the Transferor for the performance of its responsibilities and obligations
hereunder.
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16. The Mortgagee in Mortgage/Charge Number . in consideration of the sum of Two Dollars ($2.00)
the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, joins herein for the purpose of consenting hereto and agrees to the
easement hereby granted and covenants that the Transferee shall have quiet possession of the rights, privileges and
easements hereby granted. The Mortgagee certifies that the Mortgagee is at least eighteen years old.
(Name of Mortgagee)
Witness:
(Per:
Date of Signature
(Per:
Date of Signature
"[/we have authority to bind the corporation.”
o <
30
5%
Y J
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Municipality of Chatham-Kent

Province of Ontario “

DECLARATION REQUIRED UNDER
SECTION 50 OF THE PLANNING
ACT, R.S.0. 1990, as amended

1, Beverly Howard Wilton, of the Municipality of Chatham-Kent, in the Province of Ontario.

DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE THAT

1. 1am Manager, Lands Department of Union Gas Limited, the Transferee in the attached Grant of Easement
and as such have knowledge of the matters herein deposed to.

2. The use of or right in the land described in the said Grant of Easement is being acquired by Union Gas

Limited for the purpose of a hydrocarbon transmission line within the meaning of part VI of the Ontario Energy
Board Act , 1998.

AND I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and knowing that it is of the same force
and effect as if made under oath, and by virtue of The Canada Evidence Act.

DECLARED before me at the
Municipality of Chatham-Kent,
in the Province of Ontario

this day of , 2005

A Commissioner, etc.

Document prepared using Form'L ‘'Ware LandFormns
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8. TESTING FOR SOY BEAN CYST 2.Testing For Soybean Cyst 2.Testing For Soybean Cyst 2.Testing For Soybean Cyst Nematode
NEMATODE Nematode Nematode In consultation with the Landowner, the

In consultation with the landowner, the
Company agrees to sample all agricultural
easements along the pipeline route of this
project, before construction, and any soils
imported to the easement lands for the
presence of soy bean cyst nematode (SCN)
and provide a report of test results to the
landowner. In the event the report indicates
the presence of SCN, the Joint Committee
will work with OMAFRA and the University of
Guelph to develop a best practices protocol
to handle SCN when detected and will
employ the most current best practice at the
time of construction. The Company will also
test for SCN whenever it is conducting post-
construction soil tests.

In consultation with the Landowner, the
Company agrees to sample all
agricultural easements along the pipeline
route of this Project, before construction,
and any soils imported to the easement
lands for the presence of soybean cyst
nematode (SCN) and provide a report of
test results to the Landowner. In the
event the report indicates the presence of
SCN, the Company will work with
OMAFRA to develop a best practices
protocol to handle SCN when detected
and will employ the most current best
practice at the time of construction. The
Company will also test for SCN whenever
it is conducting post-construction soil
tests.

In consultation with the Landowner, the
Company agrees to sample all
agricultural easements along the
pipeline route of this Project, before
construction, and any soils imported to
the easement lands for the presence of
soybean cyst nematode (SCN) and
provide a report of test results to the
Landowner. In the event the report
indicates the presence of SCN, the
Company will work with OMAFRA to
develop a best practices protocol to
handle SCN when detected and will
employ the most current best practice at
the time of construction. The Company
will also test for SCN whenever it is
conducting post-construction soil tests.

Company agrees to sample all agricultural
easements along the pipeline route of this
Project, before construction, and any soils
imported to the easement lands for the
presence of soybean cyst nematode
(SCN) and provide a report of test results
to the Landowner. In the event the report
indicates the presence of SCN, the
Company, in consultation with the Joint
Committee, will work with OMAFRA to
develop a best practices protocol to handle
SCN when detected and will employ the
most current best practice at the time of
construction. The Company will also test
for SCN whenever it is conducting post-
construction soil tests.

V.16(e) — Staking of Work
Space

1.(b) The Company agrees to stake the
outside boundary of the work space which
will include easement, temporary work room,
or topsoil storage areas.

Where topsoil is to be stored off easement,
the stakes will not be removed during the
stripping operation.

The stakes will be located at 30 metre (98.4
foot) intervals prior to construction. The
intervals or distance between stakes may
decrease as deemed necessary in order to
maintain sight-lines and easement
boundaries in areas of sight obstructions,
rolling terrain or stream and road crossings.

The Company will restake the easement limit
for post construction tile work at the request
of the landowner.

3.Staking of Work Space

The Company agrees to stake the
outside boundary of the workspace
necessary for the construction of this
Project which may include an easement
and temporary land use area.

The stakes will be located at 30 metre
(98.4 foot) intervals prior to construction.
The intervals or distance between stakes
may decrease as deemed necessary in
order to maintain sight-lines and
easement boundaries in areas of sight
obstructions, rolling terrain or stream and
road crossings.

5. Staking of Work Space

The Company agrees to stake the
outside boundary of the workspace
necessary for the construction of this
Project which may include an easement
and temporary land use area.

The stakes will be located at 30 metre
(98.4 foot) intervals prior to construction.
The intervals or distance between
stakes may decrease as deemed
necessary in order to maintain sight-
lines and easement boundaries in areas
of sight obstructions, rolling terrain or
stream and road crossings.

5. Staking of Work Space

The Company agrees to stake the outside
boundary of the workspace necessary for
the construction of this Project which may
include an easement and temporary land

use area.

Where topsoil is to be stored off easement,
the stakes will not be removed during the
stripping operation.

The stakes will be located at 30 metre
(98.4 foot) intervals prior to construction
and will be spray painted or otherwise
marked in bright orange. The intervals or
distance between stakes may decrease as
deemed necessary in order to maintain
sight-lines and easement boundaries in
areas of sight obstructions, rolling terrain
or stream and road crossings.

The Company will restake the easement
limit for post construction tile work at the
request of the landowner.
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[11.10(a) — Topsoil Stripping 4.Topsoil Stripping 6. Topsoil Stripping 6. Topsoil Stripping

[11.10(b) — Existing Crown
from Original Construction

1. (a) Prior to installing the pipeline in
agricultural areas, the Company will strip
topsoil from over the pipeline trench and
adjacent subsoil storage area. All topsoil
stripped will be piled adjacent to the
easement and temporary land use areas in
an area approximately 10 metres (33’) in
width. The topsoil and subsaoil will be piled
separately and Union will exercise due
diligence to ensure that topsoil and subsoil

are not mixed. If requested by the landowner,
topsoil will be ploughed before being stripped

to a depth as specified by the landowner.

The Company will strip topsoil across the

entire width of the easement at the request of

the landowner, provided also that a

temporary right to use any necessary land for

topsoil storage outside the easement is
granted by the landowner.

Further, if the landowner so requests the
Company will not strip topsoil with the

topsoil/subsoil mix being placed on the spoil

side of the easement on top of the existing
topsoil.

At the request of a landowner a mulch layer
will be provided between the existing topsoil

and the stripped topsoil pile in situations
where a crop is not present.

Prior to installing the pipeline in
agricultural areas, the Company will strip
topsoil from over the pipeline trench and
adjacent subsoil storage area. All topsoil
stripped will be piled adjacent to the
easement and temporary land use areas
in an area approximately 10 metres (33’)
in width. The topsoil and subsoil will be
piled separately and the Company will
exercise due diligence to ensure that
topsoil and subsoil are not mixed. If
requested by the Landowner, topsoil will
be ploughed before being stripped to a
depth as specified by the Landowner.

The Company will strip topsoil across the
entire width of the easement (at the
request of the Landowner), provided also
that a temporary right to use any
necessary land for topsoil storage outside
the easement is granted by the
Landowner.

If requested by the Landowner the
Company will not strip topsoil. The
topsoil/subsoil mix will be placed on the
easement on top of the existing topsoil.

Prior to installing the pipeline in
agricultural areas, the Company will strip
topsoil from over the pipeline trench and
adjacent subsoil storage area. All
topsoil stripped will be piled adjacent to
the easement and temporary land use
areas in an area approximately 10
metres (33’) in width. The topsoil and
subsoil will be piled separately and the
Company will exercise due diligence to
ensure that topsoil and subsoil are not
mixed. If requested by the Landowner,
topsoil will be ploughed before being
stripped to a depth as specified by the
Landowner.

The Company will strip topsoil across
the entire width of the easement (at the
request of the Landowner), provided
also that a temporary right to use any
necessary land for topsoil storage
outside the easement is granted by the
Landowner.

If requested by the Landowner the
Company will not strip topsoil. The
topsoil/subsoil mix will be placed on the
easement on top of the existing topsoil.

Prior to installing the pipeline in agricultural
areas, the Company will strip topsoil from
over the pipeline trench and adjacent
subsoil storage area. All topsoil stripped
will be piled adjacent to the easement and
temporary land use areas in an area
approximately 10 metres (33’) in width.
The topsoil and subsoil will be piled
separately with one metre separation and
the Company will exercise due diligence to
ensure that topsoil and subsoil are not
mixed. If requested by the Landowner,
topsoil will be ploughed before being
stripped to a depth as specified by the
Landowner.

The Company will strip topsoil across the
entire width of the easement (at the
request of the Landowner), provided also
that a temporary right to use any
necessary land for topsoil storage outside
the easement is granted by the
Landowner.

Topsoil stripping will be conducted using
an excavator and not a bulldozer.

Topsoil previously disturbed by pipeline
construction will be stripped and piled
separately from virgin topsoil, with one
metre separation between piles.

If requested by the Landowner the
Company will not strip topsoil. The
topsoil/subsoil mix will be placed on the
easement on top of the existing topsoil.

At the request of a landowner a mulch
layer will be provided between the existing
topsoil and the stripped topsoil piles in
situations where a crop is not present.
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At the landowners request, separation of
distinct subsoil horizons such as blue and
yellow clays shall be performed. Blue clays
will be removed from the easement lands.

1.(h) At the request of the landowner topsoil
will be over-wintered and replaced the
following year. In these circumstances the
Company will replace the topsoil such that
the easement lands are returned to
surrounding grade.

At the recommendation of the Company’s
Soils Consultant and/or at the request of
the landowner topsoil will be over-
wintered and replaced the following year.
In these circumstances the Company will
replace the topsoil such that the
easement lands are returned to
surrounding grade.

At the recommendation of the
Company’s Soils Consultant and/or at
the request of the landowner topsoil will
be over-wintered and replaced the
following year. In these circumstances
the Company will replace the topsoil
such that the easement lands are
returned to surrounding grade.

At the landowners request, separation of
distinct subsoil horizons such as blue and
yellow clays shall be performed. Blue clays
will be removed from the easement lands.

At the recommendation of the Company’s
Soils Consultant and/or at the request of
the landowner topsoil will be over-wintered
and replaced the following year. In these
circumstances the Company will replace
the topsoil such that the easement lands
are returned to surrounding grade.

V.16(a) — Depth of Cover
LHPWSS will install the 2011
Twinning pipeline with at least
1.8 metres of cover.

If LHPWSS, acting reasonably,
determines in consultation with
the landowner that it is necessary
to increase the depth of the 2011
Twinning pipeline to
accommodate facilities such as
drainage, processes such as
deep tillage, heavy farm
equipment or land use changes,
LHPWSS will provide for
additional depth of cover.

1.(g) The Company will install the pipeline
with a minimum of 1.2 metres of coverage.

If the Company, acting reasonably,
determines in consultation with the
landowner and drainage expert that it is
necessary to increase the depth of the
Pipeline to accommodate facilities such as
drainage, processes such as deep tillage,
heavy farm equipment or land use changes,
Union will provide for additional depth of
cover.

x{. Depth of Cover
The Company will install the pipeline with

a minimum of 1.2 metres of cover, except
where bedrock is encountered at a depth
less than 1.2 metres, in which case the
pipe will be installed with the same cover
as the bedrock, but not less than 1.0
metre below grade.

If the Company, acting reasonably,
determines in consultation with the
Landowner that it is necessary to
increase the depth of the Pipeline to
accommodate current processes such as
deep tillage, heavy farm equipment or
land use changes, the Company will
provide for additional depth of cover.

7. Depth of Cover
The Company will install the pipeline

with a minimum of 1.2 metres of cover,
except where bedrock is encountered at
a depth less than 1.2 metres, in which
case the pipe will be installed with the
same cover as the bedrock, but not less
than 1.0 metre below grade.

If the Company, acting reasonably,
determines in consultation with the
Landowner that it is necessary to
increase the depth of the Pipeline to
accommodate current processes such
as deep tillage, heavy farm equipment or
land use changes, the Company will
provide for additional depth of cover

7. Depth of Cover
The Company will install the pipeline with a

minimum of 1.5 metres of cover, except
where bedrock is encountered at a depth
less than 1.5 metres, in which case the
pipe will be installed with the same cover
as the bedrock, but not less than 1.0 metre
below grade.

If the Company, acting reasonably,
determines in consultation with the
Landowner that it is necessary to increase
the depth of the Pipeline to accommodate
facilities such as drainage and/or
processes such as deep tillage, heavy
farm equipment or land use changes, the
Company will provide for additional depth
of cover

[11.10(c)
Topsoil Restoration

1.(k) The Company will also pick stones prior
to topsoil replacement. The subsoil will be
worked with a subsoiling implement, as
agreed by the Company and the Landowner
Committee. After topsoil replacement, the
topsoil will be tilled with an implement(s) as
agreed by the Company and the Landowner
Committee. Stones 50 mm (2”) in diameter
and larger will be picked by hand and/or with

9.Topsoil Replacement, Compaction
Removal and Stone Picking

The subsoil will be worked with a
subsoiling implement, as agreed by the
Company and Landowner.

Unless there is an agreement to the
contrary, the Company will remediate any
residual compaction in the subsoil prior to
return of topsoil.

9. Topsoil Replacement,
Compaction Removal and Stone
Picking

The subsoil will be worked with a
subsoiling implement, as agreed by the
Company and Landowner.

Unless there is an agreement to the
contrary, the Company will remediate
any residual compaction in the subsoil
prior to return of topsoil.

9. Topsoil Replacement,
Compaction Removal and Stone
Picking

The subsoil will be worked with a
subsoiling implement, as agreed by the
Company and Landowner.

Unless there is an agreement to the
contrary, the Company will remediate any
residual compaction in the subsoil prior to
return of topsoil.
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a mechanical stonepicker. The subsoil on the
easement will be tilled again as above.

1.(aa) The Company will perform compaction
testing on and off the easement before and
after topsoil replacement and provide the
results to the landowner. Unless there is an
agreement to the contrary, the Company will
remediate any residual compaction in the
subsaoil prior to return of topsoil.

1.(m) After the topsoil replacement, the
topsoil will be tilled (see section k) and
stones picked. If requested by the
landowner, the Company will cultivate the
topsoil or make compensating arrangements
with the landowner to perform such work.
This request by the landowner must be made
during the pre-construction interview in order
to be co-ordinated with the construction
process. After cultivation, the Company will
pick stones again. If requested by the
landowner, the Company will return in the
year following construction and chisel plough
or cultivate to the depth of the topsoil. When
necessary to accommodate planting
schedules, the landowners should perform
cultivating and/or chisel ploughing
themselves at the Company’s expense,
provided the need for this work has been
agreed upon in advance (see Schedule of
Rates attached ).

The Company will pick stones prior to
topsoil replacement.

Stone picking will be completed, by hand
or by mechanical stone picker to a size
and quantity consistent with the adjacent
field, but not less than stones 100 mm (4
inches) in diameter. After topsoil
replacement, the topsoil will be tilled with
an implement(s) as agreed by the
Company and Landowners.

After cultivation, the Company will pick
stones again.

The Company will perform compaction
testing on and off the easement before
and after topsoil replacement and provide
the results to the Landowner, upon
request.

If agreed to by the parties, the Company
will return in the year following
construction and will cultivate the
easement area. When necessary, to
accommodate planting schedules, the
Landowner should perform cultivation
themselves, at the Company’s expense
(see Schedule of Rates attached as
Schedule 3.

The Company will pick stones prior to
topsoil replacement.

Stone picking will be completed, by hand
or by mechanical stone picker to a size
and quantity consistent with the adjacent
field, but not less than stones 100 mm (4
inches) in diameter. After topsoil
replacement, the topsoil will be tilled with
an implement(s) as agreed by the
Company and Landowners.

After cultivation, the Company will pick
stones again.

The Company will perform compaction
testing on and off the easement before
and after topsoil replacement and
provide the results to the Landowner,
upon request.

If agreed to by the parties, the Company
will return in the year following
construction and will cultivate the
easement area. When necessary, to
accommodate planting schedules, the
Landowner should perform cultivation
themselves, at the Company’s expense
(see Schedule of Rates attached as
Schedule 3.

The Company will pick stones prior to
topsoil replacement.

Stone picking will be completed, by hand
or by mechanical stone picker to a size
and quantity consistent with the adjacent
field, but not less than stones 50 mm (2
inches) in diameter. After topsoil
replacement, the topsoil will be tilled with
an implement(s) as agreed by the
Company and Landowners.

After cultivation, the Company will pick
stones again.

The Company will perform compaction
testing on and off the easement before and
after topsoil replacement and provide the
results to the Landowner, upon request.

If agreed to by the parties, the Company
will return in the year following construction
and will cultivate, chisel plough and/or
deep till the easement area. When
necessary, to accommodate planting
schedules, the Landowner should perform
tillage themselves, at the Company’s
expense (see Schedule of Rates attached
as Schedule 3.
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6.5 STONEPICKING
The Company shall, at a time satisfactory to | The Company shall, at a time satisfactory | For this Project, the Company shall, at a | For this Project, the Company shall, at a
the landowner, pick stones 50 mm (2”) or to the Landowner, return to pick stones time satisfactory to the Landowner, time satisfactory to the Landowner, return
larger in diameter by hand/or with a 50 mm (2 inches) or larger in diameter by | return to pick stones greater than 4 to pick stones greater than 2 inches by
mechanical stone picker in each of the first hand/or with a mechanical stone picker in | inches by hand/or with a mechanical hand/or with a mechanical stone picker in
two years following construction. The each of first two years following stone picker in each of the first two each of the first two years following
Company shall, at a time satisfactory to the construction. The Company shall, at a years following construction. The construction. The Company shall, at a
landowner, return to pick stones 50 mm (2”) time satisfactory to the landowner, return | Company shall, at a time satisfactory to | time satisfactory to the landowner, return
or larger in the following years where there is | to pick stones 50 mm (2 inches) or larger | the landowner, return to pick stones in to pick stones in the years following where
a demonstrable need. in the years following where there is a the years following where there is a there is a demonstrable need

demonstrable need. demonstrable need.

VIIl — Drainage / Tile Drains 10. Drainage Tiling 10. Drainage Tiling 10. Drainage Tiling

1.(o) The Company will repair and restore all | The Company will repair and restore all The Company will repair and restore all The Company will repair and restore all
field drainage systems and municipal drains | field drainage systems and municipal field drainage systems and municipal field drainage systems and municipal
impacted by construction to their original drains impacted by construction to their drains impacted by construction to their | drains impacted by construction to their
performance and will be responsible for original performance. The Company will original performance. The Company will | original performance. The Company will
remedy, in consultation with the landowner, be responsible for the remedy, in be responsible for the remedy, in be responsible for the remedy, in
of any drainage problem created by the consultation with the Landowner, of any consultation with the Landowner, of any | consultation with the Landowner, of any
existence of the pipeline. The Company will drainage problem created by the drainage problem created by the drainage problem created by the existence
be responsible for any defects in the integrity | existence of the pipeline present and existence of the pipeline present and of the pipeline present and future. The
and performance of tile installed or repaired future. The Company will be responsible future. The Company will consider Company will consider reasonable
in conjunction with construction, operation or | for any defects in the integrity and reasonable requests by the Landowner requests by the Landowner to construct
repair, provided the defects are caused by performance of tile installed or repaired in | to construct additional tile runs near additional tile runs near damaged lands.
the company’s activities, faulty materials or conjunction with construction, operation damaged lands. The Company will be The Company will be responsible for any
workmanship. The Company guarantees and | or repair, provided the defects are caused | responsible for any defects in the defects in the integrity and performance of
will be responsible forever for the integrity by the Company’s activities, faulty integrity and performance of tile installed | tile installed or repaired in conjunction with
and performance of such tile as well as any materials or workmanship. The Company | or repaired in conjunction with construction, operation or repair, provided
other drain tile or municipal drain guarantees and will be responsible construction, operation or repair, the defects are caused by the Company’s
compromised by the company’s activities, forever for the integrity and performance | provided the defects are caused by the activities, faulty materials or workmanship.
including future maintenance operations and | of such tile as well as any other drain tile | Company’s activities, faulty materials or | The Company guarantees and will be
problems caused by the company’s or municipal drain compromised by the workmanship. The Company responsible forever for the integrity and
contractors, agents or assigns. Where the Company’s activities, including future guarantees and will be responsible performance of such tile as well as any
landowner, acting reasonably, believes that maintenance operations and problems forever for the integrity and performance | other drain tile or municipal drain
there may be a drainage problem arising caused by the Company’s contractors, of such tile as well as any other drain tile | compromised by the Company’s activities,
from the company’s operations, the company | agents or assigns. Where the Landowner, | or municipal drain compromised by the including future maintenance operations
will perform an integrity check on any tile acting reasonably, believes that there Company’s activities, including future and problems caused by the Company’s
construction/repair crossing the pipeline, and | may be a drainage problem arising from maintenance operations and problems contractors, agents or assigns. Where the
repair any deficiencies to the landowner’s the Company’s operations, the Company | caused by the Company’s contractors, Landowner, acting reasonably, believes
satisfaction. will perform an integrity check on any tile | agents or assigns. Where the that there may be a drainage problem

construction/repair crossing the pipeline, Landowner, acting reasonably, believes | arising from the Company’s operations, the

and repair any deficiencies to the that there may be a drainage problem Company will perform an integrity check
All installations may be inspected by the Landowner’s satisfaction. arising from the Company’s operations, on any tile construction/repair crossing the
landowner or his/her designate prior to the Company will perform an integrity pipeline, and repair any deficiencies to the
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backfilling where practicable. The company
will provide the landowner or his/her
designate advance notice of the tile repair
schedule.

The company will retain the services of a
qualified independent drainage consultant.
The consultant will work with landowners to
develop plans and installation methods and,
if the plan is implemented, the consultant will
certify that the construction accords with the
plan. If prior to construction the company is
provided with these plans prepared by the
drainage consultant and approved in writing
by the landowner, the company will install tile
along the pipeline in the following situations:

1. In areas of numerous random tiles or
systematic tiles that cross the pipeline
easement, the Company will install header
tiles (interceptor drains) adjacent to the
easement as laid out in the plans. The
downstream end of cut tile will be plugged.
Such work will occur as soon as practicable,
but prior to topsoil stripping operations. Any
intercepted drains will be connected or
plugged. The company will attempt to
minimize the number of tile crossing the
pipeline easement.

2. In areas where drainage problems
will be created as a result of the easement,
the drainage consultant will develop a tile
plan to mitigate these impacts provided that
the landowner is agreeable to any works
required for this installation.

3. Should the pipeline construction
program clear lands adjacent to existing
pipelines and as a result create a newly
cleared area large enough to farm, the
company will, at the request of the
landowner, develop a tile plan to drain the
said area. The Company will install the tile in

The Company will retain the services of a
qualified independent drainage
Consultant. The Consultant will work with
each Landowner prior too, during and
after construction. The Consultant will be
responsible to gather as much
background information from each
Landowner prior to construction as
available, and with this information in
conjunction with the Landowner they will
determine whether there is pre-
construction, post construction and/or
temporary tile construction required on
their land. The Consultant will provide
where requested each Landowner with a
tile plan for their review and approval
prior to any installation of tile. The
installation of tile will only be performed
by a licensed drainage contractor to
ensure that all drainage best practices
are used. The Company will consult with
the Landowner and mutually develop a
list of five licensed tile drainage
contractors from the area to bid on the
work. All installations may be inspected
by the Landowner or his/her designate
prior to backfilling where practicable. The
Company will provide the Landowner or
his/her designate advance notice of the
tile repair schedule. The Consultant will
incorporate any professionally designed
drainage plans obtained by the
Landowner for future installation. If the
Landowner intends to install or modify a
drainage system but has not yet obtained
professionally designed plans, the
Consultant will work with the Landowner
accordingly.

check on any tile construction/repair
crossing the pipeline, and repair any
deficiencies to the Landowner’s
satisfaction.

The Company will retain the services of
a qualified independent drainage
Consultant. The Consultant will work
with each Landowner prior too, during
and after construction. The Consultant
will be responsible to gather as much
background information from each
Landowner prior to construction as
available, and with this information in
conjunction with the Landowner they will
determine whether there is pre-
construction, post construction and/or
temporary tile construction required on
their land. The Consultant will provide
where requested each Landowner with a
tile plan for their review and approval
prior to any installation of tile. The
installation of tile will only be performed
by a licensed drainage contractor to
ensure that all drainage best practices
are used. The Company will consult
with the Landowner and mutually
develop a list of licensed tile drainage
contractors from the area to bid on the
work. All installations may be inspected
by the Landowner or his/her designate
prior to backfilling where practicable.
The Company will provide the
Landowner or his/her designate advance
notice of the tile repair schedule. The
Consultant will incorporate any
professionally designed drainage plans
obtained by the Landowner for future
installation. If the Landowner intends to
install or modify a drainage system but
has not yet obtained professionally
designed plans, the Consultant will work
with the Landowner accordingly.

Landowner’s satisfaction.

The Company will retain the services of a
qualified independent drainage Consultant.
The Consultant will work with each
Landowner prior t@, during and after
construction. The Consultant will be
responsible to gather as much background
information from each Landowner prior to
construction as available, and with this
information in conjunction with the
Landowner they will determine whether
there is pre-construction, post construction
and/or temporary tile construction required
on their land. The Consultant will provide
where requested each Landowner with a
tile plan for their review and approval prior
to any installation of tile. The installation of
tile will only be performed by a licensed
drainage contractor to ensure that all
drainage best practices are used. The
Company will consult with the Landowner
and mutually develop a list of licensed tile
drainage contractors from the area to bid
on the work. All installations may be
inspected by the Landowner or his/her
designate prior to backfilling where
practicable. The Company will provide the
Landowner or his/her designate advance
notice of the tile repair schedule. The
Consultant will incorporate any
professionally designed drainage plans
obtained by the Landowner for future
installation. If the Landowner intends to
install or modify a drainage system but has
not yet obtained professionally designed
plans, the Consultant will work with the
Landowner accordingly.
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the newly cleared area, and install a
drainage outlet that will enable the
implementation of the said tile plan provided
the cost of such work does not exceed the
present value of the net crop revenue from
the said area. The present value shall be
calculated using the same crop value and
discount rate used in the one time crop loss
compensation calculation. The net crop
revenue shall be derived by reducing the
crop value by a negotiated input cost. The
Company will accept drainage design
solutions that include the use of a motorized
pump, if the landowner releases the
Company from all future operation and
maintenance responsibilities for said pump.
The Company will accept drainage design
solutions that include outlet drains crossing
adjacent properties, if the landowner obtains
necessary easements or releases fully
authorizing said crossings.

4, Drainage laterals will be installed
after construction of the pipeline to provide
easement drainage. Lateral and cross-
easement tiles will be installed in the
construction year as weather permits.

5. Other areas recommended by the
drainage consultant.

If random tiles are encountered during
construction they will be staked and capped,
unless temporary piping is installed to
maintain flow.

The Company will do the following to
accommodate planned and future drainage
systems in the Company’s drainage and
pipeline design. The Company will
incorporate any professionally designed
drainage plans obtained by the landowner for
future installation. If the landowner intends to
install or modify a drainage system but has
not yet obtained professionally designed

Once the Consultant has reviewed all the
drainage background provided to them
they will proceed in developing pre-
construction tiling plans where required.
The purpose of pre-construction work is
to ensure that the pipeline work does not
interfere or cut off any adjacent
subsurface drainage. In conjunction with
the Landowner the Consultant will design
an appropriately sized header tile
(interceptor drain) which will be installed
1m outside the easement limits by trench
method in order to minimize the number
of tiles crossing the pipeline easement.
All intercepted tiles will be connected or
end plugged accordingly. By installing the
main outside the easement limits the
Company can guarantee the integrity of
the existing drainage system during the
construction period. The
Consultant/Landowner will be responsible
for identifying to the pipeline contractor as
reasonably possible any existing tiles
150mm or greater crossing the
easement. The Company will ensure that
any such crossings will be temporarily
repaired across the trench line and
maintained during the complete
construction period until post construction
work can repair them permanently. The
Company where possible will expose any
such tile crossings prior to pipeline
trenching operations to obtain an exact
invert depth and ensure that the pipeline
is not going to conflict with them.

During construction the Consultant will be
following the trenching operations
collecting / monitoring and ensuring that
the drainage is maintained accordingly.
Once the Consultant has collected and
reviewed all the survey information they

Once the Consultant has reviewed all
the drainage background provided to
them they will proceed in developing
pre-construction tiling plans where
required. The purpose of pre-
construction work is to ensure that the
pipeline work does not interfere or cut off
any adjacent subsurface drainage. In
conjunction with the Landowner the
Consultant will design an appropriately
sized header tile (interceptor drain)
which will be installed 1m outside the
easement and temporary land use limits
by trench method in order to minimize
the number of tiles crossing the pipeline
easement. All intercepted tiles will be
connected or end plugged accordingly.
By installing the main outside the
easement limits the Company can
guarantee the integrity of the existing
drainage system during the construction
period. The Consultant/Landowner will
be responsible for identifying to the
pipeline contractor as reasonably
possible any existing tiles 150mm or
greater crossing the easement. The
Company will ensure that any such
crossings will be temporarily repaired
across the trench line and maintained
during the complete construction period
until post construction work can repair
them permanently. The Company where
possible will expose any such tile
crossings prior to pipeline trenching
operations to obtain an exact invert
depth and ensure that the pipeline is not
going to conflict with them.

During construction the Consultant will
be following the trenching operations
collecting / monitoring and ensuring that
the drainage is maintained accordingly.
Once the Consultant has collected and
reviewed all the survey information they

Once the Consultant has reviewed all the
drainage background provided to them
they will proceed in developing pre-
construction tiling plans where required.
The purpose of pre-construction work is to
ensure that the pipeline work does not
interfere or cut off any adjacent subsurface
drainage. In conjunction with the
Landowner the Consultant will design an
appropriately sized header tile (interceptor
drain) which will be installed 1m outside
the easement and temporary land use
limits by trench method in order to
minimize the number of tiles crossing the
pipeline easement. All intercepted tiles will
be connected or end plugged accordingly.
By installing the main outside the
easement limits the Company can
guarantee the integrity of the existing
drainage system during the construction
period. The Consultant/Landowner will be
responsible for identifying to the pipeline
contractor as reasonably possible any
existing tiles 150mm or greater crossing
the easement. The Company will ensure
that any such crossings will be temporarily
repaired across the trench line and
maintained during the complete
construction period until post construction
work can repair them permanently. The
Company where possible will expose any
such tile crossings prior to pipeline
trenching operations to obtain an exact
invert depth and ensure that the pipeline is
not going to conflict with them.

During construction the Consultant will be
following the trenching operations
collecting / monitoring and ensuring that
the drainage is maintained accordingly.
Once the Consultant has collected and
reviewed all the survey information they
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plans, the Company will hire a drainage
consultant to develop an Easement Crossing
Drainage Plan in consultation with the
landowner.

In areas where topsoil has been stripped,
and at the request of the landowner, the
company will complete post-construction tile
installation and repairs prior to topsoil
replacement.

The installation of tile shall be performed by
a licensed drainage contractor. The company
will consult with the landowner committee
and mutually develop a list of acceptable tile
drainage contractors to be used during
construction. Header tiles will be installed
using a trench method to ensure that all field
tile are located and connected as required by
the tile plan.

The company will provide the landowner with
the most recent specifications concerning tile
support systems for existing tile across the
trench. The method of support will be agreed
upon between the landowner and the
company’s drainage consultant during the
pre-construction visit.

will develop a post-construction tile plan
and profile for each affected owner.
These post construction tile plans will
show the Landowner exactly how many
tiles are to be installed on easement and
by what method the contractor is to use
plow/trench.

During construction, the Consultant will
be following the trenching operations to
ensure that the drainage is maintained.

The Consultant will also provide the
Landowner with the most recent
specifications concerning tile support
systems for repairing and installing new
tile across the pipeline trench. Once the
Consultant has reviewed the drawing with
the Landowner for their approval and
received signature on the plan, the
Consultant will provide the Landowner
with a copy along with a specification for
installation so they can monitor the work
to be completed.

Also the Company will review other areas

of drainage recommended by the

drainage Consultant/Landowner such as:

i) Inareas where water may
accumulate on or off easement as a
result of the construction, the
drainage Consultant, in conjunction
with the Landowner, will develop a
temporary tile plan to mitigate these
impacts where the water cannot be
pumped into an open drain or ditch.
The Company could then pump into
the temporary tile, but not into any
existing tiles unless otherwise
discussed and agreed upon by the
Landowner.

ii) Inareas where the pipeline
construction program clears lands
adjacent to existing pipelines and

will develop a post-construction tile plan
and profile for each affected owner.
These post construction tile plans will
show the Landowner exactly how many
tiles are to be installed on easement and
by what method the contractor is to use
plow/trench.

During construction, the Consultant will
be following the trenching operations to
ensure that the drainage is maintained.

The Consultant will also provide the
Landowner with the most recent
specifications concerning tile support
systems for repairing and installing new
tile across the pipeline trench. Once the
Consultant has reviewed the drawing
with the Landowner for their approval
and received signature on the plan, the
Consultant will provide the Landowner
with a copy along with a specification for
installation so they can monitor the work
to be completed.

Also the Company will review other
areas of drainage recommended by the
drainage Consultant/Landowner such
as:

i) In areas where water may
accumulate on or off easement as a
result of the construction, the drainage
Consultant, in conjunction with the
Landowner, will develop a temporary tile
plan to mitigate these impacts where the
water cannot be pumped into an open
drain or ditch. The Company could then
pump into the temporary tile, or stone pit
drain with pea gravel, but not into any
existing tiles unless otherwise discussed
and agreed upon by the Landowner.

ii) In areas where the pipeline
construction program clears lands
adjacent to existing pipelines and

will develop a post-construction tile plan
and profile for each affected owner. These
post construction tile plans will show the
Landowner exactly how many tiles are to
be installed on easement and by what
method the contractor is to use
plow/trench.

During construction, the Consultant will be
following the trenching operations to
ensure that the drainage is maintained.

The Consultant will also provide the
Landowner with the most recent
specifications concerning tile support
systems for repairing and installing new tile
across the pipeline trench. Once the
Consultant has reviewed the drawing with
the Landowner for their approval and
received signature on the plan, the
Consultant will provide the Landowner with
a copy along with a specification for
installation so they can monitor the work to
be completed.

Also the Company will review other areas
of drainage recommended by the drainage
Consultant/Landowner such as:

i) In areas where water may
accumulate on or off easement as a result
of the construction, the drainage
Consultant, in conjunction with the
Landowner, will develop a temporary tile
plan to mitigate these impacts where the
water cannot be pumped into an open
drain or ditch. The Company could then
pump into the temporary tile, or stone pit
drain with pea gravel, but not into any
existing tiles unless otherwise discussed
and agreed upon by the Landowner.

ii) In areas where the pipeline
construction program clears lands adjacent
to existing pipelines and adjacent drained
land and as a result creates a newly
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adjacent drained land and as a adjacent drained land and as a result cleared area large enough to farm, the
result creates a newly cleared area creates a newly cleared area large Company will, at the request of the
large enough to farm, the Company | enough to farm, the Company will, at the | Landowner, develop a tile plan to drain the
will, at the request of the Landowner, | request of the Landowner, develop a tile | cleared area. The Company will consider
develop a tile plan to drain the plan to drain the cleared area. The adding two drains between pipelines
cleared area. The Company will Company will consider adding two where necessary. The Company will
install the tile in the newly cleared drains between pipelines where install the tile in the newly cleared area,
area, and install a drainage outlet necessary. The Company will install the | and install a drainage outlet that will
that will enable the implementation tile in the newly cleared area, and install | enable the implementation of the tile plan,
of the tile plan, provided the cost of a drainage outlet that will enable the provided the cost of such work does not
such work does not exceed the net implementation of the tile plan, provided | exceed the net present value of the crop
present value of the crop revenue the cost of such work does not exceed revenue from the cleared area. The net
from the cleared area. The net the net present value of the crop present value shall be calculated using the
present value shall be calculated revenue from the cleared area. The net | same crop value and discount rate used in
using the same crop value and present value shall be calculated using the one time crop loss compensation
discount rate used in the one time the same crop value and discount rate calculation. The net crop revenue shall be
crop loss compensation calculation. | used in the one time crop loss derived by reducing the crop value by a
The net crop revenue shall be compensation calculation. The net crop | negotiated input cost. The Company will
derived by reducing the crop value revenue shall be derived by reducing the | accept drainage design solutions that
by a negotiated input cost. The crop value by a negotiated input cost. include the use of a motorized pump, if the
Company will accept drainage The Company will accept drainage Landowner releases the Company from all
design solutions that include the use | design solutions that include the use of a | future operation and maintenance
of a motorized pump, if the motorized pump, if the Landowner responsibilities for the pump. The
Landowner releases the Company releases the Company from all future Company will accept drainage design
from all future operation and operation and maintenance solutions that include outlet drains crossing
maintenance responsibilities for the responsibilities for the pump. The adjacent properties, if the Landowner
pump. The Company will accept Company will accept drainage design obtains necessary easements or releases
drainage design solutions that solutions that include outlet drains fully authorizing such crossings.
include outlet drains crossing crossing adjacent properties, if the
adjacent properties, if the Landowner obtains necessary
Landowner obtains necessary easements or releases fully authorizing
easements or releases fully such crossings.
authorizing such crossings.
The Company will do its best weather The Company will do its best weather The Company will do its best weather
permitting to complete the post permitting to complete the post permitting to complete the post
construction tiling work in the year of construction tiling work in the year of construction tiling work in the year of
pipeline construction after the topsoil has | pipeline construction after the topsoil pipeline construction after the topsoil has
been pulled, unless otherwise agreed has been pulled, unless otherwise been pulled, unless otherwise agreed upon
upon with the Landowner. If it is not agreed upon with the Landowner. Ifitis | with the Landowner. If it is not possible for
possible for the Company to complete the | not possible for the Company to the Company to complete the post
post construction tiling in the year of complete the post construction tiling in construction tiling in the year of
construction, the Company will undertake | the year of construction, the Company construction, the Company will undertake
all measures possible to mitigate any off | will undertake all measures possible to all measures possible to mitigate any off
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The company will provide the landowner with

a copy of as-built drainage plans.

easement damages to the best of its
ability.

In situations where topsoil is to be over
wintered, the tiling plan will address the
timing of tile installation.

Once the tiling is complete the Consultant
will adjust all tile plans to reflect the as-
constructed information and a copy will
be provided to the Landowner for their
records.

mitigate any off easement damages to
the best of its ability.

In situations where topsoil is to be over
wintered, the tiling plan will address the
timing of tile installation.

Once the tiling is complete the
Consultant will adjust all tile plans to
reflect the as-constructed information
and a copy will be provided to the
Landowner for their records.

easement damages to the best of its
ability.

In situations where topsoil is to be over
wintered, the tiling plan will address the
timing of tile installation.

Once the tiling is complete the Consultant
will adjust all tile plans to reflect the as-
constructed information and a copy will be
provided to the Landowner for their
records.

At the choice of the landowner, the easement

can be replanted with trees provided no
planting takes place within a 6 metre strip
centred over the pipeline. Landowners are

reminded that the company must be notified
five days prior to any excavation taking place

on the easement and that such excavation
must be under the direction of a Company

inspector, in accordance with the easement

agreement.

14. Tree Replacement

The Company has established a policy to
replant twice the area of trees that are
cleared for the Project. Landowners
whose woodlots are to be cleared may
apply in writing to the Company should
they wish to participate in this program.
Tree seedlings will be replanted on the
right-of-way or within the Landowner's
property using species determined in
consultation with the Landowner.
Although replanting on easement is not
encouraged by the Company, when
planting on easement occurs, it must be
done in accordance with the easement
and the Company's policies.

For windbreaks/hedgerows the Company
will implement the following practice:

I) If adeciduous (hardwood) tree in
excess of six (6) feet is removed,
a six (6) foot replacement tree
will be planted; if a tree less than
six (6) feet in height is removed,
a similar sized tree will be
planted.

i) If a coniferous (evergreen) tree
in excess of four (4) feet is
removed, a four (4) foot
replacement tree will be planted;
if a tree less than four (4) feet in
height is removed, a similar

14, Tree Replacement

The Company has established a policy
to replant twice the area of trees that are
cleared for the Project. Landowners
whose woodlots are to be cleared may
apply in writing to the Company should
they wish to participate in this program.
Tree seedlings will be replanted on the
right-of-way or within the Landowner's
property using species determined in
consultation with the Landowner.
Although replanting on easement is not
encouraged by the Company, when
planting on easement occurs, it must be
done in accordance with the easement
and the Company's policies.

For windbreaks/hedgerows the
Company will implement the following
practice:

i) If a deciduous (hardwood) tree
in excess of six (6) feet is removed, a six
(6) foot replacement tree will be planted;
if a tree less than six (6) feet in height is
removed, a similar sized tree will be
planted.

ii) If a coniferous (evergreen) tree
in excess of four (4) feet is removed, a
four (4) foot replacement tree will be
planted; if a tree less than four (4) feet in
height is removed, a similar sized tree
will be planted.

14, Tree Replacement

The Company has established a policy to
replant twice the area of trees that are
cleared for the Project. Landowners
whose woodlots are to be cleared may
apply in writing to the Company should
they wish to participate in this program.
Tree seedlings will be replanted on the
right-of-way or within the Landowner's
property using species determined in
consultation with the Landowner. Although
replanting on easement is not encouraged
by the Company, when planting on
easement occurs, it must be done in
accordance with the easement and the
Company's policies.

For windbreaks/hedgerows the Company
will implement the following practice:

i) If a deciduous (hardwood) tree in
excess of six (6) feet is removed, a six (6)
foot replacement tree will be planted; if a
tree less than six (6) feet in height is
removed, a similar sized tree will be
planted.

ii) If a coniferous (evergreen) tree in
excess of four (4) feet is removed, a four
(4) foot replacement tree will be planted; if
a tree less than four (4) feet in height is
removed, a similar sized tree will be
planted.
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sized tree will be planted.

The Company will warrant such trees for
a period of one year following planting,
provided the Landowner waters the trees

The Company will warrant such trees for
a period of one year following planting,
provided the Landowner waters the

The Company will warrant such trees for a
period of three years following planting,
provided the Landowner waters the trees

as appropriate after planting. trees as appropriate after planting. as appropriate after planting.

15. Covenants 15. Covenants 15. Covenants

1.(c) On present and proposed agricultural Company covenants as follows: Company covenants as follows: Company covenants as follows:

lands, the Company will undertake i)  On present and proposed i) On present and proposed i) On present and proposed
appropriate survey techniques to establish agricultural lands, the Company will agricultural lands, the Company will agricultural lands, the Company will
pre-construction and post-construction undertake appropriate survey undertake appropriate survey undertake appropriate survey techniques
grades with the view to restoring soils to pre- techniques to establish pre- techniques to establish pre-construction | to establish pre-construction and post-

construction grade as reasonably construction and post-construction and post-construction grades with the construction grades with the view to

practicable. grades with the view to restoring view to restoring soils to pre- restoring soils to pre-construction grade as
soils to pre-construction grade as construction grade as reasonably reasonably practicable.
reasonably practicable. practicable.
ii) All construction practices and
1.(d) The company will ensure all i) Al construction practices and i) All construction practices and appropriate environmental mitigation

measures will be followed to ensure a
proper clean up.

construction practices and appropriate
environmental mitigation measures will be
followed to ensure a proper clean up.

appropriate environmental mitigation
measures will be followed to ensure a
proper clean up.

appropriate environmental mitigation
measures will be followed to ensure
a proper clean up.

iii) Whenever possible, all vehicles
iii) Whenever possible, all vehicles and iii) Whenever possible, all vehicles | and equipment will travel on the trench
V.16(c) — Equipment Travel 1.(e) Whenever possible, all vehicles and equioment svill travél on the trench and equipment will travel on the trench line.
equipment will travel on the trench line. Iir?e P line.
V.16(b) — Trench opening 1.(f) The Company will not open more ADD: The Company will not open more
than 6.0 km. of trench line at a time. than 6.0 km. of trench line at a time.
1.(n) All subsoils from road bores will be iv)  All subsoil from road bores will be iv) All subsoil from road bores will | iv) All subsoil from road bores will be
removed. removed. be removed. removed.
V.16(m) Replacement of 1.(q)The Company shall replace or repair V) To replace or repair any fences V) To replace or repair any fences | v) To replace or repair any fences

which are damaged by pipeline
construction in a good and

Fences any fences which are damaged by pipeline

construction in a good and workmanlike

which are damaged by pipeline
construction in a good and workmanlike

which are damaged by pipeline
construction in a good and workmanlike

manner. In addition, the Company will reset workmanlike manner. manner. manner.
any survey monuments which are removed )
or destroyed during pipeline construction. Vi) Any survey monuments which are Vi) Any survey monuments which Vi) Any survey monuments which are

removed or damaged during pipeline | are removed or damaged during pipeline | removed or damaged during pipeline




CAEPLA-PLC 79

PANHANDLE LOU COMPARISON CHART 12
LAKE HURON PIPELINE STRATHRQY LOBO HAMILTON MILTON (OEB ORDER) PANHANDLE CAEPLA-PLC
construction will be reset. construction will be reset. construction will be reset.

V.16(j) — Culverts 1.(v) The Company, including its employees, | vii) Its employees, agents, contractors Vi) Its employees, agents, Vi) Its employees, agents, contractors
agents, contractors and sub-contractors, will and sub-contractors, will not use any | contractors and sub-contractors, will not | and sub-contractors, will not use any off-
not use any off-easement culverts off-easement culverts incorporated use any off-easement culverts easement culverts incorporated into
incorporated into Municipal Drains to provide into municipal drains to provide incorporated into municipal drains to municipal drains to provide access to the
access to the easement. access to the easement. provide access to the easement. easement.

. viii) It will not use any laneway or culvert viii) It will not use any Igneway or viii) It will not use any Igneway or
Further, the Company will not use any of the Landowner without the culvert of the Landowner without the culvert of the Landowner without the
laneway or culvert of the landowner without Landowner’s prior written consent. In Landowner’s prior written consent. In the | Landowner’s prior written consent. In the
the landowner’s prior written consent. In the the event of such use, the Company event of such use, the Company will, at | event of such use, the Company will, at its
event of such use, the Company will, at its will, at its own expense, repair any its own expense, repair any damage and | own expense, repair any damage and
own expense, repair any damage and damage and compensate the compensate the Landowner accordingly. | compensate the Landowner accordingly.
compensate the landowner accordingly. Landowner accordingly.

V.16(k) Monitoring of The Company agrees to monitor and 1X) gﬁvrgv?/gggrtﬁggcﬁligﬁg gg\s/::sent iX) To monitor and maintain private | ix) To monitor and maintain private

Private Driveways maintain private driveways that cross the for a period of 18 months after driveways that cross the easement for a | driveways that cross the easement for a
easemen_t for a period of 18 months after construction period of 18 months after construction. period of 18 months after construction.
construction. '

V.16(I) No off-easement ) _ ) X) That construction activities will X) That construction activities will not

activities without 1.(w) The Company agrees that construction X)  That construction activities will not not occur outside of agreed to areas occur outside of agreed to areas without

permission activities will not occur over the off-easement occur outside of agreed to areas without the written permission of the the written permission of the Landowner.

areas without the written permission of the without the written permission of the | | ndowner. In the event that such In the event that such activities occur, the

landowner. The Company agrees that it will Landowner. In the event that such activities occur, the Company will pay for | Company will pay for damages.

pay for damages caused by construction/ activities occur, the Company will damages.

operations activities in the event that such off pay for damages.

easement damages occur. ADD:
Criminal Background Checks
The Company will provide proof that all
contractors working on the property have
passed a criminal background check. This
procedure will apply to Company
employees and Company contractors/
agents.
Criminal Vulnerable Sector (VS)
background checks
For all properties where minors may be
present during the construction phase,
Union Gas will provide proof that all
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11.9(d) — Landowner Complaint | 1.(x) The Company’s Landowner Complaint Xi) To implement its Landowner Xi) To implement its Landowner Xxi) To implement its Landowner
Tracking System Tracking system shall be available to Complaint Tracking system which Complaint Tracking system which will be | Complaint Tracking system which will be
landowners for the proposed construction. will be available to Landowners for available to Landowners for the available to Landowners for the proposed
the proposed construction. proposed construction. construction.
IC'A{) ;tfgcrteoerrsnent provided to tlr;'(cc) The Company will _provide a copy of Xii) To provide a copy of this Letter of Xii) To pro_vide a copy of_this Letter Xii) To provide a copy_of this Letter of
is Letter of Understanding and the Understanding and all environmental of Understanding and all environmental Understanding and all environmental
environmental reports to the construction reports to the construction reports to the construction contractor. reports to the construction contractor.
contractor. contractor.
V.16(d) — Suitable passage for | 1.(ee) The Company will ensure suitable . Xiii) To ensure suitable passage and | xiii) To ensure suitable passage and
agric(u?tural equiprgent d%ring passage and land access for agricultural iii) ;%ggiléfszl;g?gerﬁ: %Ttiarlgle and land access for agricultural equipment land access for agricultural equipment
construction equipment during construction. 9 during construction. during construction.

equipment during construction.

111.10(e) — Topsoil Replacement XiV) If there is greater than 50% crop loss
after five years, at the request of the
Landowner, the Company will retain
an independent soils Consultant

1.(z) The Company will import 3 inches of
topsoil to remedy any areas affected by
construction that have crop losses in excess
of 50 % in the fifth year following construction

Xiv) If there is greater than 50% crop
loss after five years, at the request of the
Landowner, the Company will retain an
independent soils Consultant

to be distributed in accordance with the satisfactory to both parties to satisfactory to both parties to develop a
following protocol regardless of the cause of devsllop a prescription to rectify the | y-ascription to rectify the problem.
problem.

the loss and without prejudice to the
landowner’s continuing right to compensation
for losses in excess of those compensated
for.

(i) The Company will regrade the total
width of the easement, including the
designated area to level any ruts;

(ii) The Company will import a quantity
of topsoil equivalent to three (3) inches times
the total area of the Land experiencing
greater than 50% crop loss (the “affected
area”).The topsoil will be of a quality
described in subsection (bb), dry and tested
for the presence of soybeans cyst nematode;

(iii) The Company will spread the
imported topsoil uniformly over the affected
area to a maximum depth of three (3) inches
on the affected area or as otherwise agreed
to by the Landowner and the Company in a
manner so as to not adversely affect the
natural drainage of the Land or adversely
impact on normal farming operations.
Alternatively, at the option of the landowner,
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IX — Post Construction Soil
Testing

if there is greater than 50% crop loss after
five years, Union will retain an independent
soils consultant satisfactory to both parties to
develop a prescription to rectify the problem.
This may include the importation of topsoil.

1.(l) At the request of the landowner, the
Company agrees to retain an independent
consultant to carry out tests along the
pipeline to monitor soils and crop
productivity. As part of this testing, a soil
specialist will conduct comparative
compaction testing of the subsoils and NPK
(nitrogen, phosphorus, potassium) testing
and testing of PH levels on and off easement
after construction. Global Positioning System
(GPS) equipment may be used to identify all
test locations. The Company further agrees
to implement all commercially reasonable
measures, where recommended by the soil
specialist to remediate the soil.

6.1 The Company will work with the
Landowner to ensure that weeds are
controlled along the pipeline. Weeds will be

XV) To permit the planting of the 6 metre
strip with permission for the re-
establishment of windbreaks and
that trees may be planted as a crop
(nursery stock), provided that no tree
is permitted to grow higher than 2
metres in height, and the species
are of a shallow rooting variety. The
use of hydraulic spades within the 6
metre strip is prohibited.

XVi) In consultation with the Landowner,
the Company agrees to retain an
independent Consultant to carry out
tests along the pipeline to monitor
soils and crop productivity. As part of
this testing, a soil specialist will
conduct comparative compaction
testing of the subsoil and NPK
(nitrogen, phosphorus, potassium)
testing and testing of PH levels on
and off easement after construction.
Global Positioning System (GPS)
equipment may be used to identify
all test locations. The Company
further agrees to implement all
commercially reasonable measures,
where recommended by the soil
specialist to remediate the soil.

XVii) To work with the Landowner to
ensure that weeds are controlled
along the pipeline. Weeds will be

XV) To permit the planting of the 6
metre strip with permission for the re-
establishment of windbreaks and that
trees may be planted as a crop (hursery
stock), provided that no tree is permitted
to grow higher than 2 metres in height,
and the species are of a shallow rooting
variety. The use of hydraulic spades
within the 6 metre strip is prohibited.

XVi) In consultation with the
Landowner, the Company agrees to
retain an independent Consultant to
carry out tests along the pipeline to
monitor soils and crop productivity. As
part of this testing, a soil specialist will
conduct comparative compaction testing
of the subsoil and NPK (nitrogen,
phosphorus, potassium) testing and
testing of PH levels on and off easement
after construction. Global Positioning
System (GPS) equipment may be used
to identify all test locations. The
Company further agrees to implement all
commercially reasonable measures,
where recommended by the soll
specialist to remediate the soil.

xvii)  To work with the Landowner to
ensure that weeds are controlled along
the pipeline. Weeds will be sprayed or

farming operations.

Alternatively, at the option of the
landowner, if there is greater than 50%
crop loss after five years, Union will retain
an independent soils consultant
satisfactory to both parties to develop a
prescription to rectify the problem. This
may include the importation of topsail.

XV) To permit the planting of the 6
metre strip with permission for the re-
establishment of windbreaks and that trees
may be planted as a crop (nursery stock),
provided that no tree is permitted to grow
higher than 2 metres in height, and the
species are of a shallow rooting variety.
The use of hydraulic spades within the 6
metre strip is prohibited.

XVvi) In consultation with the
Landowner, the Company agrees to retain
an independent Consultant to carry out
tests along the pipeline to monitor soils
and crop productivity. As part of this
testing, a soil specialist will conduct
comparative compaction testing of the
subsoil and NPK (nitrogen, phosphorus,
potassium) testing and testing of PH levels
on and off easement after construction.
Global Positioning System (GPS)
equipment may be used to identify all test
locations. The Company further agrees to
implement all commercially reasonable
measures, where recommended by the
soil specialist to remediate the soil.

xvii)  To work with the Landowner to
ensure that weeds are controlled along the
pipeline. Weeds will be sprayed or cut after
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sprayed or cut after discussion with the
landowner. The Landowner will be provided
with a contact name in the event that
concerns are experienced with weeds.

6.2 DAMAGES FROM PIPELINE
OPERATIONS

Prior to scheduled excavation for
maintenance work, top soil shall be stripped
and piled separately from subsoil.

Pipeline maintenance shall be scheduled to
accommodate crop planting, growing and
harvesting, however, in the event
maintenance work results in crop damage,
Union shall negotiate crop damage
settlements.

Any work on existing pipelines will be carried
out using current practices.

The Integrity Dig Agreement shall apply to all
integrity and maintenance operations on the
whole Dawn-Trafalgar system.

sprayed or cut after discussion with
the Landowner. The Landowner will
be provided with a contact name in
the event that concerns are
experienced with weeds.

XViii)  To implement the Company’s
Integrity Dig Agreement for all
integrity and maintenance
operations on the pipeline.

cut after discussion with the Landowner. | discussion with the Landowner. The

The Landowner will be provided with a Landowner will be provided with a contact
contact name in the event that concerns | name in the event that concerns are

are experienced with weeds. experienced with weeds.

xviii)  To implement the Company’s
Integrity Dig Agreement for all integrity
and maintenance operations on the

pipeline.

ADD:
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VI.19 — Depth of Cover survey

11.9(b)(ii)

In addition to the contact
available by landowner to the
LHPWSS'’s project manager or
designated agent, there shall be
established a “Pipeline Impact
Consultation Committee”
(hereinafter referred to as the
“Joint Committee”) consisting of
LHPLA and LHPWSS
representative(s) as agreed from
time to time between the parties
to provide a forum for
communication and liaison
between LHPWSS and LHPLA
members with respect to any
issues which may arise before,

6.4 DEPTH OF COVER

At the request of the landowner, the
Company shall undertake a depth of cover
survey of the Pipeline, and shall provide its
findings to the landowner. Where it is
determined that cover over the Pipeline is
less than three feet, The Company shall
restore depth of cover to three feet with the
importation of topsoil or by lowering the pipe.

1.(bb) Any imported topsoil shall be natural,
cultivated, medium loam, neither clay or
sandy in nature, capable of heavy
agricultural growths and be from a source
approved by the landowner.

1.(dd) The Company agrees to implement
one joint committee for the NPS 48

Strathroy-Lobo Project under the terms of
reference agreed to in Schedule 1 hereof.

XiX) At the request of the Landowner, the
Company shall undertake a depth of
cover survey of the pipeline and
shall provide its findings to the
Landowner. In agricultural areas,
where it is determined that cover
over the pipeline is less than 0.9
metres the Company shall restore
depth of cover to a minimum of 0.9
metres with the importation of topsoil
or by lowering the pipe. In areas
where the top of the pipe is at or
below bedrock, the Company will
ensure a minimum of 0.6 metres of
cover over the pipeline.

XX) Any imported topsoil shall be
natural, free of SCN and shall have
attributes consistent with the topsoil
of adjacent lands as determined by
the Company’s Consultant and be
from a source approved by the
landowner.

XXi) To implement Union’s wet soil shut
down practice as described in
Schedule 4.

Xix) At the request of the
Landowner, the Company shall

undertake a depth of cover survey of the

pipeline and shall provide its findings to
the Landowner. In areas where the top
of the pipe is at or below bedrock, the
Company will ensure a minimum of 0.6
metres of cover over the pipeline.

XX) Any imported topsoil shall be
natural, free of SCN and shall have
attributes consistent with the topsoil of
adjacent lands as determined by the
Company’s Consultant and be from a
source approved by the landowner.

XXi) To implement Union’s wet soil
shut down practice as described in
Schedule 4.

XX) Any imported topsoil shall be
natural, free of SCN and shall have
attributes consistent with the topsoil of
adjacent lands as determined by the
Company’s Consultant and be from a
source approved by the landowner.

XXi) To implement Union’s wet soil shut
down practice as described in Schedule 4.
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during and following construction.

The Joint Committee shall hold
regular meetings, at least
monthly, or more frequently as
they may determine.

1.(s) The landowner will execute a Clean-up
Acknowledgment when he/she is satisfied
with the clean-up operations described in
Paragraph 1, (h) through (q). It is suggested
that any tenant(s) who are affected by
construction accompany the landowner to
inspect the clean-up prior to execution of the
Clean-up Acknowledgment. The Landowner
Committee will be provided, for review, the
form of documents required for landowner
execution.

5.2 (c) GENERAL MATTERS FOR
DAMAGES

As damage payments are made directly to
the registered landowner, the landowner is
responsible for making any compensation to
his/her tenant for any matters included in the
damage payment from the Company.

The Landowner(s) in consideration of this
settlement, covenants and represents that
this settlement and the relevant easement
agreement or option for easement, as the
case may be will be made known to any
occupant, tenant or lessee of their lands.

Landowner covenants as follows:

i) To execute a Clean-up
Acknowledgment when he/she is satisfied
with the clean-up operations described in
this Letter of Understanding. Itis
suggested that any tenant(s) who are
affected by construction acCompany the
Landowner to inspect the clean-up prior
to execution of the Clean-up
Acknowledgment.

ii) To be responsible to ensure
his/her tenant is aware of the terms of the
easement or temporary land use
agreement and this Letter of
Understanding.

iii) To be responsible for making any
compensation to his/her tenant for any
matters included in the damage payment
from the Company, as damages
payments are made directly to the
registered Landowner.

Landowner covenants as follows:

i) To execute a Release
Agreement when he/she is satisfied with
the clean-up operations described in this
Letter of Understanding. It is suggested
that any tenant(s) who are affected by
construction accompany the Landowner
to inspect the clean-up prior to execution
of the Clean-up Acknowledgment.

ii) To be responsible to ensure
his/her tenant is aware of the terms of
the easement or temporary land use
agreement and this Letter of
Understanding.

iii) To be responsible for making
any compensation to his/her tenant for
any matters included in the damage
payment from the Company, as
damages payments are made directly to
the registered Landowner.

iv) To only access the work area
when accompanied by the Company’s
designated representative.

Landowner covenants as follows:

i) To execute a Clean-up
Acknowledgement when he/she is satisfied
with the clean-up operations described in
this Letter of Understanding. Itis
suggested that any tenant(s) who are
affected by construction accompany the
Landowner to inspect the clean-up prior to
execution of the Clean-up
Acknowledgment.

ii) To be responsible to ensure
his/her tenant is aware of the terms of the
easement or temporary land use
agreement and this Letter of
Understanding.

iii) To be responsible for making any
compensation to his/her tenant for any
matters included in the damage payment
from the Company, as damages payments
are made directly to the registered
Landowner.

iv) To only access the work area
when accompanied by the Company’s
designated representative. [The Company
will facilitate the Landowner’s access to
the work area upon request.

[1.9(b)(v) — Dispute
Resolution — Expert
Consultants

(y) The Company shall pay the costs of
independent consultants satisfactory to both
the landowner and the Company to resolve

site specific disputes involving affected lands

16. Dispute Resolution

In the event the parties are unable to
reach resolution with respect to the
following matters, the Company shall pay
the costs of independent Consultants

16. Dispute Resolution

In the event the parties are unable to
reach resolution with respect to the
following matters, the Company shall
pay the costs of independent

16. Dispute Resolution

In the event the parties are unable to reach
resolution with respect to the following
matters, the Company shall pay the costs
of independent Consultants satisfactory to
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11.9(c)(ii) — Dispute
Resolution

Schedule “F” — Dispute
Resolution Process

on a binding basis concerning the following:

(i) The need for topsoil importation as in
Clauses 1 i) hereof, respecting the existence
of identifiable subsidence,

(ii) The need for topsoil importation as in
Clause 1 (2) hereof, respecting the
establishment of crop losses in excess of
50%,

(iii) The establishment of levels of
compensation for specialty crops as in
clause 5.2 hereof.

(iv) resolution of future crop loss claims
under s.5.2 (a) hereof.

In addition, in the event that a dispute arises
between a landowner and the Company and
such dispute cannot be resolved to the
mutual satisfaction of the parties through
discussion or referral to the joint committee
established pursuant to Para. 1(d)(d) and
Schedule 1 hereof, the Company may retain
a mutually satisfactory independent
consultant to assist in the resolution of the
particular dispute.

5.2(c) Where damage settlements cannot be
negotiated, the Company or the landowner
may apply to the Board of Negotiation or
Ontario Municipal Board to settle unresolved
claims. It is further understood and agreed
that the landowner's executing our
easement, is without prejudice to his/her
position in negotiation of damages following
construction of the pipeline and the
aforementioned settlement arrangements will
be in full effect.

satisfactory to both the Landowner and
the Company to resolve site specific
disputes involving affected lands on a
binding basis concerning the following:

i) The need for topsoil
importation as in Article 8
hereof, respecting the
existence of identifiable
subsidence,

i) The establishment of levels
of compensation for specialty
crops as in Article 21.

iii) The resolution of future crop
loss claims for Additional
Productivity Loss under
Article 21 hereof.

Where Construction Damages and
Disturbance Damage settlements cannot
be negotiated, the Company or the
Landowner may apply to Ontario
Municipal Board to settle unresolved
claims. It is further understood and
agreed that the Landowner's executing
the easement, is without prejudice to
his/her position in negotiation of damages
following construction of the pipeline.

Consultants satisfactory to both the
Landowner and the Company to resolve
site specific disputes involving affected
lands on a binding basis concerning the
following:

i) The need for topsoil importation
as in Article 8 hereof, respecting the
existence of identifiable subsidence,

ii) The establishment of levels of
compensation for specialty crops as in
Article 21.

iii) The resolution of future crop
loss claims for Additional Productivity
Loss under Article 21 hereof.

Where Construction Damages and
Disturbance Damage settlements cannot
be negotiated, the Company or the
Landowner may apply to Ontario
Municipal Board to settle unresolved
claims. It is further understood and
agreed that the Landowner's executing
the easement, is without prejudice to
his/her position in negotiation of
damages following construction of the
pipeline.

both the Landowner and the Company to
resolve site specific disputes involving
affected lands on a binding basis
concerning the following:

i) The need for topsoil importation as
in Article 8 hereof, respecting the
existence of identifiable subsidence,

ii) The establishment of levels of
compensation for specialty crops as in
Article 21.

iii) The resolution of future crop loss
claims for Additional Productivity Loss
under Article 21 hereof.

In addition, in the event that a dispute
arises between a landowner and the
Company and such dispute cannot be
resolved to the mutual satisfaction of the
parties through discussion or referral to the
joint committee established pursuant to
Para.  and Schedule ___ hereof, the
Company may retain a mutually
satisfactory independent consultant to
assist in the resolution of the particular
dispute.

Where Construction Damages and
Disturbance Damage settlements cannot
be negotiated, the Company or the
Landowner may apply to Ontario Municipal
Board to settle unresolved claims. It is
further understood and agreed that the
Landowner's executing the easement, is
without prejudice to his/her position in
negotiation of damages following
construction of the pipeline.

VIl - Woodlot and Hedge
Rows / Other Property
Specific Matter

5.2 (b) WOODLOTS AND HEDGEROW
TREES

22. Woodlots and
Windbreak/Hedgerow Trees

22.Woodlots and Windbreak/
Hedgerow Trees

22.Woodlots and Windbreak/ Hedgerow
Trees

The Company will assess the woodlot or
hedgerow area(s) to be affected by the
project and will provide a report to the
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All woodlots and hedgerow trees to be cut
will be appraised by a qualified forester
retained by the Company. The forester will
contact the landowner before entry on their
property. Copies of appraisal reports will be
made available to affected landowners and
payment will be made in accordance with the
reports.

If requested by the landowner, evaluation of
trees in woodlots will be based on the
accepted practice as outlined on Schedule 1
hereto.

The evaluation of trees for aesthetic values,
will be carried out by qualified professionals
according to standard principles as outlined
in Schedule 2 hereto. Compensation for
trees evaluated in this manner shall be set
out in Appendix "B" to this document.

Union reserves the right to use trees for
which it has paid compensation. At the
landowner's request, any remaining logs will
be cut into 10 foot ( 3.05 metre ) lengths,
lifted and piled adjacent to the easement.

As an alternative to the forester's appraisal,
the landowner may accept "Option Two: One
Time Payment" (see page 13) in lieu of the
woodlot evaluation.

Tree plantations (Christmas trees and
nursery stock) will be appraised separately.
Prior to the start of construction, the following
options will be discussed with the landowner,
and the most appropriate option selected:
Option 1: The land will be completely cleared
for construction with all stumps and brush
removed so that the land can be cultivated.
Option 2: At Union's expense, all vegetation

With respect to compensation for damage
to woodlots, the Landowner will have the
following two options:

Option 1:

Woodlots and hedgerow trees will be cut
and appraised by a qualified forester
retained by the Company. Evaluation of
trees in woodlots will be based on the
practice as outlined on Schedule 3.

Option 2:

The Landowner may accept the One
Time Crop Loss and Disturbance
Damage Payment in lieu of the woodlot
evaluation.

With respect to compensation for damage
to other wooded areas:

Tree plantations (Christmas trees and
nursery stock) will be appraised
separately. Compensation for trees
evaluated in this manner shall be set out
in Schedule 4 to this document.

Evaluation of aesthetic trees will be
based on the practice outlined in
Schedule 4.

The forester will contact the Landowner
before entry on their property. Copies of
appraisal reports will be made available
to affected Landowners and payment will
be made in accordance with the reports.

The Company reserves the right to use
trees for which it has paid compensation.

With respect to compensation for
damage to woodlots, the Landowner will
have the following two options:

Option 1:

Woodlots and hedgerow trees will be cut
and appraised by a qualified forester
retained by the Company. Evaluation of
trees in woodlots will be based on the
practice as outlined on Schedule 3.

Option 2:

The Landowner may accept the One
Time Crop Loss and Disturbance
Damage Payment in lieu of the woodlot
evaluation.

With respect to compensation for
damage to other wooded areas:

Tree plantations (Christmas trees and
nursery stock) will be appraised
separately. Compensation for trees
evaluated in this manner shall be set out
in Schedule 4 to this document.

Evaluation of aesthetic trees will be
based on the practice outlined in
Schedule 4.

The forester will contact the Landowner
before entry on their property. Copies of
appraisal reports will be made available
to affected Landowners and payment
will be made in accordance with the
reports.

The Company reserves the right to use
trees for which it has paid

Landowner identifying the trees that will be
affected.

With respect to compensation for damage
to woodlots, the Landowner will have the
following two options:

Option 1:

Woodlots and hedgerow trees will be cut
and appraised by a qualified forester
retained by the Company and satisfactory
to the Landowner, acting reasonably.
Evaluation of trees in woodlots will be
based on the practice as outlined on
Schedule 3.

Option 2:

The Landowner may accept the One Time
Crop Loss and Disturbance Damage
Payment in lieu of the woodlot evaluation.

With respect to compensation for damage
to other wooded areas:

Tree plantations (Christmas trees and
nursery stock) will be appraised
separately. Compensation for trees
evaluated in this manner shall be set out in
Schedule 4 to this document.

Evaluation of aesthetic trees will be based
on the practice outlined in Schedule 4.

The forester will contact the Landowner
before entry on their property. Copies of
appraisal reports will be made available to
affected Landowners and payment will be
made in accordance with the reports.

The Company reserves the right to use
trees for which it has paid compensation.
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on the construction area will be cut with
brush cutters or sprayed regularly so that
brush or trees will not grow again.

Option 3: Union will maintain a 6 metre strip
over the pipeline which will be kept clear by
cutting the brush or spraying. The remainder
of the easement will be allowed to reforest
naturally or can be reforested by the
landowner.

The Company has established a policy to
replant twice the area of trees to those which
are cleared for pipeline projects. Landowners
whose woodlots are to be cleared may apply
in writing to the Company should they wish to
participate in this programme. Tree seedlings
will be replanted on the right-of-way or within
the landowner's property using species
determined in consultation with the
landowner. Replanting must be done in
accordance with the Company's policies
regarding tree planting on easements so that
a 6 metre strip centred on the pipeline is left
open for access to the pipeline.

At the Landowner's request, any
remaining logs will be cut into 10 foot (
3.05 metre ) lengths, lifted and piled
adjacent to the easement.

compensation. At the Landowner's
request, any remaining logs will be cut
into 10 foot ( 3.05 metre ) lengths, lifted
and piled adjacent to the easement.

At the Landowner's request, any remaining
logs will be cut into 10 foot ( 3.05 metre )
lengths, lifted and piled adjacent to the
easement.

XIl.45(c) — Gored Lands

7. GORED LAND

The Company agrees to pay landowners the
100 % annual crop loss component as
provided in the One Time Payment with
Cover Crop Option hereof, or in the case of
specialty crops as provided in Clause 5.2
hereof for agricultural lands rendered not
useable as a result of the construction of the
pipeline and clean-up following construction.

23. Gored Land
The Company agrees to pay the
Landowner 100 % crop loss on the gored
land. Gored land is defined as land
rendered inaccessible or unusable for
agricultural purposes during the Project.

23. Gored Land

The Company agrees to pay the
Landowner 100 % crop loss on the
gored land, where reasonably practical.
Gored land is defined as land rendered
inaccessible or unusable for agricultural
purposes during the Project.

23. Gored Land

The Company agrees to pay the
Landowner 100 % crop loss on the gored
land. Gored land is defined as land
rendered inaccessible or unusable for
agricultural purposes during the Project.

At the Landowner’s request, the Company
will plant a cover crop on gored land.

[1.9(b)(i) — Independent
Construction Monitor

Schedule “C” —
Construction Monitor
Scope of Work

9. INDEPENDENT CONSTRUCTION
MONITOR

An independent construction monitor shall be
appointed by GAPLO-Union ( Strathroy —
Lobo ), the Company and Ontario Energy
Board Staff. The monitor shall be on site

GAPLO and Union Gas reached an
agreement on the appointment of an
Independent Construction Monitor
prior to the hearing concerning the
Hamilton-Milton Pipeline:

Union agrees to the appointment of an

INDEPENDENT CONSTRUCTION
MONITOR

An independent construction monitor shall
be appointed by CAEPLA-PLC, the
Company and Ontario Energy Board Staff.
The monitor shall be on site continuously
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continuously to monitor construction with
respect to all issues of concern to
landowners, and shall be available to the
landowners and the Company at all times.
The monitor shall file interim and final reports
with the Ontario Energy Board.

independent construction monitor for
construction on agricultural lands for the
Hamilton- Milton pipeline. The
construction monitor will be chosen by a
committee consisting of one
representative from each of Union, the
OEB and GAPLO. The scope of work for
the construction monitor will be:

1. To observe impacts of construction on
the land, including right-of-way
preparation, trenching, backfill and clean-
up operations was well was wet soil
shutdown events;

2. To review construction activities for
compliance with the OEB Conditions of
Approval, Letters of Understanding
(“LOU”) agreed to between landowners
and Union;

3. To review all specific construction
commitments included in Union’s
construction contract;

4. To respond to specific requests by
landowners and the committee within 24
hours while maintaining limited contact
with landowners on a day-to-day basis;
and

5. To prepare and deliver a series of
activity reports in a timely manner to the
appropriate persons.

Union further agrees to file interim and
final reports of the construction monitor
with the OEB and provide copies to
GAPLO. Union’s agreement is without
prejudice to any position it may take in a
future proceeding with respect to the
appointment of an independent
construction monitor.

CAEPLA-PLC

2 LIABILITY

The Company will be responsible for
damages to property, equipment, and loss of
time resulting from construction operations,
and will pay for repairs or replacement costs.
The Company will be responsible, and

24. Liability
The Company will be responsible for
damages to property, and equipment,
resulting from construction operations,
and will pay for repairs or replacement
costs. The Company will be responsible,

26. Liability

The Company will be responsible for
damages to property, and equipment,
resulting from construction operations,
and will pay for repairs or replacement
costs. The Company will be responsible,

26.

Liability
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indemnify the landowner from any and all
liabilities, damages, costs, claims, suits and
actions except those resulting from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of the
landowner.

and indemnify the Landowner from any
and all liabilities, damages, costs, claims,
suits and actions except those resulting
from the gross negligence or wilful
misconduct of the Landowner.

and indemnify the Landowner from any
and all liabilities, damages, costs,
claims, suits and actions except those
resulting from the gross negligence or
wilful misconduct of the Landowner.

30. Integrity Dig Agreement

The Integrity Dig Agreement will be
utilized for all Integrity Digs pertaining to
this pipeline and the existing paralleling
NPS20 pipeline from Dawn to Dover
Station.

30. Inteqgrity Dig Agreement

SCHEDULE 1
Landowner Relations and Terms of
Reference of Joint Committee

In addition to Wet Soils Shutdown issues, the
Joint Committee’s purpose is to:

i) provide a mechanism to address
issues/concerns that arise during and
following construction including concerns
related to wet soil shutdown decisions made
by the Company;

i) provide a brief overview of
issues/concerns raised during and following
construction; and,

iii) consider which items should be
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included in a Post Construction Report. The
objective of the Joint Committee is to
provide:

i) a vehicle to address issues/concerns
which arise during and following
construction;

ii) deal with any unforeseen
circumstances which may arise during or
following construction; and,

iii) an opportunity for landowners to
comment on how Union might improve future
construction practices.

In reviewing the foregoing, the types of
issues which may be addressed are as
follows:

i) landowner concerns that arise during
and following construction;

i) unusual or unanticipated impacts of
the construction process which show up only
after construction is completed;

iii) methods of anticipating and avoiding
these circumstances in the future; and,
iv) review of ongoing construction

practices and procedures which in the view
of the landowners might be improved in
future construction.

Duration of the Joint Committee

i) The Joint Committee shall be formed
during the year of construction in advance
and

prior to the commencement of construction.
The landowners shall be responsible for
recruiting the landowner members and
advising the Company thereof. The
Committee shall continue for a period of two
(2) years from the date of commencement
of construction and so long thereafter as the
Committee determines is necessary.
Committee Make-Up

i) Members shall be affected
landowners, and appropriate representatives
of the Company.

The Joint Committee shall be composed of
one GUSL landowner, one other landowner
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and three
Company;
Payment to Landowner members

i) The Company will pay to the GUSL
landowner member of the Joint Committee at
his or her

direction a total payment of $ 10,000 plus
G.S.T. and the same amount to the other
landowner member as an honorarium for
their participation on the committee.

representatives of the

IV. Wet Soil Protocol

SCHEDULE 5

Wet Soils Shutdown

The following sets out the Wet Soils
Shutdown practice of Union Gas Limited for
pipeline construction, repair and
maintenance on agricultural lands.

Wet Soils Shutdown issues shall be decided
by the Joint Committee with the assistance of
the construction monitor as required.

While constructing the Company’s pipeline
the Company’s senior inspectors inspect
right-of-way conditions each day before
construction activities commence for that
day. If, in the judgment of these inspectors or
other Company representatives and other
members of the Joint Committee with the
assistance of the construction monitor, the
right-of-way conditions on agricultural lands
are such that construction would have an
adverse affect on the soils due to wet soils
conditions, the contractor is prohibited from
starting construction activities. The
inspectors/other Company representatives
and other members of the Joint Committee
with the assistance of the construction

SCHEDULE 6

Wet Soils Shutdown

The following sets out the Wet Soils
Shutdown practice of Union Gas Limited
for pipeline construction, repair and
maintenance on agricultural lands.

While constructing the Company’s
pipeline the Company’s senior inspectors
inspect right-of-way conditions each day
before construction activities commence
for that day. If, in the judgment of these
inspectors, the right-of-way conditions on
agricultural lands are such that
construction would have an adverse
affect on the soils due to wet soils
conditions, the contractor is prohibited
from starting construction activities. The
inspectors shall consider the extent of
surface ponding, extent and depth of
rutting, surface extent and location of
potential rutting and compaction (i.e., can
traffic be re-routed within the easement

SCHEDULE 6

Wet Soils Shutdown

The following sets out the Wet Soils
Shutdown practice of Union Gas Limited
for pipeline construction, repair and
maintenance on agricultural lands.

While constructing the Company’s
pipeline the Company’s senior
inspectors inspect right-of-way
conditions each day before construction
activities commence for that day. If, in
the judgment of these inspectors, the
right-of-way conditions on agricultural
lands are such that construction would
have an adverse affect on the soils due
to wet soils conditions, the contractor is
prohibited from starting construction
activities. The inspectors shall consider
the extent of surface ponding, extent
and depth of rutting, surface extent and
location of potential rutting and
compaction (i.e., can traffic be re-routed

SCHEDULE 5

Wet Soils Shutdown

The following sets out the Wet Soils
Shutdown practice of Union Gas Limited
for pipeline construction, repair and
maintenance on agricultural lands.

While constructing the Company’s pipeline
the Company’s senior inspectors inspect
right-of-way conditions each day before
construction activities commence for that
day.

the right-of-way conditions on agricultural
lands are such that construction would
have an adverse Effect on the soils due to
wet soils conditions, the contractor is
prohibited from starting construction
activities.
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monitor shall consider the extent of surface
ponding, extent and depth of rutting, surface
extent and location of potential rutting and
compaction (i.e, can traffic be re-routed
within the easement lands around wet
area(s) ) and the type of equipment and
nature of construction proposed for that day.
The wet soil shutdown restriction would be in
effect until, in the judgment of the Company
representatives and other members of the
Joint Committee with the assistance of the
construction monitor, the soils would have
sufficiently dried to the extent that
commencing construction activities would
have no adverse affects on the soils.

Wet soils shutdown is a routine part of
Union’s normal management process for
pipeline construction activities. In recognition
of this, Union budgets for and includes in
contract documents, provisions for payment
to the pipeline contractors for wet soils
shutdown thereby removing any potential
incentive for the contractor to work in wet
conditions.

In addition, Union’s inspection staff and the
Joint Committee with the assistance of the
construction monitor are responsible for
ensuring that construction activities do not
occur during wet soils shutdown. This would
include shutting down construction activities
if soils became wet during the day.

It should, however, be recognized that there
may be situations when construction
activities cannot be carried out during the
normal construction period due to delays in
project timing and it may become necessary
to work in wet conditions in the spring or fall

lands around wet area(s) and the type of
equipment and nature of construction
proposed for that day. The wet soil
shutdown restriction would be in effect
until, in the judgment of the Company
representatives, the soils would have
sufficiently dried to the extent that
commencing construction activities would
have no adverse affects on the soils.

Wet soils shutdown is a routine part of
Union’s normal management process for
pipeline construction activities. In
recognition of this, Union budgets for and
includes in contract documents,
provisions for payment to the pipeline
contractors for wet soils shutdown
thereby removing any potential incentive
for the contractor to work in wet
conditions.

In addition, Union’s inspection staff is
responsible for ensuring that construction
activities do not occur during wet soils
shutdown. This would include shutting
down construction activities if soils
became wet during the day.

It should, however, be recognized that
there may be situations when
construction activities cannot be carried
out during the normal construction period
due to delays in project timing and it may
become necessary to work in wet

within the easement lands around wet
area(s) and the type of equipment and
nature of construction proposed for that
day. The wet soil shutdown restriction
would be in effect until, in the judgment
of the Company representatives, the
soils would have sufficiently dried to the
extent that commencing construction
activities would have no adverse affects
on the soils.

Wet soils shutdown is a routine part of
Union’s normal management process for
pipeline construction activities. In
recognition of this, Union budgets for
and includes in contract documents,
provisions for payment to the pipeline
contractors for wet soils shutdown
thereby removing any potential incentive
for the contractor to work in wet
conditions.

In addition, Union’s inspection staff is
responsible for ensuring that
construction activities do not occur
during wet soils shutdown. This would
include shutting down construction
activities if soils became wet during the
day.

It should, however, be recognized that
there may be situations when
construction activities cannot be carried
out during the normal construction
period due to delays in project timing
and it may become necessary to work in

construction monitor shall consider the
extent of surface ponding, extent and
depth of rutting, surface extent and
location of potential rutting and compaction
(i.e, can traffic be re-routed within the
easement lands around wet area(s)) and
the type of equipment and nature of
construction proposed for that day. The
wet soil shutdown restriction would be in
effect until, in the judgment of the
Company representatives and other
members of the Joint Committee with the
assistance of the construction monitor, the
soils would have sufficiently dried to the
extent that commencing construction
activities would have no adverse gffects on
the soils.

Wet soils shutdown is a routine part of
Union’s normal management process for
pipeline construction activities. In
recognition of this, Union budgets for and
includes in contract documents, provisions
for payment to the pipeline contractors for
wet soils shutdown thereby removing any
potential incentive for the contractor to
work in wet conditions.

In addition, Union’s inspection staff and the
Joint Committee with the assistance of the
construction monitor are responsible for
ensuring that construction activities do not
occur during wet soils shutdown. This
would include shutting down construction
activities if soils became wet during the
day.

It should, however, be recognized that
there may be situations when construction
activities cannot be carried out during the
normal construction period due to delays in
project timing and it may become
necessary to work in wet conditions in the
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of the year. Where construction activities are | conditions in the spring or fall of the year. | wet conditions in the spring or fall of the | spring or fall of the year. Where
undertaken by the Company in wet soil Where construction activities are year. Where construction activities are construction activities are undertaken by
conditions ( as determined by the monitor ), undertaken by the Company in wet soil undertaken by the Company in wet soil the Company in wet soil conditions
additional mitigation measures may be putin | conditions, additional mitigation conditions, additional mitigation ,
place to minimize resulting damages. measures may be put in place to measures may be put in place to additional mitigation measures may be put
Mitigation measures may, where appropriate, | minimize resulting damages. Mitigation minimize resulting damages. Mitigation in place to minimize resulting damages.
be developed by Union on a site specific measures may, where appropriate, be measures may, where appropriate, be Mitigation measures may, where
basis and may include avoiding certain developed by Union on a site specific developed by Union on a site specific appropriate, be developed by Union on a
areas, full easement stripping, geotextile basis and may include avoiding certain basis and may include avoiding certain site specific basis and may include
roads, the use of swamp mats, or the use of | areas, full easement stripping, geotextile | areas, full easement stripping, geotextile | avoiding certain areas, full easement
other specialized equipment where deemed roads, the use of swamp mats, or the use | roads, the use of swamp mats, or the stripping, geotextile roads, the use of
appropriate by Union. Union will authorize of other specialized equipment where use of other specialized equipment swamp mats, or the use of other
work in wet soils conditions only when all deemed appropriate by Union. Union will | where deemed appropriate by Union. specialized equipment where deemed
other reasonable alternatives have been authorize work in wet soils conditions Union will authorize work in wet soils appropriate by Union. Union will authorize
exhausted. only when all other reasonable conditions only when all other work in wet soils conditions only when all

alternatives have been exhausted. reasonable alternatives have been other reasonable alternatives have been

exhausted. In this event, additional exhausted.
damages will be paid as a result based

Where construction activities are undertaken upon 50% of the disturbance payment.
by the Company in wet soil conditions ( as
determined by the monitor ),the Company
shall pay to the landowner 150 % of
disturbance and crop loss damage
compensation on the area affected by the
activities ( area also to be determined by the
construction monitor ). The 150 % payment
applies only once to any one area; on areas
where the 150 % payment is applied, the
landowner forfeits the right to top-up of crop
loss damages under the L.O.U.. The 150 %
payment does not affect the landowner’s
right to topsoil replacement where crop loss
exceeds 50 % in the fifth year following
construction.
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THIS AGREEMENT MADE IN DUPLICATE THIS DAY OF 2012

BETWEEN:

LAKE HURON PIPELINE LANDOWNERS ASSOCIATION ("LHPLA")
-and —

LAKE HURON PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM ("LHPWSS')

LETTER OF UNDERTAKING

WHEREAS LHPWSS is the successor to the Ontario Clean Water Agency ("OCWA™) with
respect to the ownership and operation of the Lake Huron Water Supply System, including the
Lake Huron Pipeline; :

AND WHEREAS LHPWSS proposes to twin certain sections of the Lake Huron Water Supply
System within the existing easement in accordance with current state-of-the-art water pipeline
industry practices, procedures, undertakings and commitments;

AND WHEREAS LHPLA is a voluntary association representing the interests of those Lake
Huron Pipeline landowners who are concerned about potential impacts of the proposed
construction upon their lands and who require assurance that the new pipeline will be constructed
in a manner which minimizes damage to their lands and the environment, both in the short and
the long terms;

AND WHEREAS in connection with a previous construction of other sections of the Lake
Huron Pipeline referred to herein as the “1996 Twinning”, the Minister of Environment and
Energy authorized the 1996 Twinning to proceed on the basis of commitments by OCWA to
undertake with LHPLA a cooperative investigation of easement conditions prior to construction
for the purpose of developing and implementing appropriate mitigation measures to minimize
agricultural impacts and to fund LHPLA's reasonable costs for this purpose;

AND WHEREAS in connection with the 1996 Twinning, LHPLA and OCWA entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding dated March 8, 1996 providing for such cooperative
investigation, development of individual farm mitigation and rehabilitation plans, and the
negotiation of a Letter of Undertaking eventually concluded on April 3, 1996 resolving
construction, rehabilitation, compensation and cost issues (the “1996 MOU™ and “1996 LOU”,
respectively);

AND WHEREAS Section A.7 of the 1996 LOU sets out the agreement of the parties "to

negotiate in good faith an agreement dealing with the issues that are set out herein if future

) ) 1748061.9
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construction is contemplated for additional or replacement pipeline. The present negotiations
would be part of the planning of such future works™;

AND WHEREAS the parties have agreed to undertake in connection with the current proposed
construction, hereinafter referred to as the “2011 Twinning™, a similar cooperative investigation
of easement conditions and development of individual farm mitigation and rehabilitation plans
pursuant to @ Memorandum of Understanding dated the 17 day of November 2010 and signed
March 8, 2011 on behalf of the LHPWSS and signed March 12, 2011 on behalf of LHPLA
(hereinafter the “2011 MOU™) and to conclude this Letter of Undertaking (hereinafter “this
Agreement” or the 2011 LOU”) to set out the resolutions agreed upon with respect to the
construction, rehabilitation, compensation and cost issues affecting those properties which are
subject to the 2011 Twinning;

AND WHEREAS LHPLA has obtained the authority of a number of the landowners as listed in
Schedule "A" affected by the 2011 Twinning to enter into this Agreement as their representative
agent;

AND WHEREAS in accordance with the 2011 MOU terms the LHPLA consultants have
produced reports entitled ““ Preliminary Farm Planning Report: On-Farm Soil Investigations for
Landowners Involved in the 2011 Lake Huron Pipeline Twinning Construction” dated April 6,
2011 and submitted by The Soil Resource Group” and “An Assessment of Landowner Issues
and Concerns Associated With the Proposed 2011 Lake Huron Water Pipeline Twinning Project”
dated April 4, 2011 and submitted by George L. Brinkman, Intercambio Ltd. (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Consultants” Reports” and individual farm plan reviews for each
affected LHPLA landowner (hereinafter referred to as the “2011 Farm Plan(s)™);

AND WHEREAS upon completion of this Agreement individual landowners compensation
agreements proposed by LHPWSS in the form of Schedule B to this Agreement will be
distributed to LHPLA members;

AND WHEREAS the parties now enter into this Agreement to document the resolutions agreed
upon with respect to the construction, rehabilitation, compensation and cost issues affecting
those properties which are subject to the 2011 Twinning.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties agree as follows:

I. GENERAL

1. In carrying out the proposed construction, LHPWSS shall abide by the undertakings and
recommendations contained in the Lake Huron Primary Water Transmission Main
Twinning Municipal Class Environmental Assessment Project File March 2011, the
specifications and any supplementary specifications issued with respect to the proposed
construction as modified by this agreement and the Lake Huron Pipeline 2011 Twinning
Agreement for Compensation with each landowner in the form attached as Schedule "B"
to this Agreement.

) ) 1748061.9
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In the event of a conflict between the undertakings and recommendations contained in
the Lake Huron Primary Water Transmission Main Twinning Municipal Class
Environmental Assessment Project File March 2011 and the terms of this Agreement,
then this Agreement, including Schedule "B", shall prevail. Notwithstanding the
foregoing provisions of this paragraph if a conflict exists within or between the Lake
Huron Primary Water Transmission Main Twinning Municipal Class Environmental
Assessment Project File March 2011 and the terms of this Agreement and any applicable
laws the more stringent or higher quality requirements shall be the obligation of the
parties.

In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and Schedule "B", including the
individual Farm Plans, this Agreement shall prevail.

Subject to any alternate agreement with affected landowners, the provisions of this
Agreement shall apply and a copy of this Agreement shall be provided to all contractors
awarded work in connection with the proposed construction and shall be communicated
to all contractors engaged to carry out such work.

The undertakings contained herein shall be binding upon LHPWSS, its successors and
assigns, and shall enure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns of present landowners.

LHPWSS shall compensate landowners for all damages suffered as a result of its
construction of the 2011 Twinning in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

The parties hereby undertake to negotiate in good faith an agreement dealing with the
1ssues that are set out herein if future construction is contemplated for additional or
replacement pipelines. These negotiations would be part of the planning of such future
works.

In the case of a rupture of the pipeline forming part of the 2011 Twinning, during the
2011 Twinning construction where on- or off-easement soils are washed away or
otherwise damaged, LHPWSS shall be responsible for restoring the subsoils and topsoil
in a manner consistent with this Agreement with necessary modifications to reflect the
circumstances surrounding: the rupture, importing Horizon C and Horizon B soils and
topsoil as necessary to re-establish, as close as practicable, the soil profile existing prior
to the rupture and thereby return the soil to a productive state, and the specific
compensation provisions of Schedule B which apply to such circumstances shall apply to
the affected lands. For this purpose, LHPWSS will retain an independent qualified
consultant satisfactory to LHPLA, acting reasonably, to assess and prescribe remediation
for affected soils. The amount of compensation paid for crop loss under this paragraph 8
of this Agreement on easement lands will be adjusted to ensure payments are not
duplicated for future losses already paid or to be paid for under the 2011 Twinning.

1748061.9
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II. COMMUNICATION/LANDOWNER RELATIONS

9. Prior to the construction of the 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS shall develop and implement a
landowner communication and liaison program as follows:

(2)

(b)

Final version

Design Stage (Pre-construction)

@

(i)

(111)

LHPWSS's project manager or designated agent and a representative of
LHPLA shall visit with each affected landowner to discuss site specific
issues and implementation of mitigation and rehabilitation measures in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and the individual farm
plan reviews:

LHPWSS shall identify to LHPLA and each landowner the name and
position of the individual responsible for ensuring that the undertakings
provided herein are satisfied. Contact names and a clear written
description of LHPWSS's complaint resolution procedure shall be
provided to landowners prior to commencement of work. In the event of
the replacement of any such individual, LHPWSS will notify LHPLA and
each landowner of the replacement and identity of the new designated
individual within five working days;

Before and'during construction a landowner's initial contact for the
resolution of concerns and complaints will be LHPWSS's project manager
or designated agent.

During Construction

()

(i)

An independent construction monitor for each construction contract spread
shall be appointed by LHPLA subject to LHPWSS’s approval, acting
reasonably.” LHPWSS shall pay the reasonable fees of the construction
monitor (consistent with industry standards) and the expenses of the
construction monitor. The construction monitor shall be on site as
required to carry out its duties in accordance with the scope of work terms
agreed upon by LHPLA and LHPWSS (a copy of which is attached as
Schedule “C” to this Agreement) for the task of monitoring construction
with respect to all issues of concern to landowners, and shall be available
to landowners, the Joint Committee and LHPWSS at all times. LHPWSS
shall provide the construction monitor with a schedule of planned
construction activities and not less than 24 hours notice of any clearing,
topsoil stripping, grading, and/or reclamation activities and the
construction monitor shall be provided free inspection access (subject to
safety requirements) to all LHPWSS’s construction activities;

In addition to the contact available by landowner to the LHPWSS’s
project manager or designated agent, there shall be established a “Pipeline
Impact Consultation Committee” (hereinafter referred to as the “Joint

1748061.9
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Committee”) consisting of LHPLA and LHPWSS representative(s) as
agreed from time to time between the parties to provide a forum for
communication and liaison between LHPWSS and LHPLA members with
respect to any issues which may arise before, during and following
construction. The Joint Committee shall hold regular meetings, at least
monthly, or more frequently as they may determine.

(iii)  In addition there shall be regular Site Meetings, to which the Contractors,
Engineers, Soils consultants, Surveyors, representatives of LHPWSS, the
independent construction monitor and a representative of LHPLA are
invited to review an outline of the work scheduled to occur over the course
of the following week, with the purpose to address issues and identify
solutions. The agenda for such Site meetings will be created to include
standard agenda items, such as complaints, or issues which have arisen in
the previous week for the purpose of addressing any issues which have not
be satisfactorily dealt with on site. Any matter remaining in dispute
between the parties from a Site Meeting may be referred to the Joint
Committee, and failing resolution at the Joint Committee, may be referred
to dispute resolution in accordance with paragraph 51 of this Agreement;

(iv) LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent will review the feasibility
of implementing corrective or remedial measures suggested by the
construction monitor. The construction monitor will bring issues to the
attention of LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent in a timely
manner for resolution in the field and will bring systemic issues or
concerns, or matters which the project manager or designated agent and
the construction monitor cannot agree upon to the Joint Committee for
consideration, and failing resolution at the Joint Committee, such matter
may be referred to dispute resolution in accordance with paragraph 51 of
this Agreement. The monitor shall deliver interim and final reports to
both LHPLA and LHPWSS with respect to identified issues and their
resolution;

) Subject to the prior approval of LHPWSS and LHPLA, expert consultants
as may be agreed between the parties may be retained to advise LHPLA
and to work with LHPWSS's consultants and contractors to resolve
matters which may arse from time to time. LHPWSS will be responsible
for the costs of independent consultants satisfactory to LHPLA to resolve
site specific disputes concerning the need for topsoil importation to
address subsidence (paragraph 17), deficient cover (paragraph 19),
excessive crop loss (paragraph10(e)), compensation for specialty crops
(paragraph 47), or future “top-up” crop loss compensation (paragraph
45(a)).

) ] 1748061.9
Final version



CAEPLA-PLC 100
-6-

{c) Post Construction

(i) A landowner's contact for the resolution of concerns and complaints will
be a designated representative of LHPWSS.

(1)  Any matter in dispute between the parties may be referred to dispute
resolution in accordance with paragraph 51 of this Agreement.

(d) General

(i) LHPWSS shall design and implement a landowner complaint tracking
system identifying date and time of complaint; identity of owner; nature of
the complaint; actions taken in response; and reasons underlying such
actions. A copy of the complaint record is to be provided to both LHPLA
and the complaining landowner.

IIi. SOIL PRESERVATION

10.  In connection with the construction of the pipeline, LHPWSS will consult with each
individual owner or his agents with respect to implementation of the following soil
preservation policies, practices and procedures:

(a) Topsoil Stripping:

(1) Prior to construction, LHPWSS in consultation with LHPLA’s consultants
shall carry out further soil testing on each property to determine the
location on easement of mixed and relatively unmixed (“virgin™) topsoil,
and prior to the removal of Horizon C from the trench, the compaction of
the native soils on and off easement;

(i1)  where no existing crown problem is identified, topsoil stripping will be
limited to not more than the easement width. B and C subsoil horizons
from the trench, mixed topsoil, and identified "virgin" topsoil shall be
stripped and piled separately with one metre separation between piles, free
from disturbance from construction operations, as set out in Standard
Drawing 1 in Schedule "D" to this Agreement;

(ii)  where an existing crown problem is identified and a temporary easement
is not determined by LHPWSS to be required after consultation with
LHPLA’s consultants, B and C subsoil horizons from the trench, mixed
topsoil, and identified "virgin" topsoil shall be stripped and piled
separately with one metre separation between piles, free from disturbance
from construction operations, as set out in Standard Drawing 1 in
Schedule "D" to this Agreement;

(iv)  where an existing crown problem is identified and a temporary easement
1s determined by LHPWSS to be required after consultation with

] ) 1748061.9
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LHPLA’s consultants, “virgin” topsoil is to be stockpiled off easement as
set out in Standard Drawing 2 in Schedule "D" to this Agreement on
temporary easement lands in accordance with the temporary easement
agreement to be entered into between LHPWSS and the landowner in the
form set out in Schedule “E” and the landowner shall receive
compensation for the use of the temporary casement in accordance with
Paragraph 45(d), hereof. At the request of the landowner, a mulch layer
will be provided between the existing topsoil and the stripped topsoil in
situations where a crop is not present;

stripping is to be conducted by use of a bulldozer and a grader, with depth
of stripping to be based upon visual identification of soil strata on a
“colour-change™ basis. If requested by the landowner, topsoil will be
ploughed before being stripped to a depth as specified by the landowner;

at the request and pursuant to the direction of the landowner, topsoil may
be stripped in wetlands and woodlands. All soil storage in these areas will
be carried out on the existing easement in accordance with the Standard
Drawing 1 in Schedule "D" to this Agreement.

Existing Crown From Original Construction:

Where an existing crown problem 1s identified:

®

(i)

(iid)

(iv)

LHPWSS in consultation with LHPLA’s consultants will undertake soil
profiling to identify mixed and virgin topsoil in and adjacent to the crown;

topsoil stripping will take place across the permanent easement and
“virgin” topsoil, mixed topsoil and subsoils stripped and stored separately
in accordance with the requirements of Paragraph 10(a) above,

a sufficient volume of trench subsoils will be removed to eliminate the
crown and, following crown removal, the mixed topsoil will be restored
over the trench consistent with the surrounding grade in accordance with
Paragraph 10(c)following.

Any subsequent subsidence or erosion which is a result of the 2011
Twinning will be remedied in accordance with and subject to the
provisions of paragraph 17 of this Agreement.

Topsoil Restoratio;i:

@

(1)

LHPWSS will undertake appropriate survey techniques to establish pre- and
post-construction grade with the view to restoring soils as close to pre-
construction grade as reasonably practicable;

subsoils are to be returned to the trench in a manner consistent with the
existing soil horizons;

1748061.9
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Honizon C will be compacted to 95% Standard Proctor Density from the
top of the pipe bedding granular material to within 1.0 metre
(approximately 3 feet) of finished grade of topsoil. The balance of the
Horizon C soils are to be compacted to existing compaction levels of the
native soils, as determined in Subclause 10(a)(i) above;

all spoil from bore and road excavations will be removed in accordance
with applicable Ministry of the Environment Guidelines so as not to
contaminate the topsoil and the topsoil will be stripped in the affected area
so that no mixing will occur;

after subsoils are returned to the trench without crowning, the landowner
shall be entitled to any excess material and, following consultation with
the landowner with respect to the means of and the route of transportation
of this material, LHPWSS shall move the material to a location of the
landowner's choice, prepared by the landowner for its receipt, within a
reasonable distance from the worksite provided that the landowner accepts
responsibility for such delivery;

following construction from concession road to concession road and repair
of tile drains, before the replacement of the topsoil and as soil conditions
permit, LHPWSS shall subsoil and chisel plough exposed subsoils and
remove all stones greater than 50 mm (2 inches) in diameter in a manner
that does not remove topsoil or excessively recompact the subsoils;

LHPWSS shall conduct testing to ensure that compaction problems have
been resolved and shall restore subsoils to their original contour prior to
restoration of topsoil;

topsoil may be restored in the year of construction without crowning.
Alternatively, at the option of the landowner, topsoil may be overwintered
and replaced the following year again with lands returned to the
surrounding grade. If there is mounding over the trench in the year
following topsoil replacement, LHPWSS will strip topsoil, remove excess
subsoil and replace topsoil or, at the option of the landowner if adequate
so1l depth is available, the mound may be levelled;

if it is necessary to over-winter topsoil, piled topsoil shall be sprayed with
a mulch material with appropriate cover crop seed to protect the topsoil
over the winter. Prior to the restoration of topsoil, LHPWSS shall remedy
any subsidence and shall again subsoil and chisel plough exposed subsoils
with stone-picking of stones greater than 50 mm in diameter in a manner
that does not remove topsoil or excessively recompact the subsoils;

following restoration of topsoil, LHPWSS shall paraplough where
indicated by testing, straight-tooth chisel plough (to minimize topsoil and
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subsoil mixing), and pick stones greater than 50 mm in diameter in a
manner that does not remove topsoil or excessively recompact the soils;

(xi) LHPWSS shall, at a time satisfactory to the landowner, pick stones greater
than 50 mm in diameter in each of the first two years following
construction and shall return to pick stones greater than 50 mm in the
following years where there is a demonstrable need indicated by
significantly greater stones surfacing on easement as compared to off
easement lands;

(xi1) where topsoil is required to repair subsidence, tile repairs are necessary
following replacement of topsoil, or some other repair requires heavy
equipment to move over the easement following topsoil replacement and
where indicated by testing, following consultation with the landowner,
LHPWSS will arrange for an additional cultivation or chisel ploughing to
the depth of the compaction and stone-picking of stones greater than 50
mm in diameter in a manner that does not remove topsoil or excessively
recompact the soils

(d Cover Crops:

@ LHPWSS undertakes to use its best efforts to complete any 2011
Twinning pipeline construction (save and except where necessitated by an
emergency) in accordance with the following;

(A)  pipeline construction within the easement, including soil
rehabilitation - September 30,

(B)  connection to existing 1200 mm diameter pipeline - October 31,

(C)  completion of interconnecting valve chamber construction and
hydrostatic testing - December 15

(i) LHPWSS shall establish a cover crop on the easement in the year of
topsoil replacement and, at the option of the landowner, for two years
thereafter. The type of cover crop established shall reflect the wishes of
the landowner. In any year where a cover crop is planted, LHPWSS shall
pay to the landowner the crop loss amount in accordance with paragraph
45(a) hereof plus a “top-up” compensation of an amount which will
provide total compensation to the landowner of 100% for crop loss in that
year, as provided therein.

(e) Topsoil Replacement

6] LHPWSS will import 75mm of topsoil to remedy any areas within the
easement affected by construction that have crop losses in excess of 50%
in the fifth year following construction (the “affected area”) regardless of
the cause of the loss and without prejudice to the landowner’s continuing
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right to compensation for losses in excess of those already compensated.
In order to establish crop loss in excess of 50% the landowner shall, at
his/her expense, have the monitoring program carried out on his/her
property by the agronomist chosen pursuant to paragraph 45(a)(iv) in the
fifth year following construction and if the results of this monitoring
program show an on-easement crop loss in excess of 50% then LHPWSS
will reimburse the landowner the cost of the monitoring plus a “top-up”
compensation of an amount which will provide full compensation to the
landowner of his/her crop loss for year five, and to the extent that the
monitored year 5 loss exceeds the loss compensated under paragraph 45(a)
for post-construction years 2, 3 and/or 4 LHPWSS will provide a “top-
up” compensation in any or all of those years, as well as proceed with the
import of topsoil. The “top-up” compensation to be provided pursuant to
this paragraph of the Agreement is illustrated by way of the following
example: If the on-easement crop loss as monitored for year 5 is
demonstrated to be 80% then LHPWSS will compensate the landowner
under paragraph 45(a) for 30% crop loss and provide an additional “top-
up” compensation of 50% crop loss for year 5, and an additional “top-up”
compensation of 40% crop loss for year 4 and an additonal “top-up”
compensation of 30% crop loss for year 3 in order to provide full
compensation to the landowner;

Where ruts exist on the affected area, then prior to spreading of the
topsoil, LHPWSS will regrade the total width of the easement in the
location of the affected area to level any ruts;

The quantity of topsoil to be spread is to be equivalent to 75mm (three
inches) times the total area of affected land. The topsoil must be of a
quality described in paragraph 17, dry and tested to ensure the absence of
soybean cyst nematode;

The imported topsoil is to be spread uniformly over the affected area or as
otherwise agreed by the landowner in a manner so as not to adversely
affect the natural drainage of the land or adversely impact farm operations.

WET SOIL PROTOCOL

Soils are considered to be excessively wet when the planned activity could cause damage
to soils either due to rutting by traffic through the topsoil layer into the subsoil; soil
structure damage during soil handling; or compaction and associated pulverization of
topsoil structure due to heavy traffic. Except in the case of an emergency posing
imminent risks to human or animal life or property, during construction through
agricultural lands, activities will be suspended in wet soil conditions upon consideration
of all of the following factors:

(a) plasticity of the surface soil to depth of approximately 10-20 centimetres;
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(b) location and depth-of the wetting front in relation to the A and B horizons;
© extent of surface ponding;
(d)  extent and depth of rutting;

(e) aerial extent and location of potential rutting and cornpaction (i.e., can traffic be
re-routed around wet area;

(f) type of equipment and nature of the construction operations proposed for that day;
(g)  excessive wheel slip;

(h) excessive build up-of mud on tires or cleats;

1) tracking of mud as vehicles leave the easement.

12.  The decision to suspend activities in excessively wet soil conditions will be made by the
Joint Committee with the assistance of the construction monitor as required. While
constructing the pipeline, LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent shall inspect
the right-of-way conditions each day before construction activities commence for that
day. If, in the judgment of LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent, or the Joint
Committee with the assistance of the construction monitor, the easement conditions on
agricultural lands are such that construction would have an adverse effect on the soils due
to wet soil conditions, the contractor is prohibited from starting construction activities.
Contractors shall immediately be notified of a wet soil shutdown and shall promptly
cease all affected construction activity.

13.  The wet soil shutdown restriction will remain in effect until, in the judgment of
LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent and the Joint Committee with the
assistance of the construction monitor, the soils have sufficiently dried to the extent that
commencing construction activities would have no adverse effects on the soils. A partial
wet weather shutdown may be declared if certain activities can continue in certain work
areas without causing soil.damage. In the event that construction activities are undertaken
by LHPWSS in wet soil conditions as determined by the construction monitor, additional
mitigation measures may be put in place to minimize resulting damages. This may
include restricted movement on the right-of-way to wide tracked equipment, bored
crossings, welding, avoiding certain areas, full easement stripping, geotextile roads, the
use of swamp mats, the use of specialized equipment where deemed appropriate by
LHPWSS, etc.

14.  LHPWSS’s project manager or designated agent and the Joint Comumittee with the
assistance of the construction monitor are responsible for ensuring that construction
activities do not occur during wet soils shutdown. LHPWSS will authorize work in wet
soils conditions only when all other reasonable alternatives have been exhausted. Where
weather conditions are such that excessively wet/thawed soil conditions are likely to
occur, contingency measures may, if warranted and practicable, be implemented prior to
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the occurrence of the above indicators. If rain commences after construction has started,
a wet s0il shutdown may be imposed in accordance with paragraph 12.

15, Where construction activities are undertaken by LHPWSS in wet soil conditions as
determined by the construction monitor, LHPWSS shall pay to the landowner 150% of
disturbance and crop loss damage compensation on the area affected by the activities
(area also to be determined by the construction monitor). The 150% payment does not
affect the landowner’s right to topsoil replacement where crop loss exceeds 50% in the
fifth year following construction.

V. CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES

16.  LHPWSS shall implement proper and appropriate construction practices and mitigation
and clean-up measures to minimize injury and damage to the land and future crops,
including those contained in the individual farm plan reviews, and the following:

(a) LHPWSS will install the 2011 Twinning pipeline with at least 1.8 metres of
cover. If LHPWSS, acting reasonably, determines in consultation with the
landowner that it is necessary to increase the depth of the 2011 Twinning pipeline
to accommodate facilities such as drainage, processes such as deep tillage, heavy
farm equipment or land use changes, LHPWSS will provide for additional depth
of cover '

{b) LHPWSS undertakes to make all reasonable efforts to minimize the length of the
open trench and, in any event, at no time shall more than two hundred metres of
trench be opened in any one site by LHPWSS or its agents. Where the trench is to
be left open overnight, proper barriers shall be introduced to reduce risk of injury
to the public;

(c) All heavy equipment shall travel only along the trench line within the easement.
Such equipment shall enter from either end of the easement lands and LHPWSS
shall make its best efforts to ensure that such equipment does not haul "loaded"
beyond the centre point of the easement lands and with due regard to the existing
pipeline. Use of all equipment shall comply with all applicable regulations;

(d) LHPWSS will ensure suitable passage and land access for agricultural equipment
during construction. Where construction interferes with access to farm
operations, LHPWSS shall maintain suitable access to permit the landowner to
continue operations on non-easement portions of the land or shall compensate
landowners in accordance with paragraph 45(d) hereof. Where requested by the
landowner, LHPWSS will leave plugs for access across the trench to the
remainder of the landowner’s property during construction using appropriate
construction methods to minimize the risk of damage to the lands, which may
include the use of construction matting or other suitable material, as available.
Following construction, LHPWSS shall ensure that the landowner shall have
access across the former trench and the easement.
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(e) Easement boundaries, including any temporary easement where required for
storage of topsoil, shall be identified by stakes located at no more than 15 metre
intervals. The intervals or distance between stakes may decrease as deemed
necessary in order to maintain the sight-lines and easement boundaries in areas of
sight obstruction, rolling terrain or stream and road crossings. The stakes will not
be removed during the topsoil stripping operation. LHPWSS and its agents shall
be limited to working within these lands and these boundary stakes shall not be
removed until the end of construction. LHPWSS will restake the easement limit
for post construction work at the request of the landowner;

63 Any boulders and other debris removed in the course of construction shall be
disposed of off the easement and away from the property of the landowner;

(g) LHPWSS shall ensure that any stone imported during construction for the purpose
of encasing pipe is contained and is not permitted to be scattered across the
easement or the landowner's property. Any remnants of stone shall be removed
immediately after construction;

(h) LHPWSS shall be responsible for ensuring that any water accumulating on the
easement during construction is released to an open drain or ditch but not into a
tile drain (except with landowner consent) unless through the installation of a
temporary tile. LHPWSS will provide to the landowner any temporary tiling plan
for review. If LHPWSS pumps into an existing tile with the landowner’s
permission, the water will be filtered;

1) Where private water or utility lines are planned to be interrupted, LHPWSS will
supply temporary service to the affected landowners prior to service interruption.
In the case of accidental interruption, temporary services will be provided by
LHPWSS at the earliest possible opportunity where services will not be restored
within a reasonable period of time, all in accordance with standards applicable to
municipal projects;’

() LHPWSS agrees that neither it nor its agents shall use any laneways or culverts
on the landowners' property beyond the limits of the easement without the prior
written consent of the landowner. LHPWSS shall, at its own expense, repair any
damages to private accesses caused by 2011 Twinning activities or compensate
the landowner accordingly;

(k) LHPWSS and its agents shall monitor and maintain private driveways during
construction that cross the easement, that are affected by construction activities as
required, and for eighteen months after construction for damage which is a result
of such construction activity;

)] LHPWSS and LHPLA agree that 2011 Twinning construction activities will not
occur in off-easement areas without the written permission of both the landowner
and LHPWSS. Written permission of the parties will be established in a
temporary easement agreement in the form set out in Schedule “E” and the

. ) 1748061.9
Final version



CAEPLA-PLC 108
-14 -

landowner shall receive compensation for the use of the temporary easement in
accordance with Paragraph 45(d) hereof. If damages are incurred as a result of
off-easement 2011 Twinning construction activities authorized by LHPWSS and
the landowner, then LHPWSS will compensate the landowner for all such
damages. If damages are incurred as a result of any off-easement 2011 Twinning
construction activities carried out with the permission of the landowner, but
without the written permission of LHPWSS, as signified by a temporary easement
agreement in the form set out in Schedule “E”, then LHPWSS shall not be liable.
If damages are incurred as a result of off-easement construction/operations which
are within the scope of work of the 2011 Twinning, but not authorized by either
LHPWSS or the landowner, then LHPWSS, subject to the terms herein, will
compensate the landowner for such damages and seek recourse against the
wrongdoer. The landowner shall use their best efforts to bring any unauthorized
off-easement construction/operations to the attention of LHPWSS forthwith after
becoming aware of the activity.

(m)  Upon completion of 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS agrees to repair all permanent
fences using standard nine page fence, barbed wire, fence posts of 150mm (six
inch) minimum, anchor posts of 200mm (eight inch) minimum and a proper gate,
or equivalent to the existing fence where it may differ from the standard nine page
fence. LHPWSS will also reset or replace any survey monuments which are
removed or destroyed during the 2011 Twinning in accordance with applicable
law.

VI EROSION

17.  Following restoration of topsoil, if subsidence or erosion occurs within two years
following completion of 2011 Twinning, 1o a depth of greater than 50 mum, LHPWSS
shall be responsible for importing topsoil to repair any such subsidence or erosion. The
imported topsoil is to;

() be natural, cultivated, medium loam, neither heavy clay nor sandy in nature,
capable of sustaining heavy agricultural growths,

(b) have a humus content of not less than 3% and not greater than 25%,

(c)  be free from living vegetation, roots, stones, subsoil and other objects larger than
50 mm in size, and

(d) be from a source to be approved by LHPWSS or it's agents after consultation with
LHPLA.

18.  Ifthe construction of the 2011 Twinning of pipeline causes a restriction of the natural
surface flow of water, due to too much or not enough subsidence, irrespective of the
50mm (two inch) criteria specified, LHPWSS will remove the restriction by the methods
described in paragraphs 10(c)(viii) or 17 herein.
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19. At the request of the landowner at any time following construction, LHPWSS shall
undertake a depth of cover survey of the 2011 Twinning pipeline, and shall provide its
findings to the landowner. Where it is determined that cover over the 2011 Twinning
pipeline section is less than 1.8 metres, and that such reduced depth interferes with the
cultivation of the landowner’s lands or poses a safety concern, LHPWSS shall:

@) restore the depth of cover to 1.8 metres with the importation of topsoil; or

(b otherwise implement mitigative measures so as to ensure the continuance of
ordinary cultivation and safe crossing of the landowner’s farming equipment over
the 2011 Twinning pipeline section; or

(c) with respect to cultivated lands and with the landowner’s agreement, pay
compensation to the landowner for any resulting crop loss or other direct
damages.

VIL WOODLOT AND HEDGE ROWS/OTHER PROPERTY SPECIFIC MATTER

20.  Where an easement divides an established woodlot at property or other fence lines along
the 2011 Twinning pipeline section, LHPWSS shall establish a windbreak across
easement. Windbreaks will consist of 2-metre cedars planted at 1.5 metre intervals,
except immediately over the pipeline, across the full width of the easement, or another
tree type, planted at suitable intervals, equivalent in total cost and hardiness that is
acceptable to the landowner. LHPWSS shall guarantee these trees for a period of three
(3) years after planting, provided the landowner waters the trees as appropriate after
planting.

21.  All stumps shall be removed or mulched. Where stumps are removed, LHPWSS or its
agents shall ensure that as much soil as possible is removed from the stump prior to
removal from the property. Mulching shall be by means of a mechanical chipper or
grinder which shall ensure that the area which previously housed the stump is capable of
being farmed.

2
L

Bulldozing of woodlots shall not be permitted under any circumstances. LHPWSS or its
agents shall use a bush blade in order to minimize topsoil loss in connection with clearing
of easement woodlots. Following the use of a bush blade, the immediate area shall be
inspected for debris which may have been ejected during the course of the easement
clearing process. LHPWSS shall use its best efforts to remove debris in order to protect
farm equipment from damage resulting from debris.

23.  All hedge rows removed from easement lands shall be replaced, except immediately over
the pipeline, by either 2-metre cedars planted at 1.5 metre intervals or 2 metre white
spruce planted at 3 metre intervals, across the full width of the easement, or another tree
type, planted at suitable intervals, equivalent in total cost and hardiness, that is acceptable
to the landowner. LHPWSS shall guarantee these trees for a period of three (3) years after
planting, provided the landowner waters the trees as appropriate after planting.
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VIII. DRAINAGE/TILE DRAINS

24, All storm drains, municipal drains, farm drains and drain outlet pipes which are
encountered during stripping or excavation operations, shall be staked and their locations
recorded for subsequent repair or replacement after pipeline installation.

25.  The exact locations of agricultural drainage systems are unknown. Drain tiles
encountered or rendered ineffective during construction shall be restored by:

(@)  replacing damaged tiles in the same location across the 2011 Twinning pipeline
trench and easements; or

(b) installing header drains parallel to the 2011 Twinning pipeline trench within and
adjacent to the pipeline easement boundary to intercept lateral tiles; or

(c) installing drains parallel to the 2011 Twinning pipeline trench between the new
and existing pipelines.

26.  The method of agricultural drainage system restoration for each property shall be
approved by the property owner and LHPWSS.

27.  Where a new header tile and/or substantial redesign is required of the systematic drainage
in connection with the 2011 Twinning, the work shall be carried out by a local specialist
contractor licensed to install drainage works under the Agricultural Tile Drainage
Installation Act. LHPWSS will consult with LHPLA and mutually develop a list of
acceptable tile drainage contractors to be used during construction. The selected local
specialist contractor will work with landowners to develop plans and installation
methods, and, if the plan is implemented, will certify that the construction accords with
the plan.

28.  Responsibilities of the local specialist contractor include:
(a) preparations of drainage design;
(b) submission of drainage design to the property owner for approval and signature;

(c) submission of this approved drainage design to LHPWSS for review and
acceptance;

(d) installation of all drainage works including replacement of damaged tiles across
the 2011 Twinning pipeline trench and tile otherwise rendered ineffective;

(e) arranging inspection of the drainage works by the property owner before
backfilling. All inspections may be inspected by the landowner or his/her
designate prior to backfilling where practicable. Local specialist contractor will
provide the landowner or his/her designate advance notice of the tile repair
schedule;
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submission of As-Built Drawings to the property owner and LHPWSS within two
weeks of completing drainage works on affected property; and

obtaining a signed release from the property owner and submitting the release to
LHPWSS.

29.  If prior to construction LHPWSS is provided with plans prepared by the local specialist
contractor and approved in writing by the landowner, LHPWSS will install tile along the
2011 Twinning pipeline in the following situations:

(a)

In areas of numerous random tiles or systematic tiles that cross the 2011
Twinning pipeline .easement, LHPWSS, during construction, will provide
temporary drainage tile connections across the 2011 Twinning pipeline trench to
maintain existing flow and will install 2 header tiles (interceptor drains) at each
easement margin and 2 drains between the new and existing pipelines as laid out
in the plans. The downstream end of the cut tile will be plugged. Such work will

30.

occur after topsoil stripping and as soon as practicable after return of subsoils to
the trench, and prior to topsoil restoration. Header tiles will be installed using a
trench method to ensure that all field tiles are located and connected as required
by the tile plan without mixing of topsoils and subsoils. Any intercepted drains

will be connected and the downstream end plugged. LHPWSS will attempt

to

minimize the number of tiles crossing the 2011 Twinning pipeline easement;

(b) In areas where drainage problems will be created as a result of the 2011
Twinning, the drainage consultant will develop a tile plan to mitigate these
impacts provided that the landowner is agreeable to any works required for
installation;

(c) Drainage laterals will be installed after construction of the 2011 Twinning

this

pipeline to provide easement drainage. Lateral and cross-easement tiles will be

installed in the construction year as weather permits;

(d) Other areas within the 2011 Twinning recommended by the drainage consultant.

All catch basin leads, storm drains, pipe culverts, erosion control devices, municipal drain
tiles and farm drainage tiles outside the limits of the 2011 Twinning pipeline trench,
whether on or off the pipeline easement, shall be protected during the 2011 Twinmng.

Each end of any drainage tile encountered during excavation shall be staked.

The downstream end of tile shall be plugged or temporary piping shall be installed
between ends to maintain existing flow.

All tile damaged or rendered ineffective by the construction, on or off easement, shall be
repaired and/or replaced. In areas where topsoil has been stripped, and at the request of
the landowner, LHPWSS will complete post-construction tile installation and repairs

prior to topsoil replacement. LHPWSS will utilize the most current specifications
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concerning tile support systems for existing tile across the trench. The method of support
will be agreed between the landowner and LHPWSS in the approved drainage design.

34.  LHPWSS will accommodate within the 2011 Twinning pipeline section any planned and
future drainage systems and drainage design. LHPWSS will incorporate any
professionally designed drainage plans obtained by the landowner for future installation.
If the landowner intends to install or modify a drainage system within the 2011 Twinning
pipeline section but has not yet obtained professionally designed plans, LHPWSS will
hire a drainage consultant to develop an easement crossing drainage plan in consultation
with the landowner.

35.  Upon any excavation to effect tile repair or replacement, or implementation of remedial
measures, topsoil and subsoil shall be separated and piled one metre apart in accordance
with the procedures prescribed in paragraph 10, as modified to suit the circumstances,
after consultation with the landowner.

36. Where the integrity of tile drain is compromised by the construction, operation or repair
of the pipeline in connection with the 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS shall repair, replace or
institute remedial measures in respect of any existing tile or municipal drain adversely
affected by such work, in consultation with the landowner. LHPWSS guarantees and will
be responsible for the integrity and performance of such repairs as well as any other drain
tile or municipal drain compromised by the 2011 Twinning. Where the landowner,
acting reasonably, believes there may be a drainage problem arising from the 2011
Twinning, LHPWSS will perform an integrity check on any tile construction/repair
crossing the pipeline and repair any deficiency to the landowner’s satisfaction.

IX. POST CONSTRUCTION SOIL TESTING

37.  LHPWSS or its agents, in conjunction with LHPLA consultants, shall conduct further
testing of existing easement conditions to determine the extent of mixing and compaction
prior to construction.

38. In addition, in consultation with the landowner, LHPWSS shall sample soils on all
agricultural easements before construction, and any soils imported to the easement lands
for the presence of soybean cyst nematode (SCN) and provide a report of test results to
LHPLA and the landowner. In the event the report indicates the presence of SCN on an
agricultural easement, the Joint Committee will work with OMAFRA and the University
of Guelph to develop a best practices protocol to handle SCN when detected and will
employ the most current best practice at the time of construction. LHPWSS will also test
for SCN when conducting post-construction soil tests. LHPWSS does not assume any
responsibility for pre-existing soil issues and shall only be responsible under the terms of
this Agreement to the extent that the soil issue is a result of the 2011 Twinning.

39.  LHPWSS or its agents shall carry out post-construction sampling of on and off easement

soils with the results to be made available to LHPLA and individual landowners.
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Off easement soil samples shall be obtained at least 50 metres off easement but in a
location which shall be comparable to the easement lands with regard to soil fertility.

Soil testing shall include comparative compaction testing of the subsoils, an analysis of
carbonate content and organic matter. NPK (nitrogen, phosphorous, potassium) testing
and testing of PH levels on and off easement after construction. Global Positioning
System (GPS) equipment ay be used to identify all test locations. The report of soil test
results shall identify deficiencies in on easement soils and recommend remediation
measures including all commercially reasonable alternatives, LHPWSS shall review this
information, and after consideration of the alternatives, shall select a remediation method
from the alternatives provided, and upon obtaining the consent of the landowner will
undertake remediation of the soil.

WELL-WATER TESTING

To ensure that the quality and quantity (i.e. static water levels) of well water is
maintained, LHPWSS shall conduct a monitoring study before, during and after
construction, of any groundwater well within one hundred metres of the pipeline
easement which is part of the 2011 Twinning. A landowner may request other
groundwater wells which are not otherwise required by LHPWSS to be monitored, to be
included. All samples will be taken according to methods and by personnel agreed by
LHPWSS and the landowner and analyzed by an independent laboratory. The laboratory
report will be made available to the landowner, and to LHPLA with the landowner’s
authorization.

In the event of any decrease in well-water quantity or quality attributable to the
construction of the 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS shall implement remediation measures,
with the consent of the landowner, for the repair or replacement of the well. Such
measures may include:

(a) providing a tempor;ary potable water supply during construction in the vicinity of
the well where the well is only affected during the construction activities; and

(b)  providing a permanent potable water supply;
(c) restoration or replacement of the well; or
(d) compensation for loss of the well.

Any dispute with respect to the cause of the reduction in quantity or quality shall be
resolved by the LHPWSS pursuant to applicable legislation, including but not limited to
the Safe Drinking Water Act and the Ontario Water Resources Act.

XII. COMPENSATION AND CROP MONITORING
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45.  In connection with the construction of the 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS shall compensate
landowners as follows:

(a)

Final version

Crop loss on the permanent easement lands of the 2011 Twinning (based upon a
gross return of $960.00 per acre) are set out as shown in following chart.
Calculated crop loss shall be paid by LHPWSS for all easement lands affected by
the 2011 Twinning,

Rate of Loss

100% first year (construction year) $960.00 /acre

80% second year $768.00acre

50% third year $480.00/acre

40% fourth year $384.00/acre

30% fifth year $288.00/acre

20% sixth year $192.00/acre

Subsequent loss at Present Value of 20%,

discounted at 1.5% ($192.00 /1.5%) $12,800.00/acre
.. - $ 500.00 /acre

Allowance for additional fertilizer and stone-

picking

Total Payment per Acre: $16,372.00 /acre

) In the seventh, eighth and ninth year after construction, LHPWSS shall
implement a crop yield monitoring program which will take representative
crop samples on and off easement to be used as the basis for calculating
crop loss on all easement lands.

(i)  If the monitoring program shows an on-easement crop loss of 20% or less
in each of the seventh, eighth and ninth year after construction (i.e. three
consecutive years) the monitoring program will be discontinued for that
property.

(1i1)  If the monitoring program shows an on-easement crop loss in excess of

20%, in any of the seventh, eighth and ninth year after construction the
monitoring program will be continued for that property until such
monitoring program has shown an on-easement crop loss 0of 20% or less in
three consecutive years from the sixth year after construction, following
which event, the monitoring program by LHPWSS will be discontinued
for that property.

1748061.9
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(iv)  The crop yield monitoring program shall be carried out by an expert
agronomist acceptable to both LHPWSS and LHPLA. The agronomist will
be chosen by the end of the sixth year after construction for a three year
term and thereafter for three year terms while the crop monitoring process
continues. In carrying out the crop yield program, crop yields are to be
assessed using combine monitoring, scales, or another monitoring method
as agreed between LHPWSS and the landowner.

(v) In any year after LHPWSS has discontinued the monitoring program on a
property, the landowner may, at his/her expense, have the monitoring
program carried out on his’her property by the agronomist chosen pursuant
to paragraph 45(a)(iv). If the results of this monitoring program show an
on-easement crop loss in excess of 20%, LHPWSS shall reimburse the
landowners the cost of the monitoring and pay crop loss compensation for
the year in accordance with paragraph 45(a)(iv), and the following
provisions apply:

(A) Inthe year following a crop loss greater than 20% identified by the
monitoring program paid for by the landowner, LHPWSS shall
carry out the monitoring program.

(B)  If the monitoring program in this first year following shows crop
losses of 20% or less, LHPWSS will discontinue the monitoring
program.

(C)  If the monitoring program in this first year following shows crop
losses of greater than 20%, LHPWSS shall pay Crop loss
compensation pursuant to paragraph 45(a)(vii),and carry out the
monitoring program for a second year at its expense.

(D)  If the monitoring program is carried out by LHPWSS in the second
year and it shows crop losses of 20% or less, LHPWSS will
discontinue the monitoring program.

(E)  If the monitoring program is carried out by LHPWSS in the second
year and it shows crop losses of greater than 20%, LHPWSS shall
pay crop loss compensation pursuant to paragraph 45(a)(vii), and
carry out the monitoring program for a third year at its expense.

(F)  If the monitoring program is carried out by LHPWSS in the third
year and it shows crop losses of 20% or less, LHPWSS will
discontinue the monitoring program.

(G)  If the monitoring program is carried out by LHPWSS in the third
year and it shows crop losses of greater than 20%, LHPWSS shall
pay crop loss compensation pursuant to paragraph 45(a)(vii),and
shall continue to monitor for crop loss in accordance with
paragraph 45(a)(iii) mutatis mutandi.

] 1748061.9
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(vi)  The landowner is obligated to seed, fertilize and otherwise care for the
easement land at least to the same degree that is carried out on the lands
that may be used for crop yield comparison in the monitoring study.
Failure to do so, shall excuse LHPWSS's obligation to carry out any
further monitoring or pay any further compensation for crop loss to the
landowner.

(vii) Commencing in the seventh year after construction and in any year
thereafter where the monitoring program demonstrates an on-easement
crop loss in excess of 20%, LHPWSS shall pay to the landowner an
amount equal to two times the actual loss, for common field crops, in
excess of 20%. "Common field crops” in this paragraph 45(a) means corn,
soybeans, forages (grasses and legumes), cereal crops (barley, oats, spring
wheat, winter wheat, and winter barley); dry edible beans and peas, spring
and winter canola, buckwheat, flax, fodder rape, kale, millet, mustard,
sorghum, sunflowers and any other crop that is agreed to in advance of its
planting, in writing, by LHPWSS and the landowner.

(b) Disturbance damages

LHPWSS shall pay landowners disturbance damages to compensate for
interruptions in agricultural field operations, lost time, extra tillage, extra planting,
extra cultivation, restricted headlands, extra harvesting and inconvenience of
$5.,880.00 per acre calculated on easement lands affected.

(c) Goring, lands affected to the same extent and valve chamber sites

Crop areas affected to the same extent due to "goring" or other physical
limitations due to the construction, subsidiary easement rights for special
installations that protrude above ground, and physical restrictions to the lands
outside of the right-of-way that become permanent due to the location of above-
ground fixtures will be compensated as follows:

1 100% of the greater of the appraised market value or $12,000.00 per acre;

(ii)  crop loss on lands temporarily affected will be calculated based upon
aross return of $960.00 per acre for each year lands are affected

(iii)  compensation for permanent crop loss will be calculated on the basis of
the subsequent loss at Present Value of $960.00 per acre discounted at 1.5
% (§960/1.5%);

(iv)  the minimum area for calculation of land value and crop loss for valve
sites will be 0.5 of an acre and for connection chamber sites will be 1.0
acre.

(v) with respect to the connecting chamber sites where the parties come to a
written agreement subject to approval under the Planning Act, the

) ) 1748061.9
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landowner may convey title to the lands in exchange for an amount equal
to the value of a severed lot as established by an appraisal carried out by
an independent appraiser satisfactory to both LHPWSS and the landowner,
with costs of the process at the expense of LHPWSS.

(d)  Temporary use lands

The parties acknowledge that LHPWSS does not anticipate that LHPWSS will
require the temporary use of off easement lands during the 2011 Twinning except
for the off easement storage of virgin topsoil as provided in paragraph 10(2)(1v)
and for this purpose LHPWSS shall pay to the landowner the following additional
compensation:

(1) 50% of the greater of the appraised market value or $6,000.00 per acre;
(i)  annual crop loss calculated in accordance with paragraph 45(a) hereof;

(ili)  50% disturbance damages calculated in accordance with paragraph 45(b)
hereof.

For any other required temporary use of easement lands, LHPWSS shall pay to
the landowner the following additional compensation:

(iv)  50% of the greater of appraised market value or $6,000.00 per acre;

(v) Construction and future crop loss calculated in accordance with paragraph
45(a) hereof;

(vi)  50% disturbance damages calculated in accordance with paragraph 45(b)
hereof.

LHPWSS shall make payment of compensation amounts to the affected landowners in
accordance with the terms of the individual compensation agreements in the form of
Schedule “B” to this agreement. All such damages as provided in paragraph 45 hereof
shall be paid to each landowner in accordance with the schedule for payment set out in
the individual compensation agreement.

Land rights compensation and damages with respect to non-agricultural lands, non-
renewable resources (e.g. gravel, sand), specialty crops, site specific disturbance and
property amenities (including, but not limited to, residences, barns, farm yards, tree rows,
etc.) shall be additionally compensated by LHPWSS and, if the amount cannot be agreed,
the parties shall submit this issue to dispute resolution in accordance with paragraph 51
hereof.

XII. COSTS
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LHPWSS shall fund the reasonable legal, consultant and Negotiating Committee costs
incurred by LHPLA in connection with the organization of affected landowners, retainer
and instruction of independent consultants, the development of the 2011 MOU, and the
negotiation of this Letter of Understanding in accordance with the negotiating costs
budget attached as Schedule “B” to the 2011 MOU.

LHPLA through its solicitors shall render accounts monthly with respect to such costs in
accordance with the 2011 MOU or such supplementary budgets as may be agreed upon
by the parties. LHPWSS shall pay such accounts within 30 days of receipt. Accounts
rendered will include original invoices approved by LHPLA with details of work
completed as provided in Schedules "A" and "B" of the 2011 MOU or other approved
budget, including the associated expenses with receipts where appropriate. Such costs
shall be as agreed between LHPWSS and LHPLA or as assessed on a solicitor and client
basis by the local assessment officer of the Ontario Court of Justice at London and shall
be payable within 30 days of agreement on the costs or the issuance of the Certificate of
Assessment of Costs by the local assessment officer.

In addition, LHPWSS will be responsible for the costs of implementing this Agreement,
including the following:

(@) Paragraph 9(b)(i) — the construction monitor

(b)  Paragraph 9(b)(ii)— the participation of LHPLA representative(s) on the Joint
Committee at the rate of $125 per hour;

(c) Paragraph 9(b)(v) — independent consultant costs;

(d) Paragraphs 10(a)(i) — LHPLA consultants’ participation in pre-construction soil
testing;

(e) Costs of using a consultant to obtain signed individual compensation agreements
from LHPLA members with lands on the 2011 Twinning in order to obtain the
agreements as soon as possible;

® Paragraph 52 —time (at $125/hour) and expenses incurred by LHPLA
representatives in carrying out their best efforts undertaking to assist in obtaining
signed individual compensation agreements from LHPLA members.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The dispute resolution protocol set out in Schedule “F” to this Agreement shall apply
with respect to any matter in dispute related to or in connection with the 2011 Twinning.

UNDERTAKINGS
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52. The executive members and members of the Negotiating Committee for LHPLA shall use
their best efforts to have each of the member landowners sign the individual landowners
compensation agreements (which incorporate the terms of this agreement) as soon as
possible following their delivery to legal counsel to the LHPLA.

53.  The members of the LHPLA shall not impede the construction of the 2011 Twinning,
including all activities related thereto, provided that such construction is being carried out
in accordance with the terms of this agreement.

IAN GOUDY
Chairperson of LHPLA.

Board Chair
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply
(LHPWSS)

Chief Administrative Officer
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply
(LHPWSS)
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SCHEDULE A

LANDOWNERS AFFECTED BY THE 2011 TWINNING
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SCHEDULE B
FORM OF INDIVIDUAL COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

FOR
2011 TWINNING OF THE LAKE HURON PIPELINE

1748061.9
Final version



CAEPLA-PLC 123
-1-

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the day of , 20

BETWEEN;
LAKE HURON PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM ("LHPWSS")
OF THE FIRST PART
- and —
(“Owner™)

OF THE SECOND PART

RECITALS:
WHEREAS the Owner is the owner in fee simple of the lands described as

(the “Owner Lands™) which are subject to a water pipeline easement registered in the Land
Registry Office for the County of xxxxx by Expropriation Plan or Transfer in favour of Ontario
Water Resources Commission (the “Easement™) which is now vested in LHPWSS;

AND WHEREAS LHPWSS will construct new water supply works within the Fasement (the -
“Construction™) as part of its Lake Huron Pipeline 2011 Twinning Project and the Owner may
sustain certain damages as a result of the Construction.

AND WHEREAS the parties have agreed to enter into this Agreement to set out the agreed terms
of compensation payable to the Owner by LHPWSS for damages that the Owner may sustain as
a result of the Construction

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth and other good
and valuable consideration the parties hereto agree with each other to the following compensation
arrangement:

1. The following individuals have been noted to have an equity interest to this
compensation, namely:

NTD: Insert names of parties to whom notice of Expropriation would otherwise
be given per Expropriations Act:
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i. registered owner includes an owner of land whose interest in the land is
defined and whiose name is specified in an instrument in the proper land
registry or sheriff's office, and includes a person shown as a tenant of land
on the last revised assessment roll registered;and

ii. registered encumbrancers which includes a mortgagee, tenant, execution
creditor, a person entitled to a limited estate or interest in land, a guardian
of property, and a guardian, executor, administrator or trustee in whom
land is vested;

iii. any party to whom actual notice is had of an interest in the lands.

!\)

LHPWSS agrees to pay compensation to the Owner and the Owner agrees to accept the
compensation amount as detailed in Schedule “A” attached hereto (the “Total
Compensation Amount”), subject to paragraph 6 herein, in full and as final settlement of
any and all claims that the Owner may have against LHPWSS under the Expropriations
Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. E.26 resulting from the Construction including without limitation,
any claims for injurious affection, disturbance, business loss or other claim for
compensation (the 'Claims"). The Owner agrees to permit the Construction to proceed
without objection or interference.

LHPWSS shall pay jointly to the Owner and all other parties having an equity interest the
Total Compensation Amount in equal instalments as follows:

()

a. first paymentof § upon Owner signing Agreement;

b. second payment of $ at the start of construction;

¢. third payment of § upon Owner signing and delivering a Full and Final
Release.

4. The Owner agrees that it shall execute and deliver to LHPWSS the Owner’s Full and Final
Release at the time of final payment substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule “B”.
Execution of the Release is a condition of the payment of the Total Compensation Amount to
the Owner.

5. The Total Compensation Amount is calculated in accordance with the compensation terms
set out in the Letter of Undertaking between the LHPWSS and LHPLA, dated xoococoocoadax
(the “LOU™), a copy of which is attached as Schedule “C” hereto, which are the damages and
disturbance claims and costs resulting from the Construction as more specifically noted in
Schedule “A”.

6. LHPWSS acknowledges that the Total Compensation Amount as set out in Schedule “A”
includes a category for any other damages, (as set out in paragraph 8 of Schedule “A”
attached hereto) which represents construction process unknowns (the “Additional
Damages™). While some construction process damages may be anticipated at the time of
entering into this Agreement there may be events which are not anticipated. LHPWSS
and the Owner agree to update Schedule “A” hereto, to include any agreed upon
Additional Damages which become known during the construction process at the time of
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the exchange of the third payment and the Full and Final Release referred to in paragraph
3.¢c herein. Any matter in dispute in the final determination of the Additional Damages
will be resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution process setout in the LOU.

7. Attached as Schedules “D” and “E” respectively to this Agreement are the Individual Farm
Plan and LHPWSS Site Specific Commitments related to the Construction and forming
part of this Agreement. Provisions of the LOU will be followed with respect to the issues
raised in these Schedules. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the terms of the LOU, the terms of the LOU shall prevail.

8. It is understood and agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement
or condition affecting this Agreement or supported hereby other than as expressed herein
in writing.

9. This Agreement is to be read with all changes of gender or number as required by the
context.

10. This Agreement and everything herein contained shall extend to, bind and enure to the
benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns (as the case may be)
of each of the parties hereto.

11. The Owner agrees to give written notice of this Agreement to any potential purchaser of
the Owner Lands or any part thereof and further agrees to advise LHPWSS of any
potential sale of the Owner Lands until such time as the Construction is completed, the
Owner has executed the Release and the Total Compensation Armount has been paid to the
Owner. LHPWSS retains the right to place notice of this agreement on title.

12. Time shall in all respects be of the essence hereof.

13. Any notice to be given under this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be delivered in
person or sent by facsimile or prepaid registered mail addressed

to the Owner at:

and to LHPWSS at: Lake Huron Area Primary Water Supply
235 North Centre Road
Suite 200
London, Ontario, N5X 4E7

or at such other address as the Owner and LHPWSS may from time to time designate.
Any such notice shall be conclusively deemed to have been given and received upon the
same day if personally delivered or sent by facsimile or, if mailed, three (3) business
days after the same is mailed. Any party may at any time by notice in writing to the other
change the address for service of notice.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties have executed this Agreement for Compensation as of the date
first written above.
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Owner:

Board Chair
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply

(LHPWSS)

Chief Administrative Officer
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply

(LHPWSS)
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SCHEDULE “A”

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

Calculation of the Total Compensation Amount is as follows:

CAEPLA-PLC 127

1/Crop loss (calculated in accordance with par. 45(a) of the LOU:
approximately acres @ $16,372.00 per acre

2 [Disturbance damages (calculated in accordance with par. 45(b) of the
LOU): approximately acres @ $5,880.00 per acre

acres
i.
L.

ili.

iv.

3/Goring, lands affected to the same extent and valve chamber sites
(calculated in accordance with par. 45(c) of the LOU): approximately |

@

100% of the greater of the appraised market value or $12,000.00
per acre;

crop loss on lands temporarily affected will be calculated based
upon gross return of $960.00 per acre for each year lands are
affected

compensation for permanent crop loss will be calculated on the
basis of the subsequent loss at Present Value of $960.00 per acre
discounted at 1.5% ($960/1.5%);

the minimum area for calculation of land value and crop loss for
valve sites will be 0.5 of an acre and for connection chamber sites
willbe 1.0 acre.

with respect to the connecting chamber sites where the parties
come to a written agreement subject to approval under the Planning
Act, the landowner may convey title to the lands in exchange for an
amount equal to the value of a severed lot as established by an
appraisal carried out by an independent appraiser satisfactory to
both LHPWSS and the landowner, with costs of the process at the
expense of LHPWSS.
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4 Temporary use lands (calculated in accordance with par. 45(d) of the
LOU):

For storage of virgin topsoil:

i.  50% of the greater of the appraised market value or $6,000.00 per

acre;

ii. annual crop loss calculated in accordance with paragraph 45(a) of]
the LOU;

ifi. 50% disturbance damages calculated in accordance with paragraphl
45 (b) of the LOU.

For any other required temporary use of easement lands, LHPWSS shall

pay to the landowner the following additional compensation:

iv.  50% of the greater of appraised market value or $6,000.00 per acre;

v.  Construction and future crop loss calculated in accordance withy
paragraph 45(a) of the LOU;

vi. 50% disturbance damages calculated in accordance with paragraph|
45 (b) of the LOU.

5)0ther Land rights compensation and damages with respect to non-

agricultural lands, non-renewable resources (e.g. gravel, sand), specialty

crops, site specific disturbance and property amenities (including, but not

limited to, residences, barns, farm yards, tree rows, etc.)

6.Reduction of crop areas due to construction 'headlands', will be based on
a rate of 50% of the crop loss rate used in the adjacent right-of-way
area. The area will be calculated by multiplying the length of the right-of-
way by a width of 60 feet on each side of the right-of-way.

7 Reasonable legal lees to a maximum of $500.00 per property owner, will
be reimbursed upon proof of nvoice paid, where landowner is not represented
by LHPLA and seeks separate legal advice with respect to this Agreement.

8 In addition, compensation shall be considered on an Individual basis for any,
other damages, as a natural and reasonable comsequence of the
Construction not otherwise remediated or compensated by LHPWSS or
its agents including: additional temporary use lands; permanent or
temporary loss of access; loss or damage of landscaping, garden areas,
decorative fences, and, septic or other service items provided there is in
advance a signed agreement between the Owner and LHPWSS for any
work or access to be claimed off easement. Such further agreement will
include the requirement for adequate proof of claim to be submitted.

9{The Total Compensation
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SCHEDULE “B”

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

FULL AND FINAL RELEASE

TO: Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System (hereinafter singularly “LHPWSS”), The
Members of the Joint Committee of Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System, their
officers, directors, employees, servants and agents and the Council Members of each
member Municipality of Lake Huron Primary Water Supply System and their respective
Officers, Directors, Employees, Servants and Agents (all collectively herein the
“RELEASEES”)

FROM: (collectively herein
OWNER/RELEASOR™)
WHEREAS the Owner/Releasor is the owner in fee simple of (the

“Owner Lands™) which are subject to a water pipeline easement registered In the Land Registry
Office for the County of xxoxxx by Expropriation Plan or Transfer in favour of Ontario Water
Resources Commission (the Easement’);

AND WHEREAS the interest of Ontario Water Resources Commission in the Easement was first
transferred in or about November 1993, to a crown agency, namely the Ontario Clean Water
Agency and then further transferred in or about 2000, pursuant to a Minister of the Environment
Transfer Order granted under subsection 2(6) of the Municipal Water and Sewage Transfer Act,
1997 in favour of The Corporation of the City of London, in Trust for the LHPWSS;

AND WHEREAS the LHPWSS will construct new water supply works within the Easement (the
“Construction” as part of its Lake Huron Pipeline 2011 Twinning Project and the
Owner/Releasor may sustain certain damages as a result of the Construction;

AND WHEREAS the Owner/Releasor has agreed to accept payment of the amount of § in
full and final settlement of all claims arising from the Construction which the Owner/Releasor
would be entitled to claim under and by virtue of the Expropriations Act, R.8.0. 1990, ¢. E.26
and the Owner/Releasor has agreed to provide this Full and Final Release.

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the payment or of the promise of payment by
LHPWSS to Owner/Releasor of the sum of /00
Dollars ($.00), as well as good and valuable other consideration which is hereby acknowledged,
the Owner/Releasor hereby releases and forever discharges the Releasees of and from any and all
actions, causes of actions, suits, proceedings, debts, dues, accounts, covenants, contracts, claims,
liabilities and demands whatsovever, whether at law or equity which the Owner/Releasor may
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now have, or hereinafter may, can or shall have under the Expropriations Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.
E.26, against the Releasees for damages, compensation, loss or injury in connection with, or in
any way arising from Construction, including without limitation, any claim for injurious
affection, disturbance, business loss or other claim.

AND FOR THE SAID CONSIDERATION, the Owner/Releasor further agrees not to make any
claim or take any proceedings in relation to this matter against any other person or corporation
who might claim contribution or indemnity thereto from the Releasees.

IT BEING UNDERSTOOD BY LHPWSS AND THE OWNER/RELEASOR that
notwithstanding the foregoing, that it is the intention of LHPWSS and the Owner/Releasor that
the provisions of the agreement entitled “Letter of Undertaking” dated , 2012
between LHPWSS and the Lake Huron Pipeline Landowners’ Association shall survive to the
extent that any obligation thereunder has not been completed at the time of execution of this
Release.

AND FOR THE SAID CONSIDERATION the Owner/Releasor further agrees and undertakes to
indemnify and save harmless the Releasees from any and all actions, causes of action, claims and
demands which may be made against the Releasees arising from the Construction, which by this
instrument are released.

This Full and Final Release and the covenants and undertaking herein contained on the part of
the Owner/Releasor shall be binding upon the Owner/Releasor and upon the Owner/Releasor’s
heirs, executors, trustees, successors and assigns, as owners and occupiers of the Owner Lands
from time to time and shall enure to the benefit of the Releasees and their respective successors
and assigns.

DATED AT , this day of , 201

Witness

Witness
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SCHEDULE “C”

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

ATTACH COPY OF THE LOU
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SCHEDULE “D”

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

INDIVIDUAL FARM PLAN

CAEPLA-PLC 132

1748037.11



Final Version

211 -

SCHEDULE “E”

LAKE HURON PIPELINE 2011 TWINNING PROJECT
AGREEMENT FOR COMPENSATION

SITE SPECIFIC COMMITMENTS
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SCHEDULE “C”

CONSTRUCTION MONITOR SCOPE OF WORK
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SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE CONSTRUCTION MONITOR ROLE

in concert with the construction of the pipeline, a construction monitor role and asscciated on-
site soil investigations prior to and following the proposed pipeline construction is proposed {0
evaluate the impacts of the construction activities on agricultural soils on each of the
approximate 24 affected properties. The Letter of Undertaking and associated farm plans
prepared for the landowners will be the primary reference for the construction monitor to ensure
construction activities are acceptable in ensuring agricultural management practices and the soll
resource are not negatively affected.

The scope of work proposes to employ the construction monitor on each individual property
when significant activities related to topsoil stripping, stockpiling, access and land remediation
are conducted. The construction monitor will oversee the construction activities and provide
communication between the landowner, the LHPWSS and ultimately the pipeline contractor.
“rhe monitor will have access to the reports from the pre construction soil sampling which have
already been completed and will also conduct the required pre and post construction soil
sampling activities as agreed between the LHPWSS and LHPLA.

The following tasks encompass the proposed scope of work:

1. Review Letter of Undertaking and associated farm plans for subject properties and
proposed construction and remediation methods

2. Review reports on existing on-site soil testing and conduct any outstanding required on-
site testing to determine existing soil conditions within and outside the corridor prior to
construction to include a minimum of: soil mixing, compaction, fertiiity, SCN, organic
matter, texture, pH, calcium carbonates. New testing to be dene pre construction only if
not already obtained in the preliminary investigative process so that there is not
duplication.

3. Monitor construction activities relative to the Lefter of Undertaking and associated farm
plans for each property at the time of significant construction and remediation activities

4. Consult with each of approximately 24 tandowners during construction to relate site
conditions and site specific issues and communicate landowner issues to the LHPWSS
and the pipeline contractor, including recommendation of corrective or remedial

measures

5. Conduct on-site soil testing to determine post construction soil conditions to include: soil
mixing, compaction, fertility, SCN, organic matter, texture, pH, calcium carbenates.

8. Consult with each of approximately 24 landowners after construction to relate site
conditions and site specific issues of remediation and communicate landowner issues

with the LHPWSS and the pipeline contractor

7. Prepare interim and final reports to LHPWSS for distribution to LHPLA, commenting on
landowner issues and the resolution, and how the activities documented in the Letter of

Undertaking have been achieved

1725800.3
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SCHEDULE “D”

STANDARD DRAWING 1 (where no off easement temporary storage required)
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SCHEDULE “D”

STANDARD DRAWING 2 (where off easement temporary storage required)
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TEMPORARY EASEMENT AGREEMENT FORM
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GRANT OF TEMPORARY EASEMENT AND CONSENT TO ENTER

BETWEEN
LAKE HURON PRIMARY WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM

(Hereinafter the "LHPWSS")
AND

[INSERT OWNERS NAMES]
(Hereinafter the "Owner(s)")

RE: Temporary Easement and Access on and over [INSERT PROPERTY REQUIRED FOR
TEMPORARY EASEMENT AND ATTACH A PLOT PLAN OF TEMPORARY EASEMENT
AS SCHEDULE “A”] (the “Property”), a plan of which is attached as Schedule “A” hereto.

WHEREAS LHPWSS is the successor to the Ontario Clean Water Agency ("OCWA") with
respect to the ownership and operation of the Lake Huron Water Supply System, including the
Lake Huron Pipeline;

AND WHEREAS LHPWSS is proceeding to twin certain sections of the Lake Huron Water
Supply System within the existing easement (the “2011 Twinning™);

AND WHEREAS Lake Huron Pipeline Landowners Association (“LHPLA™) is a voluntary
association representing the interests of certain Lake Huron Pipeline landowners including a
number of Landowners who are affected by the 2011 Twinning;

AND WHEREAS LHPLA obtained the authority of a number of the landowners affected by the
2011 Twinning, acting as their representative agent, to enter into a Letter of Undertaking to set
out the resolutions agreed upon with respect to matters of construction, rehabilitation,
compensation and cost affecting properties subject to the 2011 Twinning (the “2011 LOU”)
including matters pertaining to any required temporary easements and access over lands of
LHPLA members which was outside of the existing easement;

AND WHEREAS LHPWSS requires a temporary easement and access over the Property to
facilitate the work to be undertaken to complete the 2011 Twinning;

AND WHEREAS the Owner has agreed to grant such temporary easement and access on the
terms negotiated in the 2011 LOU and as more particularly set out herein.

NOW THEREFORE, the LHPWSS and Qwner(s) agree as follows:

1. The Owner(s) of the Property hereby grants, subject to the terms and conditions set out in
the 2011 LOU, the full, right, liberty, privilege and temporary easement to the LHPWSS,
its servants, agents, work people, contractors and others designated by it, with or without
tools, machinery, equipment, and vehicles on and over the Property, for the purpose of
facilitating the 2011 Twinning construction for a consideration of ,in
accordance with paragraph 45(d) of the 2011 LOU, payable thirty (30) days before the
commencement of the use by LHPWSS or its representatives.

Final version 17975833
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This Consent shall run from the commencement of construction for a term of two (2)
years or until the 2011 Twinning is complete, whichever shall first occur.

3. As soon as reasonably possible after the construction of the 2011 Twinning, LHPWSS
shall remove all debris and level and restore the Property to its former state so far as is
reasonably possible, save and except for items in respect of which compensation is due
under paragraph 1 hereof. LHPWSS shall also restore any gates and fences interfered
with around the Property as closely as reasonably possible to the condition in which they
existed immediately prior to such interference.

4. LHPWSS agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel and save harmless from and against
any and all claims, liabilities, demands, and cause of action of every kind and character,
including claims of creditors of LHPWSS, liability on account of injury to, or death of,
persons or damage of property and all costs and expenses of investigation and defence
and all fines, fees, penalties, interest, judgements, compromises, settlements, other costs
and legal fees incurred by in defence of same, on the count of or in any way incident to
the use of the said property by LHPWSS pursuant to this Consent.

5. LHPWSS hereby accepts the above Grant of Temporary Easement and Consent to Enter
and agrees to carry out the same on the terms and conditions herein contained and as
more particularly provided for in the 2011 LOU.

6. This Agreement shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of Owner(s), and
his/her/their successors and assigns and shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of
the LHPWSS and its successors and assigns.

DATED at the of this day of 2012.
OWNER(S) NAME
Board Chair
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply
(LHPWSS)

Chief Administrative Officer
Lake Huron Primary Water Supply
(LHPWSS)
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SCHEDULE “A”
TO
GRANT OF TEMPORARY EASEMENT AND CONSENT TO ENTER

PLOT PLAN OF TEMPORARY EASEMENT
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SCHEDULE “F”

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS
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SCHEDULE “F”
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS

Step 1: The party initiating the dispute resolution process (the “Initiator”) shall provide an
outline of the issues and the understandings of the matter which is the subject matter of the
dispute between the parties in writing of no more than five (5) pages. summarizing their
perspective on the dispute to the Joint Comumittee. The party initiating the process shall deliver 2
copy of such outline to the other party to the dispute (the “Responder™).

Step 2; The Responder shall have 15 business days from receipt of the correspondence from the
Initiator to respond in writing outlining a response to the issues and the understandings provided
by a written summary of no more than five (3) pages summarizing their perspective on the
dispute to the Joint Committee

Step 3: The Initiator shall request a meeting of the Joint Committee to be held 15 business days
after delivery of the correspondence from the Responder setting out the time and the location for
the meeting and such matter in dispute shall be included on the agenda of the special meeting of
the Joint Committee. At the meeting the parties will seek to resolve the dispute based upon the
correspondence delivered.

Step 4: If at the meeting held under step 3 above, the dispute has not been resoived, then the
dispute may be submitted by request of either party to mediation. Both parties shall have 15
business days to notify the other of their request to submit the dispute to mediation. If the parties
can agree upon a single mediator within 5 days of submission of the request then a single
mediator will be appointed by agreement of the parties. Failing agreement upon the appointment
of a mediator, the Responder will provide a slate of three names from which the Initiator will
select a single mediator who will then be appointed for this specific matter.

Step 5: Within 15 business days following the mediator’s appointment the mediator shall fix a
time and a place for the purpose of conducting the mediation. The mediator shall submit the
final mediation report to the parties within 45 business days from the first mediation meeting. All
relevant documents, as well as the meeting minutes of the Joint Committee. will be submitted to
the mediator for consideration. The mediation event may be attended by the members of Joint
Committee, the relevant staff of the Administering Municipality for the LHPWSS, and the
specific landowner(s) involved in the dispute, together with respective legal counsel for the
parties. All communications and information forming part of the mediation shall be held in
confidence save and except a settlement agreement for the purpose of enforcing same. Any
agreement reached shall be reduced to writing. Responsibility for the cost of the mediator, the
cost of counsel for both parties and the Joint Committee members shall be borne by LHPWSS if
there is an agreement reached by mediation.

Step 6: If the dispute has not been resolved with the assistance of the mediator. the dispute may
then be submitied by either party to binding arbitration. Binding arbitration shall be conducted
in accordance with the Arbitration Act, 1991, S. 0. 1991, c.17, as amended from time to fime. In
the event that the dispute is not resolved by mediation and proceeds to binding arbitration, the
members of the Joint Committee and the parties will not call the mediator as & witness for any
purpose and will not seek access 10 any documents prepared or delivered to the mediator in

connection with the mediation, including any records or notes of the mediator. Statements made
1748040.2
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by any person and documents produced in the mediation not otherwise discoverable shall not be
subject to disclosure through discovery or any other process and shall not be admissible into
evidence in any context for any purpose. It shall be a condition precedent to the right of a party
to submit a matter in dispute to binding arbitration that such party shall have given written notice
of its intention to do so and such written notice shall state the particulars of such dispute. Within
ten (10) Business Days of such notice being provided, the parties shall mutually appoint an
arbitrator to determine the dispute, failing agreement an arbitrator shall be appointed in
accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1991, S. 0. 1991, ¢.17. Once appointed
the arbitrator shall fix a time, which shall not be later than ten (10) business days following the
appointment, and a place in London, Omario, for the purpose of hearing the evidence and
representations of the parties. Each of the parties shall co-operate with the arbitrator and shall
provide the arbitrator with information in their possession or under their control necessary or
relevant to the matter being determined. Within ten (10) business days after the conclusion of
the arbitration hearing, or such longer period as may be required by the arbitrator appointed, the
arbitrator shall make an award and reduce the same to writing and deliver one copy of the

decision to each party.

There shall be no right of appeal from the arbitrator’s award except in accordance with the
Arbitration Act, 1991 S. O. 1991, c.17. The parties agree that a judgment upon the arbitration
award may be entered in amy court in Canada or any court having jurisdiction, or that an
application may be made to such court for judicial recognition of the award and/or an order of
enforcement thereof. The parties agree that the arbitrator selected shall determine costs (legal
fees and disbursements) for the unsuccessful precursor mediation process and the arbitration
process as part of the arbitrator’s award.

17480402
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EB 2005-0550

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O.
1998, c.15, Schedule B, and in particular, s.90(1) thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas
Limited for an Order or Orders granting leave to construct a
natural gas pipeline and ancillary facilities in the Township of
Strathroy-Caradoc and in the Township of Middlesex Centre, all
in the County of Middlesex.

GAPLO-UNION (STRATHROY-LOBO)

WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF
JAN GOUDY

March 31, 2006
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My parents’ land at the north-half of Lots 21 and 22 in the former London Township,
which was first farmed by my mother’s family in the 1840’s, was expropriated in 1957
for a 26" natural gas pipeline. Union Gas drew up the agreement it offered, which talked
of ingress and egress, full and final release, and Union’s right to set the compensation
level. The landowner was told if you try to fight this you will risk losing what is on the
table, and if you put up a big enough fight you may lose your farm. We were
expropriated.
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the trench filled; easement leveled; and, drains repaired. A lot of this work was done in
very wet conditions because of construction took place in the late fall. At the time, I
thought it was interesting to watch all of this large equipment driving through mud over
top of their tracks. When one piece of equipment would get stuck they would just bring
something larger in. At the time we did not have any idea of how much damage was
being caused to our soils.

With that construction, woodlots were cleared; the trench was dug; the pipeline installed;

The following year (1958), the easement surface was very irregular because of the
subsidence and erosion resulting from the construction. When we finally tilled the
easement, we began to see an excess of stone on the easement lands as well as a distinct
difference of soil colour on and off easement. When we planted a crop on this easement,
we immediately realized something terrible had happened to the productivity of these
soils. In some areas there was no yield at all. Also, we now constantly had to pick stones
on the easement, and we had to go much slower with our equipment or we risked

destroying it.

The woodlot that was cleared in 1957 remained a wasteland until 1991 when the 48" line
was built. This was because of the location of the pipeline and the restriction of
‘establishing woodlot on the easement. The compensation my parents received for the

1957 construction project and easement 'damages was something less than $1000.00 in
total. I was ten years old when that line went through.

In 1964, my parents were notified that a second pipeline was to be built on our property.
This line would be 34" in diameter and be built using the same methods as the 26" line.
Once again expropriation took place and the pipeline was built. I remember the extreme
frustration my father experienced in trying to have things done better that time. His
efforts were to no avail. More woodlot was cleared creating more wasteland. The
damage to the soils was a repeat of 1957 construction — in other words, a doubling of the
damage. I can recall that some neighbors put up opposition to the construction, and were
threatened by the police with arrest if they persisted. People were upset, but didn’t seem
to have any rights or recourse. I was seventeen years old when the second line went
through.
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In 1976, Stuart O’Neil and Peter Lewington took Interprovincial Pipelines to court over
topsoil damage and won their case. This ruling indicated I.P.L. was obligated to pay
$10,000.00 per acre for complete topsoil replacement on their farms. This development
came about only after a number of year's preparation and considerable personal financial
risk to both landowners. That decision became a precedent for much of what followed
afterward.

In 1974, I took over my family’s farm from my parents. In 1979, word came that a third
pipeline, 42" in diameter would be built on the easement. With evidence from the O’Neil
and Lewington case, I appeared at the OEB hearing in London. We requested that total
easement top soil stripping take place to prevent further damage to what had occurred on
the 26" and 34" lines. The OEB agreed to this and so this was an option in the
agreement. The land and compensation damage was increased to about $2,200.00 per
acre. I disagreed with the crop loss compensation and so once again our land was
expropriated. In 1984, after spending much time and legal expense in trying to improve
the crop loss compensation, I was finally forced to accept what I was originally offered.
We learned some lessons about top soil stripping from this construction for future
construction. We learned that you must segregate all three horizons of soil, and that the
displaced soil from the pipe must be removed to prevent crowning of the soil over the
pipeline. Other measures to protect the topsoil from erosion and subsidence after
construction were also needed. There was some improvement in this construction over
the previous constructions. After this construction I had made up my mind that if another
pipeline ever came I would push even harder for our rights. I was thirty-three years old
when the third line was constructed.

Shortly after this, I decided I needed an outlet for the drains in the back part of our
property. This drain would have cost me around $600.00 to install, but because of the
wall effect of the pipelines there was no way of getting the water from one side to the
other. I had a meeting with a Union Gas representative and one of their lawyers on site to
explain the problem. At that meeting I was told that because my parents had never
indicated in 1957 we would need a drain through that area Union was not responsible.

~ 'We ended up applying for a municipal drain, which cost close to $7,000.00 to install

Around 1990, Union notified us again that they were going to build a fourth line 48" in
diameter. By this time the government had introduced intervenor funding. A landowners’
group was formed to go to the OEB hearing collectively and argue the issues of
compensation issues and damage. Although I agreed with many of the group’s issues, I
thought that the argument should be put forward that our properties had suffered enough
already, and maybe Union should be required to find another route. I hired my own
lawyer and ended up participating in a fairly extensive hearing. Once again, as with the
third construction and the O’Neil and Lewington case, this was very time consuming and
was a big personal financial risk. Because of that hearing, there were improvements made
on compensation, treatment of the easement, woodlots, and drainage in comparison to
what we experienced with the previous pipelines. A lot of this came about through our
access to legal and expert support, and intervenor funding. This was the first Union Gas
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pipeline for which our property was not expropriated. I was forty-three years old when
the fourth pipeline went through. '

Our property also has the two Lake Huron to London water pipelines, which dissect the
Union lines. These pipes measure 56" outside diameter. When the most recent line was
built, Ecological Services (now Stantec) was the environmental firm the Ontario Clean
Water Agency used to monitor the construction. Because OCWA could not operate
equipment over the Union Gas easement, the water line had to be bored underneath the
gas lines. A construction that would normally have taken only a few days ended up
taking more than two months in some of the wettest conditions possible. This
unfortunate situation end up impacting properties both sides of the Union easement all
the way to the concession roads on the north and south. A situation arose during this

period resulting from Ecological Services inaction during wet weather and wet soil
conditions. An irate machine operator put my life in some considerable danger.

In the mid to late 90s a new issue arose for pipeline landowners. This issue concerned
the repair and maintenance of the pipelines. When the pipelines were originally built,
Union Gas land agents indicated these pipelines would last forever. We are now finding
out that some pipes are starting to corrode and require maintenance. It upset many
landowners, including me, to think that now Union would be back to open the easement
up again. Once again we as landowners had to mobilize and so we formed the Gas
Pipeline Landowners of Ontario (GAPLO). With a lot of time and effort we were able to
work out the Integrity Dig Agreement with Union Gas. This agreement has served as one
of the very few bright spots in pipeline landowner relations on the issue of repair and
maintenance of pipelines.

More recently new issues have come to light. These issues have to do with abandonment
and talk of restrictions of mobile equipment over top of these pipelines.- The wording is a
little stronger on NEB controlled pipelines, but restrictions are still a real concern to the
landowners on the Dawn-Trafalgar pipeline corridor. It is because of these issues that
oonce again we, as landowners, feel we have to speak up to protect our rights.

Having pipeline easements and pipelines running through your property like we do is a
never-ending challenge financially, emotionally and physically, which I am sure most
people do not realize. And those challenges are ones that we didn’t ask for, but we have
to respond at our own expense. [ think it is very clear that if it had not been for the
persistence and sacrifice of many landowners over the years, we would still see pipelines
being built the way the original pipelines were built. I am now 59 years old.
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ONTARTO FUEL BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF The Gas Pipe Lines
Act, Statutes of Ontario (1951) 15
George VI, Chapter 30, as amended,

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application

by Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited,
to the Ontario Fuel Board for approval
of the Board to deposit in the proper
Registry Office a copy of the Certific-
ate of Public Convenience and Necessity
granted by the Board to the Company
under date of June 12, 1957 and a plan
and description of land whitch the
Company desires to acquire by exXpropr -
iation under the above-mentioned Act
for the construction, maintenance and
operation of its line and upon, under
or over which the Company desires to
construct, lay, carry or place its line.

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Ontario Fuel Board hereby appoints Wednesday, the 25th day of September,
1957, at 10:00 o'clock in the forenoon, Daylight Saving Time, at the County
Council Chambers, County Building, City of London, in the County of Middlesex,
and Province of Ontario for hearing of the Applicatiocn, a copy of which is
hereunto attached, and all persons interested therein.

Further particulars may be Sbtained at the office of the Applicant, the

Soélicitors for the Applicant, Messrs., MclNevin, Gee & O'Connor Chatham, Ontario,
&

- or-this Board: e e e e

DATED at Toronto this 11lth day of September, 1957.

ONTARIO FUEL BOARD

"A, R. Crozier”

"W. R. Howard"
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1IN THE MATTER OF The Gas Pipe Lines
Act, Statutes of Ontario, (1951) 15
George VI, Chapter 30, as amended,

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application

by Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited
to the Ontario Fuel Board for approval
of the Board to deposit in the proper
Registry Office a copy of the Certifi-
cate of Public Convenience and Necessity
granted by the Board to the Company
under date of June 12, 1957 and a plan
and description of land which the Com-
pany desires to acquire by expropriation
under the above mentioned Act for the
construction, maintenance and operation
of its line and upon, under or over Which
the Company desires to construct, lay,
carry or place its line.

- APPLICATION S

TAKE NOTICE that Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited
has applied to the Ontario Fuel Board pursuant to Section Lt of The
Gas Pipe Lines Act, Statutes of Ontario (1951) 15 George VI, Chapter

30, as amended, for approval of the Board to deposit in the proper

and Mecessity issued by the Board to the Compary under date of June 12, 1957
together with a duly attested and signed plan and description of certain lands
in which the Company desires to acquire by expropriation under the said Act

a limited estate, right or interest, a copy of which plan and description and g

definition of which limited estate, right or interest are hereunto attached.

" DATED &t Chatham, Ontario this #&¥basy of Pepleater | 1957, ° -

Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited

By McNevin, Gee & O'Connor,
Barristers, etc.,
Bank of Montreal Bldg.,
CHATHAM, Ontario,

its Solicitors Herein.

T0; - Hergaret Flavence Gouly [ "
sogeph B, Heedhgo
e

1 & 58
Lot""g' m; Concession

Township of
County of **

re:-
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IN THE MATTER OF The Gas Pipe Lines
Act, Statutes of Ontario (1951) 15
George VI, Chapter 30, as amended,

AND IN THE MATTER OF a plan and
description of land required by

Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited

in connection with the establishment

of a pipeline for ths transmission

of gas between a point in Lot #25,

in the 2nd Concession of the Township
of Dawn, in the County of Lambton and
the Townline Road between the Counties
of Halton and Peel, with certain branch
tines therefrom, pursuant to Certificate
of Public Convenience and Necessity
dated the 12th day of June, 1957,
granted by the Ontario Fuel Board.

DEFINITION OF
ESTATE, RIGHT or INTEREST REQUIRED

A right, liberty and ea%emenu in perpetulby on, over, along, in, under
and through a strip of land vixty Feet ( > 01) 1}.;1 perpenmcular w:_dtn as set
forth in the attached description dated the ot day of Beplesber , 1957
signed by Jo Do Barpes , 0.L.S. and attested by the seal of Urion Gas
Company of Canada, Limited under the hands of its proper signing officers in
thet behalf hereunto attached as Schedule "A" and made part hereof, and, as
shown within the "red"border on the attached plan dated the oth day of
eptenler , 1957 sigoed by 9 Do Barnss , 0.L.S. and attested by the
seal of Union Gas Company of Canada, Limited under the hands of its proper
signing officers in that behalf, which plan forms part and parcel of such descr-
iption and is hereunto attached as Schedule "B", for all or any of the purposes
of ingress and egress at any time or times with or without vehicles, machinery,
plant and equipment and of surveying, laying, constructing, maintaining,
inspecting, patrolling, altering, removing, replacing, reconstructing, repairing,
moving, keeping, using and operating a buried pipeline for the transmission of
gas (together with all buried attachments, appliances for cathodic protection,
equipment and appurtenances necessary thereto) including the right along such
strip of land to leave exposed any pipeline with its said appurtenances in
crossing any ditch, stream or gorge. and, including the right to make temporary
openings in any fence or tile drain along or across such strip of land for any
of-the-purposes aforesaid; but-expressly-execluding the right-to—Ffence—in—all--or- -
any part of such strip of land except to restore any fence interfered with;
subject to the aforesaid purposes and rights, RESERVING to the landowner from
time to time or person or persons entitled thereto, the right to fully use,
occupy and enjoy such strip of land, except as to any excavating, drilling,
installing or erecting therein or thereon of any pit, well, foundation, building
or other structure or installation apart from installing lanes, roads, driveways,
pathways and walks without interference with the said pipeline and apart from
constructing, repairing, using and operating farm or domestic tile drains in
and construecting, repairing and keeping fences in and on such strip of land,
without interfering with the said pipeline. THE WHOLE TO BE subject to items
(i) to (iv) inclusive of the terms and conditions set forth in the Certificate
of Public Convenience and Necessity granted by the Ontario Fuel Board to Union
Gas Company of Canada, Limited the 12th day of June, 1957.
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{@5&6&6*’{%) & divtance of Two hundrad snd Bighty-nine
amd Hinsty-throe one-hundr dtis fest (289.93') meas-
ured South Simty-elght degrees, Five winubes s Thircy
gseonds, West { :‘3*53695139"%*!) firom a point in the sast-
erly Licdt of Lot 21, distant Two thousandy OUne hunde
red and Thirty-oight and Soventy-three one~hundredths
feot {2138,73') measured South Twonty-one d:grees,
Pourteen alnutes, Thirey gecondg, Hast {32}.&1!;»’30“;::3
thereon from the nerth-sast cornsy of Leb 21, Concoaw
gion 9:

The herein described parcel of Land shown
oublined in red on a plan of survey, dated the 5th
day of Saptember, 1957, in the City of Torouto, copr-
tified as corwoct by Ji D. Barnes, Untario Lund Gupe

Vaoyor, ia atvached hereto ym&
L e 7 - E ﬁ - e g D

b E§ Bgl’n@{‘}; Gy La Se

The wvatate, right or interest roguired

i se per-attached definigd O, -

UHIOH 048 Coapany op GANADA,  LLHT ORI
Te Hely ci%g:

*J. Y, 8, MoOuns”
Asglotent Secvot acy
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SCHEDULE B

PLAN  SHOWING

PART OF LOTS 21 AND 22 CONCESSION 9
TOWNSHIP  OF LONDON

COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX
/

SCALE:IINCH = 500 FEET
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WIRE  FENCE
NOTE
THE ESTATE, RIGHT OR INTEREST REQUIRED 1S BEARINGS HEREON ARE ASTRONOMIC AND ARE REFERRED
AS PER ATTACHED DEFINITION TO THE MERIDAN THROUGH THE SOUTH-WEST CORNER OF

LOT 16 CONCESSION 5 TOWNSHIP OF LONDON
UNION GAS COMRANY

OF CANADA LIMITED ~
i tesar 3
o B o & R et
AT BT B — IO AT
Vice - Plegiden Manager DATED | SEPT 5,1957 _— § > - O-LE
Assislant ~ Seoretary T T T 7T T ToRONTO, ONTARIO. (. fHERBERT L. COONE
ONTARIO LAND SURVEVYOR
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| RPN

THE ONTARIO ENERGY ACT
R.5.0. 1960, Chapter 122

Notice of Registration of Order Authorizing
Expropriation

sy cnm b s lornee Goudv, . 0 3y IiTesLoe o ordorio,

TO #506600023¢0e383000300G022608000239090
8 €8 4003680000060 3Q0066020080600900230

S C®O0es00000ReBse08 00 9920093200040

500G 06080060686 IONe0O000OAYNBEYT RSO O
T 60 e esc0es s 200D UvseeTeCEIEEEE L0
0809056030482 00000650800888e000060 86 s

9900026 00 4oeceeseceecesoreeeco e

TAKE _NOTICE that pursuant to sSection 13 (4) of The

Ontario Energy Act, Ontario Natural Gas Storage and Pipelines Limited

did on the “uh day of AR 196" register as No. '

{

in the Registry Office for the County of ‘* a certified

copy of an Order of the Ontario Energy Board dated the &th day of
ST 1967 authorizing the said Company to expropriate the
land as set forth in the description and plan and defined in the

definition of estate, righ® or interecst required, copies of which

are attached to the Notice of Expropriation bearing even date here-

with and served upoh jbu héreﬁiihréﬁréuant toWSeéti;n 5 (1) of The
Expropriation Procedures Acty, 1962-63.

DATED at Chatham, Ontario this ' “" day of
196,

ONTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND
PIPELINES LIMITED

~ Y OO M0 0 Wy

McNevin, Gee & 0O'Connor

its Solicitors herein.
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FORM 1
The Zxpropriation Procedures Act, 1962-563

(Bection 5 (1) )

Vet

T0TICE OF L PROPRILTION

T . lorence Toudy, i, 3, ilder

m
1O casscescooceccsococesescnscscaononsse

©© 6060000080 O0G006069C¢OC0NCE00 03 ®S06QC06 A

® #0000©0€0 0020039203009 6000000dESSOSSOD

(Registered Owner)

TAKE NOTICE:

1. That Ontarlo Natural Gas Storage and Pipelines L1m1 ced

did, on the 5th day of June, 191‘9 redlster 33 Ho, 17 87
A, = e s o “igalesey { . )
in the Reglstry Office for the County of .

a plan of e: proprlculon in accordance with The ﬁxproprlaulon
Procedures Act,; 1962563, uad that the land defined therein is
vested in Ontario Hatural Gas Storage and Pipelines Limited for
its use,

2, Attached hereto is & copy of the portion of the plan of
expropriation of your lcnd, together with o copy of the descrip-
tion thereof end a2 copy of tne definition of the estate, risht
or interest required.
3. Thot, under The Ixpropriation Procedures act, 196263,
Ontario Watural Gas Storase and Pipelines Limited will be nOblfy—
ing you of the amount of compensation it is willing to pay for
tae land expropriated cad the damages resulting uaerefrom and
that, if you are not satisfied vith the offer9 you are entitled
to have the compens 1tion determined by a Zoard of Arbitration
upon your msking application to it,
L, Thet for any further informetion resvecting this matter
you may communicate with Ontario Jatural Gas Storage and Pipe-
lines Limited at Gas Duilding, 43 Fifth Street, Chatham, Ontario.

o 18gh

- — - duney - gald
DATED at Chatham, Ontario, this une; 1g%%
9 ?

day of

OdTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND
PIPELINLS LIKITED

by MMM, Bee A Ollve)

ucNev1n, Gee & O'Connor7

its Solicitors and Agent Herein,
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SCHEDULE “8"

PLAN  SHOWING
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COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX
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THE ESTATE, RIGHT OR INTEREST REQUIRED IS

AS PER ATTACHED DEFINITION. ~

ONTARIC NATURAL GAS STORAGE
AND PIPELINES LIMITED

President B General Manager

Secretary

BEARINGS HEREON ARE ASTRONOMIC AND ARE REFERRED

TO THE MERIDAN THROUGH THE SOUTH-WEST
LOT 16 CONCESSION 5 TOWNSHIP OF LONDON
-0~ DENOTES 1"S0. & 2' LONG IRON BAR

DATED I SEPT. 5, 1957
TORONTO, ONTARIO.

CORNER OF

<«
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it i
SCHEDULE I[}
/1

ALL AND SINGULAR that certain parcel or tract of land and
premises situate, lying and being in the Township of London, in the
County of Middlesex, in the Province of Ontario, and being composed of
Part of Lots 21 and 22, Concession 9, in the said Township, and which
said parcel of land containing by admeasurement five and one hundred
and forty-eight one-thousandths acres (5,148 ac.) be the same more or
less, and being a strip of land sixty feet (60.0') in perpendicular
width, which centre line and centre line produced of the said strip
of land is described as follows:

BEARINGS HEREIN are astronomic and are referred to the meridian
through the Qn‘nfh—Weqf corner of Tnt 14 Concession 5 To Tn.auip of

g1t e osouthn. corner SOy I

Londong

COMMENCING at a point in the interior of Lot 21, Concession 9,
said point being in the VWesterly limit of the 1ands as described in
Registered Instrument No. 53681, and distant thirty feet (30.0")
measured Northerly at right angles from the line between the North
and South halves of Lot 21, and which said point may be located as
follows:

STARTING at the North-East —-corner of Lot 21, Concession 9;

THENCE South twenty-one degrees, fourteen minutes, thirty
seconds East (821°lh'30"E) along the Fasterly limit of Lot 21, two
thousand, one hundred and thirty-eight and seventy-—three one-hundredths
feet (2,138.73');

THENCE South sixty-six degrees, forty-six minutes West
(S66°46'W) five and seven one-hundredths feet {(5,07!');

THENCE South sixty-eight degrees, five minutes, thirty seconds
West (S68°05!'30"W) two hundred and eighty-nine and ninety-three one-—
hundredths feet (289.93') to the said point of commencement;

THENCE SOuth sixty-eight degrees, five minutes West (568005’w)
two hundred and fifty-six and seven one-hundredths feet (256.07') to
a point distant thirty feet (30.0’) measured Northerly at right angles
from the line between the North and South halves of Lot 21;

THENCE South sixty-eight degrees, nineteen minutes West
(S68°197W) one thousand, five hundred and thirteen and eighty-one one-

hundredths feet (1,513.81‘) to a point in a wire fence being the line

between Lots 21 and 22, Concession 9, distant thirty feet (30.0')
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Page 2.

measured Northerly at right angles from the line between the North

and South halves of Lot 21, said poiné of intersection also being distant
two thousand, one hundred and forty-three and five—tenths feet

(2,1&3.5') measured Southerly thereon from the North-West corner of

Lot 21, Concession 9;

THENCE South sixty-eight degrees, nineteen minutes West
(S68°l9'W) two hundred and thirty-six and forty one-hundredths feet
(236.40') to a point distant thirty feet (30.0') measured Northerly
at right angles from the line between the North and South halves of
Lot 22;

THENCE South sixty-eight degrees, thirty-five minutes, thirty
seconds West (868035‘30“W) five hundred and forty-four and fifty-three
one-hundredths feet (544.53') to a point distant thirty feet (30.0')
measured Northerly at right angles from the line between the North and
South halves of Lot 22;

THENCE South sixty-oight degrees, zero minutes, West
(S68°00'W) four hundred and ninety-seven and forty-two one-hundredths
feet (h97.42') to a point distant thirty feet (30.0') measured Northerly
at right angles from the line between the North and South halves of
Lot 22;

THENCE South sixty;eight éeg;eés,”thirtf-tWOWminuées West
(S68°32’W) five hundred and eighty-four and ninety one-hundredths feet
(58&.90’) to a point distant thirty feet (30.0') measured Northerly
at right angles from the line between the North and South halves of
Lot 22;

THENCE South sixty-eight degrees, twenty-two minutes, thirty
seconds West (S68°22'30"W) one hundred and four and twenty-eight one-

hundredths feet (104.28') to the intersection with a wire fence being
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the line between Lots 22 and 23, distant thirty feet (30;0') measutred
Northerly at right angles from the line between the North and South
halves of Lot 22, said point of intersection also being distant two
thousand, one hundred and thirty feet (2,130.0') measured Southerly
along the 1line between Lots 22 and 23, from the NortheWest corner of
Lot 22, Concession 9.

The herein described parcel of land bounded on the West by a
wire fence being the line between :Lots 22 and 23, and on the Fast by
the Westerly limit of the lands as described in Registered Instrument
No. 33681, as shown outlined in red on a copy of a Plan of Survey,
prepared by Herbert L. Coons, Ontario Land Sureyar,dated September 5th,
1957, brought up to date by John D. Barnes, Ontario Land Surveyors,
dated February 20th, 1964, in the City of Toronto, certified as correct
by W. J. Hughes, 0.L.S., is attached hereto as Schedul B,

April 27, 1964
Certified Correct:

The estate, right or interest required

ida ao - o mathad A1 g e
18 as pex attached definition.

ONTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND PIPELINES LIMITED

President and General Manager

Secretary
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DEFINITION OF ESTATE, RIGHT CR
INTEREST REGUIRED

3 7

A right, liberty and easement in perpetuity on, over,
along, in, under and through a strip of land oty feet (007 )
in perpendicular width as shown within the red border on the
attached copy of a plan dated the)) ) & day of :—LQboumtﬁ , 1964,
signed by qn Y. 0.L.S., hereunto attached as Schedule "B"
for all or any of the purposes of ingress and egress by OUntario
Natural Gas Storage and Pipelines Limited, its successors and
assigns,; its and their servants, workmen, employees, agents, con-
tractors and subcontractors and those engaged in its and their
business, at any time and from time to time either on foot and /or
with vehicles, machinery, supplies and equipment and of surveying,
laying, constructing, maintaining, inspecting, patrolling, altering,
removing, replacing, reconstructing, repairing, moving, keeping,
using and operating in, through, along and under such strip of land
in such location or locations as the Company may decide, a buried
pipeline for the transmission of gas {together with all such buried
attachments and equipment and attachments and appliances for
cathodic protection which the Company may deem necessary or conven-
ient thereto) including the right along such strip of land to leave
exposed any pipeline with its said appurtenances in crossing a
ditch, stream, gorge or similar object where approval thereto has
been obtained from the appropriate Provincial Authority having
jurisdiction in such matters, and, including the right to make
temporary openings in any fence or tile drain along or across such
strip of land for any of the purposes aforesaid, but expressly
excluding the right to fence in all or any part of such strip of
land except to restore any fence interfered with; SUBJECT T THE
AFORESAID PURPOSES AND RIGHTS, RESERVING to the landowner from
time to time or person or persons entitled thereto, the right %o
fully use, occupy and enjoy such strip of land except as may be
necessary for any of the purposes aforesaid and except (without
the prior written consent of the Company) as to any excavating,
drilling, installing or erecting therein or thereon of any pit,
‘well, foundatiow, pavement; building -or other structure -or install~ -
ation apart from installing, constructing, repairing, keeping,
using and operating lanes, roads, driveways, pathways, walks, farm
or domestic tile drains, domestic sewer pipes, domestic water pipes
and domestic utility pipes and fences in and on such strip of land
without interfering with the said pipeline, provided that prior to
commencing any such installation, construction or repair the land-
owner shall (2) give the Company at least five (5} clear days'
notice in writing pointing out the work desired so as to enable
the Company to have a representative inspect the site and/or be

resent at any time or times during the performance of the work,
b) follow the instructions of such representative as to_the

performance of such work without damage to the said pipeline and,
(c) exercise a high degree of care in carrying out any such work.
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DHI, -1/
The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962-63
Section 8 (1)

f the Compensation

Offer in Ful_ Payment
for Land Expropriated

Corseret s lorence cnuay, e e 3, Slderton, mitario.

TO LR R R R R R I N A A A A )
€0 0060880008000 Cces0c0sIBROCGIGREBOSTDT
0000 @ s secssescrcresetrOe DGO OO R
4085 ¢80 2080002800 es0CcEcr 00000 EE S
690 80P LEEONAIBRLEENIBIOEBCOPRENDRESS
4006008083008 0003000 000000000000
009940000938 CsL0ERI000I0RB0eBI e

#0008 P 00002000 LS0EE0CIOEOSEERGCID S

(Registered Owner)
TAKE NOTICE:
1. That Ontario Natural Gas Storage and Plpelines L1m1-

T

e eby offers to pay o you the SUM OFf ceccoececcsaceacsossoccass

a1

ted h

str=thire LT € e o e o e e o o .

in full payment of the compensation for all interests in the land as
described and defined in the Notice of Expropriation tearing even
date herewith and served upon you herewith.

2. That this notice is given pursuant to Section 8 (1)

of The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962=63._
DATED at Chatham, Ontario this ! '" day of "'’ "

ONTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND
PIPELINES LIMITED

T I Noa Aoy N oo

McNevin, Gee & O'Connor

its Solicitors and Agent Herein.
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DHL.ig2
The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962-63
Section 18
Offer of Payment of 50% of Estimated Com-
pensation for Land Expropriated
Carcaret @ lorenee toudy, . i.ei3, Slderton,  ntario,
To ‘O.GI‘G'OCQCBCOGQEQQOQOBOD.BQIGD
eeoccccececeaccesoecacseccesaceso
..050.’.‘0.!'.DO.QQBQG.BOGOI...O
...".Q."‘Q....O‘.I.._..l.l@.o"
I EEEEEEEREEERERENEICEI I I NN A I I SN BN A ]
'EEEREREEE RIS I B I N A B R R BTN BN N R N A B ]

© 6 00 9490000 RPVREEEOONPEVOSEIESOPSES

doc B ®Weevears 0@e0e0Ce0CSCRCSRCEElOOS

(Registered Owner)
TAKE NOTICE:
i. That Ontario Natural Gas Storage and Pipelines Limited

Three bundred Yollars and
hereby offers to pay to you the sum of fhree lundred Jollars ang

THi1 BY =t 0 | @IIL e o st s e e e o i s i ($100.32 )

609008 P A88C8CCSE00000060D000CEEEOATIOOUIDOEeTESSSISEs =S

being a sum of not less than 50 per cent of the amount estimated by
the Company as the compensation for all interests in the land as des-
eribed and defined in the Notice of Expropriation bearing even date
herewith and served upon you herewith, and that such sum, if accepted,
shall be applied in partial payment of any compensation that may sub~-
sequently be agreed upon or determined.

2. That this notice is given pursuant to Section 18 of

The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962-63.

DATED at Chatham, Ontario, this ¥Lh day of  June,
1964,

ONTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND
PIPELIN®ES LIMITED

R T S . Y

McNevin, Gee & 0'Connor,

its BSolicitors and Agent Herein.
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The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962-63
Section 19
Notice of Possession
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(Registered Owner)

TAKE NOTICE:

Thth

1. That on the day of Ui, 196",
Ontario Natural Gas Storage and Pipelines Limited requires possession
of the land as described and defined in the Notice of ¥xpropriation
bearing even date herewith and served upon you herewith.

20 That this notice is given pursuant to Section 19 of

The Expropriation Procedures Act, 1962-63.

_DATED at Chatham, Ontario this i-'!  day of <
196“0

ONTARIO NATURAL GAS STORAGE AND
PIPELINES LIMITED

B (@R VTTRY Zﬁl{L/W @f@?qu/

MeNevin, Gee & O!'Connor

its Solicitors and Agent
Herein.
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EB 2005-0550

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O.
1998, ¢.15, Schedule B, and in particular, s.90(1) thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas
Limited for an Order or Orders granting leave to construct a
natural gas pipeline and ancillary facilities in the Township of
Strathroy-Caradoc and in the Township of Middlesex Centre, all
in the County of Middlesex.

GAPLO-UNION (STRATHROY-LOBO)

WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF
RICK KRAAYENBRINK

March 31, 2006
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I own and farm properties described as Part of Lot 26, Concession 2 and Part
of Lot 26 and Part of the road allowance between Concessions 1 & 2, Registered
Plan No. 24, Moore Township, Lambton County, designated as Parts 1 -10, Plan
25R1585 in the Land Registry Office for the Registry Division of Lambton (No.
25).

On my property, there are three existing Union Gas lines running north and
south. In addition, there is a Vector line running east and west. There are also
three TransCanada lines running east and west. This makes seven lines on the
property. From the perspective of potential liability and safety, I am concerned
that no landowner would want to buy this property. With the addition of each line,
there is a larger percentage of land being damaged. In addition, the development
potential of this land is diminished. One cannot construct buildings on top of the
pipelines. The more pipelines there are, the less likely it is that industry will be
interested in the farm for development. The particular difficulty with the three
Union Gas lines is that the railway is due west of the route.  Any railway spur to be
constructed on the farm to provide access to it would have to go over the three
Union pipelines. This would only be feasible if the lines w ere buried deep enough
and if the thickness of the pipe were sufficient. However, the pipelines are not
buried deeply enough nor is the thickness of the pipe sufficient to allow for
commercial development over top of the line. Commercial development on t his
property is a likelihood given its location. It is close to industry and it is close to a
railway, the St. Clair River and a major highway. In order to develop the property,
a railway spur would be a necessity so that industry would have access to th e
railway. If my land is now industrial land because of multiple pipelines, I should

be compensated for industrial land. The same goes for Strathroy -Lobo.
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Working the land on this farm properly with three Union lines, one Vector
line and three Trans Canada lines has been a challenge. The three Union lines run
north-south, the one Vector and three Trans Canada lines run east -west. The
Vector and Trans Canada lines cause loss of production because of crossing
regulations. We are afraid of crossing the thr ee Union lines with a loaded grain
buggy which weighs 60,000 Ibs because of the thin walled pipe and the depth of
cover. With farm equipment getting larger and heavier pipes in the rural area
should be thicker than that in the urban area because of heavy e quipment. Are our

lives not as valuable as that of the urban people?

I have a 12 inch Union Gas line which I believe was installed in the 1960’s.
The 24 inch Union Gas line was installed in 1989 and the 20 inch in 2002. I knew
" the 12 inch line was in the property when we bought it in 1997. However, it was
only some time after our purchase that we found out that we had the 24 inch line in
production with the gas flowing. In 2001, we discovered that the line was
unregistered. We have our own tiling equipment and use it on the farm. The fact
that, for a time, we had no idea the line was there, had the potential to kill a
number of people. The 20 inch line was the only Union line put in while we owned
the land. We reluctantly came to an agreement with Union Gas on that line
because a hearing was too expensive and letting them expropriate would mean
losing all control. When we signed the agreement with Union we lost most of our

control anyways.

With respect to the construction of new Union Gas lines, like that being
proposed in Strathroy-Lobo, I am very concerned about soil impacts. I would very
much like to see all the soil stripped with a high hoe rather than with a bulldozer.
This would mean that there would be less compaction of the subsoil. This wou 1d

mean that drainage would be better due to there being less compaction. This
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method of stripping was used by Vector on my property and on other properties

and I saw that this worked very well even though it was an especially wet summer.

In order to ensure that construction methods and procedures are fair to the
landowners, I believe that a Joint Committee is necessary. I was a landowner
representative on the Vector line when it was installed. The Committee was very
important in ensuring that construction was done according to the Letter of
Understanding (LOU). Ron Kerr, the other landowner representative, and I met
with the Project Manager on a daily basis, and this worked very well. As stated
above, the Vector line was installed during one of the wet test summers in history
and there were many situations which arose that made it difficult for Vector to
abide by the LOU. There were situations where the committee members asked the
landowners for their opinion and this was of great assistance in getting the job
done. I have found in my dealings with landowners that it is easier to resolve
problems with them when it is other landowners who speak to them about
problems that arise. With the Joint Committee in place, it was a team effort to get

the line 1n.

The Joint Committee proposed by Union Gas in its current LOU is too

its construction schedule and procedures. The Committee would be made up of
one landowner representative, one Union Gas representative and a neutral third
party environmentalist. This structure provides a good balance and means that
sometimes a landowner gets his or her way and sometimes the landowner is
overruled. This was the setup for the Vector pipeline. I’ve attached to this
statement excerpts from the Vector LOU about the “Construction Liaison

Committee” and WSSD.
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With respect to the separation distance between subsoil and topsoil during
construction, Union must ensure that it uses enough temporar y land to keep these
soils separate even if it means they must remove trees. Although it is understood
- by landowners that the trees are in an environmentally sensitive area, it is my
position that trees will regenerate in a shorter time than the time it w ould take to
remediate the topsoil if there were to be mixing. I believe that Union Gas has done
its calculations for land required by assuming that landowners only want the trench
area stripped. From experience, I know that there is not enough room to allow for
full easement stripping while maintaining an adequate separation distance between
topsoil and subsoil of one metre. The impact of having subsoil and topsoil mixed,
even if inadvertently, cannot be overstated. I personally would not want the
remediation that Union Gas has indicated as the answer to all the landowners’
problems, but would rather have prevention. The soil is our lifeblood. Union
could alleviate the potential problems of soil mixing by placing a row of large

bales between the topsoil pile and the subsoil pile.

Another issue that I wish to address is pre-construction tiling. Pre-
construction tiling is a very important factor in this construction. All low -lying
areas require a stone pit so that when there is a large amount of rain , the rain will
flow away. The advantage to a stone pit is that it works 24 hours a day. With a
stone pit in place, the soil will dry much more quickly and will not saturate which
in turn will mean less compaction. Pre-tiling must be done on both sides of the
topsoil piles where the tile will not be damaged by construction activities.
Installing pre-construction tile will mean there will be a lot less delay for the

construction crew as the soil will then dry more quickly. I strongly believe that

putting in pre-construction tiling would save Union Gas thousands and perhaps
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tens of thousands of dollars on dewatering crews if there is any large rainfall
during construction which there may well be given that Union Gas appears to be
intending to construct in the fall. Post-construction tiling should then be done on

the easement and temporary work area.

During construction, traffic should remain on the trench line. This is an
important point as this will eliminate a lot of compaction to the soil that othe rwise
would result. It will also prevent equipment from crushing existing tile that is in
the ground. If this is not avoided, flooding may again become a problem given that
crushed tile will not be operating properly. Common sense will allow exceptions
to this rule such as if an ambulance has to get down if someone is hurt. In
addition, I understand that some workers are expensive and it is cheaper to have
them travel on the trench line in a bus to save on travelling time. However, if this
is going to be done, the bus should have terra tires on it. When I travel on my own
land, I use some of the supply of terra tires that I keep in my shed for exactly that
reason. I believe that Union Gas should accord the land the same respect the
landowners give it. Pick up trucks on the easement cause a lot of compaction and,

therefore, Union Gas should use all -terrain vehicles during construction .

rned about the proposed depth of cover for this
pipeline. I grow and harvest grain. The approximate weight of a loaded grain
buggy is five times the weight of a high hoe per square inch. My concern about
this is that on a federally regulated pipeline, }I am not allowed to drive a high hoe
over the line as the high hoe is considered to be too h eavy. Although driving a
grain buggy over the lines is not an every day occurrence, it is something that
sometimes does need to be done. Farmers do not want to be in a position where

we are not allowed to drive over the pipelines with our heavy farm equ ipment.
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The average weight of my loaded grain buggy is 23.1 pounds per square inch with
the tires on it that I have on it (up to 60,000 pounds). Sugar beet harvesters used in
Southwestern Ontario can weigh approximately the same. The average weight of a
high hoe, in comparison, I understand to be approximately 4.6 pounds per square
inch. I am most concerned that the depth of cover proposed for the Strathroy-Lobo
line is insufficient to support the great weights that sometim es are driven over the
lines. Landowners are concerned for their safety and that of their families each and
every time they must cross one of the lines with heavy machinery. This concern
becomes even more of a concern in respect of the older lines and as farm
equipment gets heavier a‘nd heavier. Landowners also are concerned about not
being allowed in the future to travel across these pipelines with their heavy farm

equipment.

I also make use of deep tillage equipment such as a disc ripper and para -
plough in my farming operations to loosen compacted soil, improving overall
drainage and crop yield. Normally, I operate this equipment down to a maximum
depth of twenty inches, but deep tillage may go even deeper. Pipelines must be

installed deep enough to accommodate modern farming pr actices safely.

Another issue that needs to be addressed is that of construction vehicles
parking on both sides of the road. It is essential that farmers are able to get from
one field to the next and in order to do so, they must be able to drive the wide farm
machinery down the road. If construction vehicles park on both sides of the road,
which I have seen them do on other occasions, farmers am not able to pass by on
the road as there is not enough room to get around. I have no objection to there
beihg parking areas at each road crossing on the land with proper construction

methods.
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After construction, it is vital that the land be restored to its pre -construction
grade. In order to ensure that the grade is what it was prior to construction, the use
of GPS technology is essential. Returning the land to its original grade is
important to ensure that water will flow from any low spots and will either run off
the field or into stone pits. If this is not done on this soil, flooding will occur. GPS
technology gives topographic readings that can pinpoint the grade no matter what
point is picked. This technology is not very expensive and what is gained in
accuracy is worth it. Using GPS would ensure that the grade is restored to its pre -
construction state and in the long run, I believe it would save Union Gas money by
allowing them to avoid flooding problems that would otherwise result from failing

to return the land to grade after construction.

I believe that Union Gas must understand that when they con struct pipelines,
they have a great impact on the soil productivity and fertility. Mitigation, in a lot
of cases, is not a sufficient answer to the problems. Prevention of problems at the
outset should be the goal. I believe that prevention would be cos t-effective for
both landowners and Union Gas in the long run.

If Union intends, despite landowners’ concerns, to construct during wet
weather, it should pay different compensation for working in dry conditions than it
does for working in wet conditions. Working in wet soils should be compensated
at two or three times the rate for working in dry weather. On my farm, Union’s
construction crews didn’t abide by the WSSD. Wet Soil Shutdown is supposed to
be a routine part of “Union’s normal management pro cess for pipeline construction

activities.” On my farm, they had dozers and stringer trucks full of mud. The

rolling harrows of the cultivators they used were full of mud. They were para -
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ploughing wet soil, which compacted the soil even more instead of reducing it.

The para-plough is a dry soil tool.

The eventual abandonment of the pipeline is of great concern to me and all
. pipeline landowners. As pipelines have aged, we have become, as landowners,
very aware of issues resulting from the degradation o f the pipe. The abandonment
issue must be dealt with in the easement agreement so that there is some certainty
for landowners at the outset. If pipes are left in the ground upon abandonment,
they could corrode and cause problems with water movement, ther e could be blow
outs and there could very well be environmental problems from the leaching of
contaminants that are left in the pipe. Our greatest concern is knowing at the
outset who will be responsible for these pipes. It is vitally important that the
company accept responsibility up front for abandonment and that there be a fund
established for remedial action upon abandonment. In the attached agreement
between CN and Union Gas, Union agreed to remove its pipe from the ground on

90 days’ notice. Landowners should have that same option.

Liability is also a concern for landowners. As there is no financial benefit to
us having a pipeline on the property, it is important to know the exact extent to
which we are indemnified by the company. We need to kn ow by whom we are
indemnified, whether the indemnification will be effective if the company changes
hands and the implications of any trade agreements on our liability. As
landowners we do not feel that we should have any liability for these pipelines

given that we have not asked that they be installed on our properties.

Union Gas’ pipelines have had a significant impact on my life. 1 still think

about the unregistered pipeline which endangered my family. And the process



-9.
CAEPLA-PLC 177

needs to be changed. It’s impossible to negotiate a fair deal with the threat of
expropriation hanging over your head. To have even a slim chance to get a fair
deal, landowners have to get together, and that takes time and money. In my case,
we had to hire a lawyer at our own expense in order to explain our options. The
hearing process is expensive, too, and not just in terms of money. Landowners

have to devote a lot of time to a pipeline project that isn’t theirs.

Union Gas seems to rely heavily on what has been done “historically” in
order to justify what is being proposed now in Strathroy-Lobo. I would simply
point out that what has been done “historically” has caused many problems for
landowners and this should never be the justification for what will be done now or
in the future. Times and knowledge have changed and Union Gas should be
willing to change with the times. No leave to construct should be granted until
Union presents a fair easement agreement, a fair LOU and a fair compensation
package. And Union Gas should be res ponsible for all of the costs incurred by the
landowners in dealing with the pipeline including hearing costs, lawyer costs,

expert consultant costs, landowner time, etc.

At Zgertocd

Rick Kraayenbrink
March 31, 2006
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Landowner Letter of Understanding
May 6, 1999

20) The Company agrees to make reasonable efforts to locate above ground
facilities adjacent to lot lines and public road allowances. The acquisition and
rights of first refusal to re-acquire above ground facility fands will be negotiated

between individual landowner(s) and the Company.

21) The Company agrees that construction equipment used for the purpose of
topsoil replacement will not be located off the easement or temporary working
space and will be designed to minimize soil compaction and draw the topsoil
from the stockpile or windrow onto the easement and temporary work space.

22) The Company agrees to instruct its employees and contractors to park vehicles
and equipment off the traveled portion and on one side of any road used during
construction. Company inspectors will monitor parking during construction to
ensure this practice is maintained.

B. Landowner Relations Program

1) Prior to construction the Company shall undertake interviews with individual
landowners to identify and determine any site specific details including the
location of water wells, septic systems, existing and planned drain tiles and drain
mains, access roads, field access crossing locations and other issues which may

be of concern during construction.

2) The Company shall notify all landowners of the scheduled start of construction a
minimum of 1 week prior to the contractor moving equipment onto the permanent
easement and temporary working areas.

3) During construction and restoration, the Company agrees to implement a
landowner complaint tracking system.

4) The Company will also establish a three-member committee, referred to as the
Vector Construction Liaison Commitiee ("VCLC"), that will be used to facilitate
the resolution of disputes between landowners and the_Company during and
following _construction that directly result from construction and restoration

activities,




,5)

6)

7)

8)

1)

Vector Pipeline Project
Landowner Letter of Understanding
May 6, 1999

The VCLC will comprise of the following individuals: (1) the Project Chief
Inspector; (2) the Project Environmental Inspector; and (3) a GAPLO-Vector
appointed landowner representative. GAPLO-Vector recognizes that its
appointed representative shall use all reasonable efforts to be available to
address matters pertaining to the VCLC. Upon being appointed, the GAPLO-
Vector representative shall notify the Company of the name and the telephone
number(s) of one (1) alternate landowner representative who will be contacted
by the Company in the event that the appointed landowner representative cannot
be contacted or is otherwise unavailable. So as to ensure continuity and
expedited resolution of matters concerning the VCLC, the alternate landowner
representative shall remain as the VCLC landowner representative for the
purposes of addressing the specific matter before the VCLC. Vector shall make
reasonable efforts to contact all members of the VCLC, including the alternate
VCLC landowner representative if the appointed landowner representative
is unavailable, should a committee decision be required. In the event any
member of theVCLC can not be contacted or is otherwise unavailable, the issue
before the VCLC shall be resolved by the remaining VCLC members-

In the event that a dispute arises between a landowner and the Company and
such dispute cannot be resoived to the mutuai satisfaction of the parties through
discussion or referral to the VCLC, the Company will consider retaining a
mutually satisfactory independent consultant to assist in the resolution of the

particular dispute.

The Company agrees to provide remuneration to the VCLC iandowner
represe;ntative for participation in VCLC proceedings at a rate of $75 per hour.

Should an emergency arise during the construction or operation of the pipeline,
the Company agrees to notify any affected landowner within 72 hours following
emergency access to that landowner's property and provide a written report on
how the emergency situation was resolved.

Soil Studies & Testing

The Company agrees to carry out pre and post-construction compaction, soil
fertility and soybean cyst nematode sampling and testing at locations both on
and immediately adjacent to the temporary work space or easement in an

undisturbed location.

CAEPLA-PLC 179



ST . CAEPLA-PLC 180
Vector Pipeline Project

Landowner Letter of Understanding
May 6, 1999

SCHEDULE “A”

VL. Wet Weather Shut-Down Procedure

This procedure applies to all pipeline construction projects supervised by Vector. The
objective of this procedure is to conserve and protect soil in agricultural areas from
long-term damage and consequential crop losses. Movement of heavy construction
equipment on the pipeline right-of-way during wet soii conditions may cause excessive
compaction and rutting. This procedure is in place to suspend or minimize construction
activity during these periods and shall remain in effect over the entire construction and
clean-up periods. In some special situations, other wet soil operating procedures may
be employed, subject to the approval of the landowner.

1) At least 30 minutes before the commencement of construction on days where
there is the possibility that wet weather may cause soil damage if construction
activities proceeds, members of the VCLC will assess the right-of-way soil
conditions and determine whether right-of-way conditions are too wet such that
soil damage would result if construction were to proceed.

2) In the event a majority of the VCLC determines that soil damage would result if
construction were to proceed that day, the Chief Inspector will immediately notify
the Project Manger and the Pipeline Contractor of such determination. The Chief
Inspector will further ensure that the Pipeline Contractor has promptly ceased all
of the affected construction activity.

3) Itis reéognized that a majority of the VCLC may determine that certain activities
. can continue without causing soil damage. This may include restricting
movement on the right-of-way to wide tracked equipment, bored crossings,

welding etc.

4) If rain commences after construction has started, the VCLC will closely monitor
right of way soil conditions. In the event a majority of the VCLC determines that
construction should be stopped, the Chief Inspector will immediately notify the
Project Manger and the Pipeline Contractor of such determination. The Chief
Inspector will further ensure that the Pipeline Contractor has promptly ceased all
of the affected construction activity.

17
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RICK KRAAYENBRINK

PERMISSION is hereby given by CN TRANSACTIONS INC.
(hereinafter called the "CN') to UNION GAS LIMITED
"Licensee”) to enter upon for all

(hereinafter called the see) :
prposes relating to the construction and thereafter the
e and maintenance of a 24" pipeline for he conveyance of
s, (hereinafter referred to s the "pipsline") along the f
ght of Way of the Railway in the Township of Moore, _ |
unty of Lambton and Province of ontario, in the location '
lentified as Parts 3, 6 and 8 on Registered Reference Plan ;
L. 25R-5094, attached as Schedule “"A" hereto and to use - !
hd occupy Parts 1, 4, 5 and 7 shown on thg_said plan for
' uring the period of o
scoess and the storage of

kLcess to parts 3, 6 and 8 4

bnstruction; and for continued A 8 ©
period of one year sfter the
SUCH PERMISSION IS GIVEN

bnstruction materials for a
plet . : ; :
UBJECT TC THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND. CONDITIONS:

W e'd

2. Q000D zen

Lmpletion of construction.

HE LICENSEE AGREES:

. At its own risk and expense, to use and maintain the
{peline to the satisfaction of CN.and in compliance with
11 orders, rules and regulations ¢f the National
ransportation Agendy or other authority of competent
irisdiction now or hereafter in force applicable thereto.

\
3100

&

2| Before commencing any major repairs or renewals of the
;sprvice pipelineés, to give to the local Superintending - \
iofficer of CN at least seventy-two (72) hours’ prior notice

W A

iip writing to enable the CN to send an Inspector to
isppervise the said work and to pasy the wages of the said
!Inspector including his expenses while so engaged, on -

emand from CN.

ruct CN’s tracks nor to

{3, Not at any time to cobst » .
iinterfere, in any way, with the usefulness or safety for
irailway purposes of the CN’s tracks and lands. Should CN I
iat apy time or from time to time desire to construct other

. itracks under the service pipelines or to make any .

) ‘ajlterations te its existing tracks, at its own risk and

- ;ekpense to ‘perform any work of strengthening, rebuilding or
{altering the pipeline as may be required by CN.
‘4. To indemnify and save harmless CN from all loss and
‘eXpense incurred by CN and from and against all claims and
demands, loss, costs, damages, actions, suits or other ,

de, brought or prosecuted (and

proceedings by whomsoever ma ,
{the Licensee hereby waives as against CN all claims or
{whatscever nature or kind) in any manner arising by reason
or the constructions, existence, maintenance or use of the
~ {pipeline, save and except to the extent that any action,

- istit, claim, demand, direct loss, costs, damages and
lexpenses arises from the gross negligent acts or omissions
- Received TimesMar.26.r 8:32Pimployees and agents. o C

|1 : e .
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R purpose connected with this License shall do so at the CAERLA-PLC 182
of the Licensee and CN shall not be 1iable for any injury,
joss or damage howsoever caused to such persons while on
the said premises and to indemnify CN against all claims
{ that may ba made by reason of any such injury, loss or
damage, save and except to the extent that any such injury,
direct loss or damage arises from the gross negligent acts
ér omissions of CN, its servants, employees and agents.

- b inaw

|
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RICK KRAAYENBRINK
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PAGE 13

fs. To pay to CN, for the priv11eges hersln granted, the
154} of TWO THOUSAND AND SEVENTY THREE DOLLARS ($2 073.00} -

f;er annum, payable in advance on the First day of June, in
dach year during the first five years hereof, the first of

éJ ne,

s
L b

10 ﬁﬂ, .

One

ND MUTUALLY AGRES' ,
94 This chensc shall be in tttect from the First. day ot

ine Hundred and Eight-Nine until

‘terminated by either party herato on giving to the other
Such

5 av

One Thou! sand N

| PROVIDED that the license fee payable h‘“éuﬁdet shall
L subject to review at the end of the fifth and at the end
f each successive five years during the contlnuance hereof

nd set at a rate which, in the opinion of CN, is fair and
quitahle and shall be payablo din llke manner .

The pipeline and facilitxes and all appurtenances

P rty not less than Ninety (90) days’ written notice.
ingtice may be given by addressing same to the Licenses at

50 Keil Drive N., Chatham, Ontario,
dressing same to its Regiohal Manager, Real Estate °
rvices, Suite 920,
tario, MEV 2X4.

ia

277 Front Street West, Tgronto,

moval to a condition satlsractory to CN. Should the
censee default in so doing, CN may perform the said work

Or Temoval at the risk and expense of the Licensee.

N7M &M1, and to CN.

ich payments to become due and payable on the First day of
Thousand Nines Hundred and Eighty=n1“e. v

7

thareof while on CN premises shall at all times be at the
irisk of the Licensee in respect of logs or damage from
whatsoever cause arising, whether due to the negligence of
o ,

CN, lts employees or otherwise.

i8; Not to assign or sublicense this License nor any right
7cr prlvzleqe hereunder thhout the. consant in writing of

. Upon the termination of this License in any manner, the
Llcensaa shall forthwith, at its own risk and expense,
g',ove the service plpellnes from the prenisea of the

pATED at Toronto, Ontario, &s of the Fitst day of Juna, One °
.Thausand Nine Hundred and Elghty-Nine.

CN TRANSACTIONS INC.

»

>?{=ness.
1’ /51, ’L

Timo Mér 28,
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EB-2014-0261

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c. 15,
Schedule B, and in particular, S.36 thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c.
15, Schedule B, and in particular, S.90(1) thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c.
15, Schedule B, and in particular, S.91 thereof;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas Limited for an Order or
Orders for approval of recovery of the cost consequences of all facilities
associated with the development of the proposed Lobo C Compressor/Hamilton-
Milton Pipeline project;

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Union Gas Limited for an Order or
Orders granting leave to construct natural gas pipelines and ancillary facilities in
the City of Hamilton, City of Burlington, and the Town of Milton, and leave to
construct a compressor and ancillary facilities in the Municipality of Middlesex

Centre.
GAPLO WRITTEN EVIDENCE STATEMENT
January 9, 2015
1. The Gas Pipeline Landowners of Ontario (“GAPLQO”) is a voluntary organization of

landowners directly affected by Union Gas Limited (“Union”) pipelines and associated facilities.
GAPLO has approximately 120 active members across Ontario including Karen Hewitt, a
landowner whose lands are directly affected by the proposed Hamilton to Milton NPS 48
Pipeline.

2. As set out in GAPLO’s intervention request letter, GAPLO and its members have an
interest in ensuring that Union’s construction methodologies and environmental protection

measures are held to the highest standards by the Board. GAPLO and its members also have
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an interest in ensuring that the form of landowner agreement to be approved by the Board
pursuant to Section 97 of the Ontario Energy Board Act satisfactorily addresses, inter alia, the
accommodation of farming practices and issues related to pipeline abandonment.
3. In reviewing Union’s application for the Hamilton to Milton NPS 48 Pipeline Project,
GAPLO was disappointed to see that Union is proposing to step back from important
improvements that were made previously to its form of easement agreement and to its
construction methodology, initially in connection with the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline
(EB-2005-0550)".
4, GAPLO’s intervention in this proceeding is focused on re-establishing those important
improvements for the current project and beyond. The reasons behind the changes made by
Union for the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline remain valid in the present context, and
Hamilton to Milton landowners (whether members of GAPLO or not) deserve the same
treatment by Union and the Board.

EASEMENT AGREEMENT

5. For the current project, Union has reverted to the form of easement agreement that was

used immediately prior to the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline Project’. That form of

agreement omits two important changes that were agreed upon by Union and GAPLO and
accepted by the Board in its Section 97 decision in EB-2005-0550°:

a. The replacement in Clause 1 of the phrase “Transferor and Transferee hereby agree

that nothing herein shall oblige Transferee to remove the Pipeline from the Lands as

part of Transferee’s obligation to restore the Lands” with “As part of the Transferee’s

obligation to restore the Lands upon surrender of its easement, the Transferee

! EB-2005-0550, Decision and Order dated June 12, 2006; EB-2005-0550 Settlement Agreement between GAPLO-
Union (Strathroy-Lobo) and Union Gas Limited dated May 9, 2006 (see Attachment 1); Transcript of EB-2005-
0550 Receipt of Settlement Proposal, May 9, 2006 (see Attachment 2).

% Union Pre-filed Evidence, Exhibit “A”, Tab 13, Schedule 3

® EB-2005-0550, Decision and Order dated June 12, 2006, page 9; Union Form of Easement for Strathroy to Lobo
NPS 48 Pipeline (see Attachment 3); This form of easement agreement was also proposed by Union and approved
by the Board in connection with the NPS 36 Pipeline in EB-2007-0633 (see excerpt from Union Pre-filed Evidence
at Attachment 4); EB-2007-0633, Decision and Order dated October 19, 2007, page 7.
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agrees at the option of the Transferor to remove the Pipeline from the Lands. The
Transferee and the Transferor shall surrender the easement and the Transferee shall
remove the Pipeline at the Transferor's option where the Pipeline has been
abandoned. The Pipeline shall be deemed to be abandoned where: a) corrosion
protection is no longer applied to the Pipeline, or, b) the Pipeline becomes unfit for
service in accordance with Ontario standards. The Transferee shall, within 60 days
of either of these events occurring, provide the Transferor with notice of the event.
Upon removal of the Pipeline and restoration of the Lands as required by this
agreement, the Transferor shall release the Transferee from further obligations in
respect of restoration. This provision shall apply with respect to all Pipelines in the
Dawn-Trafalgar system on the Transferor’s Lands.”; and,

b. The addition of the following language at the end of Clause 3: “The Transferee
further agrees to make reasonable efforts at its own expense to accommodate
changes in land use on lands adjacent to the easement for the purpose of ensuring
the Pipeline is in compliance with all applicable regulatory requirements in
connection with any such change in use.”

6. Of the two omissions from the form of easement agreement proposed by Union in this
proceeding, the omission of the additional abandonment language is of primary concern to
pipeline landowners. Given that Ontario has virtually no requirements in place for pipeline
abandonment, Union’s proposed language is designed to have the effect of avoiding any
removal of abandoned pipelines in the future regardless of landowner preference.

7. In response to GAPLO’s interrogatories related to pipeline abandonment, Union

suggested the following:
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a. “Union does not anticipate the need to ever abandon this line. However, when
abandoning pipelines, Union complies with all applicable codes and regulations™;
b. “There should be no adverse effects if the pipeline is decommissioned and
abandoned in compliance with legislation, regulations, codes and guidelines™; and,
c. “No. Union will not agree to amend the provisions of the easement. Union will
comply with any applicable TSSA requirements with respect to abandonment of
pipelines.”
8. Union does not provide any support for its suggestion that compliance with legislation,
regulations, codes and guidelines will mean that there will be no adverse effects from pipeline
abandonment in place. Possible adverse effects such as ground subsidence/collapse, residual
contamination and the creation of water conduits are well known to pipeline companies and
landowners’.
9. Union also does not provide details of the currently applicable legislation, regulations,
codes and guidelines, including applicable TSSA (Technical Standards and Safety Authority)
requirements. As noted above, Ontario has virtually nothing in place to deal with the
abandonment of pipelines, leaving pipeline companies more or less free to choose their own
preferred methods of abandonment. The TSSA has published a “Pipeline Abandonment
Checklist” that is nothing but a series of questions for pipeline companies®.
10. Ontario legislation does require compliance by pipeline companies with the CSA
Standard Z662-11, but that standard provides only three brief sub-sections on pipeline

abandonment®. Decisions about how a pipeline is to be abandoned (in place or removed) are

* Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.16(a).

> Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.16(b).

® Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.16(f),(g) and (h).

" See, for example, National Energy Board Pipeline Abandonment Physical Issues Committee — Key Abandonment
Issues Summary (Attachment 5) and Det Norske Veritas Pipeline Abandonment Scoping Study prepared for the
National Energy Board (Attachment 6). Of note, both of these documents were created after the completion of the
EB-2005-0550 proceeding.

& TSSA Pipeline Abandonment Checklist (see Attachment 7).

% CSA 7662-11, Section 10.16.
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left entirely to the pipeline company, and there is no requirement for public participation or even
landowner patrticipation in the pipeline abandonment process.
11. While Union did not address pipeline abandonment in its current application, Union’s
Environmental Management Manual included as part of the Environmental Assessment for the
2006 Hamilton to Milton NPS 48 Pipeline did state that, “Abandonment plans will be developed
after consulting with regulatory authorities, and receipt of approvals where necessary. All
environmental and socioeconomic issues associated with abandonment or decommissioning
options will be considered.”*°
12. Again, Union’s plans for future pipeline abandonment as disclosed in 2006 do not
include landowner involvement in the decision-making process, or even landowner consultation.
Also, GAPLO is aware of no current requirements in Ontario for approvals for pipeline
abandonment.
13. In the absence of a regulatory regime for pipeline abandonment in Ontario, Union’s
proposed easement agreement abandonment language is designed to prevent pipeline removal
on abandonment. Landowners deserve to have the option of pipeline removal on
abandonment, and the language in the easement agreement to be approved by the Board in
this proceeding should reflect that.
14. The other omission from Union’s easement agreement of concern to GAPLO and its
members is Union’s retraction of its commitment to make reasonable efforts at its own expense
to accommodate changes in land use adjacent to the pipeline easement. The proximity of the
Hamilton to Milton pipeline route to the 401 Highway and to large urbanized centres makes this
commitment even more important in the present context than it was in the Strathroy to Lobo
context.
15. At least as far back as 1991, Union has been made aware by landowners of the

development potential of properties along the Hamilton to Milton section. In the Environmental

1% Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.22, Attachment 1, 2006 EA, Section 4.12, Adobe Page 339.
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Assessment prepared in April, 1991 for the Hamilton to Milton section, Acres International
Limited reported that: “Nine landowners stressed that the pipeline would affect the immediate
development potential of their land and it would subsequently lose its value. A further nine
landowners thought that their land had subdivision potential sometime in the future.”*!
16. The Board should protect a landowner’s ability to develop the lands along the Hamilton
to Milton Pipeline corridor in the future by requiring Union to restore its commitment to

facilitating future changes in land use in the form of easement agreement.

INDEPENDENT CONSTRUCTION MONITOR

17. In the area of pipeline construction methodology, Union has taken a major step
backwards from the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline by refusing to agree to the appointment
of an Independent Construction Monitor (“*CMT”).”> Union appears to imply that, as no
significant issues with Union’s construction practices were identified by the CMT in the Strathroy
to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline construction (according to Union), there would be no need to have a
CMT in place for future constructions.

18. Union’s position fails to acknowledge that the CMT position was established for past
pipeline constructions in order to address a history of problems faced by landowners, failures by
contractors to follow proper construction procedures, and damage to the environment.® An
absence of significant issues during the construction of the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline is
not an indication of the absence of a need for the CMT position; it is an indication of the

important role played by the CMT in ensuring that Union’s contractors performed appropriately.

! Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.22, Attachment 1, 1991 EA, Adobe Page 453.

2 Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.5.

3 EB-2005-0550 Written Evidence of lan Goudy (see Attachment 8); EB-2005-0550 Written Evidence of Rick
Kraayenbrink (see Attachment 9).
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19. This is actually reflected in Union’s statement to the Board in its May 11, 2009 letter that,
“the primary role that [the CMT] was to undertake during construction of the Strathroy Lobo
pipeline was that of a compliance monitor.”**
20. Also, it should be noted that the weather and soil conditions for the construction of the
Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline were close to ideal, with the result that the potential for
construction problems was reduced. The Strathroy to Lobo CMT noted in its report that: “it was
clear to the CMT during the project that the standard procedures for construction and clean-up
used by Union Gas were adequate in 2007 for many of the 46 properties (not including
properties owned by Union Gas) within the ROW, especially since the sandy soil types along
the ROW and the weather during the 2007 construction season were very conducive to
construction activities.”*
21. However, the CMT also noted: “Under these near ideal construction conditions, it was
also clear to the CMT that at least seven (15%) of landowners were not satisfied with the
standard procedure used by Union Gas and were willing to advocate for themselves. These
landowners told members of the CMT they felt they were either mislead during the pre-
construction interview process, or their concerns were not addressed to their satisfaction, or
promises made were not fulfilled during the construction and clean-up phases of the work.”*
22. The CMT position is important to ensure proper execution of construction methodology
by Union’s contractors, especially where affected landowners do not extensive knowledge of
pipeline construction. In its final report, the Strathroy to Lobo CMT made a number of
recommendations about landowner education, to which Union responded with the following:
“Union understands that these recommendations result from discussions between the Monitor

and various parties regarding construction practices including the options that a landowner has

regarding construction on their properties and concerns regarding their understanding of the

4 Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.5, Attachment 1.
15 Cordner Science Final Report dated December 18, 2008, page 16 (see report excerpt at Attachment 10).
16 Cordner Science, supra at page 16.
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options available to them. These recommendations are most likely as a result of the above
noted Communications recommendations in that Cordner is likely not aware and did not
participate in any of the pre-construction negotiations between Union and the various landowner
negotiating committees (GAPLO-Strathroy/Lobo and Bartlett Group) during which these matters
were discussed. As well Union has suggested to landowners that if they have any questions
regarding any of the terms of the Letter of Understanding or construction practices that they
should seek the advice of GAPLO or other experts that are available to them. Union does not
believe that Cordner knows or understands the knowledge of construction practices that GAPLO
has developed.”’
23. The involvement of an independent construction monitor in the proposed Hamilton to
Milton NPS 48 Pipeline construction will be all the more important because GAPLO does not
have a significant presence along the affected pipeline route®®. Union does not appear to have
provided for any landowner representation in the oversight of construction for the current
project. For the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline construction, Alan Wood acted as
landowner representative on behalf of GAPLO and its members.
24, Union has also not included as part of its current project application a copy of any Letter
of Understanding to be used with landowners. Union and GAPLO agreed upon the form of
Letter of Understanding to be used for the Strathroy to Lobo NPS 48 Pipeline construction®®,
which included provision for the independent construction monitor, and GAPLO is proposing
that the same form of Letter of Understanding be made a requirement of approval by the Board

of the Hamilton to Milton NPS 48 Pipeline project.

7 Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.5, Attachment 1.

'8 Union does confirm, though, that the Integrity Dig Agreement as endorsed by Union and GAPLO (see
Attachment 11) applies to the land along the Hamilton to Milton section (see Union Response to GAPLO IR
1.30(c)).

19 Letter of Understanding for Landowners on the Proposed NPS 48 Strathroy-Lobo Project (see Attachment 12);
This form of Letter of Understanding was also used by Union in connection with the NPS 36 Pipeline in EB-2007-
0633 (see excerpt from Union Pre-filed Evidence at Attachment 4 above).
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CUMULATIVE EFFECTS ASSESSMENT

25. Union’s decision to step back from previous commitments about pipeline abandonment,
facilitation of future development of lands, and the use of an independent construction monitor
during pipeline construction, indicates a choice to ignore the historical reasons behind the
advancements in construction and landowner relations that Union has made over several
decades.
26. The cumulative effects assessment undertaken by Stantec Consulting Ltd. (“Stantec”) on
behalf of Union also reflects this choice. Stantec did not include consideration of the adjacent
Union pipelines and pipeline easements in its analysis of cumulative effects of the proposed
project, in spite of clear direction to do so in the OEB Environmental Guidelines for the Location,
Construction and Operation of Hydrocarbon Pipelines and Facilities in Ontario.?
27. In response to one of GAPLO’s interrogatories related to the cumulative effects
assessment, Union states that: “No landowner concerns have been addressed regarding soil
damage or crop loss from any previous pipeline construction activities in the Hamilton to Milton
pipeline corridor. Considering that the oldest of the three existing pipelines was constructed
nearly 60 years ago, Union would expect negligible, if any, residual soil damage or crop loss.”**
28. However, Union has been made aware of these cumulative effects of its past
construction projects. In the Environmental Assessment prepared in April, 1991 for the
Hamilton to Milton Corridor, Acres International Limited cited major concerns raised by affected
landowners:

a. “Six landowners reported changes in grade or some effect on drainage such that

they now have wet areas where the land does not dry out as quickly in the spring”;
b. “Six landowners reported some adverse effects on crops, including lower yields and

not growing specialty crops over the pipeline easement”;

% OEB Environmental Guidelines for the Location, Construction and Operation of Hydrocarbon Pipelines and
Facilities in Ontario, 6™ Edition 2011, pages 44 et ff.
2! Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.28(d).
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c. “Poor separation of topsoil was discussed by 3 landowners”;

d. “Increased stoniness was mentioned by 2 landowners”; and,

e. “Two landowners were upset with activities of the construction crew”.??

29. In 2006, Stantec prepared an Environmental Assessment for the Hamilton to Milton
section and noted the following cumulative effects resulting from an expanding pipeline corridor:

a. “Soil compaction/structure concerns, leading to reduced crop yields, as similar areas
are reworked during repetitive construction activities (e.g., the work area for the 1%
line is often used as the spoil area for the next line). Historically, when the 1957
pipeline was installed, little or no restoration work was carried out after pipe
installation. However, construction practices have vastly improved since then
(including wet soils shut-down policy, top soil stripping and clean-up practices) and
crop reduction has been lessened (ESG, 1998)”;

b. “Increase in the easement widths can place limitations on the options for which the
land can be used (e.g., loss of building potential)”;

c. “Ongoing inconvenience to landowners during construction activities by successive
pipeline installation and their maintenance”; and,

d. “Fragmentation/nibbling of woodlots such that the size is reduced to such an extent it
has little ecological importance and often there is a loss of the linkage between
natural areas.””®

30. Although Union’s Soil/Crop Monitoring Program has not included the Hamilton to Milton
section specifically*, crop yield loss of up to 40% has been identified by Union in locations

along the nearby Milton to Parkway NPS 48 section”®>. No data was provided for crop yields

over the pipelines constructed by Union Gas prior to the 1970s before Union had implemented

22 Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.22, Attachment 1, 1991 EA, Adobe Page 452.

2% Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.22, Attachment 1, 2006 EA, Section 6.1, Adobe Page 131.

2 Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.28(f).

% pipeline Construction and Impacts on Agricultural Lands: A Historical Review of the Union Gas Soil/Crop
Monitoring Program, ESG International, July, 1998, Table 4, Adobe Page 18 (see Attachment 13).
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any of the improvements to construction practices cited in its interrogatory response to
GAPLO?.
31. As a condition of approval of the current project, Union should be required to complete a
cumulative effects assessment that includes consideration of the adjacent pipelines (including
residual soil damage and crop yield loss) and the overall impact of the further expansion of the
Hamilton to Milton corridor, including the effect that multiple pipelines within the corridor will
have on future abandonment activities.

DEPTH OF COVER MONITORING PROGRAM

32. Union has advised GAPLO that it is, “in the process of preparing a Standard Operating
Practice for depth of cover and will file this document in confidence with the Board once
complete.”” GAPLO is requesting that the Board make it a condition of approval of the current
project that Union prepare the Standard Operating Practice for depth of cover and that it be
provided to GAPLO and all landowners along the Hamilton to Milton section.

33. It is GAPLO’s understanding that a written procedure to address depth of cover has
been a regulatory requirement in Ontario since as early as 2008, and Union has suggested no
rationale for maintaining confidentiality over its proposed Standard Operating Practice.
Landowners have a direct and immediate interest in knowing how Union monitors depth of
cover over its pipelines and how it will remedy specific situations of insufficient depth of cover.

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

34. To summarize, GAPLO will be requesting that the Board impose the following as

conditions of approval of the Hamilton to Milton NPS 48 Pipeline:

2% Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.28(f).

2" Union Response to GAPLO IR 1.2(a).

% TSSA Qil and Gas Pipeline Systems Code Adoption Document FS-121-08 dated January 14, 2008 (see
Attachment 14); TSSA Oil and Gas Pipeline Systems Code Adoption Document Amendment FS-196-12 dated
November 1, 2012 (see Attachment 15).
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a. That the form of agreement that Union has offered or will offer to affected
landowners will be the form of easement agreement approved by the Board in EB-
2005-0550; and,

b. That Union will use the Letter of Understanding filed by Union with the Board in EB-
2005-0550 for the current project, including provision for the appointment of an
independent construction monitor for the construction.

35. GAPLO has also identified two steps that the Board should require Union to take
immediately and prior to any further consideration by the Board of Union’s application:

a. Union should be required to complete and file in this proceeding a cumulative effects
assessment that includes consideration of the adjacent pipelines (including residual
soil damage and crop yield loss) and the overall impact of the further expansion of
the Hamilton to Milton corridor, including the effect that multiple pipelines within the
corridor will have on future abandonment activities; and,

b. Union should be required to prepare and file in this proceeding its proposed
Standard Operating Practice for depth of cover.

36. This written evidence statement was prepared under the direction of lan Goudy, Rick

Kraayenbrink and Alan Wood.

January 9, 2015
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Thursday, March 5, 2015

-—-—- Upon commencing at 9:38 a.m.

MS. HARE: Please be seated.

Good morning. My name is Marika Hare, and I will be
the presiding member today in the matter of an application
brought by Union Gas. With me on the panel is Board Member
Ellen Fry.

The application brought by Union Gas sought approval
for approval to construct approximately 20 kilometres of
pipeline and associated facilities from the Hamilton valve
site to the Milton valve site, leave to construct a new
compressor and associated facilities at the existing Lobo
compressor station, the recovery of the cost consequences
of all facilities associated with the development of the
proposed Dawn-Parkway expansion project, and approval of an
accounting order to establish the Dawn-Parkway expansion
project deferral account, which will include all of the
facilities associated with the pipeline and compressor
station.

This application was assigned docket number EB-2014-
0261. Following a settlement conference between the
applicant and a number of parties, a settlement agreement
was filed with the OEB on February 27th, 2015. This is a
partial settlement, in that, of the 11 issues on the Issues
List, eight have been completely settled and three remain
unsettled.

The purpose of today's hearing is for this Panel to

review the settlement agreement and to hear the matters not

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAEPLA-PLC 203

settled, all of which relate to land matters. It is our
understanding that the only party with an interest in
pursuing these issues is the Gas Pipeline Landowners of
Ontario.

May I have appearances, please?

APPEARANCES:

MR. SMITH: Good morning, members of the Board. My
name is Crawford Smith. I appear as counsel for Union Gas
in this matter. And with me to my left are Karen Hockin
and Mark Kitchen from Union Gas, and to my right Mark
Murray, also from Union Gas.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: John Goudy, counsel for the Gas
Pipeline Landowners of Ontario, GAPLO.

And also here from GAPLO are Ian Goudy and Rick
Kraayenbrink.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Good morning, Panel. Mark
Rubenstein, counsel for the School Energy Coalition.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: Good morning, Ljuba Djurdjevic,
counsel for Board Staff, and with me on behalf of Board
Staff are Zora Crnojacki and Pascale Duguay.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

And I understand there are some people on the
telephone, on the teleconference?

MS. BLANCHARD: Good morning, Madam Chair. It's Emma

Blanchard on behalf of Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters.

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720
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MS. HARE: Thank you, Ms. Blanchard.

Anyone else? Yes?

MS. KYRIAZIS: Hi, I am Joanna Kyriazis. I am here on
behalf of APPrO.

MS. HARE: APPrO? Thank you.

Then Ms. Blanchard will -- Ms. Djurdjevic, will Ms.
Blanchard be able to send an e-mail to you in the event she
has any questions?

MS. DJURDJEVIC: Yes, she will.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

Mr. Smith, then, the Panel would like to provide you a
short overview -- we'd like you to provide us a short
overview of the settled issues, and the settled issues we
would like to hear first, but -- well, you look like you
want to say something.

MR. SMITH: I can't help it. That is always what I
look like. Why don't I let you finish, and then I will
maybe --

MS. HARE: Thank you. So first I would like to let
you know that the Panel found the settlement agreement to
be lacking in content in some important matters. It is not
a standalone document that is understandable without the
benefit of going back into the evidence, so more content
would have been helpful.

Now, as it turns out, the Board Staff's submission
does provide the detail that was missing on three issues
where we felt there was a lack of sufficient explanation,

and I will go through each of these with you.
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The settlement agreement on Issue No. 2, dealing with
the project economics, is incomplete, as the indication is
that the project is at a profitability index of 0.39. The
Staff's submission explains in detail that there are three
stages of analysis, and that when the stage 3 analysis is
considered, the project showed a positive net present
value.

Issue No. 3 in the Board Staff's submission provides
additional information on the issue of short-term and long-
term rates, and in particular the concern over contingency
costs and capacity turnback.

Issue No. 10 in the Board Staff's submission provides
greater clarity on the caveat about parties being able to
take any position with respect to the adjustment to the
deferral account balance.

And lastly, Issue No. 5 in the settlement agreement
requires some additional wording. I don't think there is a
problem there, but the issue as worded is whether the
facilities appropriately address the OEB environmental
guidelines for hydrocarbon pipelines, but the settlement
agreement only comments on the commitment to undertake a
post-construction comparative crop yield study.

So I bring these matters to your attention so that
your overview of the settlement agreement can incorporate
Union's thoughts on these matters. If consistent with the
Board Staff's submission, please state this for the
completeness of the record or elaborate to ensure our

understanding of what is being proposed.
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So I ask you now to present the settlement agreement
with those comments in mind.

MR. SMITH: I will do that. Thank you very much.

That is extremely helpful to receive that guidance from the
Board.

The only observation I was going to make is I know
from the hearing plan that the next item is to identify
those issues which remain outstanding, and I think, subject
to the Board's thoughts, that the easiest way to do that
might be, as we go through the settlement agreement, I can
just highlight them and we can circle back with those if
necessary.

But why don't I go through the settlement agreement as
you have proposed and touch on the points that you have
raised?

MS. HARE: Thank you.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. SMITH:

MR. SMITH: So the settlement agreement, as indicated
by the Board at the outset, it is a partial settlement and
properly characterized as such, but on the non-GAPLO-
related issues it is, I think, fairly characterized as a
complete or full settlement, and even on the GAPLO issues,
as we will come to, those issues which are outstanding,
even in respect of those we have a partial -- a partial
settlement.

So the project as identified is an expansion project
of Union's Dawn-Parkway system, and it involved really two

major types of facilities, 20 kilometres of pipeline and
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changes to the Lobo station, the addition of a 44,500-
horsepower compressor, and some changes that needed to be
made to the Lobo A and B compressors in order to maximize
the capacity bringing -- that is facilitated by this
expansion project.

By way of overview, the project is being driven by
demands that have been contracted for, M12 demands, and are
really the result of changes to the natural gas market in
North America, which the Board will be well familiar with
from its recent Natural Gas Market Review and also from
previous Union Gas applications dating back to the
Brantford-Kirkwall project and the Parkway D project that
the Board heard, I guess, now a couple of years ago.

So really what we are talking about is an expansion
project intended to meet contracted demands and which are
facilitating access to short-haul transportation coming
from primarily Marcellus shale in the upper northeast
United States. And so that is the context and the dynamic
and the reason why this project is so important, and it is
part and parcel of a series of projects that the Board has
been hearing a lot about from Union and, frankly, that the
NEB is hearing -- has heard a lot about out in Calgary.

So let me just go through the settlement agreement.

Item 1 here, no issue, I think, at all. The
facilities are needed to meet the forecasted demands, which
are reflected in the application, so I don't think that
there is any issue with respect to that issue.

Item 2, which relates to the economic tests as
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outlined in the filing guidelines, and this was an issue
that the Board had identified, and you are quite right. I
thought you might raise this issue when you saw this
settlement agreement.

Let me cut to it; we agree with the Board Staff's
submission. I think it was helpful in pointing out what I
would have pointed out, which is the stage 1 analysis
results in the profitability index that you see. But of
course the economic guidelines also contemplate stages 2
and 3, and those stages are detailed in the evidence and
they arrive at the conclusions that Board Staff has set
out.

One reason you see the stage 1 analysis where it is,
one obvious reason, the profitability or the NPV of the
project is calculated based upon existing rates looking at
depreciated facilities. So you have existing rates which
are based upon the existing Dawn-Parkway system, which, in
the main, is now older and depreciated.

What you have here is a new rate which will come about
as a result of the inclusion of these new facilities, and
an increase in those rates. And the ratepayers who bear
primary responsibility for those increases -- i.e. the Ml12
shippers -- have agreed to the rate increases.

So I think that provides you with the additional
information. If not, no doubt you will let me know. But
we agree with Board Staff's submission.

This brings me to the next issue, which is Issue 3,

and I have talked about the rate impacts already. There
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are rates for M12 shippers which are going up, and there
are some rate decreases because of the way the cost
allocation works out on the other side for smaller-volume
customers.

Let me say, with respect to the items that are
addressed here, there are two things.

The first is contingency. The contingency that you
see associated with the application is a little bit larger
than you see in some other Union projects; in fact, I think
every other Union project.

The reason for that increase is because this project
requires approval from the Niagara Escarpment Commission,
which is obviously an unknown. We believe it is going to
happen, but it is an unknown and it is an additional hurdle
that doesn't come up in most applications. And so that
reflects the larger contingency.

Ultimately, where the parties landed on this is that
they would reduce the contingency by 25 million, which
results in a reduction in rates. But there is, as the
Board will have seen, a deferral account contemplated by
the application.

There is nothing exceptional about that deferral
account. The settlement agreement that overarches Union's
IRM framework provides for a capital pass-through
mechanism, and deferral accounts to track over- and under-
spending, which of course itself would be subject to a
prudence review.

So what the parties have agreed to here is that,
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consistent with the deferral account, that will reduce the
contingency by the $25 million. It will be spread out
between Lobo and the pipeline costs.

Parties are free to take whatever position they want
to take when that deferral account comes to clearing. I
obviously don't know what that number is going to be, but
it is all without prejudice to people's position as to the
prudence of the way in which Union undertook the project.

MS. HARE: So can you confirm that the reduction
represents a return to what a norm would be for contingency
percentage of a project?

MR. SMITH: There isn't a single level of contingency,
so it's not -- it's not quite as direct as saying a 25
percent reduction takes you to this level of contingency
and this level of contingency is consistent across all
Union projects.

What I can say is that the reduction of contingency
brings you within the range of other Union projects. I
don't have the specific percentage off the top of my head,
but it would be -- they are not all the same, but it would
be in that normal range.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Let me just turn to capacity, because the
capacity turnback was an issue. There was some evidence
filed on behalf of certain of the intervenors relating to
capacity turnback.

Obviously, one of the things that is happening as a

result of the changing dynamics is that people are using
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the Dawn-Parkway system and Dawn-Kirkwall loops a little
bit differently than they may have in the past. There is
identified in Mr. Rosenkranz's evidence and in the evidence
from ICF that Union filed affirmatively in its case,
comments with respect to capacity turnback and the
potential. In a nutshell, there is a disagreement, or was
identified in the evidence a potential disagreement with
respect to the risk associated with potential capacity
turnback.

Now, this is a tricky issue because the parties also
have in place the Parkway delivery obligation settlement,
and you might recall that there is an obligation to deliver
gas to Parkway and the parties reached a comprehensive
settlement approved by the Board to, over time, reduce that
commitment if -- in part, if turnback becomes available, or
it may be that other ways need to be found to reduce that
obligation.

So there are a number of moving parts here. The long
and the short of it was that parties are comfortable, as
reflected in the settlement, that whatever the risk is,
it's not going to materialize during the IRM term.

And so there is going to be a rebasing in 2019. The
proceeding will probably be a bit before that, but Union is
going to have to rebase in 2019 and this is -- we will all
have a better view, presumably, of where this is headed at
that time.

And this is all to protect intervenors and anybody

else, including Union, with respect to the position they
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may want to take as to how to manage that turnback risk.

And there are proposals in Mr. Rosenkranz's evidence, I'm
sure, that will evolve and Union may take a position down
the road. But that is what that is intended to deal with.

Item number 4, this is an issue of facilities. There
were a number of facilities and non-facilities alternatives
discussed at some length in Union's prefiled evidence, and
those have been adequately addressed.

Let me turn to item number 5. Here, again, we agree
with the Board Staff's submission. So I don't think I have
anything to add. It may have been -- and I obviously
accept full responsibility for this -- that this is drafted
too narrowly, because this really zeroes in on a GAPLO
issue, and it zeroes in on the issue of crop yield and the
impact of the project on crop yield over time. And so
Union has agreed to undertake a post-construction
crop yield study.

And then the next issue is here we have a complete
settlement on it, but it is -- sorry, when I say the next
issue -- the next sentence is the letter of understanding.
Union has agreed to offer the letter of understanding that
is attached to the settlement agreement to all affected
landowners.

You will hear about this in evidence, but the letter
of understanding deals with a number of things, but it
deals with, essentially, Union's construction practices in
the field, and it deals also with the issue of

compensation.
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Now, compensation is not an issue for the Board in
these matters; unlike storage, it is not an issue for the
Board in transmission projects. But the letter of
understanding does deal with that.

Let me turn to item 6. This is an item on which you are
going to be hearing evidence today. There is no issue with
respect to the pipeline route itself. The issue relates to
construction -- essentially to construction matters, and
let me just summarize it this way.

As I understand it, in GAPLO's evidence it raises a
number of issues with respect to construction. One of the
things that it had sought was the appointment of an
independent construction monitor, and it is that issue that
is, in fact, fully settled.

So Union has agreed -- the parties have agreed to the
appointment of an independent construction monitor, and the
parameters of that appointment are specified in paragraph -
- or in Issue 6. There will be other things you hear today
about other construction practices, whether they fit into
the letter of understanding or otherwise, which are not in
agreement, and that is what you are going to hear about.

Item 7, the form of easement agreement offered by
Union, or that will be offered, this is a partial
settlement, and the wording here is a little bit inelegant,
so let me just help you.

There is a form of agreement that is a form of
easement agreement that is attached or included in Union's

prefiled evidence. My understanding is there is no concern
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So the first

the event there is a change in the future use of the

property adjacent to the pipeline easement, which can h

an impact on the classification,

amongst other things,

with two exceptions,

what would happen in

ave

of

the pipeline. And so you see in the settlement agreement

under item 7 that we have been able to work out specific

wording to address that issue.

Where we had no luck is on the issue of pipeline

abandonment, so the question of what happens down the road

in the event of pipeline abandonment.

And that is an issue

that you are going to be hearing issue and argument about.

So that is what is captured in item 7.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you. But let

question.

MR. SMITH: Yes.

me ask a

MS. HARE: In the text that you provided that you say

is settled, can you explain what is meant by the phrase:

"... provided that the Transferee may leave the

Pipeline exposed in crossing a ditch, stream,

gorge or similar object where approval has been

obtained from the Ontario Energy Board or other

Provincial Board or authority having jurisdiction

in the premises."”

Can you please explain for us what that means?

MR. SMITH: I will give you the example of where this

could arise. I mean,

(613) 564-2727
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cross a ditch or a gully or some other water-crossing area,
and it would be the case in that instance that you would
need, for example, approval from the Niagara Escarpment
Commission for that exposure. And so the parties are
recognizing that if that, it turns out, is necessary, that
it is acceptable to the landowner provided the requisite

approval is obtained.

It is -- I think it is fair to say it is reflected
here in the future use agreement, but it is -- in effect,
it may not be driven by future use, necessarily. It could

simply be that that routing is necessary, and it could be
that there is a ditch that needs to be crossed, and the
parties are recognizing that that is okay, providing you
get the requisite approval to do that.

MS. HARE: But I don't understand. The pipeline will
be exposed permanently? Or if there is some other work
contemplated, say, five years from now?

MR. SMITH: It could be permanent.

MS. HARE: And so what is the reference to the Ontario
Energy Board approval? In approving the route at this
point, I don't know which parts are exposed or not, so what
exactly am I being asked to approve?

So let me ask another question before you answer the
first.

MR. SMITH: Sorry. Sorry, yes.

MS. HARE: Which is: The standard is for the pipeline
to be underground with a certain amount of cover?

MR. SMITH: Yes, yes.
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MS. HARE: At whose request is this, that in a ditch
or crossing, whatever, it would be exposed?

MR. SMITH: It would be the Minister of Transportation
or the Niagara Escarpment Commission in this case.

MS. HARE: Has that happened before?

MR. SMITH: No. I see -- it appears that there have
been instances where Union has attached the pipe to the
underside of a bridge crossing a gully --

MS. HARE: Yes, I understand that, so i1s that what is
meant by this?

MR. SMITH: Yes. And that has happened, and approval
from the MTO has had to have been obtained, and that
approval has been obtained. So that is what is
contemplated here.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MS. FRY: Just to follow on, so can you just follow
that thought along and explain, if that were to occur, sort
of how would you contemplate the process of seeking
whatever type of approval from the Ontario Energy Board?

MR. SMITH: Let me answer the question this way. It
is not envisioned that approval of that would be either
necessary or sought from the Ontario Energy Board. The
Board, when it grants leave to construct, generally
approves the route, but this specific -- this specific
approval to attach it to a bridge or leave it exposed is
not something that we are asking this Board to approve, and
I don't think -- thus it is not contemplated that we would

be coming back to the Board for that.
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So I think it may be a good question that I think
about whether or not the words "Ontario Energy Board,"
which have historically been included in this clause,
really ought to be there, and I don't --

MS. FRY: 1Is that something --

MR. SMITH: -- have the answer to that. I might I
need --

MS. FRY: -- is that something that --

MR. SMITH: -- a couple minutes to think about --

MS. FRY: -- you can think about and get back to us
later?

MR. SMITH: Yes. Yeah. Just -- and this is a clause

that has found itself in previous agreements, but I think
you have identified a good point.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Item 8, here again we have a complete
settlement. There isn't an issue with respect to the
current technical and -- current technical and safety
requirements, and there is again a further reference to
offering the letter of understanding attached to the
settlement agreement.

MS. HARE: Well, that actually confused me a bit,
because that is the same agreement that in Issue 6 has
clearly not been accepted, and here -- you know, maybe if I
had looked at the words a bit longer, but the implication
is that that is in agreement. Maybe it should say that it
-—- maybe it should say something that it is the sections of

appendix 4 that deal with the technical and safety
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requirements that are not in dispute.

MR. SMITH: It could say that. I think that the focus
here is that Union will offer, at a minimum, the Hamilton-
to-Milton letter of understanding. So I think what we are
-- today there is no dispute that, at a minimum, we are
going to offer what has been appended.

What we are going to have a dispute about is should
that letter of understanding include additional items. So
there is no proposal to take anything out.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Adequate consultation with other
potentially affected parties, everyone is in agreement that
there has been adequate consultation.

Item 10, the parties agree that this meets the IRM
capital pass-through mechanism. And as I was reflecting on
this, there is one other item I Jjust wanted to draw
specifically to your attention.

It is not in dispute, but the application seeks
approval of the deferral account that I have mentioned
already. There is no specific paragraph in the settlement
agreement that says the parties agree to the establishment
of the deferral account. What it says instead is that the
parties agree that the deferral account will capture the
over/under-spending identified.

I just wanted to draw to your attention that that will
be an item that we will be seeking Board approval in
relation to.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. SMITH: And then item 11, here we have a partial
settlement, and so we have the parties acknowledging the
condition of approval in appendix E of the Board's Decision
and Order regarding the Brantford-Kirkwall pipeline. So
that is unaffected by this settlement.

MS. HARE: Yes, but I didn't understand what that
paragraph meant.

MR. SMITH: Well, my understanding of the intention of
the paragraph is the following. The Brantford-Kirkwall
condition of approval -- that condition of approval in
relation to the Brantford-Kirkwall project is, in a
nutshell, that Union will not commence construction of that
project until the NEB has done a number of things, and
TransCanada has given notice to Union that it intends to
proceed with the Kings North project.

I think parties wanted, for greater certainty,
confirmation that this project going ahead and receiving
approval from this Board would in no way impact that prior
condition of approval.

If it's of assistance, I don't think it does, because
the prior condition of approval is a standalone condition
and a standalone Board decision, but --

MS. HARE: Well, that was my confusion, because I am
familiar with that condition and I couldn't see the
relevance of it here. But maybe the wording isn't clear.
It assumes a level of understanding --

MR. SMITH: Okay. We can spell it out further -- or

if Mr. Rubenstein wants to say something about it. It
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wasn't his proposal, but it was full belt-and-suspenders,
and I don't even think appropriate in the circumstances,
necessarily, because you did have the prior condition of
approval which was very explicit about what is going to
happen and when in relation to Kings North.

I mean, it was specifically -- well, it may be that
APPrO wants to speak to this if the Board has any questions
in relation to it -- or, alternatively, since we are going
to be thinking about the other item at the break, I can
have an offline discussion and see whether either this is
necessary or, 1f it's necessary, we can put in just some
additional wording the way I have articulated, so that it
is perfectly clear what is intended.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: If I can just add one thing, I think
it is important that this section be read in conjunction
with the wording with respect to Issue 10.

My understanding was because a similar condition was
not put in place with respect to the Vaughan loop, some
parties wanted to ensure that just -- while the fact that
there is no explicit condition that construction cannot
start before those downstream facilities come into effect
with respect to this project, that this wouldn't affect the
conditions that were put in place in the Brantford-Kirkwall
with respect to the Kings North project.

MS. FRY: One other question on the conditions of
approval. You are talking about the standard conditions of

approval.
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Now, in the IR responses, there was an indication that
at that point, Union was seeking an extra year to start
construction beyond what would normally be standard.

I just want to clarify. Does the settlement of Issue
11 mean that Union is no longer seeking the extra year?

MR. SMITH: No, it is the opposite. We are still
seeking the extra year, and we understand that parties
don't have any objection to that.

MS. FRY: Okay, but it's not included in the
settlement?

MR. SMITH: No, we will have to reflect that.

MS. FRY: Well, you know, if it is in effect an
addition to the settlement, obviously the Board would want
confirmation that all the other parties to the settlement
agree to that.

MR. SMITH: For sure.

MS. HARE: Thank you. Does that conclude your
presentation of the settled issues?

MR. SMITH: Only if it is of assistance to identify
for the Board that there is this reference back to the
GAPLO issues in Issues 6 and 7. I think I touched on those
already, but I think this will be of assistance.

The GAPLO issues can be dealt with, I think, in one of
two ways -- and Mr. Goudy will obviously speak to this if
he disagrees. But I think they can be dealt with in one of
two ways.

Possibility one is as a condition of approval.

Possibility two is by inclusion in the letter of
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understanding.

And it doesn't much matter which way you go, but the
reason why I draw this to your attention is -- and this was
addressed when Union put in a letter at the time the Board
was settling the Issues List.

The Board has previously addressed the issue of
approving a form of letter of understanding, and the
inclusion of that on the Issues List. And the Board
declined to do so because the letter of understanding
addresses compensation in part, and that is not an area in
which the Board has jurisdiction as it relates to
transmission facilities.

So that is why I say it is -- we are not trying to
raise any technical impediment, but it is important to
understand that the letter of understanding deals with
things the Board squarely has within its jurisdiction, i.e.
construction and some other things that are dealt with in
the statute differently.

So that is why I say you could either deal with this
by -- if you were to agree with Mr. Goudy, as conditions of
approval, or you could deal with it and just make it
explicit in your Decision that you were incorporating them
into the letter of understanding, you know, as those
matters relate to non-compensation issues.

MS. FRY: So that is helpful essentially as a preview
of what you are going to cover in your closing argument
when all the parties are -- I assume.

MR. SMITH: Yes. I mean, I don't think Mr. Goudy is
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going to be saying -- as I understand the issues that are
going to be in dispute, I don't think Mr. Goudy is going to
be saying: Here are some compensation-related issues I
would like you to approve. And indeed, his correspondence
says exactly the opposite; he says we are not addressing
compensation-related issues.

It just technically comes to your approval. Do you
want to put -- if you were to agree with him, and we are
obviously going to suggest you shouldn't. But if you were
to agree with him, you could either put it as a condition
of approval, which is -- you can attach it as a condition
of approval, or you can say explicitly you are going to be
offering the letter of understanding and you should include
it in the letter of understanding, bearing in mind that our
decision as it relates to the letter of understanding does
not address compensation-related matters.

MS. FRY: We do appreciate the preview. But obviously
you will want to deal with this fulsomely, as will the
other counsel, in closing argument.

MR. SMITH: Yes, yes.

MS. HARE: Just give us a minute, please.

So on the issue of the matters being raised by GAPLO,
we would like to hear the substance of the issues and we
will hear, then, argument about whether or not any of those
will be handled through conditions of approval or the
letter of understanding in final argument.

So what we want to concentrate on today is what is the

issue that is being raised, so things like why -- why does
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Union object. That is what we want to talk about, and we
will then determine whether or not it will be captured
through conditions or the letter of understanding.

MR. SMITH: Absolutely. Do you want me to deal with
that now or -- because I think that was what was going to
be the subject of the oral evidence and my friend's cross-
examination and then argument. But I can tell you, if this
is helpful, so that you know where this is headed, that
there are -- I would characterize them as falling into two
buckets.

Bucket number one is abandonment, and that is the one
issue, what is going to happen on abandonment should the
Board say something about that today.

And then the bucket number two is Mr. Goudy circulated
-- and I am sure he will be marking this as an exhibit --
yesterday or the day before a table that compares certain
sections of the Hamilton-to-Milton letter of understanding
on the left-hand side and then has on the right-hand side -
- 1t is up on the screen -- has on the right-hand side
"proposed changes."

So what you are going to be hearing today is the
existing letter of understanding and the proposed changes
that Mr. Goudy's clients would like. And then obviously we
will deal with the -- I can tell you our position now or we
can go through the evidentiary portion and then have
argument about why Union objects. So I am in your hands
how you'd like me to do it.

But in terms of identifying what I expect you are
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going to be hearing and what the issues are in dispute, the
issues in dispute are abandonment and the specific clauses
that GAPLO would like included in the letter of
understanding.

MS. HARE: Right, but what we wanted to do today was
not focus on the wording but on the issue of soybean
nematodes, why is that an issue, why is Union not agreeing
to it, the issue of well water testing results being
available or not, and then we will figure out where it is
placed.

MR. SMITH: I agree entirely. I don't think this is a
forum, nor do I think it is a productive use of your time,
to be going through a drafting exercise, and that is not
what is intended. ©Union's position is that the letter of
understanding -- and you are going to hear evidence of this
-— Union's position is the letter of understanding, which
is the same letter of understanding that was offered to all
28 landowners and accepted by all of them except for Mr.
Fagundes -- who was ultimately expropriated, as the Board
will be familiar. And that letter of understanding that we
are proposing in this case is the letter of understanding
that they offered most recently in Brantford-Kirkwall and
was accepted.

As to why the specific changes have not been approved,
it is safe to say -- and I will be calling this evidence --
I anticipate you will be hearing that the letter of
understanding is the result of many years of -- it started

-- 1t started decades ago. It was a very short document,
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and it was sort of a: Here is how we are going to deal
with landowners. And it developed over time through
settlements and agreements and what have you, and it became
essentially an unworkable document, not particularly
intelligible, not user-friendly, that didn't reflect --
from Union's perspective, anyway —-- its existing
construction practices and best industry practices.

It went back to the drawing board, created the letter
of understanding that ultimately it offered in the first
Brantford-Kirkwall project, and that is what it would like
to use going forward.

Now, the Board has said in other cases when it comes
to form -- approving the form of agreement it is -- all you
are doing is approving the form of agreement, and specific
negotiation may take place down the road. And nobody is
saying that isn't going to happen, but when it comes to the
form of agreement we think, from a drafting perspective and
a substantive perspective, this is the best form of
agreement.

And I expect my friend is going to ask questions about
soybean nematodes, and we have a witness panel who can
speak directly to that issue much more effectively than I
can. That is for sure.

So I have confirmed with my friend that he intends to
put the sections to the witnesses, and they are -- they
will give you their answer as to why we think it is not
appropriate, and obviously you will ultimately make a

decision on that.
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1 But it is not a drafting exercise. We hope it is a
2 substantive exercise. We hope we have a substantive

3 position for you.

4 MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.
5 Okay. I would like to hear comments from other
6 parties on the settlement agreement, then. Let's leave

7 GAPLO to last.

8 Mr. Rubenstein, any comments?

9 MR. RUBENSTEIN: No additional comments to what Mr.
10  Smith --

11 MS. HARE: Ms. Kyriazis?

12 MS. KYRIAZIS: I don't have any additional comments

13 either.

14 MS. HARE: Thank you.

15 Ms. Blanchard, on the telephone?

16 MS. BLANCHARD: ©None, thank you, Madam Chair.

17 MS. HARE: Thank you. Board Staff?

18 MS. DJURDJEVIC: Board Staff is satisfied with the

19 responses given by the applicant in respect of these

20 submissions that were made in Board Staff's submission.

21 MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

22 Mr. Goudy?

23 SUBMISSIONS BY MR. JOHN GOUDY:

24 MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

25 On Issue 5, Madam Chair, that is the issue dealing

26 with the environmental guidelines for hydrocarbon
27 pipelines. So as set out in GAPLO's written evidence,

28 there was a specific concern raised by GAPLO about whether

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAERLA-PLC 228

or not Union had satisfied the environmental guidelines.

So GAPLO has agreed with Union to resolve that specific
concern on the basis of the changes that are set out in the
settlement agreement.

GAPLO doesn't take any position with respect to
whether Union has otherwise satisfied the environmental
guidelines. That is for the Board to determine, and GAPLO
doesn't take any position on that.

On Issue 8 -- I think this follows on from the
discussion that you just had with my friend -- GAPLO is
proposing specific, substantive changes. The changes are
proposed to the letter of understanding, but -- and this
will be dealt with in argument, but it could be done
through the letter of understanding or it could be done
through conditions of approval.

They are construction methodology items that are
within the Board's jurisdiction, and GAPLO is requesting
specific items to be required of Union Gas.

So Issue 8 deals with -- again, 1t was a specific
aspect of the technical and safety requirements. I believe
-— I believe it was depth of cover. Union agreed that it
would offer to the landowners the entire letter of
understanding that is proposed, at a minimum.

For the purpose of this issue, GAPLO was interested in
particular in only certain items of the letter of
understanding. GAPLO wanted assurance that Union would be
offering certain provisions dealing with depth of coverage

to the landowners, and Union has agreed to that.
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So it is the case that for this particular issue
GAPLO's concern was with specific parts of the letter of
understanding, but I am not sure that it needs to be
spelled out more specifically in this.

I mean, GAPLO did seek, at a minimum, that the entire
letter of understanding as proposed would be offered to
landowners, subject to the individual issues that we will
be raising today.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: 1In terms of -- in terms of how -- to
the extent that the Board decides to make or require any of
the changes that GAPLO is proposing, I agree with my friend
that clearly there are two categories. One is the
abandonment clause in the easement agreement, and one is
the letter of understanding issues, or the construction
methodology issues.

We can leave the question of how the Board deals with
the construction methodology issues for argument.

As far as the easement goes, it's one particular
clause that GAPLO is concerned with, and that, I would
suggest, simply falls within the Board's responsibility to
make an order under section 97.

So it's not -- it's not necessarily a condition of
approval. I suppose it would end up being a condition of
approval, but the Board will need to make an order either
rejecting or approving with modifications the form of
easement that has been offered or is to be offered to

landowners.
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I guess that, generally, that does fall -- that is
covered by a condition of approval, that Union shall offer
to landowners the form of agreement that was approved by
the Board. GAPLO is going to be suggesting a specific
change to the form approved the Board.

Those are all of my comments.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

Mr. Smith, has Union started offering that easement
agreement, and have any landowners signed the easement at
this point?

MR. SMITH: It's been offered; we don't have
signatures yet.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you. So, Mr. Smith, there
have been a couple areas where some changes to the
settlement agreement should be made. I think they are
minor.

It would be the Issue 7, with the reference to the
Ontario Energy Board, and perhaps rewording of Issue 11,
that second paragraph. I think that was it.

MS. FRY: Also the clarification of this construction
start date issue.

MS. HARE: Right. Right, absolutely.

MR. SMITH: Yes.

MS. FRY: Also, if I might add, there were certain
clarifications in accordance with Board Staff's submission.

MR. SMITH: Yes.

MS. FRY: And I don't think we have quite all the

intervenors who said: Yea verily, we agree with that.
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MS. HARE: That is what I was going to get to, Ms. Fry

MS. FRY: Okay. Sorry.

MS. HARE: -- which is that I don't know if you will
be able to do that over the break today. But at some
point, I think you would have to contact the other parties
to the settlement agreement to ensure that they are still
in agreement with the settlement as per the changes that
we've discussed.

I think they are minor, from what you've said, and I
think the other parties here don't have a problem. But in
fairness, I think the ones that aren't here should have an
opportunity --

MR. SMITH: No, no, I do not disagree. I was just
pausing over, in my own mind, how quickly I could do that
administratively, get an e-mail out.

Maybe I will get a response today, but I can't
guarantee that is where I end up.

MS. HARE: Okay. That's fine. Mr. Smith, could you
please bring your panel forward, introduce them, and we
will have them affirmed?

MR. SMITH: Thank you very much. Yes, I would like to
do that.

So if I can please ask the panel to come forward and
be seated, I will introduce them. And if they can be
affirmed, that would be great.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: With the Panel's permission, I will

take my leave.
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MS. HARE: Thank you.

MS. BLANCHARD: I will as well, Madam Chair. It is
Emma Blanchard on the line.

MS. HARE: Thank you, Ms. Blanchard. You are going to
leave as well, Ms. Kyriazis?

MS. KYRIAZIS: Yes.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

MR. SMITH: So we have with us today from my --
closest to me is Mr. Scott Walker. To his left is Roger
Piett. To his left, William "Billy" Wachsmuth. To his
left, Tony Vadlja. And then to his left Dave Wesenger of
Stantec.

And if I could please ask them to be affirmed by the
Board, that would be appreciated.

UNION GAS LIMITED - PANEL 1

Scott Walker, Affirmed

Roger Piett, Affirmed

William Wachsmuth, Affirmed

Aurel "Tony" Vadlja, Affirmed

David Wesenger, Affirmed

MS. HARE: Mr. Smith, you have got examination-in-
chief?

MR. SMITH: Yes.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF BY MR. SMITH:

MR. SMITH: Just a few questions, members of the
Board.

First, Mr. Walker, by way of introduction, I

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAERAA-PLC 233

understand that you are the manager of pipeline design for
Union Gas?

MR. WALKER: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have been with Union Gas since
about 19972

MR. WALKER: Yes, I have.

MR. SMITH: And prior to that, you were employed by
the Canadian Coast Guard?

MR. WALKER: Yes, I was.

MR. SMITH: And you a bachelor of applied science in
civil engineering from the University of Waterloo?

MR. WALKER: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you are a professional engineer?

MR. WALKER: Yes, I am.

MR. SMITH: And as I understand it, you sit on the
Canadian Standards Authority technical subcommittee
on operations and system integrity?

MR. WALKER: Yes, I do.

MR. SMITH: We will come back to that in a minute.

Can you just describe for us, sir, briefly what your -
- by way of overview, what your responsibilities are as
manager of pipeline design?

MR. WALKER: Sure. In my current role, I am
responsible for all the design issues on the pipeline side
of our major projects group, so all the major construction
we are doing.

MR. SMITH: And this project would fall within that

category?

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAERLA-PLC 234

MR. WALKER: Yes, it would.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Piett, turning to you, you are the
manager of projects execution at Union Gas Limited?

MR. PIETT: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you've been with Union Gas for some
time?

MR. PIETT: That is very correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have a bachelor of applied science
in civil engineering, also from the University of Waterloo?

MR. PIETT: Yes, that is right.

MR. SMITH: Can you please tell the Board briefly what
your responsibility is as the manager of projects
execution?

MR. PIETT: I am responsible for all the project
management and the construction management of all our major
projects, and specifically for this hearing responsible for
the Hamilton-to-Milton project, as well as the Lobo
project.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Wachsmuth, you are employed as the
senior administrator, regulatory projects and lands?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have been with Union Gas since
about 19907

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And before that, you were with the
Ministry of Natural Resources?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes.

MR. SMITH: And you testified before this Board on a
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number of occasions?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have a bachelor of science, a
forestry major, from the University of New Brunswick?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: Can you tell the Board briefly,
specifically as it pertains to this hearing, your
responsibility?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I will be dealing with some of the
lands issues that come up, and some of the history of the
letter of understanding.

MR. SMITH: Thank you very much.

Mr. Vadlja, you are a senior environmental advisor
with Union Gas?

MR. VADLJA: Correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have a bachelor of science,
resource management, from Guelph University?

MR. VADLJA: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: And you have testified both before this
Board on a number of occasions, and the National Energy
Board?

MR. VADLJA: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: Can you tell the Board, by way of
overview, your responsibilities as senior environmental
advisor?

MR. VADLJA: Yes. I am responsible for obtaining
environmental approvals and permits with our construction

projects, and developing our environmental policies
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and practices for the company with regards to construction.

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

Lastly, you, Mr. Wesenger, I understand you are a
senior principal with Stantec?

MR. WESENGER: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: Can you describe for me briefly the
business of Stantec?

MR. WESENGER: We're an engineering consulting firm,
and the group I am in is responsible for environmental
management practices.

MR. SMITH: And for how long have you been with
Stantec?

MR. WESENGER: Since 1990.

MR. SMITH: I understand that you, or people working
under your supervision, prepared the environmental report
that has been filed by Union in this proceeding?

MR. WESENGER: That is correct.

MR. SMITH: Members of the Board, just for the record,
that report, which is voluminous, is referenced at Exhibit
A, tab 12, as attachments 1 and 2.

Mr. Wesenger, I understand you have a bachelor of
environmental and resource studies from the University of
Waterloo?

MR. WESENGER: Yes.

MR. SMITH: And you have been employed by Stantec
since about 199072

MR. WESENGER: That's correct.

MR. SMITH: And does your curriculum vitae set out
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accurately your project experience?

MR. WESENGER: Yes, 1t does.

MR. SMITH: And that includes comparable-type work, as
I understand it, sir, on projects for Union Gas and other
developers?

MR. WESENGER: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Members of the Board, perhaps I can -- or
members of the panel, perhaps I can do this through you.

Mr. Piett, do you adopt for the purpose of testifying
here today Union's prefiled evidence and interrogatory
responses?

MR. PIETT: Yes. Yes, I do.

MR. SMITH: Members of the Board, I do have some
additional questions in examination-in-chief, but I failed
to mark as an exhibit, I believe, the CVs of the witnesses,
which you have been provided with, and I propose to do
that.

MS. HARE: Let's do that now.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: That will be Exhibit K1 (sic).

EXHIBIT NO. Kl1.1: WITNESS PANEL CVs.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Wachsmuth, maybe I can start with you.
You heard the Chair's questions of me relating to the
letter of understanding, and maybe you can help the Board -
- let's start with this question.

What, from Union's perspective, is the purpose of the
letter of understanding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: The letter of understanding was really

developed to basically document and -- so that we could, in
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a very simple format -- so we could -- Union and the
landowners would both know how construction would happen on
their property, and also it would also include what
compensation they would be paid for the work on their
property.

It really documents the general practices. It was
really looked to do for the whole loop, how would we
generally be doing topsoil stripping, how we'd be doing
restoration, all of those general aspects of construction,
so that we would be able to do it in a comprehensive -- and
that everybody was treated the same.

So we wanted to come with a document that we could use
when we are talking to the landowners, to say: Here is
what we are going to be doing when we are constructing on
your property, and we wanted to go and do it.

Really it started out as, really, a four-, five-page
document -- really back in the '80s was when the first one
was done, and it has really progressed over time, but
really the big thing is -- is that it really was meant to
be a simple document, to document what we were going to do,
and it was really the general document.

If a landowner had special issues, there is a schedule
2 in the LOU which really can be used to document the
special features on a person's property; for instance, if
they had cattle and they needed to put up special fencing,
or 1f they had a specialty crop that needed to be protected
from dust. Those things were really to be identified in

schedule 2.
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The LOU was really meant to be the general document,
so i1f there was specific issues there was a specific there,
and as well the LOU was really meant to be signed at the
same time as the easement, so it was before construction,
so there were other mechanisms in place if they're to deal
with specific issues during construction through our lands
relation program. And in this case in here, where we have
agreed to the construction monitor, the construction
monitor is also available to deal with specific issues.

But the LOU is really meant to be a general document
that talked about Union's general construction practices
and the compensation they would receive.

MR. SMITH: So let me ask you this question. The
current form of the letter of understanding that the Board
has before it today, when did that come into effect?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think, as I mentioned before, the
original document was developed in the '80s, and really,
every time we did a loop of the Dawn-Trafalgar pipeline and
then a few of the other pipelines going to some of the
storage pools or other lines, we formed a negotiating
committee with the landowners. And really what it was is
part of the negotiations for the committee for both the
compensation and the construction practices, additional
clauses were added, subtracted, changes, and what was
current.

So in the early '90s we added things, and we have
added things right up to 2005 with Strathroy-Lobo, but

there was really -- by 2005 we realized after Strathroy-
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Lobo that the document was starting to get stale, it was
being difficult to read, there were actually things that
contradicted themselves within the document.

So what we did after Strathroy-Lobo was we basically
did a comprehensive review of the Strathroy Lobo document,
and that was how we came up with the document that was
offered at Brantford-Kirkwall.

So we really looked to see what practices weren't
used, so if something that was suggested back in 1990 but
had never been used ever again, we took that out.

The other thing is we looked at what happened, for
instance, with the tile. The tile section was completely
rewritten to basically look at what our current practices
were, rather than just -- we had the standard of starting
in the '90s. We just kept adding paragraphs.

We added and developed a new comprehensive one to talk
about it. It was really done just to bring it up to be a
state-of-the-art document that was really easy to read.
The old document had really just become difficult to read,
and we wanted to do something that was simple. We wanted
to do something that had Union's current practices in it,
and that was why we moved forward with the document for the
Brantford-Kirkwall hearing.

MR. SMITH: All right. Well, let me ask you that.
When did you first use the new document?

MR. WACHSMUTH: We first used the new document for
Brantford-Kirkwall.

MR. SMITH: And to whom did you --
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MR. WACHSMUTH: We offered it to all of the
landowners. Generally, the LOU talks a lot about practices
in agricultural lands, but there are other facets of it
that would be available and important to everyone, things
like water wells and fencing and things like that.

So we did offer it to everyone on the Brantford-
Kirkwall, both the agricultural and others, and all but one
landowner agreed to it without change, and that landowner
was the subject of the expropriation hearing.

MR. SMITH: I don't believe this is controversial,
but, Mr. Wachsmuth, can you just tell us your understanding
of how many landowners in the Hamilton-Milton project, how
many participating landowners are there who are members of
GAPLO?

MR. WACHSMUTH: 1In GAPLO's prefiled evidence, they
indicate that they have one landowner who's a member of
GAPLO, and that landowner is on a residential property.

MR. SMITH: And are there any agricultural
participating landowners?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Not that I am aware of.

MR. SMITH: And are there agricultural participating
landowners?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, there are some agricultural
properties on the Hamilton-Milton project.

MR. SMITH: And as part of Union's notice program with
this application, were these landowners provided notice of
this proceeding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, they were.
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MR. SMITH: Mr. Walker, if I can just turn to you --
members of the Board, we circulated and you should have a
copy of what's identified as draft standard Z662 by the
Canadian Standards Association; do you have that?

MS. HARE: We have that.

MR. SMITH: And I propose to mark --

MS. HARE: Give that an exhibit number.

MR. SMITH: -- that as an exhibit.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: That will be Exhibit K2 (sic).

MS. HARE: Kl.2.

EXHIBIT NO. K1.2: CANADIAN STANDARDS ASSOCIATION

DRAFT STANDARD Z662.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: 1.2? Oh, sorry, we are scheduled for
more than one day in this hearing, so --

MS. HARE: Well, we're not, but you never know.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: All right. So we need to revise the
first exhibit, the package of CVs, as Kl.1.

MR. SMITH: Not all jokes are created equally.

All right, then. Let's move quickly.

So, Mr. Walker, let me just turn to you, if I could.
Let's start first with the Canadian Standards Association.
Can you just tell us, sir, at least your understanding of
the role played by the Canadian Standards Association as it
relates to natural gas pipeline regulation?

MR. WALKER: Yes. They set the code requirements as a
standard across Canada.

MR. SMITH: Okay. And how does that work relate, if

at all, with the TSSA, or the Technical Safety Standards
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Authority?

MR. WALKER: Well, TSSA regulates oil and gas
pipelines in Ontario, including Union Gas pipelines. The
way they really do it is through what they call a coded
option document. That document would say oil and gas
operators in Ontario must follow the CSA Z662 in its
entirety, with some exceptions and additions that it
includes in its coded option document.

MR. SMITH: Okay. And so you mentioned 72662, which
has been marked as K1.2. Can you just identify the
document for us?

MR. WALKER: That particular document in evidence is a
cover sheet of the upcoming 2015 edition of the code, which
is scheduled for publication in June of this year.

MR. SMITH: Okay. And so this is identified as the
draft standard oil and gas pipeline section, and can you
tell us, if you turn to the second page, what is being
discussed in this section of the draft standard?

MR. WALKER: Yeah, the main enhancements in section
10-16-1 are that there is a new requirement for a
documented abandonment plan. Part of that abandonment plan
would include landowner consultation. There is also a
reference to an NEB technical paper that you can see in the
note there, "Pipeline Abandonment - A Discussion Paper on
Technical and Environmental Issues."

It has a fairly comprehensive list of items and risk
factors that you should use in your evaluation and

development of the abandonment plan.
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MR. SMITH: And can you just tell me the issue, as it
relates to abandonment? How does this draft standard
address the issue of abandonment and specifically a
requirement, if any, to remove a pipeline?

MR. WALKER: Well, it will give you some guidance on
preparing the abandonment plan, and it will say that you
really need to look at it at the time of abandonment based
on a specific site assessment of the various sections of
the pipeline, and in making a determination on the best
course of action in that abandonment plan.

Sometimes it may result in removing the pipe;
sometimes it may say abandon in place.

MR. SMITH: Now, can you just tell us -- well, first
of all, this draft standard is the product of which
committee of the Canadian Standards Association?

MR. WALKER: So the committee that you mentioned
earlier, the operations and system integrity committee that
I am on, it is responsible for sections 9.5 through to the
end of section 10 of the CSA code.

So we would be responsible for reviewing any
proposed enhancements or changes to those clauses.

MR. SMITH: And where is the standard now in the
drafting process?

MR. WALKER: It has gone through our committee, the
technical subcommittee, and it has gone through the
committee above us, which is the technical committee.

So from my understanding, it is in the CSA's

administration process between final approvals and
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publication.

MR. SMITH: And has there been a period of public
comment on this?

MR. WALKER: Yes, the public comment period was
actually even before the technical subcommittee's review.
So there was a period in December, I think it started, of
2013 where it would have been posted for anyone to be able
to pull up on the website and provide comments.

Those comments would have come to our technical
subcommittee for evaluation as well.

MR. SMITH: Do you have any familiarity with how the
National Energy Board has dealt with the issue of
abandonment?

MR. WALKER: The National Energy Board is a little bit
different, in that you would need to make an application to
abandon pipe. But a lot of the documents that form the
basis of an abandonment plan would be linked to this
process. In fact, it mentions the NEB document in the new
code addition in that note I mentioned.

MR. SMITH: Thank you. Those are my questions in
examination in-chief.

QUESTIONS BY THE BOARD:

MS. HARE: Can I just ask you this? The draft letter
talks about receiving permission from the CSA prior to
using this, unless it is for standards development, which
we are not doing today.

Did you receive permission from the CSA?

MR. WALKER: Yes, I did talk to them and they said
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that we could discuss it and, you know, show it. But, you
know, we didn't want to distribute 1it, because until it 1is
published it is not a final document.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

So your panel is ready for cross-examination?

MR. SMITH: Yes, they are.

MS. HARE: Okay. I think we will take our morning
break now before cross-examination, so we will return at
11:15.

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

-—-— Recess taken at 10:52 a.m.

-——- Upon resuming at 11:18 a.m.

MS. HARE: Mr. Goudy, are you ready to proceed?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am, Madam chair.

MS. HARE: Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHN GOUDY:

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Good morning, panel. I am John
Goudy. I am counsel for GAPLO, and I think I have probably
dealt with Mr. Wachsmuth, at least, on other occasions. So
I am going to have a series of questions for you, and they
are going to basically be broken up into two categories.

Like Mr. Smith had mentioned before, one is going to
be the abandonment clause in the proposed easement
agreement, and the other is the construction methodology
items from the letter of understanding.

So I will start with the abandonment clause issue.
And Union has proposed a form of agreement. It's at

Exhibit A, tab 13, schedule 3 in the prefiled evidence.
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And could you confirm for me -- sorry, given the
wording of the issue that's before the Board, and that's
Issue 7 —- "Is the form of easement agreement offered by
Union appropriate?" -- I take it that Union's position is
that the form of easement agreement that is filed in its
prefiled evidence is the appropriate form of easement
agreement for this project?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I believe that it was formed -- but it
was also corrected or changed as part of the settlement
agreement, Mr. Goudy. So it probably should go to the
settlement -- the additions that were done as part of the
settlement agreement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Subject to the settlement agreement?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And clause 1 of that proposed
agreement deals with Union's restoration obligations on the
surrender of the easement; is that -- are you familiar with
the agreement? I don't know if we can get it on the
screen.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Clause 1 deals with a number of
issues, including the restoration on abandonment. That is
correct.

MR. SMITH: Sorry, why don't we just give Ms. Hare
just a minute to pull up the easement agreement, if you'd
like, Mr. Goudy?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: It may be easiest if we could just
pull up GAPLO's written evidence statement. The excerpt

from the agreement that I am going to be asking about is
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contained in paragraph 5 of GAPLO's written evidence at
Adobe page 3.

In the form of easement agreement as proposed by Union
in this proceeding, the last sentence of clause 1 is what
is set out in GAPLO's written evidence; is that correct?
That's:

"The transferor and transferee hereby agree that
nothing herein shall oblige transferee to remove
the pipeline from the lands as part of the
transferee's obligation to restore the lands."

MR. WACHSMUTH: I am sorry, which document are you
looking at, Mr. Goudy?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am looking at what is on the
screen, paragraph 5(a), but what is intended to be
reproduced there is the language, the last sentence of
clause 1 in the proposed agreement filed by Union. I am
just looking for confirmation that that is the language
that Union is proposing, "transferor and transferee hereby
agree that nothing herein shall oblige transferee"? 1It's
tab 13, schedule 3 in your prefiled evidence.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, the first quote is in our current
agreement, which we are proposing at Exhibit A, tab 13,
schedule 3.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And so it is that language that Union
is proposing is appropriate in connection with the issue on
the Board's Issues List and should be approved by the
Board?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.
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MR. JOHN GOUDY: But Union has proposed different
language than that in other easement agreements in other
projects; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And it's proposed different language
about Union's obligations of restoration on surrender of
the easement in different projects as appropriate. So it's
proposed to the Board in those other projects that that
different language was appropriate; is that correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Those words were the result of a
comprehensive settlement agreement, Mr. Goudy, and they
were agreed to by both parties. So yes, they were
proposed, but it was part of a comprehensive settlement
agreement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I take it you are referring to
Strathroy-Lobo in particular in that response?

MR. WACHSMUTH: For those words it was Strathroy-Lobo,
but in other hearings there have been changes in the
easement agreement again, which were the subject of
comprehensive negotiations in the settlement agreement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So you will agree that from time to
time, from project to project, Union has proposed different
language in its easement agreement as being appropriate?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, there have been different words
proposed as a result of comprehensive negotiations between
Union and the landowners.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And in Strathroy-Lobo, the EB-2005-

0550 proceeding, Union agreed and did replace that last
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sentence of clause 1 that is proposed in this proceeding?
It replaced it with the language that follows in GAPLO's
written evidence that is on the screen?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes. Again as a result of a
comprehensive settlement, those were the words and some of
the conditions that were agreed to.

MS. HARE: Can we see that next page on the screen,
please?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: It may be helpful, Madam Chair, if we
went to Adobe page 19, at the bottom.

Mr. Wachsmuth, can you confirm this is a section from
the settlement agreement that was reached in EB-2005-05507?
On the screen, sorry.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Sorry, did you say Adobe 19 or 207?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Adobe 19. Sorry, it's Adobe page 19.
It says "GAPLO 18" at the top of the page. My apologies.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Sorry, that was my...

Yes, as you go back to page 13, this is the settlement
agreement prepared to by Mr. Vogel and Mr. Leslie, or
signed by Mr. Vogel and Mr. Leslie.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Right. And so at the bottom of the
page that we are looking at now, GAPLO 18, the language --
the replacement language that was agreed to in EB-2005-0550
is set out there; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, the whole comprehensive
settlement is —- are these pages between 13 and 19, I
believe.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And Union then requested approval of
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that agreement as part of its application in EB-2005-0550;
correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And Board approval was granted for
that form of easement agreement?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And Union used the same form of
easement agreement again in EB-2007-0063; is that correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Subject to check, yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: 1If we could go to -- again in GAPLO's
written evidence -- Adobe page 46 which is marked "GAPLO
45," Mr. Wachsmuth, can you identify this document, or
simply confirm that it is an excerpt from the prefiled
evidence of Union in that proceeding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, it appears it is an excerpt; I
believe it was our Dawn deliverability project.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And in that 36-inch pipeline project,
Union proposed, as the appropriate form of easement
agreement to the Board, the same form of easement agreement
as 1in Strathroy-Lobo; is that correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And it asked the Board to approve
that form of agreement under section 97 of the Act?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And the Board approved that form of
Agreement; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And that included clause 1 with the
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Strathroy-Lobo language included?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is my understanding.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So for those two projects, Strathroy-
Lobo and the project in EB-2007-0633, Union agreed that the
appropriate form of easement agreement was one that
included the abandonment language and the landowner option
for removal of the abandoned pipeline from Strathroy-Lobo?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Again, I think in Strathroy-Lobo it
was the result of the comprehensive settlement, and this
was really the next hearing and we continued using that
same easement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But now Union has made a decision to
discontinue use of that provision?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And it was the clause that we looked
at previously, the last sentence of clause 1, that Union is
proposing to the Board in this proceeding: Nothing herein
shall oblige the transferee to remove the pipe?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Without looking at the words and
subject to check, vyes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am paraphrasing. That language was
actually proposed by Union in the EB-2005-0550 Strathroy-
Lobo project as well? That was the language that was
originally proposed by Union in that project?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Strathroy-Lobo, it was my
understanding that that was part of the comprehensive
settlement, Mr. Goudy.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Yes, but originally when Union made
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its application to the Board, the form of easement
agreement it was originally proposing was the one in the
form that has been applied for in this project?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I am not sure of that, Mr. Goudy,
because there may have been other changes as well that
happened between 2005 and today.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I won't belabour this; I will just
deal with it in argument. But it is in the -- the
settlement agreement that we looked at earlier specifies
the change that was made to the agreement, so I --

MR. WACHSMUTH: But I think there were other changes
that have been made since 2005, Mr. Goudy; there were other
things done.

Like, for instance, an HST change has been made
between what we filed now and what we filed in 2005, and I
believe there are also issues dealing with postponement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Okay. The next gquestions I have
relate to the draft standard -- CSA standard that was made
Exhibit K1.2. So I think my gquestions are probably for Mr.
Walker.

Mr. Walker, you said that you were on the committee, a
committee that reviewed this document?

MR. WALKER: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But do I take it your committee
wasn't the committee that drafted the document initially?

MR. WALKER: No, it was not.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And did your committee make or

propose changes to the document that appear in the copy
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that we have at this point?

MR. WALKER: Our committee did not.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And can you tell me whether any
pipeline landowners were involved in the creation of this -
- these particular provisions in the draft standard?

MR. WALKER: I don't know.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: You are not aware of any landowner
involvement?

MR. WALKER: I am not aware of the make-up of the task
force that put together that wording.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And can you confirm whether there
were any pipeline landowners involved in your committee
that reviewed the document?

MR. WALKER: There were not.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The draft provision, assuming that it
is adopted, would require in Ontario, through the TSSA code
adoption regulation -- like you had explained before, it
would require that for the abandonment of a pipeline, a
company would have to abandon a pipeline on the basis of a
documented abandonment plan; correct?

MR. WALKER: Correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But can you confirm there is no
approval process for abandonment in Ontario?

MR. WALKER: That would also be correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So in the absence of a regulatory
approval process, this -- these proposed sections in the
CSA standard only require the company to prepare a plan?

MR. WALKER: That is correct, but the TSSA would
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monitor our abandonment plans. They could come in and
audit it at any point in time.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But as you said, a company like Union
would not require TSSA approval to abandon a pipeline?

MR. WALKER: It would not.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: At the end of the day, the decision
about how to abandon a pipeline, whether in place or
through a removal, is a decision made by the company?

MR. WALKER: It would ultimately be made by the
company, but it would be made based on a comprehensive
abandonment plan that would have to be defended with our
regulator.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But you have already told me that
there is no approval process.

MR. WALKER: Not pre-approval, but abandonment is a --
I'll say it's a hot topic within industry. I fully expect
that if we were to prepare a large-scale abandonment, the
TSSA would be very interested in it.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Interested, but without any
regulatory place to —--

MR. WALKER: That would be correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: -- to require approval-?

The next line of questions I have relates to the
letter of understanding. So again, it may be Mr. Wachsmuth
that will end up answering the bulk of these.

MS. FRY: Mr. Goudy, you are finished asking questions
on abandonment?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am finished asking questions on the
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CSA standard and abandonment, yes.

MS. FRY: Okay. So since you have a number of
different subject areas, maybe I could just interject a
couple of questions while abandonment is still fresh in
your minds.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Certainly.

MS. FRY: Just to understand, I mean, what we are
hearing is that the two parties have different ideas as to
what the abandonment clause should say.

Can you gentlemen, whichever one is appropriate, Jjust
tell me, in operational terms, what is the difference
between what the two sides want?

MR. WALKER: I think the fundamental difference is
that we feel rather strongly that an abandonment plan
should be made at the time of abandonment based on codes
and regulations that are in place at the time and include a
detailed assessment of all the site-specific risk factors
involved, and that sometimes that will say that pipe should
be removed and sometimes that will say that pipes shouldn't
be removed.

It is not a "one solution fits all™ kind of
assessment.

MS. FRY: Okay. Does anybody else want to elaborate
on that?

MR. PIETT: Just further elaboration in that one
solution doesn't fit all. We don't know now what the land
use will be later on or who will own the property, so

again, it is difficult to predetermine that now. Also,
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again, landowner definitely has some, you know, significant
interest in the issue of abandonment. However, we have to
take into -- consider other stakeholders that do have
authority, in that it could be something like an NEC who we
are dealing with now. There is a lot of other
environmental agencies, and an abandonment project,
especially a large one, could have a significant impact on
the environment and an actual -- the option -- or the
better option would be to leave it in place and abandon it
properly through the checklist that we need to go through
and develop that plan.

MS. FRY: So, I mean, if I am understanding you
correctly, you would always have to go through whatever
that regulatory process consists of, so why does it make a
difference if you agree upfront on some principles for
abandonment as opposed to making the plan later on? Could
you just go over that again?

MR. WALKER: Well, what they are asking us to agree to
upfront would be to say that the landowner can request
removal of the pipe at their request, and there are some
situations even in the filed evidence that GAPLO put in
that there are some situations, environmentally sensitive
areas, some of the areas that have been mentioned, where it
doesn't make sense to remove the pipe.

MS. FRY: Okay. That, I understand. I am just not
quite understanding clearly why the approvals required by
various agencies would complicate that.

MR. WALKER: Part of the abandonment plan would be --
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I mean, it includes landowner consultation, but it also
would include consultation with environmental agencies,
conservation authorities, wherever the pipe may be. It is
specific to each site, but all of those agencies would be
consulted during the development of that abandonment plan,
so there are a number of interested parties, let's say.

MS. FRY: You are saying that would be harder to do if
you agreed on the parameters for abandonment upfront? Is
that what you are saying?

MR. WALKER: Well, to say upfront that we would
automatically remove the pipe, yeah, would circumvent that
process.

MR. PIETT: Just to describe it better, to abandon,
you know, like, say, the Hamilton-Milton piece in the
future -- 20, 40 years, 50 years -- it would be no
different and actually worse than constructing a new
pipeline, because an abandonment procedure, where you are
removing the pipe, we actually have to do a lot more work
with the land to get the pipe out.

You actually end up filing the trench back in and
retrenching it for the new pipeline to go in, so there is
significant impact, and I would say it is definitely going
to be a bigger impact.

So therefore all the permits that we must receive now
before we build the pipeline, we are going to receive those
permits to remove a pipeline and build the new pipeline, or
even 1f we didn't build the new pipeline, at least remove

it, and we are going to have significant impact, Jjust as we
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do now when we would mitigate it, but we still have to go
through the process to get all those permits from any
stakeholder or agency that would have jurisdiction on water
crossings, wetlands, et cetera.

MS. FRY: Okay. Thanks.

Okay. And so I want to ask you also about the draft
CSA standard. So I take it this is -- is this a -- this is
a standard that is much broader than abandonment
situations, I take it? Yes?

MR. WALKER: Yes, 1t is.

MS. FRY: Okay. So just for my information, when
Union is following the various applicable CSA standards, is
it always working to the standard, or are there situations
in its business generally where it might decide to actually
have standards that are greater than the CSA standard?

MR. WALKER: We would meet or exceed code.

MS. FRY: Yes, okay. So I am asking you -- so you are
saying there are situations when Union would decide to
exceed code; 1is that correct?

MR. WALKER: Yeah, the code may have a depth of cover
requirement. Sometimes we exceed that, as an example.

MS. FRY: Thanks.

MS. HARE: Okay, well, since we interrupted, I will
just continue.

Is the easement always surrendered on abandonment? Or
do you have situations where the pipeline is abandoned but
you retain the easement in the event that in the future you

want that corridor?
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MR. WACHSMUTH: If we keep -- the pipe stays in the
ground, Union will retain the easement. We have to have
the easement there, because it's still our pipe, so we
would own the pipe, so we have to have a right to have the
pipe in the ground.

MS. HARE: Even if it's abandoned?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Even i1if it's abandoned. Our practice
is not to surrender the easement.

MS. HARE: If the pipe is in the ground?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MS. HARE: Another question. The easement language
talks about the proposed -- what Mr. Goudy is asking for in
terms of the language used in the Strathroy-to-Lobo talks
about the transferor. What if it is a new owner? Does
that new owner still have the right to ask for it to be
taken out of the ground?

MR. SMITH: As a matter of law, they would be required
to take -- well, the easement will be registered on title,
so it runs with the land, and so you take title to the land
subject to the covenants on the land as registered.

MS. HARE: Okay. So "the transferor" doesn't refer
necessarily to the person that actually signed the
document?

MR. SMITH: That's correct.

MS. HARE: It is whoever has, then, title?

MR. SMITH: That's correct.

MS. HARE: Can you just explain to me why you -- you

explained, well, that you made the change for those two
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projects because it was part of a comprehensive settlement
discussion. Why is it that you do not want to offer that
again? Is it just because you want to keep your options
open for 30 years from now, 40 years from now?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I guess what it was when we really
went back and looked at the revisions to the easement, we
went back and realized that some of the -- there was a
potential here that we could end up in conflicts.

We don't know what is going to happen to the
abandonment or what is going to happen to the laws and
rules. We know that abandonment is a very big issue. The
NEB has really had a couple of hearings -- a number of
things have changed since 2005, and a lot of those have
been at the NEB. They have had their lands consultation
initiative, which talked about the physical abandonment of
pipe, and there was also a monetary version of how they
dealt with paying for abandonment of pipe. And abandonment
is a big issue, and Mr. Goudy and the GAPLO evidence filed
a big report where there is a number of studies that are
still ongoing on abandonment.

So, I mean, we are looking at it as a live issue, and
we really just don't want to close any doors now. And as
Mr. Walker stated, we think the best time to figure out how
you are going to abandon a pipe is when it is going to be
abandoned, not when it is going to be constructed.

MS. HARE: Thank you. Those are my gquestions. Mr.
Goudy, sorry for the interruption.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: That is quite all right. I have a
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follow-up question for Mr. Piett.

What experience do you and/or Union have with the
abandonment of large-diameter pipelines?

MR. PIETT: Very little, as we have never abandoned
anything on the Dawn-to-Parkway stretch.

Again, those are large-diameter pipelines that we rely
on for all our business, as everyone has been through,
through this hearing. And again, we need the capacity and
we protect the pipeline to ensure it will last forever,
basically, and we have never had to abandon any of those
pipelines.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So I take it your evidence earlier
about the comparison between the effects of pipeline
removal and the effects of pipeline construction are just
speculation?

MR. PIETT: ©No, I would say that comes from building
pipelines and being on construction and knowing what it
takes -- before we can initiate construction, we have to
basically predetermine everything that we are going to do,
and I can quite easily think about constructing a 48-inch
pipeline, and then I can quite easily think about

abandoning a 48-inch pipeline, all the work and effort that

would take.

We also -- we have had cases where we have had
pipeline replacements, which is very similar. It hasn't
had to get into abandonment -- or, you know, of -- well, in

some ways it is abandonment of existing pipe, but then we

install a new pipe there, and so we have gone through that

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAERIAA-PLC 263

exercise in smaller diameter, such as 16-inch pipe.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And you will agree with me that what
GAPLO is proposing in terms of clause 1 in the easement
agreement and what was agreed to in Strathroy-Lobo is an
option for the landowner to have the pipeline removed?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's fair.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: To the extent that the landowner
decides that the impacts of pipeline removal would be too
great, the landowner could decide not to exercise that
option.

MR. PIETT: We can't predetermine what the landowner
would decide, but we do know that there would be other
agencies that would, or stakeholders that we would have to
consult with to determine if that, as we stated earlier,
was the preferred way to abandon the pipeline.

MR. WESENGER: If I could just add to what Mr. Piett
said, with the Niagara Escarpment Commission, in developing
anything across their lands, they need to know that it is
essential.

I think, in this case, they would certainly challenge
the environmental impact of removing a pipeline across
escarpment lands, that it would be essential to remove it
versus leaving it in place, because there would be much
less impact to leaving it in place to the escarpment
lands itself.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am going to move on to the letter
of understanding issues.

As part of the settlement agreement -- and this was
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discussed earlier this morning -- you can confirm that
Union has agreed that it will offer, as a minimum to
landowners, the form of letter of understanding that was
part of the settlement agreement in this proceeding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And that -- that letter of
understanding sets out -- in one way, sets out minimum
construction commitments by Union Gas to landowners;
correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think, as I stated before, it talks
about what our general practices are for the construction
of the proposed pipeline, yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But it sets minimum standards that
Union agrees that it will do on a landowner's property?

MR. PIETT: If the landowner considers it minimum,
fine. I would term it as appropriate, and runs through the
history of us building pipelines and developing our
construction practices and with input from all
stakeholders, including landowners, that it is an
appropriate approach to building the pipeline.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Union agrees that -- just to get back
to this idea of a minimum, Union is agreeing, or committing
in the letter of understanding to do at least what it says
in the letter of understanding, and agreeing not to do less
than what is in the letter of understanding.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Sorry, yes. I was thinking like --
for instance, for depth of cover, we have agreed in the LOU

to go 1.2 metres. But I think Mr. Walker talked earlier
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that the code only requires 0.6 meters.

So that is where I was having concerns with the
minimum, Mr. Goudy.

MR. GOUDY: Right. It is simply —-- Union has agreed
it is not going to go less than what the letter of
understanding says?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And the letter of understanding, can
you agree with me that it provides details about Union's
construction methodology that aren't provided elsewhere in
Union's prefiled evidence in this hearing process?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's fair.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: GAPLO requested a copy of the letter
of understanding in Interrogatory 12; do you recall that?

Perhaps we could bring that up on the screen, Union's
response to GAPLO Interrogatory 127

You have agreed with me that the letter of
understanding contains details about construction
methodology that weren't included in the prefiled evidence.

Can you agree with me that GAPLO requested a copy of
the letter of understanding at the interrogatory stage, but
Union Gas did not -- or declined to provide that document?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So earlier it may have been Mr. Smith
in his submissions, or it may have been someone on the
panel that said landowners -- I think it was an answer to a
question in-chief -- landowners had notice of the

proceeding? Landowners along the Hamilton-to-Milton line
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had notice of this proceeding: correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But they didn't have the letter of
understanding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: At the time -- as part of our OEB
process, we were required to serve notice of all of the
landowners. At that point in time, they did not have a
copy of our LOU or the easement package that we were
offering.

We hadn't got that far in our negotiation process when
the notice went out, Mr. Goudy.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And the letter of understanding, it
wasn't provided in this proceeding until -- well, it hasn't
been filed in this proceeding until the settlement
agreement, so just in the last few days; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: There was a letter of understanding
used by Union in the Strathroy-Lobo project; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct. It was a result of a
comprehensive settlement agreement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And as you explained earlier, Mr.
Wachsmuth, that document and the letter of understanding
document generally, it's evolved based on many projects?

MR. WACHSMUTH: At least ten.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: At least ten? And in a lot of cases,
projects involving consultations with GAPLO?

MR. WACHSMUTH: GAPLO was involved in some of them,

yes.
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MR. JOHN GOUDY: And consultation with landowners?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's fair.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The letter of understanding in
Strathroy-Lobo was filed with the Board in EB-2005-0550; is
that correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, Union committed to doing that in
the transcripts of the -- or the settlement agreement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And we looked briefly at a section
from EB-2007-0663. Can you confirm that Union used the
same -- the same form of letter of understanding on that
project as in Strathroy-Lobo-?

MR. WACHSMUTH: ©No, I can't right off the bat, sir.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Okay. Could we bring up GAPLO's
evidence again at -- I believe it's Adobe page 46.

This is that excerpt, again from Union's prefiled evidence
in that proceeding.

If you look at paragraph 73 at the bottom of that
page, it says:

"Union will also use a letter of understanding
between Union and landowners for the project, and
specifically the form of the LOU employed in the
Strathroy-Lobo project."

MR. WACHSMUTH: I don't know whether there were any
changes made when they actually went out and signed the
agreement with the landowners on the project. That would
have been probably the form they used as a starting point.

I don't have that information with me, Mr. Goudy, and

I don't know. There may not have been any changes; I just
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don't know.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But that would have been used as a
starting point?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's fair.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: 1Including all the substantive
provisions in the Strathroy-Lobo document?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's fair.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: On the next page in that document, at
paragraph 74, Union's evidence is that the LOU, or the
letter of understanding, provides a benchmark for
individual negotiations for land rights.

Do you see that statement?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, I do.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Would you agree with me that the
letter of understanding also provides a benchmark for
construction methodology?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think it provide a description of
what our construction practices were. I think what you are
talking about at paragraph 74 is really the compensation
aspects in the letter of understanding.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Right, and I am asking you whether a
benchmark is the appropriate term for the letter of
understanding.

MR. WACHSMUTH: It provide a general understanding of
what we will do. If you want to call that a benchmark, I
am not sure.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The letter of understanding also --

it deals with construction methodology. It also details
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the participation of the landowner in the decision-making
process about construction; is that correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think there are a number of other
things that Union does and has in place to help the
landowner to deal with issues that come up during
construction.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But the letter of understanding --
included in the terms of the letter of understanding are
sections where the landowner is given a role in the
decision-making process.

MR. WACHSMUTH: I mean -- yes, I mean, for example,
topsoil stripping, there are different opportunities, and
we talk to the landowner during our pre-construction
meeting to see whether -- what type of, like, topsoil he
wants stripped on his easement. I mean, so if that is
giving the landowner options, yes, that is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The letter of understanding, as you
described this morning, the letter of understanding
proposed in this proceeding, which is the one attached to
the settlement agreement, it makes changes to substantive
items that were in the Strathroy-Lobo letter of
understanding; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: It makes changes, yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Your evidence earlier was that the
Strathroy-Lobo form of letter of understanding had become
unworkable?

MR. WACHSMUTH: We think -- in my opinion, in places

of it, it was unworkable.
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MR. JOHN GOUDY: Right, and so the format of the
agreement has been changed?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: 1In order to make it, in Union's view,
workable?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That's correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But will you agree with me that not
all of the changes that Union has made to the letter of
understanding from the time of Strathroy-Lobo to now, not
all of those changes are changes of form or structure?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: There are substantive changes to
individual construction methodology items; correct?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think the tile is probably the one
where some of the biggest changes were made, Mr. Goudy.

And what we did there is we basically had a person who had
been -- worked with Union, and before that he worked with
an engineering consulting firm who was involved in working
with landowners to develop the site-specific tile plans for
their properties.

So what he did was he looked at Strathroy-Lobo, he
looked at what we were currently actually doing in the
field, working with the landowners to get the tile plans,
to get them approved by the landowners, and then to
implement those tile plans during and after construction.

And he really changed the tile to be more what we were
doing rather than the words that were in the Strathroy-Lobo

agreement.
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So, I mean, yes, that was probably one of the bigger
changes in it, but we really Jjust tried to do that so that
it flowed better, and better reflected what was currently
happening in the field.

MR. PIETT: In addition to that, too, a lot of the
changes were practical changes. Like, there were some
things that -- again, going back in history, maybe the
comprehensive settlement things agreed to, that practically
we just could not do them in the field, and because of that
then we reviewed that also and ensured that it was
something that we could carry out and commit to, and that
was practical. And again, if I use Brantford-to-Kirkwall,
it has been all signed off by all the landowners except for
the one. And again, it is a workable document. It is a
good document that we the builder can live up to and the
landowners can agree to.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Well, I will take you through, now,
the specific provisions that GAPLO is looking at, the
substantive changes, and perhaps you can tell me whether
the changes are -- the changes which reflect -- the
proposed changes from GAPLO reflect the Strathroy-Lobo
letter of understanding.

Perhaps you can tell me whether any of those
individual changes proposed are unworkable, because GAPLO
is not proposing that the form of the letter of
understanding proposed is problematic. The questions I
have for you are about individual substantive construction

items.

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAEPLA-PLC 272

So do you have a copy of the table that was filed by
GAPLO in front of you?

MR. PIETT: Yes, we do.

MS. HARE: We should give that an exhibit number.

MS. DJURDJEVIC: That will be Exhibit KI1.3.

EXHIBIT NO. K1.3: GAPLO TABLE.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Madam Chair, I have additional
copies, to the extent that there is anyone that needs an
additional copy.

MS. HARE: The Panel has copies.

MR. SMITH: We have copies.

MR. WACHSMUTH: We have copies.

MS. HARE: We are fine.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: GAPLO is the only party left, so --
okay.

So if you have that Exhibit K1.3 in front of you, I am
just going to go through the changes that GAPLO is

requesting from the Board to Union's construction

methodology.
So on page 2, it's -- just to explain, this table in
the left-hand column, the -- more or less the entire text

of the Hamilton-to-Milton LOU is set out. In the right-
hand column are the proposed additions or changes requested
by GAPLO. They don't follow, necessarily, the order that
they appeared in in the Strathroy-Lobo letter of
understanding, but this is what GAPLO understands to be the
appropriate location for dealing with those items.

So clause 2 in the Hamilton-to-Milton LOU deals with
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testing for soybean nematode. Do you have that provision
in front of you?

MR. VADLJA: We do.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So what was in the Strathroy-Lobo
letter of understanding was that Union would work with
OMAFRA and the University of Guelph to develop a best-
practices protocol and will employ the most current best
practice at the time of construction.

What Union has proposed in this project is only that
the company will work with OMAFRA to develop the most
current best practice.

So is it -- is it that Union is committing to
developing a best practice but not to implementing it?

MR. VADLJA: ©No, that is not correct. Our goal is to
develop a best practice and implement that best practice.
MR. JOHN GOUDY: So I take it, then, that Union

wouldn't have a problem with the language from the
Strathroy-Lobo letter of understanding that clarifies that
you are developing the best practice and at the time of
construction employing the most current best practice?

MR. VADLJA: ©No, I don't have a problem with that.

No.

MR. PIETT: However, just to step in here, the point
we focused on in this paragraph was that you... University
of Guelph...

MS. HARE: Is your mic on?
MR. PIETT: We are live. Sorry about that.

Again, just to point out that Mr. Vadlja said yes,
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that that is not an issue. And hopefully we're not into
wordsmithing here, but the point here that -- why we didn't
accept it was University of Guelph was in this -- and
again, we have reviewed that issue, and at this point in
time University of Guelph doesn't offer up that expertise,
so therefore why should we write that into this document?

OMAFRA does, and Mr. Vadlja and Mr. Wesenger can
comment on that, but again, we are focused on two different
things in that statement.

MR. VADLJA: I think the key point here is having a
discussion with the most appropriate experts, be they
OMAFRA or be they the University of Guelph. I mean, I
would love to go back to the University of Guelph, my old
alma mater, and have a chat with them about this. And if
they are the experts, we would go back to them as well, but
it's —-- the focus is on developing the most best practice,
talking with the experts, and then implementing the
practice in the field.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I can respond that GAPLO's concern is
more with the implementation of the plan, and so -- but I
think I have got your agreement that Union is committed to
employing the most current best practice at the time of
construction.

MR. VADLJA: Yes, we are.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And perhaps this is a question for
Mr. Smith, but would Union agree to a condition requiring
it to employ the most current best practice at the time of

construction?
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MR. SMITH: Yes, I mean, I don't -- sorry if we missed
the point. I thought we had captured already that we would
live up to the development of the best practice by living
up to it. And the concern was that the University of
Guelph, despite historic expertise, doesn't have it
anymore, so I don't think that is an issue.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The next item is on page 3, dealing
with water wells, which is section 4 in the proposed letter
-- or, sorry, the Hamilton-to-Milton letter of
understanding. This is not actually an item from
Strathroy-Lobo. This is an additional item.

And so the question is: Will Union commit to
providing the laboratory reports or results to the
landowner on request?

MR. SMITH: Yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: In section 5, staking of the work
space, you will see in the right-hand column two
commitments that Union has taken out of the letter of
understanding.

Could you -- perhaps you could explain why each of
those is no longer a commitment of Union in this project.

MR. PIETT: First of all, I believe that the wording
we have adequately covers things.

But there is a couple that are actually impractical to
do. I would put them in that category because actually
when we lay out the easement, we will stake the easement
and we also stake the outer bounds of the working area, so

temporary land use.
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So the first paragraph, which is asking us not to
remove stakes, i1s just impractical because when we strip
the topsoil off the easement -- so over the trench in the
area where we restore subsoil -- we actually push it off
the easement and store it on temporary land use which
we have paid for. And in doing so, the stakes that are
laid out at 30-metre increments along the pipeline are
removed.

However, when they are removed, that topsoil pile
become a delineation of the easement, so we know exactly
where it is. Then when we remove the subsoil from the
trench line and pile it in between trench line and that
topsoil pile and we ensure that isn't mixed, again
the easement edge is delineated.

So to go back in and re-stake it serves no purpose.

And in the second one, again asking for the stakes to
be put in after construction for tile work, again, we all
know where the easement is because that is the part that
has been worked up for temporary land use.

The actual work that is done with the tile work occurs
both on easement and off easement. And again, that is a
plan that we develop with the landowner, utilizing a
drainage expert to lay out tiling plans that may again
start on easement and end up quite a distance off easement.

So again, to stake the easement edge serves no
purpose.

MS. HARE: So I want to understand what you are

suggesting, though, because the topsoil would normally be
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stored on the temporary work space. But you are saying
stored off easement.

So by "off easement" do you mean temporary work space,
or do you mean if it's taken elsewhere and brought back
later?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: My understanding of the provision
that was in the previous form of letter of understanding is
that it is dealing with topsoil that is stored off of the
easement, not -- I am not sure that it is necessarily
called temporary work space; it may be called topsoil
storage space.

But it is an area, an additional area that is open to
Union's use outside of the permanent easement.

MS. HARE: Right.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So it is not topsoil taken away and
brought back. It is topsoil piled adjacent to the
easement.

MS. HARE: Okay.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: On item 6 at the bottom of page 3,
Union previously provided that a landowner could request a
mulch layer be provided between the existing topsoil in the
topsoil storage area and the stripped topsoil pile where a
crop is not present, to provide the buffer between the
virgin topsoil and the stripped topsoil.

Is that something that Union is prepared to commit to
again in this project?

MR. PIETT: ©No. Again, I will put that in the

category of it's not practical and there is no value added
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in it. I will ask Mr. Wesenger to maybe comment on past
practice.

The other thing, too, is that we haven't had any
landowners even ask for this. So, again, I am not sure if
they even see the value in it as well, just the aspects of
what it could do or can't do.

MR. WESENGER: Certainly the intent there is to define
the boundary between the topsoil that is stripped from the
easement and the virgin topsoil off easement, as you
described it, Mr. Goudy.

But that topsoil that is stripped could sit there the
for a period of four months or greater, and what could
happen is that material that is laid down as a mulch layer
between them could begin to decompose and begins to compost
and is no longer discernible.

Once you pull that topsoil back, it doesn't aid the
equipment operator in any way to define that boundary.

The equipment operator is a highly trained operator
who can define that just by the feel of his blade, that
interface.

He also will be assisted by the soils inspector in
monitoring that. The soils inspector is a professional
agrologist certified in the inspection of sediment erosion
control, and has extensive experience in overseeing this
type of operation.

The other concern that we could have is the question
where would the source come from that would act as that

interface between -- as the mulch layer, and it could
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introduce other invasive species -- noxious weeds, that
sort of thing -- and that would be a concern.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So it's Union's evidence that this
has not -- this option has not been exercised by landowners
in the past?

MR. WACHSMUTH: That is my understanding, Mr. Goudy.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The next item is immediately below
it, and that is the commitment at the landowner's request
to separate distinct subsoil horizons. Is that something

Union is prepared to commit to?

MR. PIETT: The first headline on this -- especially
for these three requests near the -- the other issue here
is "at the request of the landowner." So if the landowner

just asks, then we have to do to live up to the LOU.

So that is a concern to us, and that's why you will
see the new language 1is typically "in consultation with" or
"utilizing an expert to determine," and we will do that.

This one here, again, the wording is so general and
includes, you know, some different things that it just
wasn't specific enough for us. There are circumstances
where we do separate distinct soils, but that is upon
review of our topsoil inspector, as well as any expert that
we would need.

So something like a blue clay, if we encounter it, we
definitely will remove it, because it creates other issues
for us in construction. And there is other different
things again -- maybe Mr. Wesenger can talk to it and just

explain why we just don't want ultimate authority being
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with the landowner due to the issues that might be in the
subsurface.

MR. WESENGER: Certainly. On Hamilton-to-Milton, this
is not a predominant condition that would be anticipated.
There may be one or two soil types for a very, very short
stretch where this could occur.

Really what you have there and we are talking about
is the subsoil, where you have undesirable subsoil which
would be the clay-type material, which could be excavated
in the lower part of the trench, and mixing that with the
more desirable subsoil. So we would want to separate those
out.

But in this case, we could certainly look at including
-- where it is isolated in such short stretches, minimal
stretch for 100 meters or 200 meters or so, that would be
included in an environmental protection plan where the
soilils inspector would look out for the potential for that
to happen.

If he saw that it was beginning to happen, he would
recommend to the site superintendent that we have this
situation and we need to separate those materials.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And finally on this section, the last
-- the last option from Strathroy-Lobo is that Union would
over-winter topsoil prior to putting it back in place at
the request of the landowner. Is that something that Union
is prepared to commit to?

MR. PIETT: We will commit to over-wintering, you

know, based on a recommendation of our consultant that is a
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soils expert, but not at the request of the landowner.

And the issue there is it in the best interest of
both us, the company as well as the landowner, to get the
topsoil back as soon as possible.

However, there are times -- especially when you are
pushed into late fall construction and wet weather
conditions -- that it could be detrimental to the soil
itself, and a number of other issues caused by water
ponding over the stripped area on easement.

So again, we want to do the right thing, and again, we
don't want to just leave it to the landowner that decides
and then slows down the process of returning the land back
to productivity. We would definitely use a consultant and
an expert on it, and we do have examples of that, but just
to leave it totally to the landowner, we want to ensure
that we have input from all experts on that.

So we have a little more background, I think, on that
that we can add to it as to...

MR. WESENGER: So the biggest factor we would be
looking at is what is the likelihood that we can get that
topsoil returned to the easement in workable conditions,
right? So the saturation hasn't set in and it maintains to
be workable for the balance of the clean-up period for that
construction period.

If the soils inspector were to review the situation
and look at the specific time of year and say we are too
late into the fall, it doesn't look like things are going

to dry up, the decision may be made to over-winter. You
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know, the concern being if we do over-winter, of course,
the soils, that easement left exposed creates -- I could
describe it perhaps as a bathtub effect, where the water
would collect, the snow would collect, and as it melts it
takes a much longer period of time for that subsoil to dry
out, because the water has sort of ponded over the
easement. And then it could take much longer to get back
on those lands the following spring or early summer to
continue that clean-up, to finish the final clean-up on the
easement lands.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: To the extent that the landowner has
concerns about avoiding subsidence through the over-
wintering of the topsoil, so the topsoil doesn't go back on
until the subsoil has had the over-winter period to
subside, if it's going to subside, to the extent that that
is the concern of the landowner, doesn't the proposal here
in the Hamilton-to-Milton LOU eliminate the landowner
ability to put forward that proposal and to have it
considered and implemented by Union?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I disagree with that, Mr. Goudy. I
think what we are saying is -- I have tried to say before
that this is really -- this LOU is to talk about the
general practices. If a landowner has site-specific
concerns, there are two or three other avenues that he has.

As I mentioned before, in the LOU there is schedule B,
which is really at this point in time -- if you turn it up,
is a blank sheet. It is to deal with the special concerns

of any individual landowner, as well as we mentioned here
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is our lands relation program. If a landowner had that,
they could bring it up both to the LRA, to the person who
is signing that. And again, there is our complaint
tracking process, so if the landowner did not get -- if
they weren't able to resolve it, that that is an escalating
process right up to the senior management at Union.

The other thing which Union has agreed to in this case
is the construction monitor, and if you look at what the
objectives or the roles of the construction monitor are, it
is there -- he is there as well as an asset if a person
wanted that.

So again, the LOU is really just to talk about the
general -- the normal practices. So if construction is
done on a property in July, we try to put -- our preference
is to put the topsoil back in August. Again, as Mr.
Wesenger talked about, if the topsoil -- if we are into
August or September/October, it probably will get left, but
I mean, we're really there as -- is that we talk about what
the general rules are, not necessarily all the site-
specific or nuances that are there, and we would hope that
our other processes, the complaint tracking, the issues
dealing with the construction monitor, the pre-construction
interviews and that, that those would resolve those issues.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But without the option in the letter
of understanding, the final decision is made by Union,
regardless of the landowner's preference?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Well, I mean, there are options where

he can raise it. I mean, i1f the construction monitor was
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involved and he made a recommendation, I mean, that is
something that would be basically going to both Union, the
Board, and to GAPLO. I mean, while it may be true you
would have the final say, but, I mean, if a construction
monitor recommended something, it is going to have to be
awfully -- Union -- it would be difficult for Union to go
and say no to something that the construction monitor found
acceptable.

MS. HARE: Can I ask a question? Is the soils
consultant different from the independent environmental
monitor?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes.

MS. HARE: So it's two separate people?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Traditionally we would have a person
from Mr. Wesenger's firm out as a topsoil inspector, the
independent firm. And again, they filed their report as
part of GAPLO's evidence, was really an engineering
environment form that was a different one and completely
separate.

MS. HARE: No, but during construction you are going
to have two experts? You're going to have the
environmental monitor and the soils consultant? Or is that
person one and the same?

MR. WACHSMUTH: ©No, they are two different people.

MS. HARE: Thank you.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: On the next section with respect to
depth of cover, section 7 of the letter of understanding,

this is more or less —-- the new provision is more or less
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what Strathroy-Lobo was, except that Union has removed the
possibility of increasing the depth of cover over the pipe
to accommodate drainage.

MR. WACHSMUTH: I don't think that is quite correct.
You are correct that we have taken the drainage consultant
out of here. What we have done is we've tried to move all
of the drainage settings to the one clause, which we will
come to in a few minutes here, but aspects of drainage we
thought should all be in one drain in the section dealing
with drainage, not spread out throughout the document.

That was one of the reasons why we tried to do it, was
to make it more consistent.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So it's Union's position, then, that
it will consider adjustment to the depth of cover over the
pipe to accommodate drainage within the provision that is
proposed in the LOU?

MR. PIETT: Yes, that is correct, and you will see it
in 9 of the Hamilton-to-Milton proposal. There is adequate
language in there to ensure that occurs.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Okay. The next item I would like to
ask you about is at page 5 of the table. It has to do with
the over-wintering of the topsoil. And what it appears --
perhaps you can confirm -- what Union is saying is they
will address subsidence where the topsoil has been over-
wintered where there is subsidence greater than 4 inches,
but not at 2 inches, as had been agreed in Strathroy-Lobo.

MR. PIETT: That is correct. The 2 inches is too

restrictive, so we can put it in that category. It is just
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not practical. I mean, normal farming practices from
cultivation, ploughing, et cetera will definitely see, you
know, a 2-inch differential. However, the zero to 4 inches
is reasonable.

Again, it is also consistent if you look on the left-

hand side for what is proposed in the Hamilton-to-Milton

LOU. It is consistent with everything that we have
addressed there. So we feel it is a very reasonable way to
do it.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Would you agree with me that the
issue for landowners about correcting subsidence is one
primarily about the mixing of subsoil and topsoil during
tillage at the edges of the area of subsidence?

MR. PIETT: 1If it's over 4 inches, yes. But if it's
only a 2-inch subsidence, then normal tillage would
actually just in practice remove that 2-inch.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But whether or not the tillage is
going to affect the subsoil and mix with the topsoil is
going to depend on the depth of the topsoil; isn't that
correct?

MR. PIETT: Yes, it will, but again, it will depend on
how much topsoil is there to begin with. So if a natural
occurrence across a whole property is 3 inches, then
there's issues already about mixing if someone is chisel --
ploughing or just cultivating down past that 3-inch later.

However, if there is 12 inches of topsoil, that is
probably a non-issue in the realms of 2 inches, and that

hence why we have anything over 4 inches, yes, we will
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definitely address that, because then there could be issues
-- in addition to just the subsoil mixing, it's -- drainage
is the big issue there, to ensure the proper drainage.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But then if you look to the clause in
the Hamilton-to-Milton LOU at the bottom of page 5, Union's
already committed to correcting subsidence irrespective of
the 4 inches where it causes drainage problems.

MR. PIETT: Absolutely. We are committed. And again,
what we found over time and practice is that from zero to 4
inches it does not benefit anybody to get in there and
rework things or redo things.

But definitely anything over 4 inches, then we will
repair things.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And what about situations where the
mixing of topsoil and subsoil might result as -- because of
the depth of the topsoil on a particular property?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Mr. Wesenger?

MR. WESENGER: I think it would be very difficult to
discern that 2-inch -- again, I understand your point. I
think that with 4 inches, it is completely acceptable that
that is a concern if the subsidence were to that point.

Two inches, I think it would be very, very difficult
to achieve that, right? And to measure the extent of
mixing that occurs. It would be very, very minimal, T
would anticipate. Right?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: There are, Madam Chair, a few items
in this table that I am just going to skip over for time's

sake, and I will deal with that in --
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MS. HARE: What does that mean, "skip over"? That you
will deal with it in --

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I will deal with it in argument and
confirm what GAPLO's position on those specific items are.

MS. HARE: That's fine. Mr. Smith, do you want to
comment on that?

MR. SMITH: I will just have to see what it is, because
if there is a factual-based objection that Union has, I
think it's beneficial to the Board to know what that is.

I am not sure that it will be readily apparent simply
by way of argument, so I will just have to see what my
friend does.

MS. HARE: Okay. That's fine. Let's proceed on that
basis, then.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

So the bottom of page 6, I don't have any questions on
that particular item.

MS. HARE: Okay.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The top of page 7, I guess the second
item there is stone picking. And Union had agreed and
committed to landowners in Strathroy-Lobo, and on the
subsequent project, to pick stones down to 2 inches in
size; 1s that correct?

MR. PIETT: Originally had agreed. But at this point,
in the Hamilton-to-Milton, we have removed that.

Again, this one is in that category of just not
practical. And again, this goes back to, I believe -- and

I will ask other panel members to maybe help me with the
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history, but we did try to attempt to do this on Strathroy-
to-Lobo and not with success.

In fact, in the Cordner report that was written by the
independent monitor in that project -- and believe it's in
GAPLO's evidence, page 217 or 218, somewhere around there -
- they actually said that it was too restrictive and it was

not practical, and their recommendation was to be more

flexible.
So what we have attempted to do in here is -- and
basically or -- wording is that we will pick stone

comparable to the adjacent land. So if the landowner has
12-inch nuggets all over their property, we are not going
to pick it right down to nothing just on our easement.

I mean, if that's what the landowner has chose to
operate at, then fine. But if they pick their soil down to
something which is practical like a 4-inch, then we will
pick our easement down to 4-inch, and hence why we have set
the minimum at 4-inch or 100 millimetres to pick on the
right-of-way after our construction, and that is both on
topsoil and subsoil.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But you are leaving open the
possibility that Union's construction could cause a
situation of 2- to 4-inch sized stoniness on the
construction area that doesn't exist outside of the
construction area, and that will just be left as is?

MR. PIETT: I don't know if we can really say that.
Again, how far do we want to go down? Pick pebbles?

Like, we have to set a limit.
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The common practice with the equipment to get down to
this, like a 4-inch, is Jjust about all it can do. And
also, too, 1if you keep picking away and picking away, you
are eventually going to just reduce the material there, and
then you would have to truck in other material to replace
all the stones you took out.

I'm just saying, like, if you're in a gravel pit and
you have nothing but stones and you start picking, you are
not going to have a gravel pit left.

So this is just a practical approach to it, a common
approach. And again, it is a consistent approach with what
we have done in many other properties, and been very
successful at it.

And again, I will go back to it. It is included in
the Brantford-Kirkwall LOU. That is more agriculturally-
based than Hamilton-to-Milton, and it has been accepted by
everybody.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: It was accepted at 2 inches in
Strathroy-Lobo?

MR. PIETT: That is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But again, can you confirm that if
Union's construction results in stoniness on easement that
doesn't exist off easement, the landowner can expect that
he or she is going to be stuck with any stones that are
less than 4 inches in size, because Union is not committing
to pick them?

MR. PIETT: What you might be starting to describe is

another one of those special circumstances whereby

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAEPIA-PLC 291

somewhere -- you know, buried 4 feet below the ground there
is some kind of gravel strata, and in our work we have
moved that to the top...

I would prefer to, again, handle that on site-
specific, as Mr. Wachsmuth indicated, and work with the
landowner on something like that, as opposed to carte
blanche saying that we are going to pick down to 2-inch to
cover a what-if that we honestly haven't seen in my history
-- and help me here, but it is Jjust like -- again, it is
one of those non-practical ones, and we have tried to take
a practical approach here.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: What about the commitment in
Strathroy-Lobo to pick beyond two years after construction,
where there is a demonstrable need? 1Is that something that
Union can commit to again?

MS. HARE: I see that in the left-hand column it says
two years after construction.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Yes. But Strathroy-Lobo, in the
right-hand column, the second sentence says:

"The company shall return in following years
where there is a demonstrable need."

MS. HARE: So more than two years?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Yes.

MR. WACHSMUTH: Again, that would be -- I guess, if an
individual came up, we have operations people inside.
Generally speaking, we would hope that after two years we
wouldn't get that many coming up.

But if there was still a problem, the landowners do
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have our number; they are able to call the LRA. And if it
was an issue we would certainly deal with it.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: $So Union is committing to come and
pick rocks if there is a demonstrable need?

MR. WACHSMUTH: 1If the landowner identifies an issue,
we will certainly deal with it, Mr. Goudy. I don't think
it needs to be put in the LOU.

MS. HARE: What is the LRA again, please?

MR. WACHSMUTH: The lands relation agent, which is a
person assigned to the project to deal with the first
contact of all of the landowners along the length of the
pipeline.

MS. HARE: Thank you. Mr. Smith knows I don't like
acronyms.

MR. SMITH: I was just going to caution you that it is
helpful for the transcript if we refrain from using
acronyms.

MR. WESENGER: I was going to add just -- I can
appreciate the concern with the size of rocks, and I think
if a landowner or operator came and said: Look, I have a
specific type of equipment that is getting harmed by these
rocks up to 4 inches, Union would sit down and talk to that
landowner.

But from my perspective, the concern being removing
stones down to 2 inches is it's very difficult to achieve
that. It take a lot of effort, and sometimes those
mechanical rock pickers can start picking up clumps of

topsoil and removing those from the easement, along with
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the stones and the rocks.

In addition, when you start taking that much activity
to remove the rocks, you start pulverizing that topsoil and
breaking down its structure. So you are taking away the
benefit, in some cases, to the topsoil itself by over-
picking it or over-working the soil.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The next item here is drainage
tiling, and I don't actually have any questions on that.
And just to give comfort to Mr. Smith, I am not going to be
proposing in argument changes to that drainage tiling
section, so...

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And unfortunately I don't think that
we have the time to go through that section in any detail.
It is complicated.

MS. HARE: I will tell you, Mr. Goudy, we will have to
take a break a little shorter than our hearing plan --
sorry, sooner than our hearing plan indicates, maybe in
about five minutes. So maybe you could propose a suitable
time to stop, and then we will resume after that.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Sorry, you had said that it was going
to be sooner than the break that was —--

MS. HARE: Well, the hearing plan suggests 1:00
o'clock, and we will need to break at 12:45, but we will
let you continue after the break.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Sure. And I am kind of at a point
where I can't finish in five minutes, but I don't have a

whole lot more to do after that, but if we can just go to
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the break, I can continue after the break, so --

MS. HARE: Then let's go to the break now, and we will
return at 1:45.

—-—— Luncheon recess taken at 12:40 p.m.

-—— Upon resuming at 1:51 p.m.

MS. HARE: Please be seated. Are there any procedural
matters?

MR. SMITH: Two minor matters, Madam Chair, that I
would like to draw to your attention.

PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

MR. SMITH: The first follows on our discussion with
respect to the settlement agreement this morning.

MS. HARE: Yes.

MR. SMITH: We are currently reaching out to parties
with respect to the items we discussed. Let me just tell
you with respect to the future use clause that you had
identified, I can tell you what our proposal is going to
be.

That clause in the easement is there for historic
reasons, but it really isn't an -- it is applicable in the
case of a smaller-diameter distribution pipeline, but it
would not be the case that a 48-inch pipe would ever be
above ground.

So we are going to propose to remove it, and we will
be asking people to sign off on that. I don't expect any
pushback. But that is where that is headed.

MS. HARE: Okay.

MR. SMITH: And the other matter is we have just
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proposed some changes, and we will let you know, obviously.
I expect, given the timing, it likely won't be today.

So if it is amenable to the Board, we would put in a
letter as soon as we have confirmation, and if it is of
assistance, we could do a black-lined version of the
settlement agreement so you can see what the changes are
for your consideration.

MS. HARE: That would be helpful, a black-lined
version, and a clean one. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: The second item was a minor transcript
correction that I just raised with Mr. Piett to make.

Thank you.

MS. HARE: Okay. Mr. Piett, please?

MR. PIETT: Yes, during the break we had the
opportunity to go back and confer, and also look at some of
our history and talk to some of the people out in the
field.

Actually I was incorrect in saying we had never used
the mulch option when stripping topsoil, to differentiate
it between the stripped topsoil and the existing topsoil.

We actually have done that before on one project, on
our Sarnia industrial line, and we do have some
comments that may be helpful as to whether it was effective
or not.

Mr. Wesenger?

MR. SMITH: Mr. Wesenger?

MR. WESENGER: Yes, based on the information, the

clarification with Mr. Piett, I took the opportunity to
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contact one of my employees in Guelph, Mr. Rowland, who was
the soils inspector on that project. And he did confirm
that the mulch was added there.

I had a follow-up discussion with him about whether
or not it did add value to provide a separation with
the interface, and his comment was no, it didn't provide
any benefit whatsoever. There was some evidence that the
straw remained that was there. But the operator was quite
qualified, and it didn't limit his abilities whether it was
there or not.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Thank you.

MS. HARE: Anything else?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Madam Chair, I have -- this issue
could be left to the end of my planned cross-examination,
but I think I should deal with it now because it would
require me to go back over a few of the items I have
already asked questions on of the panel.

But as a result -- or on hearing some of the evidence
given by the panel, I had a request from my client
representatives that they be able to respond, provide
evidence, their evidence in response to that.

As I said before, at the time that GAPLO filed its
written evidence, we didn't have Union's proposed letter of
understanding for this project. So GAPLO wasn't aware of
the particular changes that were being proposed to the
Strathroy-Lobo form of agreement.

So that wasn't addressed in the written evidence, and
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couldn't be addressed at that time in the written evidence.

There are just, I think, three at this point --
subject to anything else that comes up in cross-
examination, there are just three discreet issues that they
would like to respond on, and it would be over-wintering of
topsoil, the addition of the mulch or straw layer, and I
suspect that they may have some evidence to provide on the
landowner option for approval -- sorry, landowner approval
of the source of topsoil to be imported to the property.

That is something I haven't touched on yet in my
questions, but I will be coming to that and I anticipate
that that may be an area that my client's representatives
would want to give evidence on.

And so I think I would like to make the request at
this time that they be permitted to do that, so that I can
then go back and ask any questions of the panel to cover
off evidence that I anticipate my client's representatives
giving, so that the panel has an opportunity to respond to
that at this time.

MS. HARE: Just before I get to you, Mr. Smith, I just
want to make sure I understand what you are saying.

We will decide now whether we allow your panel to take
the stand, but you want now to go back to questions, areas
that you have already pursued, or after your panel is on?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: No, at this time.

MS. HARE: At this time? Okay. Fine.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: There are a few points that I

anticipate my client representatives giving evidence on
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that I haven't already touched on with the panel, and I
would like -- I would ask that the Board make the decision
now, so that I am able to ask those additional questions in
cross-examination.

MS. HARE: Okay. Mr. Smith, do you have any comments
about the request?

MR. SMITH: Yes. I spoke to Mr. Goudy about this. A
couple of things. I mean, the first is I don't think this
is going to be an issue, so let me just get that out.

It's quite right that the letter of understanding was
not provided, or my friend did not have it at the time his
evidence was prepared. And so I understand that.

It was provided to my friend by me on or about
February 12th, so they have had it for some time. But be
that as it may, I don't have any objection to my friend
calling his witnesses.

What I had indicated to him, and thus sort of the
nature of his request, was that in fairness to these
witnesses, if the GAPLO representatives are going to say
something that we haven't had notice of, then it would be
fair that that evidence, or what he anticipates the
evidence is, be put to these witnesses so that they
have a fair opportunity to comment on it. And then you
will have their perspective, and then you will have the
GAPLO's witnesses' representatives perspective on it.

So provided the matters that they intend to testify to
are put to the Union witnesses, I don't have an objection.

I understand their testimony to be relatively limited, so I
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don't see it as being a big problem.

MS. HARE: Okay. Thank you.

Ms. Djurdjevic, do you have any comments?

MS. DJURDJEVIC: Board Staff has no objection.

MS. HARE: Yes, we are fine with what is being
proposed.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHN GOUDY (cont'd):

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

So I will leave the items that I will come back to --
I will leave those for the end, and I will just continue on
from where we left off in GAPLO's proposed changes to the
letter of understanding.

So I am back to, again, Exhibit K1.3, and at the
bottom of page 11, dealing with section 11 in the Hamilton-
to-Milton letter of understanding, there has been a
change from Strathroy-Lobo in which Union no longer commits
to ensuring that the landowner shall have access across the
former trench area and easement.

Do you see that change that's been made from the GAPLO
Union-Strathroy language?

MR. PIETT: We actually don't read it that way,
because our paragraph 11 -- our paragraph reads:

"Where requested by the landowner, the company
will leave plugs of access across the trench."

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Right. What I am asking about is the
commitment in the Strathroy-Lobo form of agreement. At the
end, it said:

"Following construction, the company shall ensure

ASAP Reporting Services Inc.
(613) 564-2727 (416) 861-8720



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
277

28

CAEPLA-PLC 300

that the landowner shall have access across the
former trench area and easement..."

Not just at plug locations, but the entirety of the
former trench area and easement.

MR. PIETT: And our paragraph reads:

"Following installation of the pipe and backfill,
if soft ground conditions persist that prevent
the landowner from crossing the trench line with
farm equipment, the company will improve crossing
conditions either by further replacement and/or
compaction of subsoil at the previous plug
locations or anywhere else. Should conditions
still prevent landowner crossing the company will
create a gravel base if necessary."

MR. JOHN GOUDY: GAPLO's issue is that it doesn't say
"or anywhere else." It stops at "previous plug locations."

MR. PIETT: That is not an issue. That is standard
practice, that we ensure that after we are finished
construction all farming activities can occur again.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: So then it is the commitment of Union
that following construction, the company shall ensure that
the landowner shall have access across the former trench
and easement?

MR. PIETT: Yes. We weren't reading it the way you
were.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: And perhaps on the next page, page
12, could you explain to me Union's rationale for no longer

committing to create a gravel base on filtered fabric
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across plugs where the landowner requests it?

MR. PIETT: Certainly. Again, the way this states
this, it is the landowner making that request, and there is
a number of other options that are available, and we have
offered that up if conditions persist, but if we can do it
with normal practice of backfill, compaction and returning
all the material back as normal, then there is no need to
go to that. And again, if you do go to that and put in
gravel base and filter cloth, it does raise other issues
again, removing it after the fact, and we would prefer not
to jump to that conclusion if there's other methods that
are available to us that we can do prior to that option.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Are those other methods something
that is discussed with the landowner?

MR. PIETT: Yeah, during, you know, pre-construction,
during construction, after construction, at any point in
time with our LRA, or lands relation agent, there is that
opportunity to discuss this. Typically this comes when
there is, like, wet conditions, and again, you get into
fall cropping and want to go from one side to the other of
the easement, and again, we will ensure that the landowner
can get across the easement.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

On page 14 of the table, this is the section Roman
numeral X in the Hamilton-to-Milton letter of
understanding. So it's section 15, "Covenants," subsection
Roman numeral X. And here Union covenants that it won't --

its construction activities won't occur outside of agreed-
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to areas without the written permission of the landowner.
In Strathroy-Lobo that section also referred to operation
activities.

Is Union prepared to commit to provide the same
covenant to landowners with respect to operation
activities?

MR. WACHSMUTH: We are prepared to do the covenant,
but as I said, when we tried to revise this document we
tried to really make this dealing with construction. And
there are other agreements in place that deal with
operation and the dig agreement, but really this is
construction, so we tried to take out, where possible,
anything else that didn't deal with construction.

So we recognize other agreements there will be in
place to deal with that, and that is why we took it out of
the LOU, letter of understanding.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Notwithstanding that it may not fall
in the letter of understanding, then, is that a commitment
that Union makes with respect to its operation of the
pipeline?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I am skipping over the language at
the bottom of page 14 with respect to the importation of
topsoil. That's on the basis that we won't be raising that
in argument.

Mr. Wachsmuth, on page 16, adjacent to the covenant
respecting the integrity dig agreement, I take it that your

last response about restricting this document to
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construction is the answer to why that language was taken
out?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Yes, that is correct.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But can you also confirm that the
language that was taken out from the Strathroy-Lobo
agreement is something that Union is committed to outside
of this letter of understanding?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think that that is all covered off
in the dig agreement, sir, and that was filed as part of
your evidence.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Thank you.

At the bottom of page 16, what has been removed from
the Strathroy-Lobo form of letter of understanding with
respect to imported topsoil is the previous requirement
that the topsoil be from a source approved by the
landowner. Is that something that Union is prepared to
commit to putting back into the letter of understanding?

MR. PIETT: ©No, we are not. Again, the reason being
here is, again, we want to rely on our specialists that
have actually analyzed the topsoil to ensure that it is
appropriate to bring back on that property to be consistent
with the existing topsoil, and we can't, in a general term,
just leave that to the landowners to always make that
decision. We want to ensure that we consult with --
consult with the landowner as to what they think, but we
want the decision to be left with -- based on -- or based
on the recommendation of our consultant, who will do a

number of different analyses to that soil before we will
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bring it on so that we do not impact any kind of
productivity or the quality of the soil that is on that
property.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But isn't the clause as it was stated
in Strathroy-Lobo with the additional language at the end
of the statement -- doesn't that create a situation where
it is Union's consultant that is choosing, selecting and
proposing the topsoil that is to be imported, but that
selection is subject to the approval of the landowner?

MR. PIETT: I don't have that wording right here to
refer to --

MR. JOHN GOUDY: If you look at the table, the wording
that is in the Hamilton-to-Milton letter of understanding
is:

"Any imported topsoil shall be natural, free of
soybean cyst nematode, and shall have attributes
consistent with the topsoil of adjacent lands as
determined by the company's consultant."

The additional language that has been removed and that
GAPLO is proposing be added back in is that "and be from a
source approved by the landowner."

Does that not -- I mean, that's what was in the
Strathroy-Lobo agreement that Union used. Is that not a
process whereby Union's consultant selects the soil subject
only to the approval by the landowner?

MR. PIETT: If we were to read it that way -- however,
again, we weren't -- it could be, except that it offers up

— there's other issues here, that if the landowner was to
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not accept what our consultant said, then where are we
going? I mean, we do need to find the proper topsoil to
bring back, so again, maybe this is just editorial and just
understanding what the intent was of the original document,
but that in itself is -- I mean, if we have a specialist
pick the soil, then I am sure the landowner should agree to
one of those, but if they don't, where are we? We have to
bring soil in, and we have to replace it.

So I would prefer to stay with our wording, which I
think protects the landowner, because, again, through
everything else, we've been very clear that we consult with
the landowner through all of this, and this is no
exception.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But at the end of the day that sets
up the situation where if, for whatever -- the landowner is
-- has reasonable problems, reasonable concerns about the
topsoil that's been selected by Union's consultant, the
landowner is obligated to accept that soil onto his or her
property without any recourse.

MR. VADLJA: Mr. Goudy, from a practical perspective,
we would work with the landowner to ensure that they are
comfortable with the topsoil we are bringing onto their
property. It is their property and they will need to work
that topsoil in the future. We will want to make sure that
topsoil is adequate for their purposes.

So the company consultant would judge the merit of
that topsoil, make sure it is appropriate for that

property, discuss that with the landowner, and we would
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hope that the landowner would be in agreement with that.

MR. WACHSMUTH: As well, Mr. Goudy, I think if you
look in our complaint tracking program, where if the
landowner did have issues with it, we do have processes in
place where that complaint can be escalated up through the
engineering, up to a vice president or senior management
level, if there are complaints.

As well on this project, we are proposing to have an
independent monitor who would be able to have an opinion on
what this is.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: 1If there is not a commitment to have
the source of the topsoil approved by the landowner, then
what -- what is there to say that the landowner is going to
be informed of the source of the topsoil that is being
imported?

I mean, the landowner may have concerns, but the
landowner is not going to be in a position to express any
concern if he or she doesn't -- isn't told where the
topsoil is coming from.

MR. VADLJA: Perhaps the commitment that could be made
then is to ensure that that consultant -- that that
discussion does happen within the landowner. So if there
is topsoil being brought onto a landowner's property, the
commitment that could be made is that the landowner is
informed about -- that a discussion around the quality of
that topsoil takes place with the landowner prior to that
topsoil being brought to site.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The quality and the source?
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MR. VADLJA: The quality and the source.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: On page 17 in the dispute resolution
section -- I won't be asking any questions on that topsoil
importation. That is linked to the previous section that I
had passed over.

On page 18 under section 17, "Land rights and
easements," Union in this document agrees that it:

"... will not surrender or be released from any
of its obligations under an easement for this
project without the consent of the landowner."

In Strathroy-Lobo, the language was slightly
different; it was:

"... will not surrender or be released from any
of its obligations in the easement lands."

So GAPLO's question is whether Union is prepared to
commit that it won't surrender or be released from
any of its obligations in the letter of understanding
without the consent of the landowner.

MR. SMITH: Sorry, Mr. Goudy, I may have
misunderstood. Are you asking that the language on the
right-hand side be included, or something different?

MR. JOHN GOUDY: GAPLO's position is that the language
on the right-hand side did cover the letter of
understanding, and that that was the purpose of that
language.

It's been removed, and so I guess either will Union
commit to restoring that language, or alternatively, will

Union commit that it will not surrender or be released from
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any of its obligations under the letter of understanding
without the consent of the landowner?

MS. HARE: Perhaps the witnesses are having the same
problem that I am. I don't see the difference between one
column and the other column.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: Madam Chair, in the new agreement,
its obligations under an easement for this project with
reference to the easement agreement.

MS. HARE: Right.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: It is more general in the Strathroy-
Lobo form, which was its obligations in the easement lands,
which may extend beyond the easement agreement.

There are obligations that Union has undertaken on the
easement lands, including the construction obligations.

MR. WACHSMUTH: I am afraid this is something the
lawyers might have to deal with, because we just can't, I
am sorry.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: I will move on. The next item is on
page 23 and it takes us back briefly to the question of
abandonment.

There was an additional provision in the Strathroy-
Lobo agreement that said that:

"The company, 1in consultation with the landowner
or third parties as required, will determine a
reasonable and appropriate course of action to
rectify any deficiencies."

Is that something that Union is prepared to commit to

for this project?
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MR. WACHSMUTH: I think Mr. Walker talked this morning
about the fact that abandonment plans would be prepared,
and my understanding is that those abandonment plans would
be comprehensive and that these things would be covered
again in that future agreement and plan.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: What is the future agreement?

MR. WACHSMUTH: Or future plan, sorry.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But the future plan isn't going to be
an agreement between Union and the landowner?

MR. WACHSMUTH: There could be agreements in place if
we needed additional temporary lands in order to do the
abandonment, if we were pulling it out. That's just - it
would be part of any future plan, Mr. Goudy.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: But at the present time, Union is not
prepared to commit to rectifying deficiencies from pipeline
abandonment?

MR. WACHSMUTH: I think our easement agreement
requires us to do that, sir.

MR. PIETT: And to add on that, our wording in the
Hamilton-to-Milton specifically says:

"Upon abandonment, the pipeline..."

Sorry, too fast? In the wording of the Hamilton-to-
Milton:

"We will return as close as possible to its prior
use and condition, with no ascertainable changes
in appearance or productivity, as determined by a
comparison of the crop yields, with adjacent

lands..."
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Et cetera.

So I think it's all covered and it is in there. The
fact that we're just not going to accept your wording, we
believe, as stated before, that we have tried to make this
simpler, cleaner, more understandable and straightforward.

So I think both the landowners and Union Gas are
covered in that respect.

MR. JOHN GOUDY: The language that's in the right-
hand column was language that was part of the clause that
appears in the left-hand column originally, and it has been
removed by Union Gas.

If what you are telling me is that the intention --
Union's intention -- its commitment is the same as it was
before, with or without that language, then tell me that.
If there is a change in intention, tell me that.

MR. SMITH: Well, I think it is wvery clear that the
company's obligation is as specified in the left-hand side,
to return the lands as close as possible to its prior use
and condition with no ascertainable change.

So I think the company's position is we were not
attempting a substantive change to the wording.

MS. FRY: Wording aside, could you also tell us about
your view of the operational implications?

MR. PIETT: Could you actually clarify what you are
looking for, as far as the operational implication of
abandonment?

MS. FRY: Okay. From the point of view of what you

would do operationally under the clause in the left-hand
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column versus the proposal to add the right-hand column,
what would the difference be to your operations, if any,
between the two sc